
Board Agenda, May 5, 2022 
 

1 

 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Jacqueline Zhang, Student Member 
 

Thursday, May 5, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

(See Notice to the Public Below) 

AMENDED AGENDA 
AGENDA 

 
2021/22-33 

 
       Allotted Time 

4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 



Board Agenda, May 5, 2022 
 

2 

3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 
a) John Still K-8 School, Principal 
b) Matsuyama Elementary School, Principal 
 

3.5 Education Code 35146 – The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 
following student expulsion: 
a) Expulsion #7, 2021-22 
 

 
6:00 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement  
 
4.3 Stellar Student, Karla Flores Castro, a Freshman at Luther Burbank High 

School, to be introduced by Second Vice President Rhodes 
 
 

6:05 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
6:10 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
 

6:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            15 minutes 
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be 
called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are 
limited to two (2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as 
possible may be heard.  By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The 
Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.  

 
 

 8.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

6:30 p.m. 

 

8.1 Approve Letter Supporting CLARA (E. Claire Raley Studios 
for the Performing Arts) Proposal for State Funding (Leticia 
Garcia) 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote) 

 
 

6:40 p.m. 

 

8.2 Local Control and Accountability Plan Update (Steven 
Ramirez-Fong) 

Information 
20 minute presentation 

20 minute discussion 
 

 
7:20 p.m. 

 

8.3 Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Grant Overview 
(Manpreet Kaur and Mark Carnero) 

Information 
15 minute presentation 

15 minute discussion 
 

 



Board Agenda, May 5, 2022 
 

3 

7:50 p.m. 

 

8.4 Amend Appointment of Board Members to Advisory 
Subcommittee on Common Assessments (Christina Pritchett) 

Action 
5 minute presentation 

5 minute discussion 
(Roll Call Vote)  

 
8:00 p.m. 9.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 9.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  
 SEIU 
 TCS 
 Teamsters  
 UPE 
 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 
TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 
UPE – 3 minutes  

 

8:12 p.m. 9.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Student Advisory Council 

 African American Advisory Board 

 

Information 
3 minutes each 

8:27 p.m. 9.3 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar)  Information 
5 minutes 

 
9:02 p.m. 9.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett) Information 

5 minutes 
 

9:07 p.m. 9.5 Student Member Report (Jacqueline Zhang) Information 
5 minutes 

 
9:12 p.m. 9.6 Information Sharing By Board Members Information 

10 minutes 
 
 

9:22 p.m. 10.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 
2 minutes 

 (Roll Call Vote) 
 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
10.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
  

10.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 



Board Agenda, May 5, 2022 
 

4 

 

10.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
 

10.1c Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #7, 2021-22 (Lisa Allen and 
Stephan Brown) 
 

10.1d Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Boston, Massachusetts from May 15 
to May 20, 2022 (Christine Baeta and Chad Sweitzer) 

 
10.1e Approve Removal and Disposal of Out of Adoption K-5 Science Instructional 

Materials (Christine Baeta) 
 

10.1f Approve Resolution No. 3271:  Adopting the Specifications of the Election Order 
and for Consolidation with Statewide General Election of November 8, 2022 
(Anne Collins) 
 

10.1g Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

10.1h Approve 2022-2023 Traditional School Attendance Calendar (Shawn Hadnot) 
 
10.1i Approve Revised Board of Education Meeting Calendar for 2021-22  

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
 

9:24 p.m. 11.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

 11.1 Business and Financial Information: 
• Enrollment and Attendance Report, Month 7 (Rose Ramos)  

 
9:27 p.m. 12.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 May 19, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 June 9, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
9:30 p.m. 13.0 ADJOURNMENT  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 2 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 8.1 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Letter Supporting CLARA (E. Claire Raley Studios for the 

Performing Arts) Proposal for State Funding 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Board Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Letter Supporting CLARA Proposal for State Funding 
 
Background/Rationale:   CLARA (E. Clair Raley Studios for the Performing Arts) is a 
Sacramento-based nonprofit that provides art education, access, and resources to the 
community.  In 2015, the Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD), in 
partnership with the City of Sacramento, entered into a long-term lease with CLARA, to 
provide, among other services, arts education to designated Title 1 schools. 
 
CLARA is requesting $3.4 million in the State’s 2022-23 budget to complete the 
Courtyard Studio Project.  These funds will be used to construct a new, professional 
classroom and performance space, which will seat up to 350 audience members and 
serve students in SCUSD and beyond.  Furthermore, the proposed Courtyard Studio 
Project will benefit SCUSD students in several ways:  1) additional classroom space will 
allow CLARA to double in size for summer camps—where 50% of the campers are 
SCUSD students who attend on a scholarship with an estimated annual impact of 100 
students; 2) additional studio and performance space will allow CLARA to reinstate the 
Teaching Artist Space Exchange—where community artists exchange time teaching at 
schools for free in exchange free use of rehearsal space increasing the number of free 
residencies at SCUSD, with an estimated annual impact of 300 students; and, 3) the 
additional performance space will provide added capacity for student matinees and 
other field trips to the CLARA campus. 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  N/A 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Letter in Support of CLARA proposal for state funding – to be provided prior to the Board 

meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Alexis Rincon, Legal Analyst 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 



 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OFFICE 

5735 47th Avenue  Sacramento, CA 95824 
(916) 643-9314  FAX (916) 399-2058 

Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 

 
 
 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
 
Christina Pritchett 
President 
Trustee Area 3 
 
 
Leticia Garcia 
Vice President 
Trustee Area 2 
 
 
Chinua Rhodes 
2nd Vice President 
Trustee Area 5 
 
 
Lisa Murawski 
Trustee Area 1 
 
 
Jamee Villa 
Trustee Area 4 
 
 
Darrel Woo 
Trustee Area 6 
 
 
Lavinia Grace Phillips 
Trustee Area 7 
 
 
Jacqueline Zhang 
Student Board Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 5, 2022 
 
The Honorable Dr. Richard Pan 
California State Senate 
1021 O Street, Suite 7320  
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
The Honorable Kevin McCarty, Chair 
Assembly Budget Subcommittee #2 on Education Finance 
California State Assembly 
1021 O Street, Suite 4250 
Sacramento, CA 95814  
 
 RE: Budget Request for the CLARA Courtyard Studio Project—Support 
 
Dear Honorable Members McCarty and Pan: 
 
We write in support of CLARA’s (E. Claire Raley Studios for the Performing Arts) 
budget request for $3.4 million in the State’s 2022-23 Budget.  The Courtyard Studio 
Project will fund construction of a new, professional classroom and performance space, 
which will seat up to 350 audience members and serve students in Sacramento City 
Unified School District (SCUSD) and beyond.  By way of background, CLARA are 
Studios for the Performing Arts Operating Company, which began in 2015 when SCUSD 
donated the historic Fremont Building to be the home to diverse cultural organizations.  
CLARA benefits from this donation in exchange for free arts outreach programming to 
selected Title 1 schools.  CLARA also offers space to cultural organizations at 50% of 
market rate with seven permanent tenants as well as affordable short-term event space to 
community arts groups.  
 
CLARA’s arts education programs serve more than 3,600 students per year in SCUSD, 
an additional 12,000 students in the greater Sacramento region per year via in-person-
fee-for-service programs; and, an additional 84,000 students state-wide via their online 
digital arts platform—which is Elk Grove Unified School District’s official Visual and 
Performing Arts curriculum for students in TK-6 grades.  CLARA’s programs were a 
lifeline for many of our students during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Furthermore, the proposed Courtyard Studio Project will benefit SCUSD students in 
several ways:  1) additional classroom space will allow CLARA to double in size for 
summer camps—where 50% of the campers are SCUSD students who attend on a 
scholarship with an estimated annual impact of 100 students; 2) additional studio and 
performance space will allow CLARA to reinstate the Teaching Artist Space 
Exchange—where community artists exchange time teaching at schools for free in 
exchange free use of rehearsal space increasing the number of free residencies at 
SCUSD, with an estimated annual impact of 300 students; and, 3) the additional 
performance space will provide added capacity for student matinees and other field trips 
to the CLARA campus. 



 
For these reasons, we support CLARA’s $3.4 million budget request for the Courtyard 
Studio Project in the 2022-23 budget.  Thank you for your consideration of this 
community budget request. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Christina Pritchett, Board President 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
 
CP/AC/am 
 
cc:  Maria Alvarez, Chief of Staff, Assemblymember Kevin McCarty 

Darin Walsh, Chief of Staff, Senator Richard Pan 
Megan Wygant, Executive Director, CLARA 

 
  

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Item# 8.2  
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Continuous Improvement and Accountability Office 
 
Recommendation: None 
 
Background/Rationale: Annually, districts must develop a Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (LCAP).  The LCAP provides details of goals, actions, and 
expenditures to support identified student outcomes and overall performance.  
The 2022-23 LCAP represents the second year of the current 2021-22 to 2023-
24 three-year cycle.  The final submission to the Sacramento County Office of 
Education will include the 2022 LCFF Budget Overview for Parents and the 2022 
Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021-22 LCAP (presented to the board 
in February 2022).  This item provides an update on the LCAP development 
process to-date. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goals: College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally 
Healthy and Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; 
Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached: 

1. Executive Summary 
2. Draft Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) materials 
 

 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 20 minutes 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent 
  Steven Fong, LCAP/SPSA Coordinator 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
I. Overview/History of Department or Program 
 
In July 2013, the state Legislature approved a new funding system for all California public schools. This new 
funding system, the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), requires that every Local Education Agency write 
a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).  
 
The 2022-23 LCAP represents year 2 in the current three-year LCAP cycle (2021-22 through 2023-24).  The 
2021-22 to 2023-24 LCAP was approved by the board in June 2021.  This reestablished the three-year 
cadence of the LCAP following a postponement in 2019-20 due to COVID-19. 
 
The overall 2022-23 LCAP materials submitted to the Sacramento County Office of Education will also 
include a one-time report referred to as the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021-22 LCAP.  This 
document provided an update to the board in February 2022 on the planned use of funding from the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021.  This included an update on the implementation of the ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan, approved by the board in Fall 2021. 
 
II. Driving Governance: 
 
According to Ed Code 52060, on or before July 1, annually, the Governing Board of each school district shall 
adopt a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) using a template adopted by the State Board of 
Education (SBE), effective for three years with annual updates. It will include the district’s annual goals for all 
students and for each significant subgroup in regard to the eight state priorities and any local priorities, as 
well as the plans for implementing actions to achieve those goals.  
 
Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 required districts to present an update on the Annual Update to the 
2021-22 LCAP on or before February 28, 2022 at a regularly scheduled meeting of the board.  This included: 
• The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
• All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
• Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 
 
Ed Code 52064(e)(5) requires a district that is eligible to receive Differentiated Assistance based on the 
performance of the same student group or groups for three or more consecutive years to include a goal in 
the LCAP focused on improving the performance of that student group or groups. 
 
III. Budget: 
 
SCUSD’s Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) includes projected expenditures for the actions and 
services aligned to each LCAP goal.  The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents 
for 2022-23 will provide a high-level overview of the district’s entire budget.  This will enable educational 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

partners to clearly view the following for 2022-23: 
 
Total Projected District Revenue  
• Total projected LCFF revenue  
• Total projected LCFF Supplemental and Concentration grant revenue  
• Total projected revenue from other state sources  
• Total projected revenue from local funds 
• Total projected Federal funding revenue (including Title I, II, and III funding) 
• Total projected revenue 
 
Projected Expenditures 
• Total Projected General Fund Expenditures 
• Total Projected Expenditures included in the LCAP 
• Total Projected Expenditures in the LCAP for high-needs students 
 
Update on the 2021-22 LCAP 
• Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP 
• Actual Expenditures for High Needs Students in the LCAP 
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures: 
 
The LCAP is a three-year plan that describes the goals, actions, services, and expenditures to support 
positive student outcomes that address state and local priorities. The LCAP provides an opportunity for local 
educational agencies (LEAs) to share their stories of how, what, and why programs and services are selected 
to meet their local needs. (From CDE LCAP web page) 
 
The key components of an LCAP include:  
• An overview of the district’s context, recent successes and identified needs 
• A district’s goals 
• The actions/services that the district will implement to achieve those goals (and their projected costs) 
• The metrics that will be used to determine success and the target outcomes for each metric 
• Analysis of outcomes and expenditures from the previous year 
• Description of how the district is increasing/improving services for unduplicated students 
• Description of how educational partner input was solicited, summary of key input, and how it influenced 

the plan 
 
SCUSD’s current LCAP goals were developed during the 2020-21 year and are reflected in the 2021-22 
through 2023-24 LCAP that was approved in June 2021.  These build upon the district’s prior LCAP goals, 
former strategic plan, and the current core value and guiding principle.  The proposed goals are: 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

1. 100% of SCUSD students will graduate college and career ready with a wide array of postsecondary 
options and a clear postsecondary plan.  Growth in Graduation Rate and College/Career Readiness will 
be accelerated for Students with Disabilities, English Learners, African American students, American 
Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, 
Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and other student groups with gaps in outcomes until gaps are 
eliminated. 

2. Provide every SCUSD student an educational program with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity to 
district programs and practices, and robust, rigorous learning experiences inside and outside the 
classroom so that all students can meet or exceed state standards. 

3. Provide every student the specific academic, behavioral, social-emotional, and mental and physical 
health supports to meet their individual needs - especially English Learners, Students with Disabilities, 
Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, 
Hispanic/Latino students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, and other student groups whose 
outcomes indicate the greatest need – so that all students can remain fully engaged in school and access 
core instruction. 

4. School and classroom learning environments will become safer, more inclusive, and more culturally 
competent through the active dismantling of inequitable and discriminatory systems affecting BIPOC 
students, Students with Disabilities, English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and LGBTQ+ Youth.   

5. Parents, families, community stakeholders, and students will be engaged and empowered as partners in 
teaching and learning through effective communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-
making. 

6. Provide all school sites three-years of training, coaching, and ongoing support to implement an effective 
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS).  Training will be completed and all district sites should be 
conducting business and serving students using an MTSS framework by 2024-25.  Progress will be 
measured with the Self-Assessment of MTSS (SAM) Implementation tool in addition to external 
indicators of site fidelity including: (a) holding MTSS team meetings regularly, (b) engaging in data based 
practices to assess need and progress monitor and (c) providing differentiated tiered interventions as 
evidenced by twice-yearly report outs of challenges/successes by each site leader. 

7. SCUSD will revisit and revise the District Graduate Profile (Previously adopted in 2014) so that it 
accurately reflects the current priorities of stakeholders and adopt the updated version by the end of 
2021-22.  School sites will be provided support to align their instructional priorities and goals to the 
revised Graduate Profile so that all sites demonstrate evidence of alignment in their school plans by 
2023-24. 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

4 | P a g e  
 

8. SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean facilities, core classroom staffing, 
and other basic conditions necessary to support the effective implementation of actions across all LCAP 
goals. 

The LCAP must include measurable outcomes that enable the district to monitor progress across the eight 
state priorities.  The eight state priorities and examples of required measurable outcomes within each 
include: 
 
1. Basics (Teacher Assignments, Access to Instructional Materials, Facilities in good repair) 
2. State Standards (Implementation of academic content and performance standards adopted by the state) 
3. Parental Involvement (Efforts to seek parent input in decision making and promotion of parent 

participation) 
4. Pupil Achievement (Performance on standardized tests, college/career readiness, English Learner 

reclassification and proficiency) 
5. Pupil Engagement (Attendance rates, Chronic Absenteeism rates, Drop-out rates, Graduation Rates) 
6. School Climate (Suspension rates, Expulsion rates, local surveys of safety and connectedness) 
7. Course Access (Enrollment in a broad course of study) 
8. Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil outcomes in subject areas) 

 
In addition to the above, the LCAP includes a range of state and local indicators that SCUSD uses to monitor 
progress towards the plan’s goals.  For each measurable outcome identified, specific target outcomes for 
2023-24 must be set.   
 
V. Major Initiatives: 
 
Development of New LCAP Goals 
A key area of growth for the 2022-23 LCAP is the development of three new goals, with the new goals 
focused on improving outcomes for Students with Disabilities, Homeless Youth, and Foster Youth, 
respectively.  These new goals are required by Education Code based on SCUSD’s recurring eligibility for 
Differentiated Assistance for all three student groups. 
 
The state’s accountability and continuous improvement system is based on a three-tiered framework, with 
the first tier made up of resources and assistance available to all local education agencies. Differentiated 
Assistance is the second tier of assistance that is required by statute to provide to districts that meet certain 
eligibility criteria. The Sacramento County Office of Education offers technical assistance to foster 
improvement for the identified student groups. 
 
Eligibility for Differentiated Assistance under the California System of Support is defined as two or more 
student groups receiving a red indicator on two or more state priorities on the California School Dashboard 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

(Dashboard). Based on the review of student group performance on the 2019 Dashboard, SCUSD was 
identified as eligible for Differentiated Assistance for these student groups in these State indicators: 
• Foster Youth: English Language Arts (ELA) and Math, Graduation Rate, Suspension Rate 
• Students with Disabilities: English Language Arts (ELA) and Math, Graduation Rate 
• Homeless Youth: English Language Arts (ELA) and Math, Chronic Absenteeism 

Due to COVID-19, the state of California did not publish a full Dashboard in 2020 or 2021 and prior eligibility 
for Differentiated Assistance was maintained through 2020-21. 
 
Additionally, the performance of these student groups over time - Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, 
and Homeless Youth - has resulted in the district’s identification by the state for additional support.  As a 
result of persistent performance issues for these student groups over several years, the district became 
eligible in fall 2019 for Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) support from the California Collaborative for 
Education Excellence (CCEE).  In the SIR process, CCEE staff conducted a comprehensive assessment 
(academic and social emotional of the district’s instructional systems, progress of state requirements, and 
implementation of teaching and learning practices in order to successfully meet the needs of all learners. 
 
The three new LCAP goals (9, 10, and 11) represent focused goals that identify actions and measurable 
outcomes specific to the three student groups. 
 
Alignment to ESSER III Actions 
Across the LCAP, a key effort for the 2022-23 plan is the alignment to actions in the ESSER III Expenditure 
Plan.  This includes the incorporation of new actions where applicable and notation within existing actions of 
aligned purpose.  With the ESSER III plan having been developed in close alignment with the LCAP, it is 
helpful to establish further transparency by bringing those descriptions into the LCAP.  With both the current 
LCAP cycle and the ESSER III funding timeline running through 2023-24, the timing of the two process is also 
in sync. 
 
A key aspect of the LCAP is the requirement that districts describe how they have increased and improved 
services for the following students groups (collectively referred to as ‘Unduplicated Students’) as compared 
to all students:  
• English language learners 
• Students eligible for free and reduced price meals program (low income) 
• Foster Youth 
• Homeless students 
 
A major initiative highlighted within this year’s LCAP is the district’s implementation of an effective Multi-
Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) at all school sites.  This effort began during the 2020-21 school with a first 
cohort of 25 schools beginning their Year 1 (of 3) training and implementation.  Cohort 2 is almost done with 
their first year and the final cohort of schools is preparing to begin their training in the fall of 2022.  This 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

6 | P a g e  
 

initiative is a key priority in the district and represented by both a focus goal within the LCAP as well as key 
connections points throughout. 
 
Educational partner engagement is a foundational part of the LCAP process and the input of partners played 
a significant role in shaping the current three-year plan.  In the current year, input from educational partners 
has continued to drive improvements throughout the goals, actions, and measurable outcomes.  For this 
current LCAP, engagement has built through the ESSER III expenditure plan development process and 
parallel to the development of other key plans such as the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (EEBG) plan, 
the Expanded Learning Opportunities Plan (ELO-P), and the new English Learner Master Plan.  Engagement 
activities include meetings with district committees and groups, district surveys, listening sessions, and the 
program planning of staff.  District committees and groups include the African American Advisory Board 
(AAAB), American Indian Education Program (AIEP) Parent Committee, Community Advisory Committee 
(CAC), District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC), LCAP Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and 
Student Advisory Council (SAC).  The educational partner engagement section of the LCAP outlines the 
engagement activities, key input received, and impact of the input on LCAP development. 
 
VI. Results: 

 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) must be presented to the board in a public hearing and, in 
a subsequent meeting, for adoption prior to June 30, 2022.  These steps must occur in alignment with the 
public hearing and adoption of the district’s 2021-22 budget.  Within 5 days of adoption, the LCAP must be 
submitted to the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) for approval.   
 
Beginning with the 2021-22 LCAP, the Dashboard Local Indicators must also be presented during the same 
meeting at which the LCAP is adopted.  Dashboard Local Indicators are self-reported by districts to the state 
and include: 
• Basic Conditions: Teachers, Instructional Materials, Facilities 
• Implementation of Academic Standards 
• Parent and Family Engagement 
• Local Climate Survey 
• Access to a Broad Course of Study 
 
 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps: 
 
Remaining Checkpoints in the LCAP development and adoption process include: 

• May 19, 2022:  Presentation of Stakeholder Input Summary to Board 
• June 9, 2022:  LCAP/Budget Public Hearing (Date pending board approval) 
• June 23, 2022:  LCAP/Budget Adoption (Date pending board approval) 
• June 28, 2022:  Deadline to Submit LCAP to Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Continuous Improvement and Accountability 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
May 5, 2022  
  

 

7 | P a g e  
 

• Summer 2022:  (If needed) SCOE Feedback, SCUSD Revisions, SCOE Approval 
 
Key Terms: 
 
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
A three-year plan that describes the goals, actions, services, and expenditures to support positive student 
outcomes. 
 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) 
The state’s method for funding school districts 
 
LCFF Base Funding 
Uniform base grant based on grade span and average daily attendance 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
English Learners, Foster Youth Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students 
 
LCFF Supplemental Grant Funding 
Additional funding based upon unduplicated pupil percentage 
 
LCFF Concentration Grant Funding 
Additional funding based upon the percentage of unduplicated pupils exceeding 55% of district’s enrollment 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 1 
 

Local Control and Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 

Sacramento City Unified School District Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Superintendent@scusd.edu 

916.643.7400 

Plan Summary 2022-23 

General Information 

A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 

Sacramento City Unified School District is a large, urban school district situated in the central and southern part of California’s capital 
city.  SCUSD is the 13th largest district in the state and one of the oldest K-12 districts in the western United States.  Established in 1854, 
SCUSD serves approximately 39,000 students at seventy-five schools spanning seventy square miles.  These 75 schools include forty-two 
Elementary Schools, eight K-8 schools, six middle schools, eight high schools, two Grade 7-12 schools, one Grade 4-8 Community Day School, 
one Independent Study school, two Adult school locations, and five dependent charter schools.  Preschool and early Kindergarten programs are 
offered within many of the district’s elementary school sites. 

The city of Sacramento is often included on lists identifying the ‘most diverse cities’ in the country.  SCUSD’s boundaries encompass most of 
the central and southern portions of the City of Sacramento.  These areas, in particular south Sacramento, have historically been some of the 
most diverse in terms of race, ethnicity, culture, and language. SCUSD’s 2021-22 student population is 41.3% Hispanic/Latino, 16.9% White, 
17.6% Asian, 12.1% African American, 7.8% Multi-racial, 2.3% Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander, 1.4% Filipino, and 0.5% American Indian or 
Alaska Native.  67.6% of students are identified as socioeconomically disadvantaged, 0.4% are identified as Foster Youth, and 0.7% are 
identified as Homeless Youth.  19.6% of students are identified as English Learners (19.6%) and 15.1% are identified as Students with 
Disabilities.  With more than 50 different languages represented, many SCUSD students speak a primary language other than English.  
Spanish, Hmong, Cantonese, Vietnamese, Marshallese, Russian, and Mandarin are the most frequently occurring primary languages other than 
English.   

SCUSD is guided by its Core Value and overarching Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle. These both address the idea that 
‘Every system is perfectly designed to get the results that it gets’ and acknowledge the presence of fundamental inequities that must be 
interrupted and addressed for the district to achieve its stated goals for all students and families. 
 
  

mailto:Superintendent@scusd.edu


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 2 
 

SCUSD Core Value: 
We recognize that our system is inequitable by design and we vigilantly work to confront and interrupt inequities that exist to level the playing 
field and provide opportunities for everyone to learn, grow, and reach their greatness. 
 
SCUSD Guiding Principle: 
All students are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options. 

Performance results for SCUSD continue to demonstrate gaps in achievement for all students relative to their peers across the state and 
significant gaps within the district for multiple student groups.  These gaps are discussed in detail within the ‘Reflections: Identified Need’ 
section below and inform many of the target student outcomes set within the plan.  SCUSD acknowledges that the persistent gaps in 
performance for Students with Disabilities, English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Low-Income students, African American students, 
Hispanic/Latino students, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students are unacceptable and that the system 
we have historically operated has perpetuated these outcomes.  In short, the system as it is currently structured has failed to meet the needs of 
many students and the district has a long way to go before it realizes the vision set forth in the guiding principle.  Significant systemic change is 
required and, as has been called for by educational partners, the status quo needs to be disrupted.  SCUSD often cites W.E. Deming who said, 
“Every system is perfectly designed to get the results that it gets.”  The system as it stands now (our status quo) has continued to meet the 
needs of some students, but not all.  SCUSD as a system needs to produce a different set of results and this will require changes to the system.   

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to closure of physical school sites, implementation of distance learning, and ongoing staffing challenges, 
including those related to the 2020-21 omicron variant surge.  All of these factors have had profound and lasting impacts on the district, 
including the exacerbation of existing inequities. This has also helped to shine a light on the gaps that were already present.  Addressing the 
learning loss experienced by students during the pandemic as well as long-standing opportunity and performance gaps requires intensive and 
focused effort at all grade levels.  Prior to and throughout the pandemic, SCUSD has remained committed to applying the principles of 
Continuous Improvement in planning and implementation at the district, program, and site levels.  The intent is to transform the district’s culture 
to one of data-based decision-making and equity-driven resource allocation.  The implementation of an effective Multi-Tiered System of 
Supports at all school sites is an essential part of this aim and is the district’s primary area of focus in 2022-23 and beyond to improve the 
outcomes for all students.   

What is MTSS?  A Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) is a framework to ensure successful educational outcomes for ALL students by 
using a data-based problem-solving process to provide and evaluate the effectiveness of multiple tiers of integrated academic, behavioral, and 
social-emotional instruction and intervention supports matched to student need in alignment with educational standards.  In other words, MTSS 
is a system for assuring that every student will thrive as a result of high quality instruction and whole child supports in a challenging, supportive, 
and inclusive learning environment.   

SCUSD has used the implementation of MTSS as an anchor for the development of a holistic, culturally responsive educational service delivery 
model.  This begins with the acknowledgement that our existing instructional models and supports are inconsistent and not meeting the diverse 
needs of our students.  The district is obligated to design and provide a framework for effective instructional delivery based on ‘whole child’ data 
and assure that every student has access to high quality instruction and support at their home school, alongside their grade-level peers. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 3 
 

The district’s continuous improvement lens is also important in considering the district’s significant fiscal challenges in the current and coming 
years.  As detailed in a December 2019 report by the California State Auditor and numerous other internal and external reports, SCUSD has a 
structural deficit that, if not addressed, could result in fiscal insolvency.  Savings associated with the closure of schools and additional one-time 
funding during COVID have provided a temporary reprieve, but neither of these has addressed the underlying problems.  A major concern of 
the district and community is that the structural deficit will not be resolved in time and could result in state receivership/takeover.  District staff 
are currently working in partnership with staff from the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) to develop and implement plans to 
address the deficit. Collaboration and negotiation with bargaining group colleagues is an important step in this process.  Given the scope of the 
district’s fiscal challenges and the need to interrupt inequities, SCUSD needs to carefully examine the return on investment of every dollar 
spent.  SCUSD’s commitment to equity-driven decision-making and resource allocation will be critical as the district strives to improve outcomes 
for all students and close the significant performance gaps between student groups. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 4 
 

Reflections: Successes 

A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 

 
This LCAP has acknowledged that the system as it is currently structured has failed to meet the needs of many students and the district has a 
long way to go before it realizes the vision set forth in the guiding principle.  It is important to reiterate this awareness and use it to guide goal 
setting and strategic planning.  Alongside this, it is also important to recognize and celebrate successes when they occur.  SCUSD has a 
number of successes to celebrate from this most recent year’s cycle.  Chief among these is the ongoing implementation of an effective Multi-
Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) districtwide.  This is highlighted below along with additional examples of success and an updated analysis 
of California School Dashboard data. 
 
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 
 
An area of continued progress is the ongoing, multi-year effort to install and sustain an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 
districtwide.  The urgent need for a coherent MTSS has been acknowledged for years by a range of educational partners. During 2020-21, the 
district began training for the first of three cohorts of schools and the second cohort joined in 2021-22.  Each cohort will go through three years 
of training with ongoing coaching and support throughout.  In 2022-23 the final cohort will begin their training while Cohort 1 enters their third, 
and final, year.    
 
Examples of topics during training include: 

 Leaders as Problem Solvers and Change Agents: Adaptive Leadership, Systems Change & Implementation Science 

 Leaders as Coaches and Facilitators: Multiple Tiers & Building Capacity, Mapping Tier 1 Resources, Effective PD skills and coaching 

 Leaders as Collaborators: Effective Teaming Practices, Family Engagement 

 Leaders Engaging in Continuous Improvement: Data Evaluation, Tools for monitoring fidelity of problem solving 

 Leaders who Build Future Leaders: Scaling up practices and planning for sustainability with school improvement context 
 
SCUSD is committed to supporting effective MTSS implementation and sustainability for the long-term.  Examples of success in Cohort 1 
schools have provided evidence of how an effective MTSS can improve systems and outcomes.  These examples also serve as models for 
other sites to use and build upon.  Will C. Wood Middle School, in mapping out their Tiered interventions, identified a need for greater student 
engagement and connection and implemented a student advisory period across their system for all students.  They have since observed overall 
decreases in chronic absenteeism, suspension rates, and rates of D and F grades while also observing an increase in high school readiness.  
Ethel I. Baker Elementary School collaboratively developed a tiered resource map and revealed needs including increased mental health 
services.  As a result, they have increased efforts to implement tier one practices such as class meetings, calming corners, school wide 
mindfulness, and a trauma-informed approach while providing tier 2 and 3 supports through their Student Support Center and direct services 
through a county school therapist.  They have also implemented a range of academic supports based upon detailed assessment of student 
needs through pre-assessment and ongoing progress monitoring. The School of Engineering and Sciences (SES) has focused on common 
goals and expectations.  These are exemplified in their schools Skills for Academic and Career Success based in the district’s graduate profile.  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 5 
 

With these common goals and expectations guiding their school’s culture of teaching, learning, and continuous improvement, the school has 
been able to establish collaborative teams that share a clear purpose, define specific areas of responsibility, and engage in collective problem 
solving.  Data is used to inform decisions and actions, monitor progress, and communicate strengths and areas of growth.  Over the past few 
years, SES has observed increases in graduation rate, A-G rates, and school climate survey positivity rates while also observing decreases in 
suspension rates and D and F grade rates. 
 
Expanding effective MTSS implementation to all school sites and across the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional domains is a critical 
step for the district to not only improve outcomes for all students, but also to more effectively serve students with the highest needs.  A 
comprehensive MTSS will unify curriculum, professional development, and tiered interventions that currently exist in silos. The implementation 
of Universal Design for Learning (UDL) practices as a key pillar of the core program is one example of a unifying form of professional 
development and instructional practice.  In transitioning to Distance Learning, the district took the opportunity to provide UDL training to all staff.  
This supported a more effective implementation of Distance Learning instruction while also laying a foundation of training to build upon in future 
years.  Effectively implementing UDL in all classrooms is one of the critical steps to ensure that differentiated support and intervention for the 
highest needs students is provided in all general education settings. 
 
Additional Successes to Highlight 
 
College and Career Readiness Outcomes 
There are multiple areas within the measurable outcomes related to college and career readiness that should be noted in this section.  These 
include Career Technical Education (CTE) pathway completion, State Seal of Bilteracy (SSB) completion rates, and International Baccalaureate 
outcomes. CTE pathway completion rates increased from 8.9% in 2018-19 to 10.9% in 2019-20 and again to 14.7% in 2020-21.  From 2019-20 
to 2020-21 every student group, with the exception of multiracial students, increased their pathway completion rates, with several groups 
making significant jumps in performance.  State Seal of Bilteracy rates showed even more of an increase, moving from 14.4% in 2019-20 to 
25.2% in 2020-21.  This included significant improvements for all student groups except American Indian or Alaska Native students, Filipino 
students, and multiracial students.  While only two high schools (Luther Burbank and Kit Carson International Academy) offer International 
Baccalaureate coursework, their improvements from 2019-20 to 2020-21 are notable.  Their percentage of overall exam taken that were passed 
improved from 23.8% to 30.9% and their percentage of diploma program candidates that completed the full IB diploma improved from 7.5% to 
29.6%. 
 
 
English Learner Master Plan 
During 2021-22 the Multilingual Literacy department has led the efforts to revise the district’s English Learner Master Plan.  This critical effort 
has been identified over multiple years by educational partners as an urgent priority to ensure appropriate services for English Learners at all 
schools.  Working in collaboration with the District English Language Advisory Committee (DELAC) and a range of other educational partners, 
the new English Learner Master Plan outlines the district’s plan and process for the following: 

 Ensuring that English Learners succeed academically 

 Providing English Learners access to the core curriculum 

 Providing daily English Language Development so that English Learners can acquire English fluency and literacy for academic success 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 6 
 

 Providing quality education programs for English Learners 

 Promoting parent engagement and participation in the education of their children 
Approval of the new English Learner Master Plan is anticipated for early Fall 2022. 
 
 
Program Expansions 
During 2021-22, a range of programs and services have been expanded to provide additional supports for students, staff, and families.  These 
include both programs designed to address the impacts of COVID-19 and programs that, while contributing to COVID-19 response, address 
needs that existed prior to the pandemic.  Examples of program expansions include Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) opportunities, services 
for Foster and Homeless Youth, the American Indian Education Program (AIEP), and Expanded Learning (before and after school) programs.  
Initially piloted in 72 classrooms, the Theater Arts/Social Emotional Learning program that pairs teaching artists with classroom teachers has 
expanded to 140 classrooms, reaching its target.  Foster and Homeless Youth services are a key example of the numerous teams that have 
added staff in response to pandemic-related needs.  These additional staff have reduced the caseload ratio in order to provide more intensive 
supports to students and families.  Staff coordinate support and services including, but not limited to, mentoring, social skills, mental health 
counseling, academic tutoring, independent living skills, recreation, and youth development.  The hiring of a full-time position dedicated to the 
American Indian Education Program (AIEP) has been advocated for by community members and is a key step in expanding supports to 
students beyond the limited number served in the past.  The expansion is enabling the district to serve students that self-identify as Native 
American in addition to those served previously.  With the additional staff capacity, each individual high school student who self-identifies or is a 
part of the AIEP program receives one-on-one guidance on their requirements for graduation, invitation to FAFSA supports (financial aid 
guidance), scholarship workshops, and opportunities to receive tutoring. The Expanded Learning team has been able to offer before and after 
school programs at eight additional school sites that were not served previously.  SCUSD is now operating 70 expanded learning programs 
across the district and, with recent Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) grant funding, plans to offer expanded learning program 
options to all unduplicated students. The ELO-P funding is also enabling the Expanded Learning team to provide programming to Transitional 
Kindergarten and Kindergarten students at a smaller student to staff ratio (10:1).  All Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten students will 
have the option of receiving extended care until 6:00 PM. 
 
 
Facilities Master Plan 
SCUSD has successfully continued its ongoing facilities assessment process and implementation of a 10-year master plan.  This process has 
been aligned to the goals in the LCAP and the district’s equity, access, and social justice guiding principle.  In Spring 2022, the district’s efforts 
were recognized by California’s Coalition for Adequate School Housing (CASH) with a Master Planning Award of Excellence.  The jury noted in 
their award selection that SCUSD’s project distinguishes itself by establishing a model for how to use equity to prioritize capital outlay projects.  
They noted that SCUSD’s approach used a data-informed and research based method to focus on underserved student groups and respond to 
community concerns about addressing past inequitable institutional practices.  The jury went on to note that the connection of design strategies 
with LCAP goals was a thoughtful approach to integrating concerns about equity into school facilities through design and planning. 
 
 
California School Dashboard Indicators 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 7 
 

 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a full California School Dashboard was not published in fall 2020 or 2021.  The successes and progress 
described in this section are based on SCUSD’s 2019 Dashboard results and more recent state and local data.  Overall, there are some key 
areas in which SCUSD has made progress and has successes to highlight, though it is important to note that significant performance gaps 
between student groups persist for all Dashboard indicators and other local metrics. 
 
Suspension Rates (Successes) 
 
SCUSD’s 2019 Dashboard results included several examples of progress that the district would like to build upon in the coming year and over 
the three-year LCAP timeline.  One of these examples is the decrease in Suspension rate from the 2018 to 2019 Dashboard that continued into 
2019-20.  From 2017-18 to 2018-19, SCUSD’s overall suspension rate decreased from 6.1% to 5.6%. More importantly, rates decreased for the 
student groups that were identified as having the most disproportionate suspension rates in the past.  From the 2018 Dashboard (2017-18) to 
the 2019 Dashboard (2018-19), the suspension rate for African American students decreased significantly by 2.0 percentage points, but at 
14.6% was still significantly higher than any other student group.  The rate for American Indian or Alaska Native students decreased by 1.0 to a 
rate of 8.0%.  Similarly, Homeless Youth decreased by 3.0 to a rate of 12.2%.  All of these results represent movement in the right direction 
while also reaffirming the need for ongoing progress.  Students with Disabilities remained at 10% after a small decrease of 0.3 and Foster Youth 
increased by 0.7 to 21.2%.  These two results served as a reminder that a decrease for ‘All’ does not mean that all student groups are moving 
in that same direction.  
 
Suspension rates for 2019-20 include the time period of March to June 2020 during which physical school sites were closed due to COVID-19 
and distance learning was first implemented.  Given that Suspensions were essentially non-existent during the March to June 2020 time period, 
the end-of-year rates can effectively be viewed as rates through mid-March 2020.  The overall rate, at 3.7%, indicated promising progress from 
the prior year’s overall rate of 5.7% but it is difficult to draw clear conclusions about what the final rate would have been in the absence of 
COVID-19’s impact.  Viewed alone, the 2019-20 rates demonstrate the potential for overall decreases (had the year finished under normal 
circumstances) but also demonstrate the persistence of inequitable outcomes between student groups.  Suspension rates are also difficult to 
compare to prior years given that the majority of the year’s instruction was virtual. The overall suspension rate was .02% and no student group 
had a rate higher than .06%.  The .02% represents a total of 9 suspensions districtwide.  With in-person instruction having resumed in 
September 2021, end-of-year suspension rate data for 2021-22 will provide an opportunity to more effectively evaluate success across the data 
disruption due to COVID-19.  
 
 
English Language Arts (ELA) Performance (Successes) 
 
Note: The below results discuss the measure ‘Distance from Standard.’  This refers to the distance above or below the score for ‘Standard Met’ 
that was achieved by the given student group.  For example: The lowest score to ‘Meet Standard’ on the fifth grade ELA assessment is 2,502.  
If the average of all fifth grade scores in the district is 2,492, then the ‘Distance from Standard,’ or DFS, would be -10 points. 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 8 
 

Though recent results are not available (state assessments were not administered during 2020 or 2021 due to COVID-19), initial progress in 
English Language Arts (ELA) is observable on the 2019 Dashboard.  Following full implementation of the ELA curriculum, an overall increase of 
4.7 points to a status of -22.1 points below standard (referred to as Distance from Standard (DFS)) occurred from 2017-18 to 2018-19.  
Significant increases were seen for Foster Youth (16.7 point increase to -82.5 DFS), Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students (5.3 increase 
to -44.3 DFS), Hispanic/Latino students (6.5 increase to -40.1 DFS), White students (8.0 increase to 33.3 DFS), and Multiracial students (7.1 
increase to +2.8 DFS).  As in the case of Suspension rate, increases were not achieved across all student groups, revealing areas of need 
within the overall improvement trend.  Specifically, Homeless Youth (10.9 decrease to -88.1 DFS), American Indian or Alaska Native students 
(9.0 decrease to -61.2 DFS) moved further from ‘Standard Met’ and English Learners (1.4 increase to -58) and Students with Disabilities (2.6 
increase to -100.5) had smaller levels of improvement with significant overall gaps remaining. The resumption of state assessments in spring 
2022 will allow for more current analysis of performance – both successes and needs – in this area. 
 
Chronic Absenteeism (Successes) 
 
In the area of Chronic Absenteeism, SCUSD’s 2019 Dashboard results showed a 0.2 increase to a 14.8% overall rate.  The 0.2 increase was 
well below the 1.1 increase for the state of California and, given the loss of attendance days to both the northern California fires and a labor 
action during the 2018-19 school year, is cause for reflection.  In an examination of local data, the efforts of the Be Here program demonstrated 
significant success.  Of the 18 schools that were the focus of the program’s efforts, 11 reduced their Chronic Absenteeism rates in 2018-19, 
even with the impacts of the fires and labor action.  Overall, the 18 focus schools achieved a 0.81 decrease in their collective Chronic 
Absenteeism rate.  To achieve this, the Be Here team has supported sites to implement best practices including regular meeting of site 
attendance teams, establishing data-based site attendance goals, developing attendance-specific MTSS structures and systems, regular data 
review, individual student case management, and participation in a monthly peer learning network to share across sites.  SCUSD is excited to 
expand the focus efforts in the coming years with the awarding of renewed grant funds for the Be Here program.   
 
In the period of 2019-20 prior to school closures, Chronic Absenteeism rates were on track to be near or below 2018-19 rates.  The rate for all 
students through February 2020 was 11%.  Following school closures and throughout distance learning, attendance was measured differently, 
making any end-of-year 2019-20 rate and 2020-21 rates less comparable to prior data. Similarly, rates for 2021-22 have been significantly 
impacted by absences due to COVID-19.  However, as a general measure of engagement and in comparing the relative rates of student 
groups, chronic absenteeism data for 2020-21 and 2021-22 does provide some insight and is discussed further in the ‘Needs’ section below. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 9 
 

Reflections: Identified Need 

A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 

Overall, SCUSD’s performance results for all students and for specific student groups show that improvement is needed on a systemic level 
and that significant inequities persist.  Data from the California School Dashboard, other state reporting, and local results fail to show the 
accelerated growth rates that will close persistent performance gaps and achieve the district’s guiding principal and embody the district’s core 
value.  Educational partners have emphasized the extreme urgency of this situation and repeated their call for action that the district do better 
for all students and especially those student groups who have the highest needs.  This call for action has included the demand that an equitable 
and inclusive educational program be provided to all students regardless of zip code, school, classroom, or program choice.  The call for action 
has also included the critical need for intensified services for students demonstrating the highest needs and the equitable allocation of 
resources through data-based decision-making.  This call has also emphasized the need to disrupt the status quo.  A recurring theme has been, 
“What we were doing before wasn’t working, so we should think about how to do things differently.”  It has also been emphasized that, to fully 
address some of the district’s most urgent needs, incremental change will not be sufficient and that larger, systemic redesign will be needed.   
 
The implementation of an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) at all school sites was launched in the fall of 2020.  The 
implementation and sustainability of an effective MTSS is a major through line that connects to the need for an equitable and inclusive program, 
intensified services for students with high-needs, data-based decision-making, and redesigning systems to better serve students.  An effective 
MTSS will also serve as an overarching means of address needs in the areas of chronic absenteeism, college/career preparedness, 
suspension, English Language Arts (ELA), and Mathematics.  As stated by Katie Novack, “We need MTSS in our school(s) so that we can 
minimize or eliminate barriers and improve student outcomes by designing equitable, tiered, universally designed systems of support to address 
student’s academic, behavioral, and social-emotional needs in ways that are culturally sustaining.  It is a system for educating all of our 
students and educating them completely as a “whole” person.”  As the district is able to design and provide equitable, tiered, and universally 
designed systems of support, it is expected that a broad range of students needs can be met.  This will support improved outcomes for all 
students and in particular those student groups who have continued to experience persistent performance gaps. 
 
One of the core elements of SCUSD’s MTSS implementation is Universal Design for Learning (UDL).  UDL is a framework that improves and 
optimizes teaching and learning for all students based on scientific insights into how humans learn (udlguidelines.cast.org).  The UDL guidelines 
provide strategies that can be used to ensure all learners can access and participate in meaningful and challenging learning opportunities.  
More specifically, there are specific guidelines for educators to provide multiple means of engagement to address the ‘WHY’ of learning, 
multiple means of representation to address the ‘WHAT’ of learning, and multiple means of Action & Expression to address the ‘HOW’ of 
learning.  Within the overall need to implement an effective MTSS, the effective implementation of UDL in all classrooms is a critical need for 
improving student outcomes, and especially those students who require differentiated supports to access core content.  
 
The need for implementation of an effective MTSS, including Universal Design for Learning (UDL) practices, has been prioritized and reaffirmed 
by educational partner groups, external findings, and research/policy reports.  A few of the sources cited in a February 2022 presentation to the 
board of education included a 2017 Council of the Great City Schools report on Special Education in SCUSD, a Policy Analysis for California 

https://www.cgcs.org/cms/lib/DC00001581/Centricity/Domain/4/SacramentoSpecialEducation.pdf


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 10 
 

Education (PACE) report on best practices for a Restorative Restart following distance learning, The Capitol of Suspensions Reports sponsored 
by the Black Minds Project of the Community College Equity Assessment Lab (CCEAL), the Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) by the 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), and recommendations from the district’s Black/African American Advisory Board.  It 
is the intent that MTSS will permeate the entire SCUSD system as the foundation for all practices and decision-making to ensure high-quality 
tier-one instruction matched with effective, evidence-based interventions and supports for ALL students.  Specific needs for an effective 
implementation include: 

 Scalable, sustainable, and successful Data-based decision-making practices 

 Effective needs assessments using academic, attendance, behavior, and special education data 

 Building common language, common understanding, and common expectations 

 Building leadership and implementation capacity 

 Opportunities to monitor and measure progress 

 Clear framework and tiered supports provided by district leadership 

 Ongoing feedback and adjustments to support sites in implementation 

 Providing professional learning and coaching to sites during and following initial implementation 
 
 
Assessment of Students Needs 
 
A critical need for the effective implementation of MTSS is the consistent implementation of common assessments for Math and ELA in all 
classrooms at every school site.  Participation rates in 2020-21 on the second interim assessment were 49% for ELA and 24% for Math.  This 
decreased to 21% in ELA and 6% for Math in 2021-22.  This stems from the lack of a formal agreement on administration of the assessments.  
Participation rates in 2019-20 were also low, with only 43% of students taking one or more district common assessments in ELA and only 53% 
taking one or more in Math.  The consistent implementation and use of common district assessments will allow for improved identification of 
specific student learning needs.  This will enable schools and educators to more appropriately differentiate core instruction (Tier 1) and connect 
students to needed interventions (Tier 2 and/or 3 support).  The ongoing use of assessments will also allow for the monitoring of progress 
following interventions/instruction and regular refinement of the approach for individual students based upon their needs.  
 
This regular progress monitoring to identify and meet individual student needs is a core aspect of a functional Multi-Tiered System of Supports 
(MTSS).   Within such a system, existing resources and supports at school sites can be used in ways that are more efficient and provide the 
most return on investment - both time and money - for those students who demonstrate the most urgent needs.  Given SCUSD’s current fiscal 
challenges, the efficient and effective use of existing resources is critical to the district’s ability to continuously improve. 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a full California School Dashboard was not published in 2020 or 2021.  The areas of need described in this 
section are based on SCUSD’s 2019 Dashboard results and more recent state and local data.  SCUSD’s performance on the 2019 Dashboard 
as well as the district’s outcomes on the previous dashboards (2017, 2018) demonstrate that the district needs to improve significantly across 
multiple dashboard indicators and for many student groups. More recent outcomes reaffirm these needs.   
 

https://edpolicyinca.org/sites/default/files/2021-05/r_myung_may21.pdf
http://bmmcoalition.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Capital-of-School-Suspensions-II.pdf
https://ccee-ca.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/SCUSD-SIR-Report_Final.pdf


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 11 
 

 
California School Dashboard Results  
 
Note: The California School Dashboard uses five ‘colors’ to represent levels of performance.  The lowest level of performance is represented by 
RED, followed by ORANGE, YELLOW, GREEN, and BLUE as the highest level of performance.  A given color is determined based on the 
student group’s outcomes from the most recent year and the change in outcomes from the previous year.  This method acknowledges the 
growth being made by schools and districts for specific student groups, even if their overall outcome is not yet at a ‘high’ level. 
 
Overall, SCUSD’s 2019 Dashboard results demonstrate a broad need for improvement across all areas.  On the 2019 Dashboard (the most 
recent year in which performance levels were reported) SCUSD has an ‘ORANGE’ performance level for All students in Chronic Absenteeism 
Rate and the Math Academic Indicator and ‘YELLOW’ for Suspension Rate, Graduation Rate, College/Career Readiness, and the English 
Language Arts (ELA) Academic Indicator. SCUSD did not reach the ‘GREEN’ or ‘BLUE’ level in any of the state indicators.  This performance 
speaks to the need to improve not only within each aspect of the system, but to improve the system as a whole. 
 
Specific instances where a student group’s performance level was ‘RED’ (the lowest performance level) are noted below: 

 Foster Youth: Suspension Rate (RED), Graduation Rate (RED), and Mathematics (RED) 

 Homeless Youth: Chronic Absenteeism (RED), English Language Arts (RED), Mathematics (RED) 

 Students with Disabilities: Graduation Rate (RED), English Language Arts (RED), Mathematics (RED) 

 African American students: Chronic Absenteeism (RED) 

 American Indian or Alaska Native students: Mathematics (RED) 

 Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander: Chronic Absenteeism (RED) 
Link: https://www6.cde.ca.gov/californiamodel/studentgroupsreport?year=2019&cdcode=3467439&scode=  

 
When the results of the 2019 Dashboard and more recent data are reviewed as a whole, some clear trends emerge: 

1. Seven student groups often perform below the ‘All Students’ level.  Frequently this performance is significantly lower.  These groups 
include English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African American students, American Indian or 
Alaska Native students, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students. 

2. Two student groups (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students and Hispanic/Latino students) also demonstrate performance gaps.  
Their performance is usually below the ‘All Students’ level, but generally not as disparate as the student groups listed above.  It should 
be noted that these groups represent large percentages of the district’s student population and thus make up a large portion of the ‘All 
Students’ group. 

3. Four student groups (Asian students, White students, Filipino students, and students of Two or more races) consistently perform above - 
and often significantly above - the ‘All students’ performance level.   

Additionally, when the academic performance of the ‘English Learner’ student group is disaggregated, the performance of English Learner Only 
students shows a very significant gap from that of Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) students. 

https://www6.cde.ca.gov/californiamodel/studentgroupsreport?year=2019&cdcode=3467439&scode


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 12 
 

These trends describe a performance landscape of student groups that exist in three clusters.  Most notable is the gap between the cluster that 
consistently and significantly underperforms across all indicators and the group that consistently - and usually significantly - outperforms across 
all indicators.  This pattern embodies the acknowledgement made in the district’s Core Value - that our system is inequitable by design - and is 
visible evidence of the inequities that need to be interrupted.  As discussed in more detail in this section, the performance of three student 
groups has resulted in the required development of LCAP goals specific to improving the performance of Students with Disabilities, Homeless 
Youth, and Foster Youth. 
 
Intersectionality of Students across Student Groups 
 
When discussing student group data, it is important to acknowledge the high degree of intersectionality that exists between groups.  A student 
can be both an English Learner and have an identified disability.  A student can be both Asian and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged.  Most 
students are included in multiple groups and focused efforts to support one identified student group can often serve to support others.   The 
table below provides a look at current intersectionality within specific student groups (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, and Students with Disabilities).  The table should be read vertically, with the percentages indicating 
the proportion of the group at the top of the column that is represented by the group named in each row.  For example, 24.2% of Students with 
Disabilities are also English Learners and 27.6% of Foster Youth are African American.  Note: This does NOT mean that 27.6% of African 
American students are Foster Youth. 
 

Student Groups 
All 

Students 
English 

Learners 
Foster Youth 

Homeless 
Youth 

Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged 

Students 

Students 
with 

Disabilities 

African American 12.1% 0.5% 27.6% 34.1% 14.5% 18.4% 

American Indian or Alaska Native 0.5% 0.0% 0.6% 1.4% 0.6% 1.0% 

Asian 17.6% 31.7% 4.6% 5.8% 19.8% 10.4% 

Filipino 1.4% 0.8% 1.1% 0.0% 1.0% 0.7% 

Hispanic/Latino 41.3% 58.7% 30.5% 39.1% 46.7% 43.3% 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 2.3% 4.2% 2.9% 0.0% 2.9% 1.3% 

White 16.9% 3.6% 21.3% 10.1% 8.4% 17.0% 

Two or More Races 7.8% 0.5% 11.5% 9.4% 6.1% 7.7% 

English Learners 19.6%  9.8% 5.8% 26.2% 24.2% 

Foster Youth 0.4% 0.2%  1.8% 0.6% 1.1% 

Homeless Youth 0.7% 0.2% 2.9%  1.0% 0.9% 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 67.6% 90.4% 100.0% 100.0%  71.1% 

Students with Disabilities 15.1% 18.7% 37.9% 20.3% 15.9%  

 *Enrollment data is from the annual CALPADS reporting (Report 8.1) and does include dependent charter schools) 
 
This intersectionality data provides a picture of who is represented within each student group.  For example, while African American students 
make up 12.1% of enrollment, they represent 27.6% of Foster Youth, 34.1% of Homeless Youth, 14.5% of Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 13 
 

students, and 18.4% of Students with Disabilities.  As programs and actions are implemented for any of these groups, they should also take into 
account the specific needs of African American students.   

 
  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 14 
 

Mathematics and English Language Arts (ELA) (Needs) 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, state assessments in English Language Arts (ELA), Math, and Science were not administered during 2019-20 
or 2020-21. The most recent results available (from the 2019 Dashboard) show that the district needs to improve performance for all students 
and to address very significant performance gaps.  While there was some progress made from the 2018 to 2019 Dashboard, the size of the 
performance gaps remains very large for multiple student groups.   
 
Overall, SCUSD students who participated in the ELA State Assessment (Grades 3-8 and 11) achieved an average score of 21.5 points below 
the ‘Standard Met’ level.  Student groups with scores significantly below this level included English Learners (-58), Foster Youth (-82.3), 
Homeless Youth (-88.1), Low Income students (-43.9), Students with Disabilities (-100.5), African American students (-72.5), American Indian or 
Alaska Native students (-61.2), Hispanic/Latino students (-39.7), Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (-66.1), and English Learner Only 
students (-100).  Note: ‘English Learner Only’ students represent a subset of the traditional ‘English Learner’ group that includes Reclassified 
students.  The Reclassified Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) student group averaged 10.6 points above the ‘Standard Met’ level, demonstrating 
the vast range of performance within the ‘English Learner’ group. 
 
Results for the Math State Assessment are similar in terms of performance gaps for student groups.  Overall, SCUSD students (Grades 3-8 and 
11) achieved an average score of -48.8 points below the ‘Standard Met’ level.  The student groups with identified performance gaps for ELA 
also achieved average scores well below that of ‘All’ students for Math.  This included English Learners (-75.1), Foster Youth (-116.4), 
Homeless Youth (-122.3), Low Income students (-70.5), Students with Disabilities (-129.1), African American students (-107), American Indian 
or Alaska Native students (-98.6), Hispanic/Latino students (-69.8), Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (-91.9), and English Learner 
Only students (-112.5). Similar to the ELA results, the RFEP student group performed well above their English Learner Only peers, averaging 
13.9 points below ‘Standard Met.’   
 
More recent results from the District Common Assessments in both Math and ELA reaffirm these as areas requiring significant improvement.  
On both the beginning-of-year and interim assessments administered in 2020-21, performance (average percentage of correct answers) was 
near 50% for both Math and ELA, with the highest being 54% on the ELA interim and lowest being 48% on the Math interim. Performance on 
the second interim ELA assessment for 2021-22 was similar (55%), though this only represents the performance of 21% of eligible students. 
Performance on the second interim Math assessment or 2021-22 was also similar (57%), though a participation rate of only 6% makes it difficult 
to draw any significant results.  These results overall, similar to the Dashboard results, included gaps in performance by student group.  As 
discussed above, these results are based on participation rates far from the 95% goal due to a lack of formal agreement on assessment 
administration. Still, taken together with the dashboard results it is clear that Math and ELA performance need to be significantly improved to 
ensure that the district can meet the charge stated in its guiding principle – to provide students the greatest number of postsecondary options. 
 
A critical need that has emerged as a priority across educational partner groups and for district staff is reading proficiency by third grade.  In the 
most recent (2018-19) state ELA assessment, only 21.5% of third grade students were above standard.  Several student groups had less than 
10% of their cohort perform above standards (4.2% for English Learners, 3.6% for Homeless Youth, 9.4% for Students with Disabilities, 8.6% 
for African American students, 7.1% for American Indian or Alaska Native students, and 7.1% for Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students).  
These results demonstrate a critical need for immediate and intense focus on Early Literacy so that all students, and especially those students 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 15 
 

who are performing below their peers, are able to accelerate progress and become proficient readers by third grade (and those who are 
currently in or beyond third grade can accelerate progress towards grade-level proficiency). This need to focus on early literacy has often been 
discussed in tandem with the need for all students to have individualized learning plans and/or supports. This requires the consistent use of 
assessments and data analysis to identify student needs and determine what supports are needed.  These practices are foundational parts of 
an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports. 

Chronic Absenteeism (Needs) 

While examples of progress for Chronic Absenteeism rates were highlighted in the previous section, this is also an area in which significant 
improvement is needed. To ensure that students can fully engage in school and access instruction, they and their families need to be provided 
the supports necessary to attend school consistently.   

The most recent dashboard performance color (ORANGE) for Chronic Absenteeism indicated that significant improvement was needed across 
the district.   Significant performance gaps among student groups on the 2019 Dashboard include: 

 Homeless Youth (57.9% rate and 7 increase), African American students (27.6% rate and 0.7 increase), and Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander students (27.3% rate and 1.8 increase) all received a RED performance level on the 2019 Dashboard. Relative to All Students 
(14.8% rate, 0.2 increase), these groups were chronically absent at extremely disproportionate levels. 

 Additionally, while Foster Youth (30.1% rate, 3.7 decrease) and American Indian or Alaska Native students (25.7% rate, 1.5 decrease) both 
decreased their Chronic Absenteeism rates enough to yield a YELLOW and ORANGE performance level, their rates were disproportionately 
high at a level similar to the three groups that were RED.  

 All five of the student groups named above continued to have higher rates of chronic absenteeism in 2019-20 as measured up to the time of 
school closures (March 2020).  This included rates that were almost double the 11% rate of all students for Foster Youth (21.4%) and 
African American students (20.2%) and almost four times as high for Homeless Youth (42.8%).   
 

The effects of the pandemic and experience of students and families during distance learning has further reinforced the disparities in 
attendance/engagement.  More focused efforts are needed to ensure that all students, and especially those students with historically 
disproportionate rates of chronic absenteeism, are provided the individual, wrap-around supports needed to keep them in school.  The 
connection between attendance and academic performance is well established and improvement in this area will support other efforts to 
improve academic outcomes.  As discussed in the previous section, the efforts of the Attendance and Engagement office have demonstrated 
success at those sites where support has been concentrated.  Efforts include direct support to site leadership teams to review data and 
coordinate actions as well as supporting/facilitating improved communication between home and school.  The district’s implementation of MTSS 
will also lead to increased coordination of services across school sites, supporting improved attendance and decreased chronic absenteeism. 
 
As noted above, overall Chronic Absenteeism rates for 2019-20 were on track to be near or below 2018-19 rates, but are hard to compare 
directly given the closure of schools and different attendance measurement procedures following school closures.  Similarly, 2020-21 rates 
represent a year that took place almost completely in the virtual setting and make the data difficult to compare year over year.  However, rates 
for these years can be reviewed individually to evaluate the relative outcomes for specific student groups. Using this lens, the data continue to 
reinforce the inequitable outcomes seen in 2018-19 and prior.  Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African American students, American Indian or 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 16 
 

Alaska Native students, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students all had end-of-year rates significantly higher than the ‘All Students’ 
level in both 2019-20 and 2020-21.  In 2019-20, the rates for Foster Youth (21.4%) and African American students (20.2%) was nearly double 
that of All Students (11%), while the rate for Homeless Youth (42.8%) was nearly four times higher.  In 2020-21, this trend continued with Foster 
Youth at 33.9%, African American students at 38.6%, American Indian or Alaska Native students at 31.1%, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 
students at 37.4%, and Homeless Youth at 71.4%, while ‘All Students’ had a chronic absenteeism rate of 18.6%.  These results show that, 
within each year, significant inequities persist.  While the instructional context has ranged from in-person to school closure to distance learning, 
attendance measurement has evolved, and COVID-related absences have caused students and staff to miss significant amounts of school, the 
same student groups show inequitable outcomes at each point in time.  This reinforces the understanding that COVID has not created many of 
the inequities present in our system, but exacerbated them.  Our efforts to address inequity must account for the impacts of COVID but cannot 
be limited to them, as the inequity is more deeply rooted in our system than the effects of this recent pandemic. 
 
College/Career Preparedness 
 
Note: This section uses the term ‘college and career readiness.’  The California School Dashboard classifies students as ‘Prepared,’ 
‘Approaching Prepared,’ or ‘Not Prepared’ based on students meeting at least one of the criteria in the ‘Prepared’ level.  Examples of criteria 
that allow a student to demonstrate preparedness include state Math and ELA test scores, Advanced Placement (AP) exam scores, completing 
college coursework during high school, earning the State Seal of Biliteracy (SSB), completing UC/CSU a-g requirements, completing a CTE 
Pathway, and completing Leadership/Military Science coursework.  A helpful definition of college readiness might be, ‘Being ready for ANY 
postsecondary experience, including two- and four-year institutions,’ and ‘Having the skills needed to succeed in job training or education 
needed for a chosen career.’   
 
This is an area in which significant improvement is needed for ‘All’ students and to address performance gaps for specific student groups. For 
this indicator, the state did publish the actual rates of preparedness for 2019-20 in the modified 2020 Dashboard, though no performance ‘color’ 
was assigned.  The state did not publish preparedness rates for 2020-21.  The percentage of ‘All’ students that earned ‘prepared’ in 2019-20 
was 41.7%.  This was similar to levels in the previous two years and indicates a significant need for improvement given the district’s goal that 
All students will graduate college and career ready.  Further, unacceptable performance gaps persisted for several student groups.  These 
included six student groups with preparedness levels near or less than half that of all students.  These groups included English Learners 
(18.7%), Homeless Youth (12.3%), Students with Disabilities (8.1%), African American students (20.7%), American Indian or Alaska Native 
students (20%), and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (24.6%).  Relative to their Asian (56.9%), Filipino (58.1%), White (53.5%) and 
multi-racial (51.7%) peers, the true gap is revealed to be even larger. The district’s efforts to more closely monitor A-G progress, sustain Career 
and Technical Education (CTE) pathways, increase the number of students earning the State Seal of Biliteracy, and eliminate barriers to 
Advanced Placement (AP) enrollment and successful exam performance are all actions that seek to improve college and career readiness. 
 
Graduation Rate (Needs) 
 
Following overall progress in the districtwide graduation rate from 2018-19 to 2019-20 (85.7% to 87.3%), performance decreased to 85.1% IN 
2020-21, indicating that significant improvement is still needed.  This is true for ALL students, as the district’s goal is for EVERY student to 
graduate.  This is also true for multiple student groups for whom performance gaps persist. In 2019-20, seven student groups had graduation 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 17 
 

rates 5 percentage points or more below that of ‘All students.’  These included English Learners (75.8%), Foster Youth (81.3%), Homeless 
Youth (72.9%), Students with Disabilities (70.4%), African American students (82.4%), American Indian or Alaska Native students (73.3%), and 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (71.9%).  This trend continued in 2020-21, with same seven student groups showing significantly 
lower graduation rates.  African American students (75.3%) and American Indian or Alaska Native students (76.9%) had rates almost 10 
percentage points lower.  Foster Youth (64.5%), Homeless Youth (60.3%), Students with Disabilities (64.8%), and Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander students (64.1%) had rates 20 or more percentage points lower than ‘All Students.’  While English Learners were just within the 5 
percentage point range at 80.4%, they were still well under the ‘All Student’ level. 
 
Providing students the necessary progress monitoring to keep them on track for graduation and support when they fall off-track are key focus 
areas for the district moving forward.  An ongoing effort has been the implementation of centralized systems for academic counselors.  This 
includes regular student schedule reviews using UC/CSU ‘A-G’ counseling benchmarks, use of standard district criteria for enrollment into 
mathematics and science courses, and implementing standard course placement criteria for English Learners.  The Director of Master 
Scheduling position continues to support the improvement of staffing allocations and alignment of courses across school sites and programs.  
This helps to ensure that students are enrolled in schedules that not only meet their basic graduation needs, but also prepare them for college 
and career.  It is the district’s goal that, as students pursue their UC/CSU coursework, enroll in Career Technical Education (CTE) pathways, 
challenge themselves with Advanced Placement (AP) coursework, receive appropriate English Language Development (ELD), and receive the 
specific supports defined by any Individual Education Plan (IEP) or 504 plan, they have complete and unobstructed access to the appropriate 
courses and a comprehensive system of supports to help them and their families make informed choices and address their individual needs. 
 
The needs evident in graduation rates are a good example of a point in SCUSD’s system where the immediate gap has much deeper roots that 
begin in the early grades.  While it is absolutely important that students in the secondary grades continue to receive support, to truly address 
this issue will require systemic improvements that begin with Pre-K moving forward.  Early literacy has been identified as a key focus area and 
is a key example of something that must be improved if ‘downstream’ indicators like graduation rate are going to significantly improve for all 
students. 
 

Suspension (Needs) 
 
While Suspension Rates were noted in the previous section for overall progress, the significant disparity in Suspension Rates across student 
groups still requires significant improvement.  Cited in multiple iterations of the Capitol of Suspensions Report, the suspension rate for African 
American students has continued to be well above that of all students and other racial/ethnic groups.  Students with Disabilities, Homeless 
Youth, and Foster Youth also have rates significantly higher than that of ‘All students.’  The data for 2019-20 leading up to school closures is the 
last reference point that is based on the ‘typical’ in-person school context.  Suspension rates during the remaining months of 2019-20 and 2020-
21 are difficult to compare to prior data given the very different environment of distance learning.  Suspension rates for all students and all 
student groups from August 2019 through February 2020 had declined in comparison to the same time period during 2018-19.  However, 
disparities remained for the identified student groups.  2019-20 mid-year rates for African American students (8.1%), Students with Disabilities 
(5.6%), Homeless Youth (5.2%), and Foster Youth (9.9%) were all well above the 3.1% rate for ‘All’ students.  The district had a total of 9 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 18 
 

suspensions in the 2020-21 school year for a districtwide rate of 0.02%.  This extremely small number makes it difficult to draw significant 
conclusions from that year’s results.  However, the wealth of data over preceding years provides clear evidence of significant needs. 
 
The Capitol of Suspensions report, sponsored by the Community College Equity Assessment Lab (CCEAL) and commissioned by the Greater 
Sacramento National Association for the Advancement of Colored People (NAACP), has specifically called out SCUSD as a district in which 
African American students are suspended at rates vastly disproportionate to their peers across the state.  Needs identified in the report include 
the development of effective disciplinary/behavior management systems that are not reliant upon suspension, implementation of training on bias 
and culturally responsive instruction, and implementation of trauma-informed practices. 
 
These findings are important as they highlight the role of classroom management, instructional practices, and the overall school and classroom 
environment as factors that contribute to exclusionary discipline practices.  The need for professional development for all staff that supports 
development of effective behavior management systems, creation of inclusive and restorative classroom and school environments, and 
implementation of anti-bias/anti-racist instructional practices is evident in the overall suspension rates of the district and the persistence of 
disproportionate rates for student groups. 
 
The ongoing work to address the identified needs has included focused data review of Suspension trends including specific reports on the 
disproportionality of suspension for African American students.  The district’s Social Emotional Learning (SEL) and Positive Behavioral 
Interventions and Supports (PBIS) staff have worked to support the implementation of best practices within classrooms and site-based efforts to 
implement Restorative Practices/Justice systems.  More recently, school administrators and other district leaders have participated in anti-
bias/anti-racism training and in the coming years this will be provided to all staff.  The development of systems to coordinate behavioral 
intervention and discipline is a key aspect of MTSS implementation.  An effective MTSS will include the proactive addressing of identified 
behavioral needs, development of common language and practices, and holistic reviews that encompass a student’s behavioral, academic, 
social, emotional, and other needs. Site leaders are supported by district leadership to set specific goals within their school plan to improve their 
school’s culture and climate.  These goals are set following a needs assessment process and, as appropriate, can include targeted reduction of 
Suspension and/or Chronic Absenteeism outcomes. 
 
Additional Supports 
 
On the Dashboard, the performance of three student groups over time - Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, and Homeless Youth - has 
resulted in the district’s identification by the state for additional support. This has included annual participation in Differentiated Assistance 
provided by the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE).  As a result of persistent performance issues for these student groups over 
several years, the district became eligible in fall 2019 for Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) support from the California Collaborative for 
Education Excellence (CCEE).  This 2022-23 LCAP includes newly developed goals that are specific to the identified student groups as 
required by Senate Bill 98. 
 
Below is a summary of the indicators in which these three student groups have not met performance standards from 2017-2019: 
 
Students with Disabilities 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 19 
 

 2017 Dashboard: ELA, Math, Graduation, and Suspension 

 2018 Dashboard: ELA, Math, Graduation, and College/Career 

 2019 Dashboard: ELA, Math, and Graduation 
 
Foster Youth 

 2017 Dashboard: ELA, Math, Graduation, and Suspension 

 2018 Dashboard: ELA, Math, Chronic Absenteeism, Suspension, and College/Career 

 2019 Dashboard: ELA, Math, Graduation, and Suspension 
 
Homeless Youth 

 2017 Dashboard: ELA, Math, and Suspension 

 2018 Dashboard: Chronic Absenteeism and Suspension 

 2019 Dashboard: ELA, Math, and Chronic Absenteeism 
 
As discussed above, the disparities in performance demonstrated on the Dashboard for these student groups is reaffirmed through available 
local data in recent years.  To address these persistent and significant gaps, the district will continue to implement specific supports for all three 
populations through the efforts of departments/programs including Foster Youth Services, Homeless Youth Services, and the Special Education 
Department.  Equally as important, staff will collaborate with colleagues across the system – in other departments and with general education – 
to break down silos and ensure that support is provided to these students broadly. This collaboration will need to include increased and 
improved instructional and social emotional supports for these student groups to address the significant performance gaps observed in the 
Dashboard data and across all indicators.  A key focus of the 2020-21 Differentiated Assistance support efforts was the increased alignment of 
school site and district planning to support the identified student groups.  The focal point of these efforts will be the implementation of an 
effective MTSS at all school sites that integrates the academic, behavioral, and social-emotional instruction and intervention supports into a 
tiered system so that they can best be matched to student needs.  This integration will be supported by a data-based decision-making process 
that includes regular review of student outcome data to assess needs and identification of the appropriate services and supports to meet those 
needs.   
 
Implementation of an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports will improve outcomes for ALL students - something that SCUSD does need - 
but will particularly benefit those students who have historically lacked the necessary supports to achieve at their highest potential.  Students 
with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Native Hawaiian or 
Pacific Islander students, and English Learners have been impacted the most by the fundamental system inequities acknowledged in our 
district’s core value.  School site and district staff will be receiving the training, tools, and supports needed to better understand, identify, and 
meet the individual needs of all students - and specifically those student groups who have continuously demonstrated the most critical and 
urgent needs.  Training will build the capacity of leadership teams for systems change, teaming practices, evaluating implementation progress 
and impacts, and developing actions plans for school improvement.  Tools will include Tier 1 resource mapping and assessment/data source 
mapping.  Ongoing support will include regular training meetings, consistent coaching, and peer mentoring from other school sites. 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 20 
 

The newly developed LCAP Goals (Goals 9, 10, and 11) further define some of the district’s focal efforts to support these student groups in the 
identified areas.  Improved identification and referral for Homeless Youth, increased efficacy of academic tutoring for Foster Youth, and 
ensuring that Students with Disabilities are provided services in their Least Restrictive Environment are important areas of growth in the coming 
year and beyond. 
 
Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) Findings 
 
In the Systemic Instructional Review (SIR) findings, the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) staff identified a range of 
additional needs that, when addressed, will support improved outcomes for students.  Overarching areas of improvement that were noted in the 
summary of findings include: 

 The need to nurture strong, collaborative, and productive relationships between management and labor 

 Agreement on the implementation of assessment and professional development 

 Increased collaboration, definition of roles/responsibilities, and performance expectations within and across departments 

 Integration of continuous improvement into the daily work of individuals throughout the system 

 Consistency in how data is used, decisions are made, and departments are accountable to support the vision and mission of the district 

 Collective accountability for teaching and learning goals and priorities that will result in improved student outcomes 
 
The SIR identified some key opportunities in the district that can be used to address the identified needs.  These include: 

 An existing vision of equity and continuous improvement provides the opportunity to create coherent understanding and implementation 
strategies across the district to better support the whole child/student needs 

 The School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) process can be used to develop school goals and expectations linked to specific 
measures to monitor progress 

 The district’s implementation of the Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) and Universal Design for Learning (UDL) provides the 
opportunity to create and articulate an instructional vision, framework, priorities, and goals 

 
The implementation of an effective MTSS and UDL have been identified as the key areas of focus for the SIR and Differentiated Assistance 
(DA) processes.  While the district will continue to address the wide range of SIR actions noted in the report, MTSS and UDL will serve as the 
organizing framework for the collaborative efforts between SCUSD, the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), and the 
Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE). This alignment between the two support processes (SIR and DA) and to the district’s current 
programmatic emphasis will enable the district to focus on the highest leverage actions to improve student performance and other district 
outcomes. 
 
SCUSD recognizes that the system as it is currently operating is failing to serve many students.  A significant number of students are not 
achieving the goal set out in the guiding principle – to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of 
options.  This is especially true for several student groups who have continued to demonstrate performance gaps over time.  Significant 
improvements are needed across the system if these outcomes are going to change.  As discussed at the beginning of this section, these 
improvements will need to include an equitable and inclusive educational program for all students regardless of zip code, school, classroom, or 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 21 
 

program choice; intensified services for students demonstrating the highest needs; the equitable allocation of resources through data-based 
decision-making; and disruption of the status quo. 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 22 
 

LCAP Highlights 

A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 

SCUSD’s LCAP is grounded in the district’s core value and overarching Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle. The recognition of 
the fundamental inequities in our system and the need to confront and interrupt inequities to level the playing field are key elements of multiple 
LCAP goals.   

 The vision that all students will graduate with multiple postsecondary choices from a wide array of options is a key driver across the new 
LCAP goals and is directly represented by Goal 1. 

 The overall goal structure also reflects the district’s alignment to a Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) framework.  Goals 2 and 3 
reflect the prioritization of effective Tier 1, 2 and 3 programs and a focus goal (Goal 6) is dedicated to the capacity building/training 
necessary to effectively install an MTSS.   

 Goal 4 is focused on improving the district’s culture and climate and aligns to the district’s Core Value. This goal acknowledges the need to 
dismantle (confront and interrupt) inequitable and discriminatory systems 

 Goal 5 focuses on the engagement and empowerment of educational partners in the teaching and learning of students. 

 Goal 7 outlines the district’s plans to revise the graduate profile. This goal has been updated to reflect a modified timeline in which most of 
the efforts will take place during 2022-23. 

 Goal 8 identifies the core services necessary for maintaining basic learning conditions including highly qualified staff, instructional materials, 
and facilities.  The actions within this goal are foundational to the district’s ability to achieve all other LCAP goals. 

 Goals 9, 10, and 11 are new to the LCAP for the 2022-23 year and identify key district efforts to improve outcomes for Foster Youth, 
Homeless Youth, and Students with Disabilities. 

The 2022-23 LCAP includes articulation notes and, where applicable, new actions that reflect the aligned efforts of the LCAP and the ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan.  The ESSER III Expenditure plan, developed and approved in fall 2021, was built in alignment with the LCAP and shares a 
common timeline (funds run through 2023-24).  For the remainder of this LCAP cycle, the two plans will continue to work in collaboration and 
their alignment will be documented within LCAP actions. 

Following is a brief overview of the new LCAP goals and examples of key actions and metrics that are aligned to each: 

 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 1: College and Career Readiness 
 
100% of SCUSD students will graduate college and 
career ready with a wide array of postsecondary 
options and a clear postsecondary plan.  Growth in 
Graduation Rate and College/Career Readiness will 
be accelerated for Students with Disabilities, 

 Sustain and expand Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) pathways and programs 

 Provide Academic and Career Counseling 

 Accelerate progress toward graduation through 
Credit Recovery Programming (Central and site-
based) 

 Graduation Rate 

 College/Career Preparedness 

 UC/CSU ‘A-G’ completion 

 CTE Pathway 
enrollment/completion 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 23 
 

English Learners, African American students, 
American Indian or Alaska Native students, 
Hispanic/Latino students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander students, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, 
and other student groups with gaps in outcomes 
until gaps are eliminated. 

 Maintain funding for AP/IB/SAT exam fees 

 Provide additional support for International 
Baccalaureate (IB) program  

 Certificates of Completion 
earned 

 State Seal of Biliteracy 

 On-track graduation and on-
track UC/CSU ‘A-G’ status  

This goal closely aligns to the district’s Equity, Access, and Social Justice Guiding Principle:  
All students are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of 

options. 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience 
with Equitable Opportunities for ALL students  
 
Provide every SCUSD student an educational 
program with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity 
to district programs and practices, and robust, 
rigorous learning experiences inside and outside the 
classroom so that all students can meet or exceed 
state standards. 
 
 
 

 Provide Professional Development to support 
implementation of state standards 

 Expand access to Gifted and Talented Education 
(GATE) and Advanced Placement programs so that 
enrollment reflects district demographics 

 Maintain Early Childhood Education opportunities 
(preschool and Early/Transitional Kindergarten) 

 Provide English Learners Integrated and 
Designated English Language Development (ELD) 
and develop an English Learner Master Plan 

 Offer a range of Expanded Learning Programs to 
enhance students learning experiences inside and 
outside of the classroom 

 State Math, English Language 
Arts (ELA), and Science 
Assessments  

 English Learner Progress and 
Reclassification Rate 

 GATE demographics 
(identification and enrollment) 

 Advanced Placement (AP) 
Enrollment and Exam 
Performance 

 District Common Assessments 
in Math and English Language 
Arts 

This goal aligns to the district’s commitment to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) framework and focuses 
on the provision of a coherent and consistent Tier 1 instructional program. 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 3: Integrated Supports  
 
Provide every student the specific academic, 
behavioral, social-emotional, and mental and 
physical health supports to meet their individual 
needs - especially English Learners, Students with 
Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African 
American students, American Indian or Alaska 
Native students, Hispanic/Latino students, Native 
Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, and other 

 Expand services specific to Foster and Homeless 
Youth 

 Provide individualized supports to students with 
disabilities (Instructional Assistants) 

 Provide intervention and supports for English 
Learners 

 Address the unique needs of American Indian and 
Alaska Native students through the American Indian 
Education Program 

 Attendance Rate 

 Chronic Absenteeism Rate 

 Attendance and Chronic 
Absenteeism interventions 

 Provision of responsive 
student support services 

 High School drop-out rate 

 Middle School drop-out rate 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 24 
 

student groups whose outcomes indicate the 
greatest need – so that all students can remain fully 
engaged in school and access core instruction. 

 Provide direct Health Services through the efforts of 
School Nurses 

 Implement attendance and engagement strategies 
to reduce chronic absenteeism 

 Provide a range of integrated supports to students 
and families through site-based  Student Support 
Centers and the central Connect Center 

This goal aligns to the district’s commitment to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) framework and focuses 
on the provision of Tier 2 and 3 supports to students based on assessed need. 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 4:  Culture and Climate - Dismantling 
Systems 
 
School and classroom learning environments will 
become safer, more inclusive, and more culturally 
competent through the active dismantling of 
inequitable and discriminatory systems affecting 
BIPOC students, Students with Disabilities, English 
Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and 
LGBTQ+ Youth.   
 

 Integrate Social Emotional Learning (SEL) into 
school and classroom instruction and practices 

 Promote positive school climate through Positive 
Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) 

 Prevent and Address Bullying through training, 
intervention, and response 

 Build anti-racist capacity and common staff 
understanding of systemic racism through Anti-
bias/Anti-racism training for all staff 

 Suspension Rate 

 Expulsion Rate 

 Perception of safety and 
belongingness (School Climate 
Survey results) 

This goals aligns to the district’s Core Value and acknowledges the need to dismantle (confront and interrupt) 
inequitable and discriminatory systems. 

SCUSD Core Value: We recognize that our system is inequitable by design and we vigilantly work to confront and interrupt inequities 
that exist to level the playing field and provide opportunities for everyone to learn, grow, and reach their greatness. 

 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 5: Engagement and Empowerment 
 
Parents, families, educational partners, and 
students will be engaged and empowered as 
partners in teaching and learning through effective 
communication, capacity building, and collaborative 
decision-making. 

 Develop and offer capacity-building opportunities 
through the District Parent Resource Center 

 Build relationships between home and school 
through Parent Teacher Home Visits (PTHVs)  

 Provide information to parents in home languages 
through Translation and Interpretation services 

 Engage family members as partners in through 
Family Communication Tools 

 Number of Parent Teacher 
Home Visits 

 Participation/attendance in key 
district committees (DELAC, 
CAC) 

 Participation/attendance in 
Parent Leadership Pathway 
Workshops 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 25 
 

 Promote student voice, advocacy, and action 
through the Student Advisory Council 

This goal builds upon the district’s former LCAP goal with the addition of students as a named group and 
identification of key activities that will lead to increased engagement and empowerment. 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/DBDM 
 
Provide all school sites three-years of training, coaching, and ongoing support 
to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS).  Training 
will be completed and all district sites should be conducting business and 
serving students using an MTSS framework by 2024-25.  Progress will be 
measured with the Self-Assessment of MTSS (SAM) Implementation tool in 
addition to external indicators of site fidelity including: (a) holding MTSS team 
meetings regularly, (b) engaging in data based practices to assess need and 
progress monitor and (c) providing differentiated tiered interventions as 
evidenced by twice-yearly report outs of challenges/successes by each site 
leader. 
 

 Leadership to coordinate 
implementation activities 

 Professional learning for 
school site leadership 
teams 

 Ongoing support for sites to 
implement and sustain an 
effective MTSS 

 Peer Mentoring between 
training cohorts to provide 
site-to-site support 

 Self-Assessment of MTSS 
(SAM) Implementation Tool 

 Implementation of regular 
MTSS team meetings 

 Implementation of regular 
use of site-determined data 
sources 

 Implementation of 
differentiated, tiered 
interventions 

This goal is specific to the Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) training model that will build the 
capacity of site leadership teams to implement effective MTSSs at all SCUSD schools.  Note: the district is 

using ‘Data-based Decision-Making (DBDM)’ as another name for the MTSS efforts in progress. 

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 7: Update the District Graduate Profile 

SCUSD will revisit and revise the District 
Graduate Profile (Previously adopted in 2014) 
so that it accurately reflects the current 
priorities of educational partners and adopt the 
updated version by the end of 2022-23.  School 
sites will be provided support to align their 
instructional priorities and goals to the revised 
Graduate Profile so that all sites demonstrate 
evidence of alignment in their school plans by 
2023-24. 

 Revise the existing graduate profile and successfully 
adopt the revised version at the board level 

 Develop a plan to implement the revised graduate 
profile 

 Build awareness of the new graduate profile through 
effective communication strategies 

 Support secondary school sites in developing and 
implementing Defense of Learning practices that are 
fully aligned to the revised graduate profile  

 Documentation of educational 
partner convening 

 Board Adoption of Revised 
Graduate Profile 

 Awareness of Graduate Profile 

 Evidence of School Plan 
Alignment 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 26 
 

This goal aligns with the educational partner and district interest in establishing more coherence around a common vision of instruction 
and desired student outcomes.  This goal will also align with the efforts of the Graduation Task Force, who provided detailed 

recommendations to the district in 2017-18.  

 
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide 
Operations/Supports 
 
SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, 
safe and clean facilities, core classroom staffing, and 
other basic conditions necessary to support the 
effective implementation of actions across all LCAP 
goals. 
 

 Maintain sufficient facilities staffing and operations 

 Ensure access to all board-adopted instructional 
materials 

 Maintain base classroom staffing to deliver core 
instructional program 

 Provide support to new teacher so they can 
complete credentialing requirements 

 Facilities Condition 

 Instructional Materials 
Sufficiency 

 Teacher Credentialing and 
Assignment 

 

This goal identifies the core services necessary for maintaining basic learning conditions.  The actions within this goal are foundational to 
the district’s ability to achieve all other LCAP goals. 

 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 9: Focus on Students with Disabilities 
 

Provide every SCUSD student eligible for special 
education support and services with an educational 
program in their least restrictive environment and 
includes standards-aligned instruction enabling 
students to meet or exceed state standards. 

 Preschool district capacity assessment 

 Educational Technology for Students with 
Disabilities 

 Expanded special education staffing 

 Team engagement specific to the needs 
of students with disabilities (includes 
professional learning) 

 Rate of students in regular class 
more than 80% of the time 

 Rate of students in regular class less 
than 40% of the time 

 Rate of students participating in a 
separate school 

 
 

This goal focuses on the recognized need to ensure that students are being served in the most appropriate educational environment and 
are accessing instruction that will enable them to meet or exceed standards. This goal also meets the state requirement to develop a 

goal specific to students groups based on their California School Dashboard outcomes over multiple years. 

  

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 10: Focus on Homeless Youth 
 

SCUSD will respectfully, efficiently and effectively identify all eligible 
homeless youth so that they can be connected to and provided the 
appropriate family, academic social/emotional, behavioral, health, 
and other services.  The percentage of all socioeconomically 

 Professional development to 
build staff capacity to identify 
and support homeless youth 

 Increase and improve referral 
processes for homeless youth 
identification 

 Percentage of low-income 
students that are identified 
as Homeless Youth 

 Number of referrals leading 
to identification by source 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 27 
 

disadvantaged students who are identified as homeless will increase 
and approach the expected 5-10% rate. 

This goal places emphasis on the need for the district to improve the rates of identification for Homeless Youth so that those youth can 
be effectively provided the appropriate services.  This goal also meets the state requirement to develop a goal specific to students 

groups based on their California School Dashboard outcomes over multiple years. 

  
 

LCAP Goal Examples of Actions Examples of Metrics 
Goal 11: Focus on Foster Youth 
 

All Foster Youth demonstrating below-grade 
level academic proficiency will be offered 1 on 
1 and/or small group tutoring services to 
support their accelerated progress toward 
grade-level standards. 

 Provide Foster Youth with demonstrated academic 
needs appropriate 1 on 1 or small group tutoring 

 Provide individualized case management for Foster 
Youth.  Develop an individual plan reflecting the 
interests of the student with strong emphasis on 
positive decision-making and student 
empowerment. 

 Percentage of Foster Youth with 
below-grade level Math and/or 
ELA proficiency receiving tutoring 
services 

 Academic Improvement following 
tutoring participation 

 Attendance Improvements 

 Suspension Rate Decreases 
 

This goal addresses the identified need for Foster Youth who have identified academic needs to be provided targeted tutoring support 
and monitored ongoing for their academic progress.  This goal also meets the state requirement to develop a goal specific to students 

groups based on their California School Dashboard outcomes over multiple years. 

  
The Engaging Educational Partners section highlights the major recommendations that emerged across educational partner groups.  It also 
includes links to additional documents that provide expanded detail beyond what is included within this plan document.  The impact of 
educational partner engagement on the 2022-23 LCAP has again been substantial, with input helping to guide improvements such as the 
development of new goals and revised framing of desired outcomes. Overarching themes and specific recommendations are discussed in more 
detail within the Engaging Educational Partners section of this plan. 
 
SCUSD is also committed to maintaining the level of fiscal transparency valued by the district’s educational partners.  This includes continuing 
the practice of specifically reporting the allocations by action within the Supplemental and Concentration grant funding resource.  The SCUSD 
educational partner community has a particular interest in this level of detail.  While the state’s focus on how actions are increasing/improving 
services for unduplicated pupils (regardless of resource) is acknowledged, the district will continue to provide Supplemental and Concentration 
grant details in addition to the reporting required by the Expenditure Summary Tables in the new LCAP template. 
 
Overall, SCUSD’s 2021-22 LCAP outlines the target outcomes, projected expenditures, and actions/services to be implemented in order to 
achieve the stated goals.  A brief summary of the alignment of SCUSD’s LCAP goals to the LCFF State Priorities is provided below: 

 State Priority 1 (Basic Conditions): LCAP Goal 8 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 28 
 

 State Priority 2 (Common Core State Standards Implementation): LCAP Goals, 2, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 11 

 State Priority 3 (Parent Engagement): LCAP Goals 5, 6, and 7 

 State Priority 4 (Pupil Achievement): LCAP Goals 2, 3, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 11 

 State Priority 5 (Pupil Engagement): LCAP Goals 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 11 

 State Priority 6 (School Climate): LCAP Goals 4, 6, and 7 

 State Priority 7 (Course Access): LCAP Goals 1, 2, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 11 

 State Priority 8 (Pupil Outcomes): LCAP Goals 1, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 11 
 
This LCAP represents the district’s plan for continuing and expanding its efforts to level the playing field and provide opportunities for all 
students to learn, grow, and reach their greatness so that they can graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest 
array of options.  To make progress towards this vision laid out in the core value and guiding principle, the district is committed to the deep and 
complex work of changing systems.  The most important example of systems change that will continue is the implementation of a Multi-Tiered 
System of Supports (MTSS) mentioned throughout this plan summary.  MTSS is featured prominently in this LCAP because it is the foundation 
of the district’s efforts to improve outcomes for all students, disrupt inequities between schools and across the district, and address significantly 
disproportionate performance gaps for student groups.  The improvements in data-based decision making and resource allocation within an 
effective MTSS will also help the district continue to improve student outcomes as it navigates a path through fiscal challenges.  And a 
cohesive, consistent approach to providing tiered supports based upon assessed needs will allow the district to measure and address learning 
loss in the years following the COVID-19 pandemic. 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 29 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 

An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 

Schools Identified 

A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

The schools in SCUSD that were identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) based upon their performance on the 2019 
Dashboard are listed below.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and lack of performance results on the 2020 Dashboard, schools maintained 
their eligibility as determined by the 2019 Dashboard. 

 
Graduation Rate average is less than 68% over two years: 

 American Legion High School  

 Capital City Independent Study  
 
Low-Performing Criteria:  

 A.M. Winn Waldorf-Inspired (Five or more indicators where the majority are RED) 

 Caroline Wenzel Elementary (Five or more indicators where the majority are RED) 

 Ethel I. Baker Elementary (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

 Hiram Johnson High School (Five or more indicators where the majority are RED) 

 Isador Cohen Elementary (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

 John Bidwell Elementary (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

 John Morse Therapeutic Center (All RED Indicators) 

 Pacific Elementary (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

 Rosa Parks K-8 (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

 Will C. Wood Middle School (All RED and ORANGE indicators) 

Support for Identified Schools 

A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

SCUSD provides multiple layers of support for school sites to engage in a Cycle of Continuous Improvement (CCI).  These include tools that 
scaffold the needs assessment, goal setting, implementation, and resource allocation processes.  Instructional Assistant Superintendents 
incorporate significant time to support these processes in monthly principal meetings and in their one-on-one support to site leadership.  
Additional district staff provide support through review of school plan content and through individual consultations with leaders on an as-
needed basis. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 30 
 

In past years, principals have utilized an online Continuous Improvement tool to guide their CSI (and overall School Plan for Student 
Achievement (SPSA)) process.  This tool engaged leaders in a scaffolded process to build capacity in the following areas.  Assistance for 
these elements remains available through the support provided by Instructional Assistant Superintendents and Continuous Improvement and 
Accountability staff.  This includes support from the Research and Strategy team to conduct data analysis using the districts various reporting 
systems. 

 Causal System Analysis/Needs Assessment – Identification of specific gaps in achievement/outcomes, discussion of rationale for selecting 
specific areas of focus.   

 Problem Statement Formation – Definition of problem to be addressed including target student group(s) and measurable outcome with 
baseline data 

 Use of Fishbone Diagrams – Articulation of Root Causes, contributing factors, and selection of the highest priority root cause.  This is a key 
step in which resource inequities can be identified and placed in the larger context of the problem statement. These resource inequities can 
then be articulated into the subsequent driver diagram and specific actions to address them included as change ideas. 

 Development of Driver Diagram – Documentation of change ideas/interventions, secondary drivers, primary drivers, and articulation of an 
aim statement.  Aim statement answers the questions:  What will improve? By how much will it improve? For whom will it improve? By 
when will it improve? 

 Plan to Operationalize the Highest Priority Change Idea – Outline of specific actions to be taken in order to implement the change idea(s), 
responsible parties, target completion date, and milestones towards completion 

 Identification of Measurable Outcomes – Specific articulation of metrics to be used to evaluate effectiveness, baseline status, and expected 
outcomes 

Sites are encouraged to review their overall performance by dashboard area (Chronic Absenteeism, Suspension Rate, ELA/Math, English 
Learner Progress, Graduation Rate, and College/Career) and select those areas of greatest need. With the absence of 2021 Dashboard 
performance data, sites were provided with support to consider what other state and local data they might consider in their needs assessment 
and goal-setting processes.   

Sites were also provided with additional resources to support their planning: 

 Crosswalk of alignment between required CSI elements and the district SPSA template 

 Example responses for CSI-specific prompts 

 List of questions to support reflection and identification of resource inequities (adapted from LACOE tool) 

Upon confirmation of eligibility, sites were notified and provided a detailed overview of the process, requirements, eligibility, allowable 
expenditures, and exemplar content. 

To provide additional and more individualized support, district staff hosted a series of office hours specific to supporting the CSI and aligned 
School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) process.  These occurred over three weeks in the spring and offered sites the opportunity to 
engage with peers and staff in the following: 

 Review CSI requirements and eligibility criteria 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 31 
 

 Requirements for SPSA planning and LCAP alignment 

 Support for needs assessment and resource inequity identification 

 Identification of effective strategies and supports  

 Support for goal setting and identification of appropriate measurable outcomes 

 Assistance with funding allocations and appropriate use of targeted funding resources 

 Guidance for engaging educational partners and requirements for plan approval 

Site principals have ongoing access to support from their Instructional Assistant Superintendents through regular principal professional 
learning sessions, one-on-one check-ins, and additional individual support as needed.  Site principals also have ongoing access to support 
from the Continuous Improvement and Accountability team, which includes State and Federal Programs and Research and Strategy, 
departmental staff from Academics, Student Support and Health Services, and more.   

The School Site Council (SSC) is the body primarily responsible for developing their respective site’s CSI plan.  This group, with the guidance 
of the principal with the support of district staff works to conduct a needs assessment, identify resource inequities, and determine what 
evidence-based interventions to implement.  This process is supported by broader educational partner feedback at the district level that 
involve students, staff, and parents/guardians.  Examples include the annual School Climate Survey, student engagement surveys, the annual 
Local Control and Accountability Plan engagement process, and targeted surveys.  These sources of educational partner feedback help sites 
to better understand the specific needs of their community.  The School Climate Survey provides sites an overall and disaggregated view of 
their community’s sense of belongingness/connectedness and safety.  Student engagement surveys help sites to understand the overall level 
of engagement of their students while also identifying and responding to specific student needs.  Results such as these allow sites to identify 
specific areas in which all students need additional support as well as instances in which significant gaps are indicated in student experiences 
and/or performance.  This informs more targeted planning and implementation of actions/services to improve the performance of the student 
group(s) for which the site has been identified for CSI.  

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 

A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

In the 2020-21 school year SCUSD continued to use a SPSA Mid-Year review tool to support sites in monitoring and evaluating the 
effectiveness of their site plans.  The required reflection upon student outcome data, identified successes, revealed gaps, and implementation 
challenges will all support the ongoing development and refinement of CSI plans.   
 
In the Mid-Year review, schools are required to: 
 

Describe the overall implementation of the strategies/activities and the overall effectiveness to achieve the articulated goal 

 Restate the expected outcome of the strategy in terms of student achievement 

 Detail the specific actions taken to date 

 Describe current progress in achieving the expected outcomes as a result of implementing the strategy 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 32 
 

 Detail how identified student groups were impacted by the strategy 

 

Describe the level of implementation 

 Detail any major differences between the intended implementation and/or the budgeted expenditures to achieve the articulated goal 
 
Describe any changes that will be made to the annual outcomes, metrics, or strategies/activities to achieve the goal as a result of the mid-year 
reflection 
 
Guidance provided to principals/school sites at the outset of the year includes the expectation that sites are regularly monitoring the plans 
outlined in the SPSA.  This includes specific review of their goals, strategies, and outcomes as part of the mid-year review process as well as 
continued monitoring to inform any revisions based on identified needs.  Guidance also includes direction to review their plan for alignment to 
district LCAP goals. 
 
Staff from the Continuous Improvement and Accountability department will continue to work in partnership with Instructional Assistant 
Superintendents and the Academic Office to directly support, monitor, and evaluate the plans of CSI schools.  Quality SPSA goal setting and 
plan implementation is a key focus of the district and is viewed as a key lever to improving outcomes for all students, and in particular those 
students who have historically performed disproportionately below their peers. 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 33 
 

Engaging Educational Partners  
A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP.  

The annual and ongoing engagement of educational partners is a key part of SCUSD’s LCAP development process.  It is important that the 
goals, actions, expenditures, metrics, and targets within the LCAP are informed by the voices of students, families, staff, and community 
members. The educational partner engagement process for the 2022-23 LCAP has built upon the foundation established by the input 
informing the 2021-22 to 2023-24 LCAP and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan from fall 2021.  A range of educational partner engagement 
activities occurred throughout 2021-22 including listening sessions, meetings with district committees/groups, district surveys, drop-in hours 
for staff and students, public comment on the posted draft, and public comment at the public hearing and related board presentations.  The 
input received from these activities helped to further articulate the SCUSD community’s priorities for the district and to inform the annual 
development of the LCAP.   

During the summer and fall of 2021, educational partner engagement efforts focused on development of the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  
These efforts are described in detail in the district’s ESSER III Expenditure Plan adopted by the board on October 21, 2021. 
(https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/esser_iii_exp_plan_scusd_board_approved_10.21.21_updated_11.16.21_per_scoe.pdf?1638565654) Following approval of the 
ESSER III Expenditure Plan, efforts shifted to the development of the LCAP Mid-Year Report (including the one-time supplement to the 
LCAP Annual Update) and development of the 2022-23 LCAP.   

 

The district’s key educational partner groups play a critical role in representing different parts of the SCUSD community.  Key groups include: 

 Black/African American Advisory Board (B/AAAB): The B/AAAB meets monthly to advise the board, superintendent, and relevant district 
staff regarding accountability of services, programs, policies, and resources that directly impact the district/school culture and climate of 
classrooms and the academic, social/emotional, and personal outcomes for Black/African American students.  The AAAB also reviews, 
monitors and evaluates the continuous improvement of the district’s implementation of the board-adopted Black/African American Task 
Force recommendations.  LCAP staff supported B/AAAB membership in their alignment of recommendations to the LCAP through direct 
meetings with the B/AAAB facilitator and an Advisory Board learning session specific to the LCAP on 1.11.22.  The B/AAAB presented 
their work to-date including their recommendations implementation framework, alignment, and refinement to the Board of Education on 
2.17.22.     

 American Indian Education Program Parent Committee (AIEP PC): The AIEP PC meets monthly to advise, advocate for, and approve 
programs allocated for American Indian and Alaska Native students and families.   

 Community Advisory Committee (CAC): The CAC meets monthly and acts in an advisory capacity to the Special Education Local Plan 
Area (SELPA) and supports individuals with exceptional needs and their families.  LCAP-specific sessions were held with the CAC on 
1.18.22 and 3.8.22, with the latter focused on providing input towards the development of the new goal specific to Students with 
Disabilities (Goal 9).  The CAC also provided input during their September meeting to support the ESSER III development process. 

 District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC): The DELAC meets regularly to advise district officials on English Learner 
programs and services with the overall goal of helping English Learners attain English proficiency and achieve academic success.  LCAP-

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/esser_iii_exp_plan_scusd_board_approved_10.21.21_updated_11.16.21_per_scoe.pdf?1638565654
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/esser_iii_exp_plan_scusd_board_approved_10.21.21_updated_11.16.21_per_scoe.pdf?1638565654


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 34 
 

specific meetings were held with the DELAC on 11.10.21 and 2.16.22.  Additional input was provided by the DELAC to support the 
ESSER III development process in the fall.  The DELAC’s input in 2021-22 was embedded within their review and input towards the 
development of the new English Learner Master Plan. 

 LCAP Parent Advisory Committee (PAC): The LCAP PAC meets monthly to provide input and feedback on LCAP actions, services, and 
expenditures to support LCAP development.  This includes review and analysis of district data and other educational partner input to gain 
a deeper understanding of student needs and how those needs can be addressed to improve outcomes for all students.  The LCAP PAC 
met monthly throughout the 2021-22 school year.  The LCAP also held ‘small group meetings’ between each full meeting to debrief the 
previous meeting and plan for the following meeting.  There were 1-2 of these small group meetings held between each full meeting.  
Additional meetings were held to prepare for board presentations and during the summer to on-board new members.  The LCAP PAC 
presented their initial recommendations for the 2022-23 LCAP and district strategic planning to the board during the March 3, 2022 board 
meeting. These recommendations are discussed further in the following section. 

 Student Advisory Council (SAC): SAC meets weekly to develop policy initiatives, meet with district staff and committees, and work to 
ensure that all student voices are represented.  During the current year the SAC have worked to implement surveys to gauge student 
experiences with sexual health education and college access. 

 
Presentations to the board that provided opportunities for board member input and public comment included: 

 ESSER III Expenditure Plan Development Update (10.7.21) 

 ESSER III Expenditure Plan Adoption (10.21.21) 

 LCAP Quarterly Report (10.21.21) 

 LCAP Quarterly Report (1.13.22) 

 LCAP Mid-Year Report and One-Time Supplement to the Annual Update (2.17.22) 

 LCAP Parent Advisory Committee Recommendations (3.3.22) 

 Presentation of LCAP Draft (5.5.22) 

 Summary of S Educational Partner Input (5.19.22) 

 LCAP Public Hearing (6.2.22) 
 

A series of five listening sessions were held in March and April 2022 and were open to all students, staff, parents/caregivers, and community 
members.  These included a brief overview of the LCAP and provided attendees the opportunity to share their input on how to best support 
students with the highest needs.  Participants were invited to share what they thought was working and should be continued/expanded, what 
was missing, and where improvements were needed.  Simultaneous interpretation was provided in Spanish, Hmong, Chinese, and 
Vietnamese.  All sessions were held via zoom and were open to the public. 

Key surveys informing LCAP development included: 

 Spring 2022 School Climate Survey in February-March 2022 (Students, Staff, and Families) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 35 
 

 LCAP Annual Survey in March-April 2022 (Students, Staff, Families, and Community Members).  Surveys were available in Spanish, 
Hmong, Chinese, and Vietnamese.  Participants were able to complete the survey online (google forms) or via a hard copy picked up 
from their school site or the district office. 

New to the 2021-22 engagement process were ‘drop-in’ sessions for staff and students respectively.  These sessions included a brief 
introduction to the LCAP, with the majority of time reserved for open sharing of input by all attendees.  Three staff sessions were offered in 
April and were open to all staff including members of all bargaining groups, non-represented, or temporary staff.  Two student sessions were 
offered in April and were open to all students. 

An additional and important source of engagement with educational partners is the ongoing collaboration with the California Collaborative for 
Educational Excellence (CCEE), Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE), and additional partners through the Systemic Instructional 
Review (SIR) and Differentiated Assistance (DA) processes. In 2021-22, this collaboration involved regular monthly meetings with additional 
planning meetings to co-develop agendas.  During meetings SCUSD shares progress made towards specific SIR actions and reflects on 
ongoing district efforts such as the implementation of a Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS).  CCEE and SCOE leadership serve both as 
reviewers of the district’s SIR and DA work and also as critical friends, posing questions and making observations to prompt further SCUSD 
reflection and analysis.  All parties share the mutual goal of supporting SCUSD to engage in positive systems change and improve student 
outcomes – and especially those student groups who have underperformed over time.  The DA and SIR processes were specifically 
catalyzed by outcomes of Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Students with Disabilities. 

 

A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners. 

Overall, the feedback provided by educational partners reaffirmed and built upon many of the key priorities communicated in past input and 
the fall ESSER III Expenditure Plan process.  The following summary outlines the overarching themes that emerged across various input 
strands, specific recommendations and priorities that emerged from educational partner groups, and provides links to additional and more 
detailed educational partner feedback documents. 

 

The Annual Survey asked respondents to share their level of agreement for how highlight various strategic actions should be prioritized.  
These strategic actions were organized by LCAP goal.  While most of the strategic actions listed received relatively high levels of agreement, 
the following were the most highly prioritized as indicated by the percentage of all respondents who selected ‘Strongly Agree’ or ‘Agree’: 

 A safe, welcoming, and connected climate is present in all schools, classrooms, and learning spaces (85%) 

 Support all students and families to effectively navigate the path to college and career (82%) 

 Maintain, foster, and strengthen community partnerships (82%) 

 Empower students to take charge of their own learning and ensure that student voice is heard (82%) 
The following were the actions that received the highest percentage of ‘Strongly Disagree’ or ‘Disagree’ from all respondents: 

 Ensure that all students are enrolled in and complete an academic program that makes them 4-year college-eligible (18%) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 36 
 

 All levels of the district system are engaged in cycles of continuous improvement (17%) 

 Effectively use data to identify needs, monitor progress, and make equity-based decisions (17%) 

 Recruit and retain staff who are representative of the district’s student population (17%) 

 Building toward a future that is fiscally and logistically sustainable (17%) 

Students had overall levels of agreement and disagreement lower than the other two groups.  This was due to a higher frequency of ‘don’t 
know’ responses. 

 
Each of the survey sections associated with a key LCAP goal area included the option to provide additional comments.  Within the feedback 
received for each section, some recurring comments emerged.  Additionally, some overarching themes arose across multiple/all sections. 
Following is a brief summary of key input: 
 
College and Career Readiness 

 The district should not focus exclusively on college as the sole or best option for students 

 Increased awareness and access to vocational training and career and technical education (CTE). 

 Expanded range and equitable access to extra and co-curricular opportunities 

 More course and enrichment options in the Arts 

 Curriculum focused on life skills (e.g. financial literacy) 

 Early Education (Preschool and early elementary) as a key lever for college and career readiness 

 Dual Immersion programs as key college readiness programs 

 Maintaining and increasing robust college preparatory offerings 
 
Foundational Education Program (Tier 1) 

 Early Education as a foundational part of the district’s core program 

 Assessment of student needs early and ongoing – especially screening for dyslexia 

 Differentiated program options that serve the individual needs of students 

 Lack of agreement or clarity on the definition of ‘equity’ 

Integrated Supports (Tiers 2 and 3) 

 Importance of regular assessments with caution to not over-assess and emphasis that assessment does not only mean standardized 
assessments 

 Needs for increased mental health supports, with some concern about how this can be done effectively.  Advocacy for more student 
support centers across the district 

 Supports and processes for Students with Disabilities, particularly the provision of IEP-defined services 

Culture and Climate 

 Addressing inappropriate behavior through a consistent disciplinary process and the impact of behavior on instruction 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 37 
 

 Both support for and concerns about the implementation of restorative practices/justice.  Emphasis that training is needed for successful 
implementation. 

 Emphasis on safety including need for more security on campus, addressing campus violence, and more specific articulation of the new 
safety plan. 

Engagement and Empowerment 

 Need for more communication and partnership as well as authentic engagement to truly hear the voice of educational partners 

 Engagement in the form of capacity building and community building need to be provided including workshops/training for parents, 
encouraging volunteering, empowering those who don’t feel they have a place, and providing more funding for school sites to implement 
engagement opportunities.  

 Concern that parents/caregivers should not be positioned as ‘equal partners’ given that the district provides a professional, trained team. 

Overarching Themes 

 Frustration with the strikes – impacts on students and the overall need for more positive relationships between district and labor groups. 

 Smaller class sizes as a supporting factor for implementing the range of strategic actions. 

 Several related factors associated with staffing including: 

 More staff - respondents noted the impacts of the staffing shortages and need to bring in more teachers, instructional aids, counselors, 
etc. to provide services to students 

 More support for staff in the form of time to engage in the necessary work to support students and professional learning/training to 
effectively implement the desired programs 

 Appropriate compensation for staff as a means of recruiting/retaining 

 Improved hiring processes to ensure that staff can be recruited and brought into the district 

 Need for more positive labor relationships 
 

The section of the survey specific to the Graduate Profile indicates relatively low awareness (23%), experience with the district’s Grad Profile 
(15%), and overall knowledge of Graduate Profile as a concept (25%).  In general, staff demonstrated the highest levels of awareness in all 
three areas.  

The section of the survey specific to parents/caregivers asked respondents to share their level of agreement with statements describing the 
parent/caregiver experience at schools. 

 The percentage of parents/caregivers answering a combined ‘Agree’ and ‘Strongly Agree’ ranged from a low of 35% to a high of 61% 
across the individual statements. 

 Two items had only 35% of respondents indicate agreement.  These items also had the highest levels of disagreement: 

 The items with the highest levels of agreement were: 
         -I am able to meet with staff at my child’s school to discuss their academic progress (61%) 
         -My child’s school helps me understand what areas my student needs to improve in. (55%) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 38 
 

 There is someone I can reach out to at my school to help me understand policies, procedures, and my rights as a parent. (55%) 

 Overall, the rates of agreement were similar to the prior year, in which they ranged from 44% to 62%. 

 

The listening and drop-in sessions provided an opportunity to engage in more depth with individual voices and obtain their input for how to 
improve student outcomes.  Key discussion topics and some of the ideas that emerged within those topics are summarized below. 

 
Staffing and Related Supports 

 The highest needs students need more adult support for their individualized needs. This includes keeping students with disabilities in the 
classroom and making sure they are only pulled out for the appropriate reasons. 

 
Representation, Anti-racism, and Equity 

 Need to recruit and retain more black and indigenous teachers of color and nurture them in our system. 

 Need to take stock of our curriculum to ensure diverse representation. 

 No matter who a student or their family is, they should feel loved, safe and connected.   

 Supports systems for BIPOC and LGBTQ+ students are important 
 
Early Childhood Education 

 Key lever for improving outcomes for students with the highest needs. 

 Regular needs assessments and partnership with families. 

 Identify ways to increase the number of students served, both at low income and middle income ranges. 
 
Equitable Access to Programs 

 Libraries, music, and arts in schools are critical. 

 Ensuring the students who are GATE identified have equitable access to appropriate class/course placements. 
 
Supports for English Learners 

 Ensure that targeted funds are being used specifically to serve ELs and increase the quality of their learning. 

 Expand the focus to ELs in the early elementary grades to achieve success as early as possible. 

 Recognize that ELs have different needs than the general population and often different access to resources at home. 

 Improve communication with families regarding programs and services. 

 Focus on measurement of English language acquisition. 
 
Improved Data Use 

 Look beyond the ‘average students’ in the data.  Examine the outliers – those who are beyond the standard deviation. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 39 
 

 Need to reevaluate data and feedback – use survey and other collected data. 

 Provide more technical support to school sites to think through questions of fiscal analysis, demographic, and equity. 
 
Resource Allocation, including Targeted Use and Community Partnerships 

 Provide school sites sufficient funds for core program – targeted funds can then be used for supplemental activities. 

 Utilize good, better, best plans which allow for easy pivoting when circumstances dictate.  Leverage community based organization to 
provide services. 

 Target funding to specific student populations where they are most needed.  
 
Engagement and Empowerment 

 Build capacity of parents and allow them to bring that expertise as a resource on campus 

 Expand support for PTAs and use PTAs and SSC to engage site leadership. 

 Hold annual workshop to bring together key educational partner groups/advisory councils to learn from each other and about the overall 
process. Bring in PTA leaders and other leaders to learn about LCFF/LCAP and how to engage at the site level. 

 Provide additional scaffolding for the most marginalized groups. 

 District needs to go into spaces that already exist instead of just holding space and expecting people to come. 

 Has to start with making parents feel welcome at the school site first. 

 Clearly show community where they are able to provide input within each LCAP goal area. 

 Break down the LCAP into understandable components to help community understand. 
 
Communication 

 Communication needs to clarify the alphabet soup of acronyms in education.  Make things more digestible. 

 Help parents understand what is important and how it impacts their child’s specific education. 
 
Mental Health 

 Need to address Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). 

 Increase Student Support Center presence and the overall approachability of staff on campus. 

 Utilize arts education as a tool to help student mental health. 
 
Improvements to the System 

 Determine how we can effectively implement across the system while also attending to the individualized student experience. 

 Need to be innovative – reimagine what schools do, how they function, and how they support students. 

 Need to support staff – our educators are amazing but also exhausted.  They can’t be at their best for students when they don’t have 
what they need. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 40 
 

The LCAP Parent Advisory Committee presented a summary of their recommendations at the 3.3.22 Board Meeting.  These were organized 
into five key categories and provided short and mid-term recommendations within each category.  The key categories and examples of 
recommendations from each included: 

Systems for accurately and regularly evaluating student performance and progress 

 Short Term: Provide data on existing assessments and identify gaps – prioritize those students that have received zero assessments and 
administer accordingly 

 Mid-Term: Create a cross-sectional educational partner group to analyze existing assessments being used across the district – develop a 
set of recommended best practices 

Address learning loss and close gaps (academic and social) 

 Short Term: Bring all K-3 students to grade level standard in Reading and Math 

 Mid-Term: Effective implementation of strategies for differentiation, including Universal Design for Learning (UDL) 
Strategic partnerships to build capacity, leverage expertise, and break down walls between school and community 

 Short Term: Engage a cross-sectional group to identify strategic community partners and resources, inventory existing partnerships, and 
develop a vetting process 

 Mid-Term: Expand community schools model 
Increased adult support in classrooms and elimination of vacancies 

 Short Term: Increase the number of adult support staff on campus, including the number of instructional aides in classrooms 

 Mid-Term: Employee pipelines focused on increasing alignment/representation reflective of the district student population 
Provide mental health and social-emotional supports 

 Short Term: Increased and equitable extracurricular opportunities: Sports (interscholastic and intramural), art, music, clubs, vocational, 
college trips and field trips, and other adult-led, social activities 

 Mid-Term: Increase staffing and capacity to provide mental health supports (Student Support Centers) 

The recommendations can be viewed in full at: https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3-1_2021-
22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf  

 

The Black/African American Advisory Board presented input and recommendations as part of their presentation to the board on 2.17.22.  
This included a reiteration of their existing recommendations as well as an overview of a revised framework for organizing their 
recommendations.  This framework includes four key areas and some highlighted priorities within: 

Organizational and Infrastructure Development 

Improve Academic Achievement 

 Immediately identify, assess, monitor, and provide research-based, tiered intervention (remediation to acceleration) strategies to address 
the persistent learning gaps for its Black/African American student body. 

 Immediately address learning loss pre/during/after COVID-19 with all available resources for B/AA students 

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3-1_2021-22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3-1_2021-22_lcap_pac_initial_recommendations_recd3-2-33.pdf


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 41 
 

Monitor Discipline and Suspension Rates 

 Monitor the established plans and provide quarterly progress updates on the school sites with over 5% variance on suspension rate 
disproportionality 

Mandatory Culturally Relevant Professional Development 

 B/AAAB will identify and recommend a list of vetted and qualified vendors able to provide professional development opportunities 
addressing inequitable disciplinary practices, pre-college and career planning, and curricular and programmatic resources reflecting 
Black/African experiences.  The list will be presented to SCUSD leadership to act and integrate into the professional learning calendar. 

The presentation can be viewed in full at: https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-
attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf  

 

Feedback provided by educational partners during the ESSER III Fall 2021 engagement process served as foundational input for the year.  
Key themes from this process included: 

 Increased mental health and general health staff/supports at each school site (e.g. social workers, counselors, nurses, health aides) 

 Maintain access to nutrition resources for students/families including free school meals 

 Increased access to enrichment and extra/co-curricular opportunities (e.g. gardening, sports, VAPA, field trips) 

 Maintain and expand access to before and after school programs 

 Provide more individualized supports (e.g. individual learning plans, individual tutoring/intervention supports, and more instructional 
aides/specialists) 

 Increase efforts to recruit, retain, and support staff – including compensation for efforts 

 Partner with Community-Based Organizations (CBOs) and other community groups to expand offerings to students that the district cannot 
provide alone 

 Expand Social Emotional Learning (SEL) programs and resources 

 Provide instructional supports for teachers including planning time, resources to purchase supplies, access to software programs, and a 
reimagined vision of instruction that fits our new educational context. 

 

Additionally, community members emphasized the following for consideration in the ESSER III planning process: 

 We should be funding/supporting actions that might ordinarily present obstacles to fully funding but can now be supported because we 
have these one-time funds (e.g. elementary sports expansion) 

 Invest in actions that build long-term capacity beyond the life of the funds (e.g. develop in-house trainers to maintain/expand specific 
professional learning) 

https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/8.3_ppt_b_aaab_scusd_board_presentationupdatev22_17_22.pptx_.pdf


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 42 
 

 Provide seed money/invest in Community Based Organizations (CBOs) that can implement actions more effectively than we can.  (e.g. A 
$100,000 dollar investment into a CBO could yield far greater impact than a single employee for a single year) 

 Provide funding that allows student/families to access community resources that may not be available in-district or cannot be provided 
due to lack of staffing (e.g. YM/WCA activities, CSUS opportunities) 

 Use the existing priorities voiced by the community as a guide for planning 

A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners. 

 

The development of new LCAP goals specific to student groups (Goal 9, 10, and 11) were supported by input from educational partners.  
Input that had significant influence included: 

 The development of Goal 9 by the district’s Special Education Department was influenced by input form the district’s Community Advisory 
Community (CAC).  This included their ongoing discussions over the course of the year as well as a special meeting on 3.8.22 to provide 
input specifically towards the goal development.  Their input had specific input on all aspects of the development process including the 
goal statement, rationale, measurable outcomes, and actions.  In response to input, the goal statement is focused on the need to provide 
every student receiving Special Education services an inclusive instructional program, with the context of Least Restrictive Environment 
(LRE) as a key indicator, but not the purpose in and unto itself.  CAC input similarly influenced the actions, which include several focused 
on professional learning for staff aimed at increasing inclusivity, measurable outcomes, and access to standards aligned instruction.  The 
rationale for the goal also cites key CAC input regarding persistent inequitable outcomes at the intersection of race and disability, lack of 
access to inclusive environments, and empowering staff.  

 The development of Goal 10 by the district’s Homeless Youth Services staff was influence by input and thought partnership with 
colleagues from the Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) through a collaborative workshop on required goals as well as 
recurring input from educational partners in recent years.  Collectively, these partners have consistently reaffirmed the need to improve 
the rate of identification of Homeless Youth as a necessary first step in improving outcomes for this student group.  With a projected 
Homeless Youth population equal to 5-10% of the districts low-income population, SCUSD has significant room for improvement with an 
annual percentage of ~1% in recent years.  Given the recurring partner input and SCUSD’s own recognition of the need in this area, staff 
focused goal development toward the improvement of identification processes and overall rates. Specific input from educational partners 
resulted in the revision of the goal statement to include the word ‘respectfully.’  Educational partners noted that some families have had 
challenging experiences with the identification process in the past and that respect should be prioritized alongside efficiency and 
effectiveness in the implementation of the goal. 

 

Revisions to existing goals, measurable outcomes, and actions is annually influenced by educational partner input.  Notable examples from 
this year’s engagement cycle include: 

 Increased disaggregation: A significant growth from the previous three-year LCAP to the current cycle was the increased disaggregation 
of student group data across the wide range of measurable outcomes in the LCAP.  In response to input from Multilingual Literacy, who 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 43 
 

works in partnership with the DELAC, several measurable outcomes have been further disaggregated to include Migrant Youth.  These 
include A-G completion rates, State Seal of Bilteracy Rates, High School Drop-out Rates, and Suspension Rates. 

 Revised targets across key measurable outcomes: Following input from educational partners, most notably the LCAP PAC in their spring 
discussions, several measurable outcomes have revised targets that set a single goal for 2023-24 (rather than the previous 
disaggregated targets) for all student groups performing under the current ‘All students’ level.  This shift occurred in response to the 
desire of partners to set target outcomes that are easy to understand, focus attention and effort on historically underperforming student 
groups, and are realistic.  They noted that, as efforts are focused on these student groups and their growth is accelerated, the ‘All 
students’ rates will rise more rapidly than if small improvements are made for those groups who are already achieving above the ‘All 
students’ level.   

 Revision of Action Titles and Descriptions: Educational partners shared in the past and have continued to emphasize the importance of 
action titles and descriptions that are easy for all community members to understand in terms of the key actions to be accomplished and 
that also clearly communicate how target student groups are being served.  While this area of improvement will remain an area of focus 
over the coming years, this initial effort resulted in significant revision of action titles and descriptions. 

 Alignment of LCAP action to ESSER III Expenditure Plan- and other key plans: Educational partners have continued to seek greater 
transparency in the use of funding and overall alignment of district efforts. In response to this advocacy, the 2022-23 LCAP includes 
references and – where applicable – new actions that reflect the aligned efforts of the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  An example of a new 
action is 1.11 (Establish college and career readiness labs at Middle Schools), which is a key piece of the districts College and Career 
Readiness efforts.  Where ESSER III actions are supplemental to existing actions, a reference note has been included so the community 
can identify where multiple funding streams and plans are working together.  An example of a reference note is Action 3.9 (Attendance 
and Engagement Strategies), which is supplemented by Action B7 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  The Expanded Learning 
Opportunities action (2.3) also includes specific alignment to the Expanded Learning Opportunities Plan (ELOP) and the new actions 8.5 
(Employee Pipelines) and 8.6 (Recruitment and Retention) are aligned to both the ESSER III plan and the Educator Effectiveness Block 
Grant (EEBG) plan. 

  

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 44 
 

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

1 

100% of SCUSD students will graduate college and career ready with a wide array of postsecondary options and a clear 
postsecondary plan.  Growth in Graduation Rate and College/Career Readiness will be accelerated for Students with 
Disabilities, English Learners, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino 
students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and other student groups with gaps 
in outcomes until gaps are eliminated. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of student data from the past three California State Dashboards (2017-18 through 2019-20) shows that almost 60% of SCUSD 
graduates are not placing in the ‘prepared’ level for the College and Career Indicator.  Data from the California Department of Education 
(CDE) shows that almost half of SCUSD graduates are not completing UC ‘a-g’ requirements (54% completion rate in 2020-21) and more 
than one third do not enroll in college at any point during the 12 months after graduating (66% and 65% in the two most recent years 
available).   Significant performance gaps between student groups exist in all three of these outcomes, with results for English Learners, 
Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Students with Disabilities, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, 
Hispanic/Latino students, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students of particular concern. 

SCUSD’s guiding principle states that All students are given an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary 
choices from the widest array of options.  Educational partner input has informed the evolution from the prior LCAP Goal focused on college 
and career to this new version.  Key input has included the following: 

 Inequitable outcomes have persisted and student groups with the highest needs should be called out explicitly.  Increasing the 
percentage of students who are graduating college and career ready cannot just be a result of improving outcomes for those groups who 
are already achieving at a higher level. 

 It is important to acknowledge the importance of college AND career readiness as viable pathways to postsecondary success.  Students 
need more support to understand and, as desired, pursue Career and Technical Education (CTE) and dual enrollment as part of their 
studies and technical program/trades as postsecondary options. 

 Students need to have an individualized learning plan and clear postsecondary plan in addition to a wide array of options.  Readiness 
includes a defined multi-year plan and understanding of the steps and processes necessary to reach one’s goals 

Providing students ‘the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options’ connects to the definitions of college and 
career readiness shared in the plan summary.  ALL SCUSD students must graduate prepared for ANY post-secondary educational 
experience and have the skills needed for job training/education.  Our charge as a school district is to prepare each and every student so that 
all possible post-secondary options are open and accessible.  While not all students may take the same path following their graduation from 
SCUSD, they should have the choice of any path.  As systems and supports are improved, in particular the implementation of an effective 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 45 
 

Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS), it is expected that rates for secondary grade outcomes, including high school graduation and 
college and career readiness, will increase at higher rates.  This will be due not only to improvements at the secondary level, but result from 
students entering high school having received more effective supports and preparation in the elementary and middle grades. 

 

Note:  

In the section below (Measuring and Reporting Results), abbreviations are used for student groups.  These include EL (English Learners), FY (Foster 
Youth), HY (Homeless Youth), MY (Migrant Youth), SED (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students), SWD (Students with Disabilities), AA (African 
American students), AI/AN (American Indian or Alaska Native students), A (Asian students), F (Filipino students), H/L (Hispanic/Latino students), PI 
(Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander Students), W (White students), and TOM (Students of Two or More races/Multiracial students). 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 46 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1A  

Graduation Rate 

Percentage of 
students who 
received a High 
School Diploma 
within 4 or 5 years of 
entering 9th grade 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 85.7 87.3 
EL 81.2 75.8 
FY 66.7 81.3 
HY 75.3 72.9 
SED 84.7 86.1 
SWD 66 70.4 
AA 77.1 82.4 
AI/AN 81.8 73.3 
A 93.7 93.5 
F 100 95.2 
H/L 84.2 84.6 
PI 87 71.9 
W 84.6 92.5 
TOM 88.1 87.8 

 

 20-21 

ALL 85.1 
EL 80.4 
FY 64.5 
HY 60.3 

SED 83.7 
SWD 64.8 
AA 75.3 

AI/AN 76.9 
A 93.9 
F 96.6 

H/L 82.7 
PI 64.1 
W 90.4 

TOM 83.3 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted: 
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in Graduation Rates for 
all student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

85% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 91 
EL 82 
FY 86 
HY 80 

SED 90 
SWD 78 
AA 87 

AI/AN 81 
A 95 
F 97 

H/L 89 
PI 80 
W 95 

TOM 91 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 47 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1B 

On-Track 
Graduation Status 

Percentage of 9th-
12th grade students 
on track for 
graduation 
considering course 
completion and 
current course 
enrollment 

Source: SCUSD 
Internal Dashboard 

Note: 2020-21 data is 
to 4.5.21 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 53.8 53.6 

EL 43 41.2 

FY 16 27.7 

HY 21.9 28.8 

SED 51.9 48.9 

SWD 33.3 36.1 

AA 43 39.7 

AI/AN 48.2 40.7 
A 68.5 70.3 
F 67.3 68.6 
H/L 48.3 47.4 
PI 43.4 40.8 
W 58.4 60.2 
TOM 55.4 55.8 

 

 
 21-22 

ALL 50 
EL 34.3 
FY 21.8 
HY 15.3 

SED 45.2 
SWD 33.1 
AA 35.7 

AI/AN 32.7 
A 65.6 
F 67 

H/L 44 
PI 35.1 
W 58.9 

TOM 50.1 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted: 
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in On-Track 
Graduation Rates for 
all student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

70% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 70 
EL 61 
FY 53 
HY 53 

SED 66 
SWD 58 
AA 60 

AI/AN 61 
A 81 
F 79 

H/L 65 
PI 61 
W 74 

TOM 71 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 48 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1C 

College/Career 
Indicator  

Percentage of 
graduates who are 
placed in the 
‘Prepared’ Level on 
the Dashboard 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 40.5 41.7 
EL 19.5 18.7 
FY 11.1 30 
HY 16 12.3 
SED 36.2 37.6 
SWD 7 8.1 
AA 20 20.7 
AI/AN 18.2 20 
A 55.3 56.9 
F 58.3 58.1 
H/L 35.2 35.8 
PI 21.6 24.6 
W 51.2 53.5 
TOM 51.1 51.7 

 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 
FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 

AI/AN N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

H/L N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: There were no state 
indicators published on the 
2021 CA School Dashboard. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:   
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in College/Career 
Preparedness for all 
student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

30% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 62 
EL 47 
FY 54 
HY 42 

SED 59 
SWD 40 
AA 48 

AI/AN 48 
A 72 
F 73 

H/L 58 
PI 51 
W 69 

TOM 68 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 49 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1D  

A-G Completion 

Percentage of 
graduating cohort 
who met UC/CSU 
Requirements 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

**Data is not shown to 

protect student privacy.  
There are less than the 
minimum of 10 students in 
the cohort for this data point. 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 50.7 54 
EL 35.9 37.7 
FY 29.4 38.5 
HY 24.6 20.9 
MY * 55.6 
SED 46.1 50.3 
SWD 11.8 17.6 
AA 32.5 36.5 
AI 44.4 30 
A 70.4 71.4 
F 76.6 80 
HL 41.9 45.5 
PI 24.4 47.5 
W 54.6 58.5 
TOM 56.7 64.5 

 

 20-21 

ALL 54.4 
EL 40.3 
FY 36.8 
HY 31.1 
MY 62.5 

SED 49.5 
SWD 22.9 
AA 41.5 

AI/AN 25 
A 72.6 
F 63.6 

H/L 42.5 
PI 43.6 
W 61.8 

TOM 64.2 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:  
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in A-G Completion for 
all student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

50% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 70 
EL 59 
FY 60 
HY 48 

SED 67 
SWD 46 
AA 58 
AI 54 
A 81 
F 87 

HL 64 
PI 66 
W 73 

TOM 77 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 50 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1E 

On-Track A-G 
Status 

Percentage of 9th-
12th grade students 
on track for A-G 
considering course 
completion (does not 
include courses in 
progress) 

Source: SCUSD 
Internal Dashboard 

Note: 2021-22 data is 
to 3.29.22 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 53.8 53.9 
EL 34.3 36.8 
FY 28 21.3 
HY 25 17.8 
SED 48.6 48.1 
SWD 25.5 27.7 
AA 37.4 37.1 
AI/AN 39.3 33.3 
A 73.7 71.9 
F 70.5 69.1 
H/L 45.2 46.3 
PI 39.8 38.9 
W 63.2 64.1 
TOM 60.2 61.3 

 

 
 21-22 

ALL 51.5 
EL 32.5 
FY 23.6 
HY 22.2 

SED 45 
SWD 22.6 
AA 35.2 

AI/AN 34.6 
A 67.8 
F 70.4 

H/L 44.5 
PI 35.8 
W 62.8 

TOM 56.8 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:  
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in On-track A-G rates 
for all student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

50% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 
 

 23-24 

ALL 70 
EL 59 
FY 48 
HY 46 

SED 66 
SWD 53 
AA 59 

AI/AN 56 
A 82 
F 80 

H/L 65 
PI 60 
W 76 

TOM 75 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 51 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1F  

A-G AND CTE 
Completion 

Percentage of 
graduating cohort 
completing UC/CSU 
Requirements AND 
completing a Career 
Technical Education 
(CTE) Pathway 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 5.8 6.4 
EL 3.6 3.3 
FY 0 0 
HY 1.5 0 
SED 4.2 6.5 
SWD 1.3 0.7 
AA 2.7 4.5 
AI 0 0 
A 6.3 7.8 
F 2.1 6.4 
HL 3.8 7.2 
PI 7.1 9.1 
W 3.7 3.9 
TOM 4.6 7 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 8.8 
EL 5.5 
FY 0 
HY 6.3 

SED 9.6 
SWD 4.2 
AA 7.6 

AI/AN 15.4 
A 11.8 
F 7.6 

H/L 9.1 
PI 6.1 
W 6.8 

TOM 4.9 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:  
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in completion of both 
CTE and A-G for all 
student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

20% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 
 

 23-24 

ALL 13.8 
EL 11.6 
FY 8 
HY 9.5 

SED 12.2 
SWD 9.3 
AA 10.7 
AI 8 
A 14.3 
F 10.1 

HL 11.8 
PI 15.1 
W 11.7 

TOM 12.6 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 52 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1G  

CTE Pathway 
Completion 

Percentage of 
graduating cohort 
completing a Career 
Technical Education 
(CTE) Pathway 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 8.9 10.9 
EL 7.5 9.1 
FY 5.6 0 
HY 12.3 0 
SED 9.0 11.1 
SWD 6.4 5.8 
AA 8.8 8 
AI 9.1 0 
A 9.6 10 
F 8.5 7.9 
HL 9.0 13.3 
PI 19.0 13.6 
W 8.5 9 
TOM 9.9 11.3 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 14.7 
EL 12.4 
FY 8.3 
HY 31.3 

SED 16.2 
SWD 13.3 
AA 15.2 

AI/AN 30.8 
A 15.5 
F 10.6 

H/L 15.9 
PI 20.4 
W 11.2 

TOM 9.8 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:   
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in CTE Pathway 
Completion for all 
student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

20% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 18.9 
EL 17.1 
FY 8 
HY 8 

SED 19.1 
SWD 13.8 
AA 16 
AI 8 
A 18 
F 15.9 

HL 21.3 
PI 21.6 
W 17 

TOM 19.3 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 53 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1H  

CTE Pathway 
Enrollment 

Percentage of 
students in grades 
10-12 enrolled in a 
Career Technical 
Education (CTE) 
Pathway 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 23.3 24.3 
EL 19.8 20.8 
FY 15.4 18.0 
HY 25.4 19.1 
SED 23.5 24.7 
SWD 19.3 22.2 
AA 24.2 25.4 
AI 23.1 17.5 
A 20.1 21.6 
F 16.3 16.3 
HL 24.7 25.6 
PI 28.6 28.4 
W 21.8 23.9 
TOM 26.1 24.8 

 

 
 21-22 

ALL TBD 
EL TBD 
FY TBD 
HY TBD 

SED TBD 

SWD TBD 

AA TBD 

AI/AN TBD 

A TBD 
F TBD 

H/L TBD 

PI TBD 
W TBD 

TOM TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted:  
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in CTE Pathway 
Enrollment for all 
student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 

25% rate.  This will 

address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 

 23-24 

ALL 31.3 
EL 27.8 
FY 23.4 
HY 33.4 

SED 31.5 
SWD 27.3 
AA 32.3 
AI 31.1 
A 28.1 
F 24.3 

HL 32.7 
PI 36.6 
W 29.8 

TOM 34.1 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 54 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1I  

FAFSA Completion 

Percentage of 12th 
grade students 
completing the Free 
Application for 
Federal Student Aid 
(FAFSA) 

Source: Internal 
District Reporting 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 68.6 77.8 
EL 58.6 69.7 
FY 66.7 63.6 
HY N/A 54.5 
SED 68.4 76.2 
SWD 34.8 60 
AA 58.6 67.9 
AI 61.5 53.8 
A 83..5 86 
F 80.4 88.3 
HL 64.2 74.1 
PI 70.2 78.6 
W 63.9 79.1 
TOM 71.5 83.7 

 

 

 20-21 
21-22 
MY 

ALL 59.2 56.9 
EL 47.8 40.4 
FY 42.9 28.6 
HY 27.3 37.5 

SED 54.6 53.6 
SWD 27.8 23.1 
AA 45.7 44 

AI/AN 55.6 27.8 
A 76.4 72.6 
F 65.6 63.8 

H/L 52.9 55.5 
PI 33.3 36.8 
W 65.6 54.3 

TOM 64.7 60 

 
*Mid-year data to 3.29.22 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Adjusted: 
SCUSD’s aims to 
accelerate an increase 
in FAFSA completion 
for all student groups 
achieving below the 
level of ‘All students’ 
so that they are, at a 
minimum, achieving an 
80% rate.  This will 
address the historically 
disparate outcomes 
and have the largest 
impact on improving 
the ‘All students’ rate. 

 
Original: 
 

 23-24 

ALL 85 
EL 80 
FY 76 
HY 70 

SED 84 
SWD 74 
AA 79 
AI 70 
A 91 
F 92 

HL 83 
PI 86 
W 86 

TOM 89 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 55 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1J 

Certificate of 
Completion 

Percentage of 
Students with 
Disabilities in the 4-
year adjusted cohort 
receiving a Diploma 
(D) and Certificate of 
Completion (CC) 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

 

 
2019-20 

D CC 
ALL 66 13.9 

SWD+EL 63.6 18.7 
SWD+FY 53.8 7.7 
SWD+HY 50 8.3 

SWD+SED 66.3 12.6 
SWD+AA 67.6 11.8 
SWD+AI * * 
SWD+A 70.3 21.6 
SWD+F * * 

SWD+HL 65.7 9.5 
SWD+PI * * 
SWD+W 68.9 15.6 

SWD+TOM 64.3 21.4 
*Data is not shown to protect 

student privacy.  There are 
less than the minimum of 10 
students in the cohort for this 
data point. 

 
2020-21 

D CC 
ALL 65.4 9.8 

SWD+EL 69.7 12.8 
SWD+FY 33.3 0 
SWD+HY 32 4 

SWD+SED 64.5 9.7 
SWD+AA 54.5 9.1 
SWD+AI * * 
SWD+A 70.2 12.8 
SWD+F * * 

SWD+HL 68.4 9.7 
SWD+PI * * 
SWD+W 70.7 8.6 

SWD+TOM 55.6 11.1 
 

 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

The district’s desired 
outcome is to increase 
the percentage of 
students with 
disabilities who earn a 
diploma AND for 100% 
of students to earn a 
diploma OR certificate 
of completion, with 
earning a diploma as 
the prioritized 
outcome.  
 
Note: 
As the percentage of 
students who earn a 
diploma increases, the 
percentage of students 
who are able to earn a 
certificate of 
completion will 
decrease (a student 
cannot receive both). 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 56 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1K  

State Seal of 
Biliteracy (SSB) 

Percentage of 
graduates earning 
the State Seal of 
Biliteracy (SSB) 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

*Data is not shown to 

protect student privacy.  
There are less than the 
minimum of 10 students in 
the cohort for this data point. 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 12.7 14.4 
EL 6.9 5.9 
FY 5.9 0 
HY 1.6 4.7 
MY * 44.4 
SED 12 13.8 
SWD 1.4 0 
AA 2.8 3 

AI/AN 0 20 
A 15.5 14.5 
F 12.8 26.7 

H/L 16.8 17 
PI 2.4 2.5 
W 10.1 13.5 

TOM 10 19.4 
 

 
 20-21 

ALL 25.2 
EL 14.5 
FY 5.3 
HY 11.1 
MY 37.5 
SED 23.2 
SWD 4.6 
AA 10.5 
AI 0 
A 29.7 
F 25.5 

HL 26.9 
PI 10.3 
W 30.9 

TOM 18.3 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 30 
EL 30 
FY 30 
HY 30 

SED 30 
SWD 30 
AA 30 
AI 30 
A 30 
F 30 

HL 30 
PI 30 
W 30 

TOM 30 
 

1L 

State Seal of Civic 
Engagement 
(SSCE) 

Percentage of 
graduates earning 
the State Seal of 
Civic Engagement 
(SSCE) 

Source: TBD 

Note: SSCE criteria were 
adopted by the State 
Board of Education in 20-
21.  SCUSD will begin 
awarding the SSCE in 
2021-22. 

 
 20-21 

ALL 0 
EL 0 
FY 0 
HY 0 

SED 0 
SWD 0 
AA 0 

AI/AN 0 
A 0 
F 0 

H/L 0 
PI 0 
W 0 

TOM 0 
 

 21-22 

ALL TBD 
EL TBD 
FY TBD 
HY TBD 

SED TBD 
SWD TBD 
AA TBD 
AI TBD 
A TBD 
F TBD 

HL TBD 
PI TBD 
W TBD 

TOM TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 15 
EL 15 
FY 15 
HY 15 

SED 15 
SWD 15 
AA 15 
AI 15 
A 15 
F 15 

HL 15 
PI 15 
W 15 

TOM 15 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 57 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1M 

IB Exam 
Performance 

Percentage of all 
International 
Baccalaureate (IB) 
Exams taken that are 
passed with a score 
of 4+ (out of a total 
possible score of 7)  

Source: School Site 
Reporting 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 15.4 23.8 
 

 20-21 

ALL 30.9 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 36 
 

1N 

IB Diploma 
Completion 

Percentage of 
Diploma Programme 
candidates that 
complete the full 
International 
Baccalaureate (IB) 
Diploma  

Source: School Site 
Reporting 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 3.3 7.5 
 

 20-21 

ALL 29.6 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 24 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 58 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1O 

ELA Early 
Assessment 
Program (EAP) 

Percentage of 11th 
grade students 
Exceeding Standard 
on the English 
Language Arts (ELA) 
State Assessment 

Source: CAASPP 
Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 21.4 N/A 
EL 0.3 N/A 
FY N/A N/A 
HY 0 N/A 

SED 15.5 N/A 
SWD 3.4 N/A 
AA 7.7 N/A 
AI 25 N/A 
A 23.3 N/A 
F 29.3 N/A 

HL 16 N/A 
PI 5.8 N/A 
W 37.3 N/A 

TOM 39 N/A 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 
FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL  43 

EL  27 

FY  27 

HY 27 

SED  38 

SWD  30 

AA  33 

AI  45 

A  44 

F  48 

HL  39 

PI  31 

W  54 

TOM  56 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 59 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1P 

Math Early 
Assessment 
Program (EAP) 

Percentage of 11th 
grade students 
Exceeding Standard 
on the Mathematics 
State Assessment 

Source: CAASPP 
Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 10 N/A 
EL 1.3 N/A 
FY N/A N/A 
HY 0 N/A 

SED 6 N/A 
SWD 0.9 N/A 
AA 1.5 N/A 
AI 0 N/A 
A 14.9 N/A 
F 12.1 N/A 

HL 5.3 N/A 
PI 0 N/A 
W 21 N/A 

TOM 16.5 N/A 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 
FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL  34 
EL  28 
FY  27 
HY  27 

SED  31 
SWD  28 
AA  28 
AI  27 
A  38 
F  36 

HL  31 
PI  27 
W  42 

TOM  39 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 60 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

1Q 

Post-secondary 
outcomes for 
Students with 
Disabilities 
 
Percentage of 
students reporting 
participation in 
Higher Education or 
competitive 
employment 
following graduation/ 
matriculation from 
SCUSD. 
 
Source: Direct 
outreach to students 
by Special Education 
department  
 

2018-19: 37.3% 

 

 

 

 

 

2019-20: 77.40% 

 

Note: 2019-20 is the 
most recent SpED 

Annual Performance 
Report (APR) 

available 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24: 75% 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 61 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1.1 

Expand Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) Pathways and 
Programs 

(Continuing) 

Prepare students for post-secondary education and careers through 
aligned pathway experiences that provide work-based learning 
opportunities.  Coursework allows students to explore possible careers, 
begin training in a specific field, and build essential skills that lead to 
initial employment and/or postsecondary study.  CTE offerings include, 
but are not limited to, courses in Engineering & Design, Building Trades 
& Construction, Health & Medical Sciences, and Information Technology.  
Build a CTE pipeline at the middle school level beginning with a pilot 
program at Rosa Parks that articulate to Luther Burbank. 

Expanded efforts will include the implementation of Linked Learning at 
all high schools and the implementation of a ‘Defense of Learning’ 
assessment process in CTE pathways.  Partnership with Youth 
Development Support Services will continue to provide college mentors 
and after-school staff support to implement the California College 
Guidance Initiative (CCGI) modules.  These support students in their 
postsecondary preparation activities.  Additional college mentors will be 
hired to provide targeted support to CTE students to strengthen 
engagement and develop post-secondary transition plans. 

Note: Action C4 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan provides additional 
funding for teacher FTE and training to implement Linked Learning 
Programs in high schools.  

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 62 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1.2 

Provide Academic and Career 
Counseling (Base) 

(Continuing) 

Maintain base academic and career counseling supports for students 
including scheduling guidance, mental health support/crisis intervention, 
suicide awareness, assistance with college applications, FAFSA support, 
and planning for credit recovery. 
 
Staff will collaborate with the technology department to develop an 
electronic student-facing four-year plan.  This tool will be interactive and 
provide students and families the opportunity to see their course plan 
and co-construct goals with their academic counselor.  
 
Youth Development College Mentors are specifically targeting efforts for 
at-risk student populations and providing supplemental supports with the 
college application and financial aid (e.g. FAFSA) application processes. 

 N 

1.3 

Provide Academic and Career 
Counseling (Supplemental) 

(Continuing) 

Continue providing additional counseling supports to principally benefit 
unduplicated students including at-risk conferencing, campus visits, 
college and career awareness activities, summer school registration, 
college matriculation support, scholarship assistance, and prioritization 
of Homeless Youth and Foster Youth in registration and credit recovery.  
Collaboration with the Urban College Action Network (U-CAN) is 
focusing efforts on Black/African American students across all high 
schools to address credit recovery needs. 

Action B2 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan supplements this action 
with additional counseling FTE to provide extended day supporting in 
late afternoons and evenings, support dual-enrollment course-taking, 
develop career exploration opportunities, establish college and career 
centers, and create a seamless transition from elementary to middle 
school. This supplemental counseling support is for the 2022-23 and 
2023-24 school years. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 63 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1.4 

Central support for aligned 
master scheduling 

(Continuing) 

Coordinate districtwide scheduling and direct support to school sites to 
determine appropriate staffing needs, eliminate unnecessary course 
titles that lead to tracking, support pre-registration, and maximize overall 
scheduling efficiency.  Continued engagement in partnership with Linked 
Learning Alliance to audit master schedules and achieve increased 
efficiency with use of staffing FTE.  Implemented by 1.0 FTE Director of 
Master Scheduling. 

 Y 

1.5 

Accelerate progress toward 
graduation through Credit 
Recovery (Central and site-
based) 

(Continuing) 

Provide students who are off-track for graduation access and support to 
program options that accelerate their progress toward on-track status.  
Programs include targeted access at individual high school sites as well 
as the central Sacramento Accelerated Academy (SAA) credit recovery 
site.  Housed with the district’s enrollment center, SAA provides students 
with assistance from teachers both on-site and remotely to complete 
coursework.   

Staff have and will continue to collaborate with Homeless Youth 
Services, Foster Youth Services, and staff supporting English Learners 
to monitor progress and prioritize these student groups in providing 
credit recovery options. 

 Y 

1.6 

Eliminate financial barrier for 
exam participation 

(Continuing) 

Provide students access to Advanced Placement, International 
Baccalaureate (IB), PSAT, and SAT exams to ensure that no financial 
barriers prevent full participation. 

 Y 

1.7 

Provide additional support for 
International Baccalaureate (IB) 
Program  

(Continuing) 

Continue providing expanded access to the International Baccalaureate 
(IB) program at target schools, particularly for low-income students, 
English Learners, and underrepresented students.  Coursework in IB is 
designed to foster critical thinking, international mindedness, intellectual 
curiosity, and a love of learning.  The rigor of the IB program also 
prepares students for post-secondary studies.  This allocation funds 3.0 
FTE, 1.0 at each of the IB sites (Kit Carson International Academy, 
Luther Burbank High School, and Caleb Greenwood Elementary) 
professional learning, and supplemental instructional materials. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 64 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1.8 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 1 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

1.9 

Department-level data-based 
decision-making 

(Continuing) 

Use student data to provide interventions for struggling students in order 
to maintain on-track status for graduation and a-g course completion, 
especially for low-income students and English Learners.  Funding 
provide stipends to department heads at district high schools to support 
their leadership of data use. 

 Y 

1.10 

Transition Planning for 
Students with Disabilities 

(Modified) 

Provide adult professional learning regarding individual transition 
planning for special education instructional staff and school site 
administration to support development of transition planning at key 
milestones including, but not limited to: 

 Preschool to Elementary School 

 Elementary to Middle School 

 Middle to High School  

 High School to Post- Secondary activities 

 Change in special education placement  

 N 

1.11 
Post-secondary Tracking of 
Students with Disabilities (New) 

Improve post-secondary tracking of students with disabilities and the 
student response rate following their graduation/matriculation from 
SCUSD to inform transition strategic planning.  This will be monitored 
using data from the Annual Performance Report (APR) and is linked to 
metrics 1Q and 9A. 

 N 

1.12 
Establish college and career 
readiness labs at Middle 
Schools (New) 

Develop, build, and implement college and career readiness labs at the 
middle school level across the district. Planned enrollment of the first 
group of students in grades 7 and 8 by 2022-23 (Will C. Wood, Sam 
Brannan, Sutter, and Einstein Middle Schools), and expansion of sites, 
sections and grade levels in 2023-24 (Fern Bacon and California Middle 
Schools).   
 
Reference: Action C2 in ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 65 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

1.13 
Implement State Seal of Civic 
Engagement (SSCE) program 
for students (New) 

Continue implementation initiated in 2021-22 including refinement of 
rubrics, expansion of entry points for students, creation of additional 
opportunities for engagement in K-12 curriculum, and expansion of the 
number and range of partnerships that provide students opportunity for 
community engagement.  
 
Reference: Action C3 in ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

 N 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 66 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 1 closely matched the plan.  While the impacts of COVID-19 during 2021-22 
have had significant impacts on programs and services, staff were able to effectively implement these specific actions consistent with the 
plan.  Minor exceptions included: 

 Action 1.1 (CTE): Hold for updated information 

 Action 1.8 (SPSA actions): Hold for updated information 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 1 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 1.1 (CTE): Hold for updated information 

 Action 1.8 (SPSA actions): Hold for updated information 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 1 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of 100% of SCUSD students graduating 
college and career ready with a wide array of postsecondary options and a clear postsecondary plan. Key examples of implementation 
progress include: 

 (Action 1.1) The Career and Technical Education (CTE) team has implemented virtual learning opportunities, partnered with city and 
community organizations to create internships and work-based learning opportunities, and worked to fill a work-based learning 
coordinator position. Linked Learning implementation efforts are ongoing.  The team has joined a community of practice (Linked Learning 
Alliance) to support operationalizing linked learning in the district and an SCUSD-specific community of practice has also been formed.  
2022-23 implementation will bring linked learning to about half of the target schools.  Current efforts include master scheduling for cohorts 
and planning summer professional learning for teachers. 

 Counselors (Action 1.2) have adapted supports to the COVID-19 context, reviewing Assembly Bill 104 waivers and exemptions and 
following up with individual students to intervene in response to identified issues. The counseling team has also partnered with the United 
College Action Network (UCAN) and Improve Your Tomorrow (IYT) to collaborate on the provision of supplemental counseling for Black 
and African American students.  This has included information about Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs) and 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 67 
 

collaboratively problem-solve how to better provide support and services for B/AA students. Counselors are also supporting the building 
of awareness for the State Seal of Civic Engagement process.  (Action 1.3) Counselors continue to work directly with high-needs students 
to provide credit recovery referral, career awareness, and other supports.  The counseling team has also worked with college mentors to 
provide additional support in the areas of matriculation, financial aid, and college planning. (Action 1.4) Staffing allocation realignment is 
ensuring that schools can fully implement English Learner courses at class sizes that appropriately match their language level.  Work will 
continue with a focus on supporting English Learners through master scheduling, including newcomer pathways.  

 (Action 1.5) The district’s credit recovery program has surpassed past numbers of courses completed and participation reflects the 
demographics of the district.  The credit recovery team is collaborating with partners (e.g. UCAN) to collaboratively support students with 
credit recovery efforts specific to Black/African American students. 

 (Action 1.6) Support for college and career-related assessments (Advanced Placement (AP), International Baccalaureate (IB), PSAT, and 
SAT) continued with spring 2022 exam fees provided to all students.  (Action 1.7) Schools implementing the IB program (Luther Burbank 
HS, Kit Carson International Academy, and Caleb Greenwood Elementary) continued to receive support to fully implement. 

 (Action 1.9) Transition planning professional development has been provided to Special Education Staff and other trainings are planned 
throughout the 21-22 school year. 

Evidence of progress in measurable outcomes include the increases overall and for most student groups in CTE Pathway completion rates, 
rates of students who completed both A-G and CTE, IB exam performance and diploma completion, and State Seal of Bilteracy completion.  
A small increase was observed in A-G completion rate from 2019-20 (54%) to 2020-21 (54.4%) with trends varying by student group.  This 
result reflected significant efforts on the part of staff to support students during the pandemic context in which there has been high potential 
for students to fall off track for A-G completion.  Graduation rate dipped overall from 87.3% in 2019-20 to 85.1% in 2020-21, indicating that 
increases in some indicators has not necessarily translated to the same success in this key outcome. While some students demonstrated 
increases in graduation rate from 2019-20 to 2020-21 (e.g. English Learners from 75.8% to 80.4%), the results across student groups were, 
overall, more concerning.  Foster Youth decreased from 81.3% to 64.5%, Homeless Youth from 72.9% to 60.3%, Student with Disabilities 
from 70.4% to 64.8%, African American students from 82.4% to 75.3%, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students from 71.9% to 
64.1%.  These results all moved key student groups further away from the stated goal.  On-track graduation rates for 9-12th graders indicate 
that improvement is needed for all students (50% on track rate for 2021-22 as of 3.29.22) and for the same student groups discussed above.  
Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Students with Disabilities, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, and Native 
Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students all have 21-22 on-track rates (as of 3.29.22) less than 36%. 

A key effort in progress to move all students and especially high needs students toward the goal is the development of a secondary course-
planning tool that can be used by students, staff, and parents/caregivers to closely monitor progress towards graduation and A-G completion.  
This tool will also serve as the foundation to support students in developing a post-secondary plan.  The Technology Department has 
mapped every course to a graduation requirement by grade level, allowing Counselors to identify a student’s exact graduation status.  Once 
this feature is complete, Counselors and Assistant Principals will have the ability to add subsequent courses based on conversations with 
students in grades 9-11.  Phase 2 of the project will allow students to monitor their progress towards A-G completion and also will include 
course planning for grades 7 and 8.   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 68 
 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Following input from educational partners, most notably the LCAP PAC in their spring discussions, several measurable outcomes have 
revised desired outcomes that set a single goal for 2023-24 (rather than the previous disaggregated targets) for all student groups performing 
under the current ‘All students’ level.  This shift occurred in response to the advocacy to set target outcomes that focus attention and effort on 
historically underperforming student groups.  District staff identified desired outcomes that reflect ambitious outcomes that are attainable if all 
efforts are implemented with success.  Partners noted, and staff concur, that as efforts are focused on these student groups and their growth 
is accelerated, the ‘All students’ rates will rise more rapidly than if small improvements are made for those groups who are already achieving 
above the ‘All students’ level.  Measurable outcomes for which this change had been made include 1A (Graduation Rate), 1C 
(College/Career Indicator), 1D (A-G Completion), 1G (CTE Pathway Completion), and others. 

Two new actions and additional notes of alignment have been added to Goal 1 for the 2022-23 school year. These establish alignment 
between Goal 1 and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  Action 1.12 (Establish college and career readiness labs at Middle Schools) and 
Action 1.13 (Implement State Seal of Civic Engagement (SSCE) for students) both address recognized needs and reflect priorities of district 
and community.  Extending the presence of robust college and career readiness supports into Middle School has been a high priority and the 
building out of full CCR labs in all middle schools is a key step in improving overall college and career readiness and other secondary 
outcomes.  Implementation of the SSCE is also a key college and career readiness action that will build students’ skills in many areas and 
better prepare them for the college application process and transition to their post-secondary career. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 69 
 

Goal  

Goal # Description 

2 

Provide every SCUSD student an educational program with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity to district programs and 
practices, and robust, rigorous learning experiences inside and outside the classroom so that all students can meet or 
exceed state standards. 
 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of student data from the most recent state assessments (2018-19) show that only 43% of students are ‘Meeting or Exceeding 
Standard’ in English Language Arts (ELA).  For Math, the rate is only 33%.  Results from the Dashboard show that on average, students 
scored 21.5 points below the ‘Standard Met’ level in ELA and 48.8 points below the ‘Standard Met’ level in Math.  Significant performance 
gaps exist for multiple student groups including English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 
students, Students with Disabilities, African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino students, and 
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students.   

Educational partner input has emphasized the need for equity, inclusion, coherence and consistency across the district and the expectation 
that all students, regardless of school site, program participation, or classroom, should have equitable access to a high-quality educational 
experience.  This includes fidelity to district programs and practices.  A particular emphasis in educational partner input has been the 
consistent implementation of district common assessments. This is currently an issue being discussed with labor partners.  Participation 
rates in the beginning of year and interim assessments during 2020-21 for both Math and ELA were near 50% districtwide and second 
interim assessment participation rates in 2021-22 were 21% for ELA and 6% for Math. 

This goal also aligns to the district’s current efforts to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) across all schools.  
The goal speaks to the provision of a high-quality Tier 1 instructional program for all students.  This is the foundation upon which an effective 
MTSS is built.  With a strong and effective Tier 1 program in place, the district will be able to more accurately assess the full range of needs 
that exist. 

 

Note:  

In the section below (Measuring and Reporting Results), abbreviations are used for student groups.  These include EL (English Learners), FY (Foster 
Youth), HY (Homeless Youth), MY (Migrant Youth), SED (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students), SWD (Students with Disabilities), AA (African 
American students), AI/AN (American Indian or Alaska Native students), A (Asian students), F (Filipino students), H/L (Hispanic/Latino students), PI 
(Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander Students), W (White students), and TOM (Students of Two or More races/Multiracial students). 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).    



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 70 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2A 

ELA State 
Assessment 

Average Distance 
from ‘Standard Met’ 
on English Language 
Arts (ELA) Smarter 
Balanced Summative 
Assessment for 
grades 3-8 and 11 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 

ALL -21.5 
EL -58 

ELO -100 
RFEP 10.6 

FY -82.3 
HY -88.1 

SED -43.9 
SWD -100.5 
AA -72.5 
AI -61.2 
A -5.4 
F 22.6 

HL -39.7 
PI -66.1 
W 34.1 

TOM 3.3 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 

ELO N/A 
REFP N/A 

FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL  -15.6 

EL  -42.3 

ELO  -72.9 

RFEP  16.6 

FY  -60 

HY  -64.2 

SED  -32 

SWD  -73.3 

AA  -52.9 

AI  -44.6 

A  -3.9 

F  28.6 

HL  -28.9 

PI  -48.2 

W  40.1 

TOM  9.3 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 71 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2B 

Math State 
Assessment 

Average Distance 
from ‘Standard Met’ 
on Mathematics 
Smarter Balanced 
Summative 
Assessment for 
grades 3-8 and 11 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 

ALL -48.8 

EL -75.1 

ELO -112.5 

RFEP -13.9 

FY -116.4 

HY -122.3 

SED -70.5 

SWD -129.1 

AA -107 

AI -98.6 

A -19.8 

F -3.2 

HL -69.8 

PI -91.9 

W 5.1 

TOM -21.4 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 

ELO N/A 
REFP N/A 

FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL -35.6  

EL  -54.7 

ELO  -82 

RFEP  -10.1 

FY  -84.9 

HY  -89.2 

SED  -51.4 

SWD  -94.1 

AA  -78 

AI  -71.9 

A  -14.4 

F  -2.3 

HL  -50.9 

PI  -67 

W  18.4 

TOM  -15.6 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 72 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2C 

California Science 
Test (CAST) 

Percentage of 
students Meeting or 
Exceeding Standards 
on CAST (Grades 5, 
8, 12) 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 

ALL 24.8 
EL 1.5 
FY N/A 
HY 8.5 

SED 17.7 
SWD 6.5 
AA 9.4 
AI 20 
A 31.4 
F 36.2 

HL 16.6 
PI 10.9 
W 45.6 

TOM 35.5 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 

ELO N/A 
REFP N/A 

FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 45 

EL  28 

FY  33 

HY  33 

SED  40 

SWD  32 

AA  34 

AI  42 

A  50 

F  53 

HL  39 

PI  35 

W  60 

TOM  53 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 73 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2D 

English Learner 
Progress Indicator 
(ELPI) 

Percentage of 
English Learners 
making progress 
towards proficiency 
on the English 
Language Proficiency 
Assessments for 
California (ELPAC) 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 19-20 

% of ELs 
decreasing at 
least 1 ELPI 

level 

18.5 

% of ELs who 
maintained 

ELPI Level of 
1-3 

37.4 

% of ELs who 
maintained 

ELPI Level 4 
3.4 

% of ELs who 
progressed at 
least 1 ELPI 

Level 

40.6 

% Making 
Progress 44.1 

 

2021-22: TBD 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 

 

2023-24: 

 

55.6% of ELs will 
progress at least 1 
ELPI Level 

 

AND 

 

59.1% of ELs overall 
will make progress 

2E 

Reclassification 
Rate 

Percentage of 
English Learners 
reclassified to Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP) 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 

2018-19:  9.5% 

 

2019-20: 10.4% 

 

2020-21: 4.6% 

 

2021-22: TBD 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 

 

2023-24: 

Reclassification rate 
will be within .5% of 
the state 
reclassification 
average 

 

Rate will be at least 
13.3% based on 
2019-20 state rate of 
13.8% 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 74 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2F 

Long-Term English 
Learners (LTELs) 

Percentage of 
English Learners that 
have been classified 
as ELs for 6+ years 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 

 

Grade 19-20 

6th 26 
7th 22 
8th 21 
9th 17 

10th 19 
11th  15 
12th  28 

 

Grade 
2020-21 

N % 

6th 463 52.6 
7th 442 47.5 
8th 461 43 
9th 464 41.5 

10th 344 30.6 
11th 296 25.6 
12th 322 28.6 

 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

Grade 23-24 

6th 18 
7th  17 
8th  15 
9th  13 

10th  15 
11th   11 
12th   14 

 

2G 

Advanced 
Placement (AP) 
Pass Rate 1 

Percentage of 
students in grades 
10-12 that passed at 
least 1 AP Exam with 
a score of 3 or more 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

Note: Spring 2020 AP 
Exams were modified and 
administered online due 
to COVID-19 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 10.6 5.7 

EL 4.4 2.1 

FY 0 0.0 

HY 1.4 0.0 

SED 8 4.2 

SWD 0.4 0.7 

AA 2.4 1.6 

AI 1.5 0.0 

A 16.8 9.3 

F 17.6 8.7 

HL 8.9 4.4 

PI 1.8 1.6 

W 15.7 8.3 

TOM 15.1 6.9 
 

 20-21 

ALL 10.2 
EL 2.5 
FY 0 
HY 0 

SED 7 
SWD 0.6 
AA 2.9 
AI 1.9 
A 16 
F 15.1 

HL 7.3 
PI 1.6 
W 16.7 

TOM 13.6 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 20 

EL 8 

FY 2 

HY 3 

SED 16 

SWD 5 

AA 5 

AI 3 

A 20 

F 20 

HL 15 

PI 3 

W 20 

TOM 20 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 75 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2H 

Advanced 
Placement (AP) 
Pass Rate 2 

Percentage of ALL 
Advanced Placement 
(AP) Exams taken by 
students in grades 
10-12 that were 
passed with a score 
of 3 or more 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

 

 

2018-19: 43.4% 

 

2019-20: 49.9%* 

 

*Note: Spring 2020 AP 
Exams were modified and 
administered online due to 
COVID-19 

2020-21: TBD 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 

 

2023-24: 67% 

2I 

Advanced 
Placement (AP) 
Enrollment 

Percentage of 
students in grades 
10-12 enrolled in 1 or 
more Advanced 
Placement (AP) 
classes 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 25.5 25.4 
EL 9.2 7.2 
FY 3.4 2.5 
HY 7.9 4.2 

SED 20.1 19.7 
SWD 2.7 2.7 
AA 12.4 12.9 
AI 15.7 9.6 
A 37.5 38.9 
F 39.1 39.6 

HL 19.9 18.7 
PI 11.4 11.8 
W 34.1 35 

TOM 33.8 33.5 
 

 
 21-22 

ALL TBD 
EL TBD 
FY TBD 
HY TBD 

SED TBD 
SWD TBD 
AA TBD 
AI TBD 
A TBD 
F TBD 

HL TBD 
PI TBD 
W TBD 

TOM TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 30 
EL 15 
FY 5 
HY 10 

SED 30 
SWD 5 
AA 20 
AI 20 
A 40 
F 40 

HL 25 
PI 15 
W 40 

TOM 40 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 76 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2J 

GATE Identification 

Percentage of first 
grade students 
identified for Gifted 
and Talented 
Education (GATE) 
program relative to 
overall 1st grade by 
student group 

Source: SCUSD 
Advanced Learning 
Department 

 

 

 
1st 

Grade 
18-19 

19-20 All GATE 

ALL N/A 12.6 
EL 21.2 11.2 
FY 0.3 0.0 
HY 0.7 0.0 

SED 69.0 43.2 
SWD 14.3 6.8 
AA 13.8 2.9 
AI 0.7 0.7 
A 18.7 23.1 

HL 39.9 24.7 
PI 2.1 1.1 
W 17.3 34.1 

TOM 7.6 13.4 
 

1st 
Grade 

21-22 

All GATE 

ALL TBD TBD 
EL TBD TBD 
FY TBD TBD 
HY TBD TBD 

SED TBD TBD 
SWD TBD TBD 
AA TBD TBD 
AI TBD TBD 
A TBD TBD 

HL TBD TBD 
PI TBD TBD 
W TBD TBD 

TOM TBD TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

Percentage of 
students newly 
identified as GATE 
during the 1st grade 
will be comparable to 
each group’s 
proportion of the 
overall 1st grade 
population. 

2K 

GATE 
Demographics 

Percentage of 
students in grades 2-
12 identified for 
Gifted and Talented 
Education (GATE) 
program relative to 
overall grade 2-12 
student population by 
student group 

Source: Advanced 
Learning Department 

 
Grades 

2-12 
18-19 

19-20 All GATE 

ALL N/A 15.0 
EL 18.0 4.0 

SED 60.3 8.0 
SWD 15.6 5.0 
AA 13.2 4.7 
AI 0.5 7.6 
A 19.2 18.4 

HL 40.7 9.4 
PI 2.2 5.6 
W 16.7 29.9 

TOM 7.4 23.7 
 

Grades 
2-12 

21-22 

All GATE 

ALL TBD TBD 
EL TBD TBD 

SED TBD TBD 
SWD TBD TBD 
AA TBD TBD 
AI TBD TBD 
A TBD TBD 

HL TBD TBD 
PI TBD TBD 
W TBD TBD 

TOM TBD TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

Percentage of 
students within each 
student group who 
are identified as 
GATE will be 
comparable to each 
group’s proportion of 
the overall student 
population (grades 2-
12). 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 77 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2L 

State Standards 
Implementation 
Survey 

Percentage of 
respondents 
indicating ‘Fully 
Implementing’ or 
‘Fully Implementing 
with Sustainability’ by 
survey domain 

Source: Local 
Survey of 
Administrators 

 

 
 20-21 

Providing 
Professional 

Learning 
28 

Identifying 
Professional 

Learning Needs 
20 

Providing 
Standards-

Aligned Materials 
45 

Implementing 
Standards 19 

Implementing 
Policies or 

Programs to help 
staff identify 

areas of 
improvement 

3 

 

 21-22 

Providing 
Professional 

Learning 
TBD 

Identifying 
Professional 

Learning 
Needs 

TBD 

Providing 
Standards-

Aligned 
Materials 

TBD 

Implementing 
Standards TBD 

Implementing 
Policies or 

Programs to 
help staff 

identify areas 
of 

improvement 

TBD 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

Providing 
Professional 

Learning 
100 

Identifying 
Professional 

Learning Needs 
100 

Providing 
Standards-

Aligned Materials 
100 

Implementing 
Standards 100 

Implementing 
Policies or 

Programs to help 
staff identify 

areas of 
improvement 

100 

 

2M 
District Common 
Assessment 
Participation Rate 
(Math) 
Percentage of 
students completing 
the second Interim 
District Common 
Assessment in Math 

Source: District 
Analysis 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 24 
EL 30 

SED 24 
SWD 18 
AA 17 
AI 18 
A 31 

HL 23 
PI 22 
W 23 

TOM 23 
 

 21-22 

ALL 6 
EL 6 

SED 6 
SWD 6 
AA 4 
AI 9 
A 8 

HL 5 
PI 7 
W 5 

TOM 6 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 95 
EL 95 

SED 95 
SWD 95 
AA 95 
AI 95 
A 95 
F 95 

HL 95 
PI 95 
W 95 

TOM 95 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 78 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2N 
District Common 
Assessment 
Participation Rate 
(ELA) 
Percentage of 
students completing 
the second Interim 
District Common 
Assessment in ELA 

Source: District 
Analysis 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 49 
EL 49 
FY 36 
HY 31 

SED 46 
SWD 40 
AA 41 
AI 42 
A 56 

HL 47 
PI 43 
W 52 

TOM 50 
 

 21-22 

ALL 21 
EL 20 
FY 21 
HY 19 

SED 19 
SWD 22 
AA 27 
AI 20 
A 23 

HL 20 
PI 21 
W 21 

TOM 19 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 95 

EL 95 

FY 95 

HY 95 

SED 95 

SWD 95 

AA 95 

AI 95 

A 95 

HL 95 

PI 95 

W 95 

TOM 95 
 

2O 
District Common 
Assessment 
Performance (Math) 
Percentage of correct 
responses on the 
second Interim 
District Common 
Assessment (Math) 

Source: District 
Analysis 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 59 

EL 51 

SED 54 

SWD 49 

AA 46 

AI 53 

A 61 

HL 54 

PI 50 

W 72 

TOM 64 
 

 21-22 

ALL 57 

EL 47 

SED 51 

SWD 48 

AA 44 

AI 47 

A 61 

HL 51 

PI 40 

W 72 

TOM 63 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 70 
EL 64 

SED 66 
SWD 63 
AA 61 
AI 66 
A 72 

HL 66 
PI 64 
W 80 

TOM 74 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 79 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2P 
District Common 
Assessment 
Performance (ELA) 
Percentage of correct 
responses on the 
second Interim 
District Common 
Assessment for 
English Language 
Arts (ELA) 

Source: District 
Analysis 

 

 
 20-21 

ALL 54 

EL 40 

FY 40 

HY 39 

SED 48 

SWD 41 

AA 44 

AI 48 

A 56 

HL 49 

PI 45 

W 65 

TOM 60 
 

 21-22 

ALL 55 
EL 43 
FY TBD 
HY TBD 

SED 50 
SWD 43 
AA 47 
AI 50 
A 57 

HL 51 
PI 45 
W 65 

TOM 61 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 66 
EL 56 
FY 56 
HY 56 

SED 62 
SWD 57 
AA 59 
AI 62 
A 68 

HL 63 
PI 60 
W 74 

TOM 71 
 

2Q 

Third Grade 
Reading Proficiency 
(State Assessment) 

Percentage of third 
grade students above 
standard on the 
Reading-specific 
domain of the state’s 
ELA assessment 

Source: California 
Assessment of Student 
Performance and 
Progress (CAASPP) 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter Schools 

 
 18-19 

ALL 21.5 

EL 4.2 

RFEP 29.7 

HY 3.6 

SED 13.5 

SWD 9.4 

AA 8.6 

AI 7.1 

A 21.7 

F 37.5 

HL 14.8 

PI 7.1 

W 43.1 

TOM 33.9 
 

 20-21 

ALL N/A 
EL N/A 
FY N/A 
HY N/A 

SED N/A 
SWD N/A 
AA N/A 
AI N/A 
A N/A 
F N/A 

HL N/A 
PI N/A 
W N/A 

TOM N/A 
NOTE: State Assessments 
were not administered 
during the spring of 2021. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
The district’s desired 
outcome for this 
metric is that 100% of 
all students and all 
student groups will 
exceed the standard 
on the reading-
specific domain of 
the state’s ELA 
assessment. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 80 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2R 

Third Grade 
Reading Proficiency 
(District 
Assessment) 

Percentage of 
students achieving 
proficiency on the 
Reading-specific 
domain of the 
district’s local ELA 
assessment 

Source: District 
Common 
Assessments 

 
2020-21 Baseline: 0 
 
Currently, district 
benchmark assessments 
measure overall 
performance in ELA and 
Math. In 2021-22, staff will 
develop specific question 
groups within the ELA 
assessments to enable 
specific measurement of 
reading proficiency.   
 

 

Grade 
21-22 

N FL SP 

K 
 

348 73 78 
1 761 35 43 
2 847 26 34 
3 924 31 40 
4 833 18 27 
5 847 18 27 
6 764 21 31 

 

Note: The above results 
provide the fall and spring 
percentage of students 
who placed above or on 
grade-level for the iReady 
ELA assessment. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
The district’s desired 
outcome for this 
metric is that 100% of 
all students and all 
student groups will 
achieve proficiency 
on the reading-
specific domain of 
the district’s local 
ELA assessment. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 81 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

2S 
 
Collaboration Time 
  
Percentage of school 
sites completing the 
collaboration time 
data collection tool 
and percentage of 
school sites 
confirming explicit 
use of time to focus 
on improved 
outcomes for 
unduplicated 
students. 
 
Source: Site 
Administrator 
Responses 

Data collection tool to 
be developed and 
implemented in 2021-
22.  Tool will ask sites 
to describe how 
collaboration time 
is used, including how 
efforts are focused on 
improved outcomes 
for unduplicated 
students.   
 

2020-21 Baseline for 
response rate: 0% 
  
2020-21 Baseline for 
confirmation of explicit 
use rate:  0% 
  

2021-22 Response 
Rate: TBD 

 

2021-22 Confirmation 
of explicit use: TBD 

To be reported in 
2022-23  

To be reported in 
2023-24  

  
Response rate: 100% 

  
  
Confirmation of 
explicit use 
rate:  100%  
  

2T 
 
Least Restrictive 
Environment 
 
Rate of students with 
disabilities in Regular 
Class more than 80% 
of the time and less 
than 40% of the time. 
 
Source: SpED 
Annual Performance 
Report (APR) 

2018-19: 
Time in 
Regular 
Class 

% of 
Students 

More 
than 
80% of 
the time 

57.7 

Less 
than 
40% of 
the time 

23.8 

 

2019-20: 
Time in 
Regular 
Class 

% of 
Students 

More 
than 

80% of 
the time 

54.1% 

Less 
than 

40% of 
the time 

22% 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23  

To be reported in 
2023-24  

2023-24: 
Time in 
Regular 
Class 

% of 
Students 

More 
than 
80% of 
the time 

61 

Less 
than 
40% of 
the time 

20 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 82 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.1 

Professional Development to 
support implementation of state 
standards  

(Continuing) 

Curriculum Coordinators and Training Specialists in the Curriculum and 
Instruction department will provide teachers and other instructional staff 
professional development and a wide range of supports for 
implementation of state standards.  Professional Learning will include 
guidance for the use of grade level scope and sequence plans, 
administration and analysis of the district’s common assessments, and 
on-site coaching for effective delivery of research-based, standards-
aligned instruction.  Professional development is anchored in the 
district’s commitment to the practices of Universal Design for Learning 
(UDL).   

 Y 

2.2 

Differentiated course and 
program options for advanced 
learners 

(Continuing) 

Central coordination, support, and professional development to 
implement Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) instruction and 
Advanced Placement (AP) course options.  Includes the coordination 
and management of GATE assessment and identification. Staffing 
includes 2.0 FTE (1.0 Coordinator, 1.0 Resource Teacher). This includes 
a 0.2 FTE increase in the Resource Teacher position.  Title 1 funding 
has been leveraged to focus additional effort on serving GATE students 
at Title 1 schools. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 83 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.3 

Provide a range of Expanded 
Learning Programs 

(Modified) 

Youth Development Support Services (YDSS) provides expanded 
learning programs at 70 school sites.  Programs include before school, 
after school, summer, and intersession learning.  Implemented in 
collaboration with community partners and external providers, staff 
develop programs at each school site that provide supports including 
home visits, outreach, referral to resources, online enrichment, small 
group instruction, tutoring, homework help, and credit recovery/elective 
courses at high schools. Examples of providers include the Sacramento 
Chinese Community Services Center and the Boys and Girls Club. 

Beginning in 2022-23, implementation of the Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Plan (ELOP) will operate in alignment with this action.  The 
ELOP is focusing on implementation of (1) increase the number of 
student served in high needs areas, (2) expanding services to sites that 
do not currently have After School Education and Safety (ASES) 
funding, (3) providing extended care for transitional kindergarten and 
kindergarten students, (4) providing additional before school care, and 
(5) extending intersession and summer offerings. 

 N 

2.4 

Multisensory Reading 
Intervention: Curriculum and 
Training  

(Continuing) 

Continue expanding the accessibility to Sonday reading curriculum and 
training to all special education instructional staff (including Special Day 
Class (SDC) teachers and Resource Specialist Program (RSP) 
teachers) and Curriculum & Instruction coaches.  Ongoing 
implementation support to be provided.  It is expected that this action, 
while especially benefitting students with disabilities, will contribute to 
improved reading instruction districtwide. 

 N 

2.5 

Language Acquisition 
Programs for English Learners 

(Modified) 

Build-out the ELD training specialist structure to support implementation 
of (1) Dual Language Immersion (DLI) program expansion (per the DLI 
proposal), (2) implement and align DLI teacher network vertically, (3) 
implement cycles of improvement to support professional learning and 
implementation of best practices for newcomer pathways (K-12), and (4) 
continue work to increase reclassification and graduation rates. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 84 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.6 

Professional Learning specific 
to instruction for English 
Learners 

(Modified) 

Continue focus on professional learning to support: (1) implementation of 
English Language Development (Designated and Integrated ELD), (2) 
foundational skills training, (3) alignment of work with cycles of 
improvement to support coaching, (4) implementation of academic 
conferences, and (5) evaluation of EL services. 

Reference: Action B26 in the ESSER III Expenditure plan provides 
funding for the additional Secondary ELD Training specialist in the 2022-
23 and 2023-24 schools years.  This position expands the capacity of 
Multilingual Literacy to provide professional learning and direct support 
to school sites. 

 Y 

2.7 
Pathways to Multiliteracy 

(Continuing) 

The Avant and ALTA World Language Placement Exam will be offered 
to eligible incoming 9th grade students (who speak a language other 
than English at home) in order to ensure appropriate placement.  The 
exam will also be offered to newly enrolled high school students who 
completed 6th grade in a country whose instruction was in a language 
other than English to waive the state and district world language 
graduation requirement. This process will increase the number of 
students who receive the State Seal of Biliteracy (a CA School 
Dashboard Indicator), are on-track for graduation and UC/CSU A-G 
eligibility. Additionally, this process should build world language and 
heritage language programs (sections and FTE) by appropriately placing 
our multiliterate students in Advanced Placement (AP) world language 
courses. The increase in AP enrollment and testing will help to increase 
college and career readiness for English Learners. 

 Y 

2.8 
Class Size Reduction (K-3) 

(Continuing) 

Maintain reduction of class size to 24:1 for all classrooms Kindergarten 
through third grade.    Y 

2.9 
Additional staffing for high-
needs sites  (Continuing) 

Provide additional staffing (FTE) to high-needs sites across the district to 
reduce class size and expand access to programs.   

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 85 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.10 
Weekly Collaboration Time for 
certificated staff  (Continuing) 

Provide one hour of time per week for teachers to collaborate with peers 
on approaches to improving student achievement.  Activities during 
collaborative time include review of student data, assessment of student 
work, and planning of instruction to meet student needs, in particular the 
needs of unduplicated students and other target student groups. 

 Y 

2.11 
Restructured Salary Schedule 

(Continuing) 

Maintain a competitive salary and benefit package for certificated staff to 
increase the district’s ability to recruit highly qualified candidates, retain 
experienced teachers, and reduce overall turnover. 

 Y 

2.12 

Early Childhood Education: 
Preschool Programs 

(Continuing) 

Provide access to early childhood education for eligible students and 
families to build a strong foundation for success in elementary school 
and beyond. Operation of 40 classrooms across the district with 
approximately 948 spaces available. Offerings include a combination of 
state-funded and Head Start-funded programs. Program eligibility is 
income-based and the location of programs are prioritized to Title 1-
designated sites. Includes 158 certificated and classified FTE for the 
2022-23 school year. 

 N 

2.13 
Transitional Kindergarten 

(Modified) 

Provide early access to Kindergarten for students who meet the state-
defined age eligibility. Students enroll in a full year of Early/Transitional 
Kindergarten programming to build school readiness skills and a strong 
learning foundation for success in kindergarten and beyond.  The district 
will continue implementation of the existing half-day TK programs at 10 
school sites. As a next step towards the statewide expansion to 
Universal Transitional Kindergarten, SCUSD will expand to 9 new school 
locations with full-day TK programs.  At 7 of the new sites, these full-day 
programs will implemented in partnership with existing California State 
Preschool Programs and 2 of the new sites will collaborate with Head 
Start programs. 

 N 

2.14 

Literacy, Research, and 
Project-based Learning 
Instruction (Secondary 
Librarians) 

(Continuing) 

Provide students instruction and learning opportunities in research, 
information literacy, and project-based learning.  Ensure coherent 
programming across sites so all students at targeted grade levels have 
access to library resources and supports. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 86 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.15 

Theater Arts/Social Emotional 
Learning Program 

(New) 

Maintain recent expansion of integrated Theater Arts/Social Emotional 
Learning program. Implementation includes professional development 
for teachers and course offerings for students. Sacramento Healthy 
HeARTs and Minds focuses on using the arts as a strategy to address 
mental health issues, trauma, absenteeism, and other well-documented 
effects of the COVID- 19 pandemic on already at-risk youth. Within 
selected school sites, trained artists and community partners will 
collaborate to be a positive adult presence for students, and as needed, 
connect students in need of mental health support services through 
existing referral pathways and service providers. Current capacity 
enables 140 classrooms to participate. 

Reference: Action B4 in ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

 N 

2.16 

Visual and Performing Arts 
Opportunities  

(Continuing) 

Provide instrumental music instructors for 7-8th grade students in our 
comprehensive middle schools and larger K-8 schools and ensure that 
students are provided access to instruments, needed supplies, and 
sheet music through a music library. Provide arts assemblies and 
residencies through the Any Given Child Program, as well as 3rd and 4th 
grade recorder instruction through the Kennedy Center’s Link-Up! 
program.   

 Y 

2.17 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 2 
(Specific to EL Progress) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

2.18 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 2 
(Specific to ELA) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 87 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.19 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 2 
(Specific to Math) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

2.20 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 2 
(Specific to other Academic 
Standards) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

2.21 

Increase access to Extra and 
co-curricular opportunities 

(Modified) 

Provide increased access for students to College Visits, Field Trips, and 
other experiential learning opportunities including elementary athletics. 
These increased opportunities are intended to primarily benefit 
unduplicated students, in particular low-income students, who may not 
have the same access to such opportunities outside of school.  

For 2022-23 and 2023-24, this action will be supplemented by actions 
B2 and C5 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  Action B2 ensures 
provides funding for every 6th grade student to attend a science camp 
experience, such as the outdoor environmental educational program at 
Sly Park.  Action C5 provides additional funding for visits to colleges, 
universities, and connections to business industry partners.  This latter 
action is targeted towards Homeless Youth, Foster Youth, English 
Learners, and Students with Disabilities.  Efforts will be inclusive of all 
college segments (Community College, CSU, UC, and Private 
universities) and utilize the California College Guidance Initiative (CCGI) 
lessons. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 88 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

2.22 
Build Teacher Capacity to 
Teach Reading Districtwide 
(Continuing) 

Continue implementation of a six-year of literacy improvement plan. 
Provide LETRS (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and 
Spelling) training for all elementary principals and staff. Training was 
initiated in 2020-21 and continued in 2021-22 for ELA/ELD Teacher 
Specialists, Inclusion Coaches, and ELA/ELD Coordinators. In 2022-23 
and beyond, successive cohorts of instructional staff will go through 
training, with each cohort receiving two years of training. Training in year 
6 and beyond will ensure that newly hired staff are included. Student 
outcomes will be measured using district common assessments. 

 N 

2.23 
Instructional Technology 
Professional Development and 
Support (New) 

Design and develop models of enhanced instruction for teachers that 
engage them in the use of instructional technology.  Provide professional 
learning on technology integration for core and intervention materials.  
Provide additional support for classroom teachers on technology use.  
This action is implemented by a staff of Education Technology Training 
Specialists (4.0 FTE). 

 Reference: Action C6 in ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

  

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 89 
 

 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 2 closely matched the plan.  While the impacts of COVID-19 during 2021-22 
have had significant impacts on programs and services, staff were able to effectively implement these specific actions consistent with the 
plan.  Exceptions included: 

 Action 2.21 (Extra and Co-curricular opportunities): This was one of the actions most impacted by COVID-19, with field trips, college 
visits, and elementary sports unable to occur for large portions of the year due to COVID-19 restrictions, particularly during the late fall 
and early winter during and after the omicron surge.  The district was able to reopen access to field trips, visits, and pivot to intramural 
elementary sports (within each campus) during the spring.  Field trips and college visits were also impacted by the various policies, 
capacity restrictions, and other conditions of the target venues/locations. 

 Action 2.22 (Building Teacher Capacity to Teach Reading Districtwide): The literacy plan is currently in year two of implementation.  The 
initial plan was to begin training for a large cohort of teachers in 2021-22.  Instead, due to the many competing demands resulting from 
the larger context, year two has focused on training of management staff and new training specialists/coaches to build capacity.  
Subsequent years will see expansion to full cohorts of administrators and teachers. 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 2 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 2.1 (Professional Development to Support Implementation of State Standards): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at 
$3,655,438 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___.  The majority of this action is salary and benefits for curriculum 
coordinators and training specialists.  Over 2021-22, some of the planned positions were unfilled for lengths of time as staff worked to 
recruit and hire personnel.  

 Action 2.5 (Language Acquisition Programs for English Learners) Hold for final estimated actual 

 Action 2.6 (Professional Learning Specific to Instruction for English Learners) Hold for final estimated actual 

 Action 2.7 (Pathways to Multiliteracy) Hold for final estimated actual 

 Action 2.3 (Expanded Learning Programs) Hold for final estimated actual 

 Action 2.14 (Literacy, Research, and Project-Based Learning Instruction): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $1,612,731 and 
Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___.  The majority of this action is salary and benefits for curriculum coordinators and 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 90 
 

training specialists.  Over 2021-22, some of the planned positions were unfilled for lengths of time as staff worked to recruit and hire 
personnel.  

 Action 2.21 (Extra and Co-curricular opportunities): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $711,571 and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures are projected at $___.  As discussed above, this action was significantly impacted by the COVID-19 context.  
Implementation of key elements of the action was not possible for significant portions of the school year. 

 Action 2.22 (Building Teacher Capacity to Teach Reading Districtwide): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $361,273 and 
Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. As discussed above, staff modified the 2021-22 plan to focus on training of 
leadership to build capacity and shifted implementation of the first large cohort to 2022-23.  Based on this shift, the bulk of funds that 
would have been used for hourly and/or substitute costs associated with professional learning implementation were not used. 

 Actions 2.17-2.20 (SPSA-determined actions) Hold for final estimated actual 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 2 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of providing every SCUSD student an 
educational program with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity to district programs and practices, and robust, rigorous learning experiences 
inside and outside the classroom so that all students can meet or exceed state standards. Key examples of implementation progress include: 

 Professional Learning for instructional staff continues to play a key role in the district’s efforts to achieve this goal. Curriculum 
coordinators and training specialists continue to provide professional learning to sites and individual staff to support implementation of 
standards in Mathematics, English Language Arts, Science, Visual and Performing Arts, and History and Social Sciences. (Action 2.1) 
Professional learning specific to multisensory reading intervention has been provided to staff (160 as of December 2021) including RSP 
teachers, SDC teachers, training specialists, and full inclusion coaches.  (Action 2.4) Trained staff have received Sonday curriculum and 
training specialists are available to support implementation (including a specialist who is a trained Sonday coach) 

 Access to Expanded Learning Programs (Before and After School) has increased. (Action 2.3) Youth Development Support Services 
(YDSS) increased services to what is now 70 expanded learning programs.  This includes the expansion to eight non-grant-funded sites 
that previously did not have YDSS programs as well as the ability to serve an increased number of students at previously operating sites. 
The recent Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Grant will provide enough funding to offer programing to all unduplicated students 
in the coming years.  

 Programs and supports for English Learners to access the core program have been continued in an effort to improve English Learner 
outcomes.  (Action 2.6) English Language Arts (ELA) and English Language Development (ELD) training specialists are in year two of 
LETRS (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling) training.  The ELD Coordinator continued to attend EL RISE 
professional learning and the Expository Reading and Writing Curriculum (ERWC) training from the California State University System 
was offered to high school teachers who needed or requested the training.  An additional secondary ELD specialist was added to the 
multilingual literacy team. 

 Early Education programs have been continued, with plans in place to expand preschool and early kindergarten as part of the Universal 
Transitional Kindergarten expansion statewide.  Preschool programs (Action 2.12) have been implemented as planned for the 2021-22 
school year, providing access to early education opportunities targeted at low-income families.  The early Kindergarten program (Action 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 91 
 

2.13) has continued to provide half-day programs at 10 school sites.  2021-22 planning for implementation in 2022-23 has identified 9 
additional sites at which full-day programs will be offered in partnership with existing Head Start/Preschool programs.  This is the first 
phase of a multi-year implementation plan that will be able to serve all 4-year old students by 2025-26.  

 Focused efforts to expand support for teachers and access for students to Visual and Performing Arts education have been implemented.  
The Theater Arts/Social Emotional Learning program that was previously piloted has been expanded into 140 classrooms across two 
cohorts. (Action 2.15) This program partners teaching artists with classroom teachers to provide artist sessions and Social Emotional 
Learning modules.  Initial reports from teaching artists and cooperating teachers indicate that the sessions are helping teachers and 
students learn SEL core competencies through experiences in Theater Arts.  Next steps include development of an informational video to 
inform the community about this opportunity.  VAPA opportunities in K-8 schools have continued to ensure that students across these 
schools have regular VAPA instruction from VAPA teachers.  (Action 2.16) The music library has expanded student access to instruments 
by working through the backlog of repair needs and making more instruments available to students in need. 

Overall, the implementation of the actions in this goal furthered the district’s efforts to ensure that all students in SCUSD, regardless of 
school, program, or classroom are provided a standards-aligned program with rigorous learning experiences, though there is still a long way 
to go before the goal is fully achieved. The installation of an effective MTSS discussed in Goal 6 is a key supporting factor in the 
achievement of this goal and it is expected that the two goals will continue to work in tandem. 

Several of the key measurable outcomes used to assess this goal’s progress have either been wholly unavailable in recent years (State 
Math, ELA, and Science assessments and the ELPAC) or incomplete in their data (District Math and ELA Assessments).  With State 
Assessments having resumed and results forthcoming, the overall progress of the district in key content areas will be available in the near 
future.  The overall performance in these areas as well as the disaggregated performance of student groups will enable more current 
analysis and inform next steps. 

The district assessment data that is available does indicate significant needs for improvement.  While these results should be viewed in 
context – only 21% of the eligible students participated in the second interim benchmark assessment for English Language Arts (ELA) – they 
are still useful in evaluating disparate outcomes.  With an overall performance (percentage of correct responses on the assessment) of 55%, 
there is still significant room for improvement for all students.  If the goal were being achieve or approached, it is expected that most/all 
students across grade levels would be scoring much higher on these interim assessments.  Four student groups scored 8 or more 
percentage points below the all students level, indicating a need for additional supports and focused efforts on behalf of these groups.  These 
included English Learners (43%), Students with Disabilities (43%), African American students (47%), and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 
students (45%).  Again, with nearly 4 out 5 students not completing a second interim assessment, the actual disparities in student group 
performance might shift if all student assessment results were available. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Hold for potential description of revisions to targets within metrics. 

One new action and additional notes of alignment have been added to Goal 2 for the 2022-23 school year. These establish alignment 
between Goal 2 and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  Action 2.23 (Instructional Technology Professional Development and Support) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 92 
 

address the wide range of needs that emerged and/or magnified during distance learning and the district’s transition to broader use of 
Instructional Technology.  The Education Technology Specialists will continue to provide much-needed support directly to classroom staff 
and leadership districtwide to promote digital literacy and enhanced modes of instruction. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 93 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

3 

Provide every student the specific academic, behavioral, social-emotional, and mental and physical health supports to meet 
their individual needs - especially English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African 
American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander students, and other student groups whose outcomes indicate the greatest need – so that all students can remain 
fully engaged in school and access core instruction. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of student data from the Dashboard (2019) shows that almost 15% of students were chronically absent during the 2018-19 school 
year.  Data from the 2019-20 school year prior to school closures was comparable, with 11% of students chronically absent through February 
of 2020.  More recent data from 2020-21 and 2021-22, while more difficult to evaluate due to the impacts of distance learning and the 
omicron COVID surge, demonstrate the urgency of addressing chronic absenteeism and reveal consistent disparities across years. 
Significant performance gaps exist for multiple student groups including Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Students with Disabilities, African 
American Students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students.   

The need for targeted services and supports in SCUSD is high and has been increased during the COVID-19 pandemic.  In 2020-21, 
Student Support and Health Services staff recorded significant increases in the total number of students served, home visits, and the 
provision of basic needs/services relative to the same time in 2019-20 (pre-COVID).  In 2021-22, the number of students served in Tier 1 has 
decreased from the peak levels in the first part of 2020-21, but Tier 2 and 3 interventions have increased.  Tier 3 interventions increased by 
78% in the first quarter (August-November) of 2021 relative to the same period in 2020.  Overall, these targeted services are critical for 
ensuring that students can remain fully engaged in school both in terms of attendance and receiving the social, emotional, and health 
supports they need to focus on their academics. Targeted academic supports are critical for ensuring that students are able to fully access 
core instruction. Where assessments reveal gaps in content or conceptual understanding, targeted intervention can be provided that 
addresses the need as soon as possible with ongoing monitoring to measure progress.  The additional volume of time-intensive Tier 2 and 3 
services has included significant increases in Behavior Intervention, Caregiver Support and Education, Conflict Resolution and Peer 
Mediation, Gang/Violence Prevention, Homeless/Housing Services, and LGBTQ+ supports. 

Educational partner input has emphasized the importance of providing wrap-around services for students at the individual level, with 
particular focus on student groups with the highest needs.  As with other goals, input has specified that student groups with the highest 
needs should be called out in the goal.  Input has also informed the specific inclusion of multiple forms of support in the goal, with mental and 
physical health being a key priority across educational partner groups.   

This goal also aligns to the district’s current efforts to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) across all schools.  
The goal speaks to the provision of effective Tier 2 and 3 supports that are specific to identified student needs.  Doing this well is one of the 
primary reasons the district has used the term ‘Data-based decision-making’ to describe its MTSS efforts.  Effectively using data to identify 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 94 
 

specific student needs and connecting them to the appropriate resources/services is necessary to ensure their access to standards-aligned 
instruction (Goal 2) and support them in becoming college and career ready (Goal 1). 

Note:  

In the section below (Measuring and Reporting Results), abbreviations are used for student groups.  These include EL (English Learners), FY (Foster 
Youth), HY (Homeless Youth), MY (Migrant Youth), SED (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students), SWD (Students with Disabilities), AA (African 
American students), AI/AN (American Indian or Alaska Native students), A (Asian students), F (Filipino students), H/L (Hispanic/Latino students), PI 
(Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander Students), W (White students), and TOM (Students of Two or More races/Multiracial students). 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

3A 

Attendance Rate 

Percentage of 
students who 
attended school 96% 
of the time or more 

Source: District 
Attendance, 
Behavior, and 
Course Performance 
(ABC) Reports 

Note: Rates are to 
2.4.20 for 2019-20, to 
2.25.21 for 2020-21, 
and 3.30.22 for 2021-
22. 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 60 67 
EL 64 62 
FY 41 46 
HY N/A 17 

SED 57 61 
SWD 52 59 
AA 48 47 
AI 54 55 
A 76 78 
F 69 83 

HL 56 63 
PI 46 45 
W 63 82 

TOM 59 71 
 

 21-22 MY 

ALL 31 

EL 31 

FY 26 

HY 7 

SED 26 

SWD 24 

AA 19 

AI 18 

A 46 

F 42 

HL 25 

PI 19 

W 38 

TOM 32 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 76 

EL 72 

FY 61 

HY 39 

SED 72 

SWD 70 

AA 61 

AI 67 

A 84 

F 88 

HL 73 

PI 60 

W 87 

TOM 79 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 95 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

3B 

Chronic 
Absenteeism Rate 

Percentage of 
students in grades K-
8 who were absent 
for 10% of more of 
the total instructional 
days 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: 18-19 data is from 
the 2019 Dashboard.  19-
20 and 20-21 data are 
internal analyses.  2019-
20 is to 2.28.20.  2020-21 
is to 4.5.21. 

Note: 2021-22 Mid-Year 
data is an internal 
analysis to 2.1.2022 and 
includes students K-12 
and dependent charter 
schools.  The Asian 
student group (‘A’) data 
includes Filipino students 
(F). 

 

 
 18-

19 
19-
20 

20-
21 

ALL 14.8 11 17.8 

EL 11.2 8.3 20.4 

FY 30.1 21.4 33.8 

HY 57.9 42.8 63.6 

SED 18.1 12.4 22.6 

SWD 19.8 12.8 24 

AA 27.6 20.2 33.5 

AI 25.7 16.3 25.9 

A 5.5 4.1 9.9 

F 7.8 6 8 

HL 16.5 11.8 19.5 

PI 27.3 18.4 31.3 

W 8.3 7.9 9 

TOM 14.9 11.1 16.3 
 

 
20-21 
EOY 

21-22 
MY 

ALL 18.6 32.4 

EL 18.5 28.3 

FY 33.9 40.9 

HY 71.4 TBD 

SED 23.9 34.6 

SWD 25 38.5 

AA 38.6 43.2 

AI 31.1 39 

A 10.3 29.7 

F 
7.8 

Part 
of ‘A’ 

HL 20.2 34.3 

PI 37.4 35.9 

W 8.3 24.9 

TOM 17.4 32.6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 8 
EL 6.1 
FY 15.6 
HY 31.2 

SED 9 
SWD 9.3 
AA 14.7 
AI 11.9 
A 3 
F 4.4 

HL 8.6 
PI 13.4 
W 5.8 

TOM 8.1 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 96 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

3C 

Chronic 
Absenteeism 
Interventions 

Percentage of 
students who are at-
risk of being 
chronically absent 
and received two or 
more attendance 
interventions 

Source: SCUSD 
Performance Targeted 
Academic Index (PTAI) 

 
Grade 
Span 

19-20 20-21 
MY 

ES 
(K-6) 

58.6 38.8 

MS 
(7-8) 

52.5 40.7 

HS (9-
12) 

48.2 37.3 

 

Note: 2020-21 results 
are to 3.10.21 

Grade 
Span 

20-
21 

EOY 

21-
22 
MY 

ES  
(K-6) 

46.5 42.4 

MS  
(7-8) 

43 40.8 

HS  
(9-12) 

55.1 56.9 

 

Note: 2021-22 Mid-
Year results to 
2.1.2022 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
Grade 
Span 

23-24 

ES (K-6) 55 

MS (7-8) 57 

HS (9-12) 54 

 

 

3D 

Attendance 
Interventions 

Percentage of 
students who had 
less than 95.9% 
attendance, received 
interventions, and 
had improved 
attendance by 
January 31 

Source: SCUSD 
Performance Targeted 
Academic Index (PTAI) 

 
Grade 
Span 

19-20 20-21 

ES  

(K-6) 
21.4 23.8 

MS  

(7-8) 
25.5 26.5 

HS  

(9-12) 
30 19.8 

 

 

Grade 
Span 

21-22 

ES (K-6) 15.4 

MS (7-8) 11.7 

HS (9-12) 15.5 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
Grade 
Span 

23-24 

ES (K-6) 44 

MS (7-8) 46 

HS (9-12) 42 

 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 97 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

3E 

Provision of 
Responsive 
Services 

Percentage of 
students who met an 
Attendance/Behavior 
indicator zone in the 
Early Identification 
and Intervention 
System (EIIS) and 
had responsive 
services 

Source: SCUSD 
EIIS (Indicator 14620) 

Note: 2020-21 data is 
to 4.5.21 

 
 19-20 20-21 

ALL 35.7 29.6 
EL 51.6 42.6 
FY 86.6 94.3 
HY 74.1 95.2 

SED 42.7 36.8 
SWD 37.9 34.3 
AA 42.9 39.4 
AI 43.8 38.5 
A 41.7 31 
F 25.3 19.9 

HL 40.5 33.8 
PI 48.5 45.4 
W 15.8 12.1 

TOM 25 20.2 
 

 
20-21 
EOY 

21-22 
MY 

ALL 37.1 TBD 

EL 50.5 TBD 

FY 94.4 TBD 

HY 96.6 TBD 

SED 43.5 TBD 

SWD 40 TBD 

AA 44.4 TBD 

AI 43.5 TBD 

A 37.2 TBD 

F 26.1 TBD 

HL 42.6 TBD 

PI 54.4 TBD 

W 20.1 TBD 

TOM 26.6 TBD 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

For 2023-24, 100% of 
identified HY and FY will 
be provided responsive 
services.   
 
For all other groups, 
increases in support are 
dependent on staffing 
capacity.  If current 
staffing levels are 
unchanged, service rates 
will be maintained, with 
the goal of increasing the 
level of service for those 
student groups with the 
most students in the 
‘purple’ zone.  If staffing 
levels are increased, 
targets will be 
established reflecting the 
increased staffing 
capacity.    



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 98 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

3F 

High School Drop-
out Rate 

Percentage of 
students in the 4-
year adjusted cohort 
who drop out of high 
school 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest Reporting 

Note: Results do not 
include Charter 
Schools 

*Data is not shown to 

protect student privacy.  
There are less than the 
minimum of 10 students in 
the cohort for this data point. 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 7.6 6.2 
EL 10 13 
FY 37.5 16.7 
HY 22.8 22.1 
MY * 8.3 
SED 8.4 6.9 
SWD 10.3 7.8 
AA 14.6 9.7 
AI 9.1 12.5 
A 4.4 2.5 
F 0 0 

HL 7.4 7.6 
PI 4.3 14.3 
W 6.1 2.6 

TOM 8.6 8.4 
 

 20-21 

ALL 7.4 

EL 11 

FY 15.6 

HY 19.2 

MY 9.1 
SED 8.3 

SWD 9.3 

AA 13.5 

AI 9.1 

A 2.6 

F 3.4 

HL 8.9 

PI 20.6 

W 3.8 

TOM 4.8 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 4.5 

EL 9.5 

FY 12.2 

HY 16.1 

SED 5 

SWD 5.7 

AA 7.1 

AI 9.1 

A 1.8 

F 0 

HL 5.5 

PI 10.4 

W 1.9 

TOM 6.1 
 

3G 

Middle School 
Drop-out Rate 

Percentage of 
students in grades 7 
and 8 who dropped 
out of school 

 

Source: CALPADS 
Reporting (District 
Analysis) 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 0.1 0.06 
EL 0.1 0 
FY 0 0 
HY 0 2.5 

SED 0.04 0.08 
SWD 0.1 0 
AA 0.1 0.11 
AI 0 0 
A 0.1 0 
F 0.9 0 

HL 0.1 0.07 
PI 0 0 
W 0 0.08 

TOM 0.2 0 
 

 20-21 

ALL 0.09 

EL 0 

FY 0 

HY 0 

SED 0.12 

SWD 0 

AA 0 

AI 0 

A 0 

F 0 

HL 0 

PI 0 

W 0.45 

TOM 0 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 23-24 

ALL 0 

EL 0 

FY 0 

HY 0 

SED 0 

SWD 0 

AA 0 

AI 0 

A 0 

F 0 

HL 0 

PI 0 

W 0 

TOM 0 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 99 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.1 

Services and support for Foster 
Youth 

(Continuing) 

Foster Youth Services (FYS) staff provide an array of supports for Foster 
Youth and families through a case management model.  Support 
includes regular check-ins in students, connection to academic supports 
including tutoring, monitoring of attendance/engagement, referral to 
social, emotional, and other health services, and empowerment of 
student voice.  Staffing includes 9.0 FTE (1 Coordinator, 7 Program 
Associates (4 Elementary, 1 Middle, and 1 High School), and 1 clerk). 

 Y 

3.2 

Services and support for 
Homeless Youth 

(Continuing) 

Homeless Services staff provide direct support for Homeless Youth and 
families in compliance with state and federal requirements.  This 
includes identification and documentation for eligible services; 
enrollment and attendance support; referrals for eligible services 
including free meals, transportation, Title 1, and other district, state, and 
federal programs; referrals to social, emotional, and health services; 
intervention and outreach; referrals to community services; dispute 
resolution; and training/support for staff.  Staff strive to facilitate a 
systemic approach by developing collective ownership and effective 
collaboration across the district in service of Homeless Youth and 
families.  Staffing includes 1 Homeless Program Coordinator, 3 Social 
Workers, 3 Youth and Family Mental Health Advocates, and 1 
Clerk.  This reflects the expansion in 2021 of 1 social worker, 2 Youth 
and Family Mental Health Advocates, and 1 Clerk to increase supports 
to students and families.  The increase has decreased caseload ratios, 
enabled more school site coverage, and provided more intervention 
services for students. 

This action aligns with the new LCAP goal specific to improved 
identification rates for Homeless Youth (Goal 10). 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 100 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.3 
School Psychologists 

(Continuing) 

School psychologists conduct special education assessments, serve as 
a member of Student Success Team (SST) to support the 
recommendation of appropriate academic and social emotional 
interventions and accommodations needed for students to fully access 
instruction and achieve learning goals.  

This action is supplemented by action B23 in the ESSER III Expenditure 
plan which provides funding for additional psychologist FTE for the 2022-
23 and 2023-24 school years. 

 Y 

3.4 

Instructional assistance for 
Students with Disabilities 

(Continuing) 

Provide students with disabilities specific supports as identified in their 
Individualized Education Program (IEP).    N 

3.5 

Social, Emotional, and Mental 
Health supports for Students 
with Disabilities  

(Continuing) 

Provide students with disabilities access to trained mental health 
professionals (School Social Workers) that can assist with mental health 
concerns, behavioral concerns, positive behavioral support, academic 
and classroom support, and consultation with teachers, parents, and 
administrators. 

 N 

3.6 
Adopt and Implement English 
Learner Master Plan (Modified) 

Following anticipated approval of the new English Learner Master Plan 
in early fall 2022, the Multilingual Literacy department will expand 
awareness of the new plan and coordinate with colleagues to implement 
the actions established within.  This will include collaboration with school 
sites to understand the implications of the new plan and provision of 
guidance and support to implement. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 101 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.7 

Intervention and Supports 
specific to English Learners 

(Continuing) 

The Multilingual Literacy Office will develop student videos in our top five 
languages (at the elementary and secondary level) to welcome students 
to our district, affirm the assets of being multilingual, provide an overview 
of reclassification, and provide an introduction to the ELPAC 
assessment. This series will be housed on the district and Multilingual 
Literacy website by the 2022-2023 school year.  

Tutoring specific to Migrant Students will be provided by certificated 
staff. These staff members will be compensated through Title III funding. 

Summer School programs and services are being prioritized for specific 
student groups, including English Learners. Staffing and materials will be 
funded through one-time CARES funding. A summer program specific to 
English Learners with support for language development and academic 
skills will be planned for summer of 2023.  

Secondary Newcomer intervention will include USA Learns and In the 
USA workbook by National Geographic Cengage. Primary Newcomer 
student curriculum is embedded within Benchmark Advance, SIPPS, 
Heggerty and LETRS training in collaboration with the ELD/ELA 
department.  

World languages have recently been incorporated into the Multilingual 
Department. This includes responsibility for presenting professional 
learning in the new state standards, designated and integrated ELD, 
Universal Design for Learning, addressing the Federal Program 
Monitoring findings for administrative and site teams, on-going coaching 
and teacher professional learning. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 102 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.8 

Health Services: School Nurses 
and Immunization Clinic 

(Continuing) 

Nurses are key components of the district’s wrap-around health services 
for students. In addition to responding to the immediate health needs of 
individual students, they lead the district’s efforts to proactively identify 
physical and mental health needs and provide or connect students and 
families to the appropriate services and resources. Nurses also engage 
in outreach to provide important health information and education to 
students and families.   

This action is supplemented by action A1 in the ESSER III Expenditure 
Plan, which provides funding for addition nurse and health aide FTE for 
2022-23 and 2023-24. 

 Y 

3.9 

Attendance and Engagement 
Strategies   

(Modified) 

Support school sites in focused efforts to reduce chronic absenteeism. 
Best practices that are supported include the regular meeting of 
attendance teams, data-based goal setting, development of attendance-
specific MTSS structures, student case management, and participation 
in a monthly peer network. SCUSD was awarded 3 years of funding as 
part of Cohort 4 of the Learning Communities for School Success 
Program (LCSSP) state grant. Through the combined efforts of LCSSP 
and ESSER III funding, the Attendance and Engagement Office has 
expanded support to all schools within the district. 

Expanded supports will include capacity building for staff, tiered re-
engagement and absence support, engaging youth voice to promote 
positive engagement and attendance, implementation of a restorative 
School Attendance Review Board (SARB) process, and summer 
community outreach events.  

The Attendance and Engagement Office staffing includes 10 staff: 1 
Director, 1 Supervisor who oversees truancy/SARB, 1 Student and 
family Support Specialist, and 7 Child Welfare and Attendance 
Specialists. 

The expanded CWAS capacity is being maintained in 2022-23 and 
2023-24 through action B7 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 103 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.10 

Student Support: Central 
Connect Center and Site-based 
Student Support Centers 

(Modified) 

The Connect Center serves as a critical hub in the districtwide effort to 
monitor and address mental health needs. Staff provide students and 
families a centralized access point for support services including, but not 
limited to, counseling referrals, mental health/behavioral consultations, 
suicide risk response and intervention, and attendance interventions.  34 
schools have site-specific Student Support Centers. These are grant and 
site-funded and serve as local hubs to coordinate a range of services. 
School sites without Student Support Centers are supported by the 
Connect Center. Beginning in 2022-23, the Student Support and Health 
Services (SS&HS) team plan to implement a reorganization of the 
central Connect Center into three regional hubs that each have a 
Coordinator and 5-6 social workers.  Each hub will support a cluster of 
schools including arranging community supports and ensuring that 
MTSS practices are aligned across the sites. 

For 2022-23 and 2023-24 this action is being supplemented by action B8 
in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  This action includes funding for 
additional School Social Workers and Student Support Center 
Coordinators.  This has enabled the establishment of additional Student 
Support Centers at individual school sites as well as the expansion of 
districtwide services available to schools without a Student Support 
Center. 

 Y 

3.11 
Enrollment Center 

(Continuing) 

The Enrollment Center provides a centralized gateway for families and 
students transitioning into the district or between school sites.  In 
additional to enrollment support, available services include the 
immunization clinic, translation, family services, a summer feeding 
program, and referral to supports to families in transition.  

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 104 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.12 

Summer programming to 
address learning loss 

(Continuing) 

Summer Matters @SCUSD is a summer learning program to accelerate 
classroom learning, giving students opportunities to reconnect with the 
learning communities that will be critical to their own healing and 
academic success. Activities will be offered five days a week for five 
weeks from June 28 through July 30, 2021. Tentatively 28 elementary, 
five middle and all 15 SCUSD high schools will host summer programs. 
The final number of sites will depend on CBO capacity, availability of 
staff, and interest from families. 
 
During the morning hours, students will participate in academics and 
physical education. Enrichment activities such as art, dance, music, and 
STEM programming will be held in the afternoon hours. Each day will 
open with a social and emotional (SEL) welcoming, a daily skill-builder 
following a weekly theme. Staff from Community-Based Organizations 
will provide classroom instruction while Credentialed teachers pull out 
groups of three to four students for high-dosage tutoring sessions of 45 
minutes. The day will end with an SEL closing. 
 
High School juniors and seniors will have the opportunity to work as paid 
interns (Summer Ambassadors/Peer Mentors) to support programs at 
elementary and middle school sites. Online credit recovery will be 
available at every SCUSD high with both in-person and distance options 
will available for students. In-person programming at every high school 
during the same time period may also include 9th and 10th grade Bridge 
Programs and Math and AP Success Camps, depending on the site 
needs and capacity. 

 N 

3.13 

Grade Level Readiness 
Intervention 

(Continuing) 

Provide research and evidence-based interventions at Title 1 schools for 
students who are low income and for students demonstrating high 
needs. Intervention is intended to accelerate progress towards grade-
level readiness, particularly for those students who demonstrate gaps in 
grade-level proficiency. 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 105 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.14 

Address the unique needs of 
American Indian and Alaska 
Native students 

(Continuing) 

This program addresses the unique cultural, language, and 
educationally-related academic needs of American Indian and Alaska 
Native students. The services provided are tutoring, reading groups and 
classroom visits, cultural programs and events, college prep programs, 
scholarship writing, student support and advocacy, and milestone 
celebrations. The AIEP serves students in grades K-12 throughout the 
district. The expanded staffing capacity for the AIEP to serve additional 
students will be maintained through 2023-24 through action B15 of the 
ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 

 N 

3.15 

Tobacco Use Prevention 
Education 

(Continuing) 

Educate students on the dangers of tobacco use and the impact on 
themselves and their community through the Tobacco Use Prevention 
Education (TUPE) program. Students have the opportunity to participate 
in meaningful, social gatherings with peers to actively engage and give 
feedback on school site initiatives around tobacco, drug, and alcohol 
usage. Services include prevention programs, intervention, and 
cessation support. 

 N 

3.16 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 3 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

3.17 

Data practices for Students with 
Disabilities 

(Continuing) 

Continue efforts to improve engagement and practices with district data 
system, Special Education Information System (SEIS), to better monitor 
providing compliant special education services and supports. This will 
include a quarterly review of timely completion of initial, annual, and 
evaluation meetings by school site. 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 106 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

3.18 

Site Assistance to improve 
supports for Foster and 
Homeless Youth 

(Continuing) 

District staff will provide assistance to sites to improve their ability to 
support Foster and Homeless Youth. This will result in monthly reviews 
of multiple data sources for homeless and foster youth to analyze the 
effectiveness of interventions and supports. Staff will also provide a 
webinar training for school sites that provides professional learning on 
how to support, care for, and identify families experiencing 
homelessness and foster youth using healing-centered engagement 
strategies. A policies and procedures handbook will also be developed to 
define assessment, case management, and intervention processes and 
timelines. Student Support Staff will continue to participate on District 
MTSS and Leadership Teams to ensure needs of foster students and 
students with unstable housing are addressed, with emphasis on their 
academic and social emotional needs. 

This action aligns to the overall work of the Foster and Homeless Youth 
Services teams as well as the efforts detailed in LCAP Goals 10 and 11. 

 N 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 107 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 3 closely matched the plan.  While the impacts of COVID-19 during 2021-22 
have had significant impacts on programs and services, staff were able to effectively implement these specific actions consistent with the 
plan.  Exceptions included: 

 Action 3.1 (Foster Youth Services): Foster Youth Services was able to hire additional staff and expand services with additional funding 
from pandemic relief funds.  The types of services and supports provided were consistent with the department’s intended implementation 
with an additional focus of additional staffing efforts at K-6. 

 Action 3.9 (Attendance and Engagement Strategies): The Attendance and Engagement Office continued existing efforts, with an 
expansion of capacity through the hiring of additional Child Welfare and Attendance specialists to directly support site engagement 
efforts. 

 Action 3.13 (Grade Level Readiness Intervention): There was a significant shift in implementation format for this action.  Previously 
implemented within the budget-development process for school sites, this funding has been transitioned to the Curriculum and Instruction 
department for their team’s implementation. 

 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 2 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 3.1 (Foster Youth Services): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $826,954 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected 
at $___.  As noted above, Foster Youth Services was able to expand their range of services with relief funding. This included hiring 
additional program associates. 

 Action 3.2 (Homeless Youth Services): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $639,666 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___. 

 Action 3.3 (School Psychologists): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $7,179,443 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___.  The material difference in expenditures for this action was due to unfilled positions. 

 Action 3.4 (Instructional Assistants): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $2,711,808 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___. The material difference in expenditures for this action was due to unfilled positions. 

 Action 3.9 (Attendance and Engagement Strategies): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $345,703 and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures are projected at $___. The material difference in expenditures for this action was due to additional positions added through 
relief funding to intensify the existing efforts. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 108 
 

 Action 3.10 (Student Support: Central Connect Center and Site-Based Student Support Centers): Budgeted Expenditures were projected 
at $1,816,390 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. 

 Action 3.13 (Grade Level Readiness Intervention): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $914,344 and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures are projected at $___.  As noted above, these funds were transitioned to the Curriculum and Instruction department and will 
be implemented under their leadership. The majority of these funds were not expended in the 2021-22 school year. 

 Action 3.14 (American Indian Education Program(AIEP)): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $53,638 and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures are projected at $___.  

 Action 3.15 (Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) Program): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $382,424 and Estimated 
Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. The material difference in expenditures for this action was due to the reduced ability to deliver 
all planned services as a result of the COVID-19 surge. 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 3 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of providing every student the specific 
academic, behavioral, social-emotional, and mental and physical health supports to meet their individual needs.  Key examples of 
implementation progress include: 

 Expansion of services for Homeless Youth (Action 3.2) and Foster Youth (Action 3.1).  Homeless Youth Services has expanded and 
reorganized into three support teams, each with a full time social worker and advocate.  These team each focus on one-third of the 
district.  These staff provide student and family support services to schools who do not have their own Student Support Center and 
supplemental services to those that do have an SSC.  Supports include case management, home visitations, referrals and access to 
district and community resources, and other critical services.  Foster Youth services continues to provide case management to all eligible 
foster youth including academic support, attendance monitoring/support, and referral to services.  Provision of academic tutoring is a key 
effort that will be emphasized in the new LCAP goal specific to Foster Youth. 

 School Psychologists (Action 3.3), Instructional Assistants (Action 3.4), and Social Workers specific to Special Education (Action 3.5) 
have continued to provide direct student supports.  These services have been critical to addressing student needs resulting from, 
exacerbated by, or predating the COVID-19 pandemic.  Students with Disabilities have been particularly impacted by the pandemic and 
these three staffing groups are key to effectively addressing their needs. 

 A key step forward during 2021-22 was the development of a new English Learner Master Plan (Action 3.6).  The English Learner Master 
Plan was developed collaboratively across multiple departments, with educational partners, and in consultation with colleagues at the 
state level.  The English Learner Master Plan will guide the provision of English Learner services to all district English Learners.  It 
addresses issues of course access, provision of effective integrated and designated English Language Development, reclassification, 
community engagement, and more.  At the program level, the Multilingual Literacy department has continued efforts to provide 
intervention and supports specific to English Learners (Action 3.7). Language Launch curriculum and training has been offered to middle 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 109 
 

school and high school staff who have requested additional support for the English Learner Newcomer population.  Currently, specialized 
support with implementation and lesson planning for Language Launch is being provided to one high school. 

 A major body of work during the 2021-22 year was been addressing the health and safety needs of students, staff, and families and the 
pandemic has continued.  Health Services staff (Action 3.8) have supported the wide range of critically important activities stemming from 
the COVID-19 pandemic in addition to the range of previously existing duties related to addressing the physical and mental health needs 
of students.  This has been a critical body of work to keep students healthy and in school as much as possible with respect to COVID and 
other health factors that might otherwise cause them to miss class time. 

 Attendance and Engagement efforts (Action 3.9) have been intensified during the past year in response to the ongoing pandemic.  The 
COVID-19 pandemic has made physical attendance protocols very challenging and staff are working to adjust and support sites through 
changing and emergent needs. The Attendance and Engagement Office has hired an additional Child Welfare and Attendance Specialist 
and has posted additional positions.  Chronic Absenteeism increased significantly as a result of the omicron variant and staff have 
continued to focus intensely on target sites through tiered reengagement efforts to mitigate lost instructional time caused by quarantines 
and other related absences. 

 Student Support and Health Services staff (Action 3.10) continue to adapt their services and supports to the changing context of the 
district and world during the COVID-19 pandemic.  The need for interventions has increased greatly and staff have responded by 
increasing the number of interventions provided as measured from Quarter 1, 2020 to the same period in 2021.  Interventions include 
behavioral supports, caregiver support & education, conflict resolution & peer mediation, gang/violence prevention, homeless/housing 
services, and LGBTQ supports.  Staff continue to provide a wide range of professional learning opportunities across staff, family, student, 
and community groups.  The Student Support and Health Services department has recently re-worked their service model to create three 
regional student support centers that will distribute the efforts of the existing central connect center into regional hubs.  Each regional 
center will have a coordinator and 5-6 school social workers that serve a cluster of schools.  The coordinator will organize community 
supports at these schools, provide professional and clinical supervision for the social workers, and ensure that MTSS practices are 
aligned with those at the school sites.  The intention is to operationalize this plan in 2022-23. 

 The districtwide enrollment center (Action 3.11) has continued to serve as the centralized gateway for families and students transitioning 
into the district or between school sites. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the enrollment center has had to create an online process that 
helped to mitigate exposure and create safe paths to enrollment.  Online enrollment has been successfully implemented, but also led to a 
backlog of applications.  Processing times were extended and additional staff capacity was obtained to reduce the turnaround times for 
enrollment processing. 

 Planning and preparation for the 2022 Summer Matters (Summer School) programming (Action 3.12) is underway.  Youth Development 
Support Services (YDSS) has identified community partners that will help to deliver programming and a summer advisory group has been 
formed to guide planning for robust and enriching summer opportunities.  Initial curricula development is underway for both elementary 
and summer school. This will be an integration of physical activity, STEAM, SEL, and social justice.  Professional learning is in 
development for staff that will deliver summer programming. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 110 
 

 The American Indian Education Program (Action 3.14) has expanded its range of services for students.  Youth Development and Support 
Services (YDSS) hired a new Youth Services Specialist that is managing the expansion of services.  Staff collaborated with educational 
partners to design a process and system for identifying students that are currently unable to qualify for services through the Title VI Indian 
Education formula grant.  This will enable the district to provide support to students that self-identify as Native American and recruitment 
is underway.  Staff have reviewed student grades and recruited students with Ds/Fs to link them to tutoring.  Students have received a 
pre-assessment and are being paired with tutors.  Transcripts of 12th graders have been reviewed to determine additional needs and 
follow-ups with families are occurring. 

 The Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) Program (Action 3.15) continue to provide prevention education at school sites.  Recent 
implementation includes Red Ribbon week and a mobile health and wellness program.  Some service delivery has been impacted 
recently by the COVID-19 surge. 

 Improvements to data use specific to Students with Disabilities (Action 3.17) and assistance to sites for improving Foster and Homeless 
Youth Supports (Action 3.18) have moved forward.  Special Education Information System (SEIS) technicians have been employed to 
improve accurate and updated student records.  Data dashboard are in place for SEIS. Implementation of the Early Identification and 
Intervention System (EIIS) work is moving forward as planned.  District staff in the Foster Youth Services and Homeless Youth Services 
teams have provided focused support to sites to improve supports for Foster and Homeless Youth.  This has included support at a 
general level as well as targeted support specific to addressing student and family needs stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic 
context. 

As discussed above and in the plan summary, attendance and chronic absenteeism data for the recent year are difficult to compare to 
previous years.  With the context of school shifting from closure/virtual in 2019-20 to virtual/in-person in 2020-21, and now in-person in 2021-
22 with the omicron surge, the three years present very different circumstances.  However, reviewing the disparities in attendance and 
chronic absenteeism rates within a given year does demonstrate that the inequitable outcomes are consistent, regardless of context.  In the 
2021-22 mid-year report, the percent of students who had attended school 96% of the time or more was 31%.  Four student groups had rates 
10 percentage or more below that level.  These includes Homeless Youth (7%), African American students (19%), American Indian or Alaska 
Native students (18%), and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (19%).  These outcomes represented continuation of existing gaps 
from the ‘All students’ level for these groups.  Foster Youth (26%) and Student with Disabilities (24%) also showed gaps that, while smaller 
than past years, indicate a continuing need for targeted supports. 

The high school drop-out rate increased from 6.2% in 2019-20 to 7.4% in 2020-21.  And while decreases in drop-out rates occurred for 
English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, American Indian or Alaska Native students, and multiracial students, other students 
experienced concerning increases.  Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students increased from 6.9% to 8.3%, Students with Disabilities from 
7.8% to 9.3%, African American students from 9.7% to 13.5%, Hispanic/Latino students from 7.6% to 8.9%, and Native Hawaiian or Pacific 
Islander students from 14.3% to 20.6%. These increases, combined with the decreases in graduation rate discussed in Goal 1, indicate that 
this goal (3) remains a critical need and much work is needed before it is fully achieved. 

The emphasis upon installation and implementation of an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) at all schools across the district 
speaks to this critical need.  A functional MTSS at each school is the key lever in ensuring that individual student needs can be accurately 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 111 
 

assessed and each student is connected to the appropriate interventions and supports.  Goal 6 of this LCAP continues to focus on the 
effective capacity building to install and implement MTSS across the district. 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Hold for potential description of revisions to targets within metrics. 

Notes of alignment have been added to several actions in Goal 3 for the 2022-23 school year. These establish articulation between Goal 3 
and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan.  Actions where this has occurred include 3.3 (School Psychologists), 3.8 (Health Services), 3.9 
(Attendance and Engagement Strategies), 3.10 (Student Support), and 3.14 (Address the unique needs of American Indian and Alaska 
Native students).   

With the establishment of the new LCAP goals 9 (focused on Students with Disabilities), 10 (focused on Homeless Youth), and 11 (focused 
on Foster Youth), several actions in Goal 3 serve as points of alignment.  Actions 3.1 (Services and support for Foster Youth), 3.2 (Services 
and support for Homeless Youth), 3.17 (Data Practices for Students with Disabilities), and 3.18 (Site Assistance to improve supports for 
Foster and Homeless Youth) are foundational to the new goals. 

Action 3.9 (Attendance and Engagement Strategies) notes that expanded efforts will include a restorative School Attendance Review Board 
(SARB) process.  This is an area where SCUSD is forging a new path for this type of work.  The Attendance and Engagement team has 
introduced a Child Welfare and Attendance Specialist (CWAS) who acts as a resource and advocate for the student and family when they 
have been referred to a SARB.  Two weeks prior to the scheduled District Office meeting a home visit is conducted where a needs 
assessment, absence survey, and attendance goals are created in partnership with the family.  Jointly with Homeless Services, Foster Youth 
Services, and Student Support, there is collaboration prior to the SARB to ensure coordination of services.  At the SARB the family is 
welcomed by the CWA and enters with their advocate at their side.   

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 112 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

4 
School and classroom learning environments will become safer, more inclusive, and more culturally competent through the 
active dismantling of inequitable and discriminatory systems affecting BIPOC students, Students with Disabilities, English 
Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and LGBTQ+ Youth. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of Dashboard data shows that SCUSD’s Suspension Rate (5.6% on the 2019 Dashboard) is above the state average (3.4%) and 
that disproportionately high rates persist for multiple student groups including Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, Students with Disabilities, 
African American Students, and American Indian or Alaska Native students.  Results from the district’s spring 2022 School Climate Survey 
show that about hold% of students answered positively for questions assessing perception of safety and belongingness.   

This goal closely aligns to the district’s stated Core Value: We recognize that our system is inequitable by design and we vigilantly work to 
confront and interrupt inequities that exist to level the playing field and provide opportunities for everyone to learn, grow, and reach their 
greatness.  

The need to confront and interrupt inequitable and discriminatory systems has also been emphasized over time through educational partner 
input. Educational partners have more recently indicated that beyond confronting and interrupting inequities, aspects of the system that are 
inequitable and/or discriminatory must be dismantled. As with other goals, educational partners have prioritized the specific identification of 
student groups most affected.  

 

Note:  

In the section below (Measuring and Reporting Results), abbreviations are used for student groups.  These include EL (English Learners), FY (Foster 
Youth), HY (Homeless Youth), MY (Migrant Youth), SED (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students), SWD (Students with Disabilities), AA (African 
American students), AI/AN (American Indian or Alaska Native students), A (Asian students), F (Filipino students), H/L (Hispanic/Latino students), PI 
(Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander Students), W (White students), and TOM (Students of Two or More races/Multiracial students). 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 113 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4A 
Suspension Rate 
Percentage of 
students suspended 
1 or more times 
during the school 
year 

Source: California 
School Dashboard 

Note: 2018-19 data 
reflects the 2019 
Dashboard.  2019-20 
data is from CDE 
Dataquest reporting. 
2021-22 MY data to 
3.30.22. 

 18-19 19-20 

ALL 5.6 3.7 
EL 3.7 2.3 
FY 21.2 13.5 
HY 12.2 6.4 
MY 3.5 1.4 

SED 6.8 4.5 
SWD 10 6.7 
AA 14.6 10.3 
AI 8 3.0 
A 1.6 1.0 
F 3 1.3 

HL 5.4 3.3 
PI 6.4 3.8 
W 2.9 2.1 

TOM 4.9 4.2 
 

 
20-21 
EOY 

21-22 
MY 

ALL 0.02 3.3 

EL 0.03 2.4 

FY 0.0 12.7 

HY 0.0 TBD 

MY 0.0 N/A 

SED 0.02 4.3 

SWD 0.05 6.2 

AA 0.06 9.2 

AI 0.0 4.6 

A 0.0 1.4 

F 
0.0 

Part of 
‘A’ 

HL 0.02 2.9 

PI 0.0 3.3 

W 0.03 2.0 

TOM 0.0 4.2 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

  23-24 

ALL 2.7 
EL 1.7 
FY 9.8 
HY 4.7 

SED 3.3 
SWD 4.9 
AA 7.5 
AI 2.2 
A 0.7 
F 0.9 

HL 2.4 
PI 2.8 
W 1.5 

TOM 3.1 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 114 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4B 
Suspension 
Disproportionality 
Percentage of 
students with 1 or 
more suspensions 
whose student 
groups are 
disproportionately 
represented* among 
all suspended 
students. 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest 

*Includes AA and AI 
students. 

2019-20: 

Grade 
% of 

Suspended 
Students 

All 

 

39.2 
K-3 51.5 
4-6 37.7 
7-8 35 

9-12 40.1 

 

Grade 
% of Total 
Enrollment 

All 

 

14.7 
K-3 13.4 
4-6 14.9 
7-8 14.4 

9-12 16 
 

2020-21: 

Grade 
% of 

Suspended 
Students 

All 
 

33.3 
K-3 0 
4-6 0 
7-8 33.3 

9-12 100.0 
 

Grade 
% of Total 
Enrollment 

All 
 

13.6 
K-3 11.3 
4-6 14.3 
7-8 14.1 

9-12 15.1 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
The desired outcome for 
this metric is to eliminate 
all disproportionality in 
suspension.  This would 
result in African American 
and American Indian or 
Alaska Native students 
making up a percentage of 
all suspended students 
that is reflective of their 
proportional representation 
in the total student 
population. 
 

4C 

Expulsion Rate 

Percentage of 
students expelled at 
any time during the 
school year 

Source: CDE 
Dataquest 

 

 
 18-19 19-20 

ALL 0.04 0.01 
EL 0.01 0.01 
FY 0.56 0 
HY 0.19 0 

SED 0.04 0.02 
SWD 0.06 0.01 
AA 0.12 0.03 
AI 0 0.42 
A 0 0.03 
F 0 0 

HL 0.04 0.01 
PI 0 0 
W 0.04 0 

TOM 0 0 
 

 
 20-21 

ALL 0 

EL 0 

FY 0 

HY 0 

SED 0 

SWD 0 

AA 0 

AI 0 

A 0 

F 0 

HL 0 

PI 0 

W 0 

TOM 0 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 
 23-24 

ALL 0 

EL 0 

FY 0 

HY 0 

SED 0 

SWD 0 

AA 0 

AI 0 

A 0 

F 0 

HL 0 

PI 0 

W 0 

TOM 0 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 115 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4D 

Anti-bias/Anti-
racist Professional 
Learning for staff 

Percentage of staff 
who have completed 
identified anti-
bias/anti-racist 
(including implicit 
bias) professional 
learning 
components. 

Source: Curriculum 
& Instruction 
department 

  
2020-21 
  
Leadership (Site and 
Central): 95%  
  
Teachers: 0%  
  
Support Staff: 0% 
  

2021-22 Mid-Year: 
 
Leadership (Site and 
Central): TBD  
  
Teachers: 81% 
  
Support Staff: 0% 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

  
2023-24: 
  

Leadership (Site and 
Central): 100% 

  
Teachers: 100% 
  
Support Staff: 100% 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 116 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

4E 

School Climate 
Survey 

Percentage of 
positive responses 
in the areas of 
‘safety’ and 
‘connectedness’ 
(Belonging) 

Source: Local 
Climate Survey 

 

 

 
2020-21 

Safety Connect 

ALL 73 72 
EL 66 65 
FY 75 74 
HY 64 64 

SED 71 69 
SWD 67 68 
AA 68 68 
AI 74 69 
A 71 68 
F 73 74 

HL 73 71 
PI 71 68 
W 79 78 

TOM 75 75 
K-6 74 77 
K-8 77 78 
MS 77 76 

LG HS 69 65 
SM HS 75 73 

Teachers 63 78 
Family 92 90 

 

 
2021-22 

Safety Connect 

ALL TBD TBD 

EL TBD TBD 
FY TBD TBD 
HY TBD TBD 

SED TBD TBD 
SWD TBD TBD 
AA TBD TBD 
AI TBD TBD 
A TBD TBD 
F TBD TBD 

HL TBD TBD 
PI TBD TBD 
W TBD TBD 

TOM TBD TBD 
K-6 TBD TBD 
K-8 TBD TBD 
MS TBD TBD 

LG HS TBD TBD 
SM HS TBD TBD 

Teachers TBD TBD 
Family TBD TBD 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

 
2023-24 

Safety Connect 

ALL 80 80 
EL 75 74 
FY 82 81 
HY 74 74 

SED 79 77 
SWD 76 77 
AA 77 77 
AI 81 77 
A 79 77 
F 80 81 

HL 80 79 
PI 79 77 
W 85 84 

TOM 82 82 

K-6 81 83 
K-8 83 84 
MS 83 83 

LG HS 77 74 
SM HS 82 80 

Teachers 73 84 
Family 94 93 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 117 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

4.1 

Integration of Social Emotional 
Learning (SEL) 

(Continuing) 

Support students and staff to integrate Social Emotional Learning (SEL) 
into schools and classrooms.  Build competency in self-management, 
self-awareness, responsible decision-making, relationship skills, social 
awareness, and growth mindset to help staff and students engage in 
learning communities that are safe positive, inclusive, and welcoming. 
Provide professional learning opportunities to school sites, coaching 
support to the site leadership team, and direct support for 
implementation of SEL programs integrated into academics and climate 
goals.  SEL is aligned to the Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) 
framework and foundational to the Universal Tier (Tier 1) of support for 
ALL students.  

 Y 

4.2 

Positive Behavioral Intervention 
and Supports (PBIS) 
implementation 

(Continuing) 

Promote positive school climate by encouraging positive student 
behaviors. Support for schools to effectively implement a PBIS 
framework focused on proactively intervening with an emphasis on 
prevention and instruction rather than punitive discipline. Efforts are 
aligned to the district’s overall MTSS framework implementation. 

Focus areas moving forward include (1) identification and teaching of 3-5 
universal behavior expectations schoolwide, (2) providing direct 
instruction in high priority positive behavior expectations, (3) providing 
high levels of positive reinforcement, (4) ensuring enforcement of 
consequences is consistent and fair, (5) focusing on prevention through 
the modification of situations that are known to produce high levels of 
problem behavior, (6) using discipline data to plan, evaluate, and 
improve the PBIS implementation process, and (7) monitor student 
progress continuously and match students up with appropriate 
interventions and supports. 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 118 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

4.3 

Bullying Prevention Training, 
Intervention, and Response 

(Continuing) 

Develop and deliver training to school sites, provide direct response and 
intervention for bullying incidents, and collaborate with constituent 
services and the Student Hearing and Placement Department. Staffing 
includes a 1.0 FTE Position (Bullying Prevention Specialist) that works 
closely with Constituent Services and Student Support and Health 
Services to align with Social Emotional Learning (SEL) and Positive 
Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) efforts. 

 N 

4.4 

Anti-bias/Anti-racism 
Professional Learning 

(Continuing) 

To actualize equity, access, and social justice for all students, especially 
those who are most marginalized and impacted by systemic racism, the 
district aims to provide on-going professional learning opportunities for 
all staff. Professional learning that deepens self-awareness and anti-
racist capacity will ensure that there is common district messaging, 
understanding, and approach to dismantling systemic policies and 
practices that perpetuate disparate and disproportionate student 
outcomes. Anti-bias/Anti-racism professional learning to include, but not 
be limited to the following topics: Racial/cultural identities & stereotypes, 
implicit bias, microaggressions, dynamics of privilege & power, cultural 
competency and cultural humility, dismantling systems of oppression 
and racism, and restorative justice principles & practices. Learning will 
leverage existing Social Emotional Learning (SEL) skills (empathy, 
perspective-taking, respect for diversity, and growth mindset) & 
restorative practices (community and relationship-building) as a 
grounding for entering brave spaces of sustained discomfort and 
allowing professional learning on Anti-bias/Anti-racism to go much 
deeper and serve as a catalyst for systemic change. 

 N 

4.5 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 4 
(Broad School Climate) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 119 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

4.6 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 4 
(Suspension-specific) 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

4.7 
Behavior Interventions and 
Data Management (New) 

Provide access to and deliver training for an online platform for site 
teams to collaborate, develop, and track progress regarding Tier 1, 2, 
and 3 behavioral supports.  This action is intended to specifically support 
Behavior Interventions and Data Management for Students with 
Disabilities and will utilize the online program Behavior Advantage. 

 N 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 120 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 4 closely matched the plan.  While the impacts of COVID-19 during 2021-22 
have had significant impacts on programs and services, staff were able to effectively implement these specific actions consistent with the 
plan.  Exceptions included: 

 Action 4.2 (Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) implementation): The initial plan to expand PBIS efforts to all schools in 
Cohort 1 of MTSS implementation was not achieved as planned.  PBIS efforts remained in place at the existing Tier II+ focus schools. 
Key challenges included the limited ability to provide sites professional learning due to the impacts of COVID-19. Overall, the 
management of PBIS will be moving into the Academic Office from the Student Support Office for 2022-23 and planning for that transition 
is in progress. 

 Action 4.3 (Bullying Prevention Training, Intervention, and Response): The Bullying Prevention Specialist position was not filled for a 
significant portion of the year. This significantly impacted the implementation of the program and much of 2021-22’s bullying prevention 
efforts occurred at the site-based level. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 2 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 4.1 (Social Emotional Learning): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $889,228 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___.  The material difference in expenditures for this action were due to unfilled positions, include the Social Emotional 
Learning Director position, which was vacated mid-year. 

 Action 4.2 (Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) implementation): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $978,911 
and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___.  

 Action 4.3 (Bullying Prevention Training, Intervention, and Response): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $153,262 and Estimated 
Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. The material difference in expenditures for this action were due to the Bullying Prevention 
Specialist position remaining unfilled for a significant portion of the school year. 

 Actions 4.5 and 4.6 (SPSA-based actions): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $ and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected 
at $___. 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 121 
 

The implementation of actions within Goal 4 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of increasing the safety, inclusivity, and 
cultural competence of school and classroom learning environments.  Key examples of implementation progress include: 

 Integration of Social Emotional Learning (SEL) (Action 4.1) into schools and classrooms.  Training specialists have supported school sites 
to integrate SEL in alignment with their school-specific goals in the areas of culture, climate, and other emergent needs.   

 Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) implementation (Action 4.2) continued at the six Tier II+ focus schools.  Training 
and coaching support has continued steadily throughout the year.  Training and supports are being adapted and adjusted to best meet 
the needs that have emerged following distance learning and through the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 Anti-bias/Anti-racism Professional Learning (Action 4.4) has been implemented through the EPOCH Education platform.  All teachers 
were provided Compassionate Dialogue training as part of the preservice training at the beginning of the year.  Each site has also 
participated in a deep-dive following their initial training.  This deep dive engaged them in dialogue with peers and a trainer.  
Management, executive cabinet, and the board are also engaging in training, including deep dives with trainers. Next steps include 
training for all classified staff. 

To-date suspension rates for all students (3.3% through 3.30.22) show the potential for an overall drop from 2018-19 rates (5.6% at end of 
year and 3.8% mid-year).  This potential exists for most student groups as well, though several key student groups continue to demonstrate 
disproportionately high rates.  As discussed in the plan summary section, this includes African American students, whose mid-year rate is 
9.2%, almost three times higher than the ‘all students’ level.  Foster Youth (12.7% and Students with Disabilities (6.2%) also demonstrate 
significantly higher suspension rates.  For this metric, comparison to 2018-19 levels is being used because 2019-20 and 2020-21 were years 
that included significant portions of school closures or distance learning and their suspension rates were impacted as a result.  Similar to the 
discussion of chronic absenteeism, it is possible in 2019-20 to look at the rates of student groups relative to each other and observe that the 
disparities are consistent to other years.  2020-21 rates are difficult to draw comparisons from given that such a small number of suspensions 
occurred and the N sizes are all single digits. 

Hold for School Climate Survey Discussion 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Action 4.7 (Behavior Interventions and Data Management) was added to address the identified need for improved data systems and 
collaboration tools for staff to monitor behavior supports progress.  This is intended to specifically improve behavioral supports and outcomes 
for Students with Disabilities. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 122 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

5 
Parents, families, community partners, and students will be engaged and empowered as partners in teaching and learning 
through effective communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-making. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of data shows that this goal remains very relevant for the next three years and beyond.  In the district’s 2021 reporting on State 
Priority 3: Parent Involvement and Family Engagement, the district rated three out of five across all indicators.  A rating of three indicates the 
district is in the ‘Initial Implementation’ phase.  Initial ratings for 2022 indicate that (hold)  The goal is for the district to progress to level five in 
every element of each of the three domains (Building relationships between school staff and families, Building partnerships for student 
outcomes, and Seeking input for decision-making).   This will indicate that the district is in the ‘Full Implementation and Sustainability’ phase 
in each of the key domains of parent involvement and family engagement. 

This goal continues the district’s long-standing commitment to educational partner engagement.  Educational partner input has continued to 
reaffirm the importance of engaging and empowering community members as partners in teaching and learning.  Specific input in the recent 
year led to the incorporation of ‘students’ into the list of key groups to be engaged as partners.  Students emphasized the need for more 
explicit support to become empowered as agents in charge of their own learning.  The goal statement also was expanded to include 
communication, capacity building, and collaborative decision-making as specific areas that can support increased engagement and 
empowerment.  While these priorities existed prior to the pandemic, the experience of educational partners during school closures further 
highlighted their importance.  The importance of regular and clear communication (including translation and interpretation where needed), 
structured opportunities for educational partners to build capacity, and authentic opportunities to provide input and engage in the decision-
making process was more evident as the district faced disconnection and increased needs for support. 

 

Notes: 

In the section below (Measuring and Reporting Results), abbreviations are used for student groups.  These include EL (English Learners), FY (Foster 
Youth), HY (Homeless Youth), MY (Migrant Youth), SED (Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students), SWD (Students with Disabilities), AA (African 
American students), AI/AN (American Indian or Alaska Native students), A (Asian students), F (Filipino students), H/L (Hispanic/Latino students), PI 
(Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander Students), W (White students), and TOM (Students of Two or More races/Multiracial students). 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 123 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5A 

Parent Teacher 
Home Visits 
(PTHVs) 

Number of PTHVs 
conducted by staff 
across all school 
sites 

Source: Family and 
Community 
Engagement (FACE) 
Department 

 

2018-19: 1260 

2019-20: 971* 

2020-21: 2,834** 

 

*Note: 2019-20 data 
reflects visits through 
2.28.20. 

**2020-21 data reflects 
Bridge (virtual) visits 
conducted through 
3.25.21  

2020-21 Final: 3736 

2021-22 Mid-Year: 
1187 

(to Dec 2021) 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

2023-24: 3,560 

 

(Desired outcome of 
3,560 visits would 
represent 15% of the 
eligible population at 
PTHV sites) 

5B 

Parent Teacher 
Home Visits 
(PTHVs) 

Percentage of 
participating sites 
completing a PTHV 
for at least 10% of all 
students. 

Source: Family and 
Community 
Engagement (FACE) 
Department 

2020-21 

Number of 
Participating 
Sites 

40 

Number of 
Sites 
reaching 10% 
threshold 

15 

Percentage 
of Sites 
reaching 
threshold 

38 

 

2021-22 Mid-Year (to 
April 2022) 

Number of 
Participating 

Sites 
42 

Number of 
Sites 

reaching 10% 
threshold 

7 

Percentage 
of Sites 
reaching 
threshold 

17 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

2023-24: 100% 

 

(100% of participating 
sites will meet the 
10% participation 
threshold) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 124 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5C 

DELAC 
representation 

Percentage of 
schools with an 
English Learner 
Advisory Committee 
(ELAC) who send a 
representative to at 
least 1 District 
English Learner 
Advisory Committee 
(DELAC) Meeting 

Source: Multilingual 
Literacy Department 

 

2018-19: 41% 

2019-20: 47% 

2020-21: 58% 

 

 

2021-22: 57% 
through January 
DELAC meeting 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24: 100% 

5D 

ELAC Operation 

Percentage of 
schools with an 
ELAC who have 
evidence of regular 
meetings and their 
election process 
accessible on their 
school website to 
support community 
involvement and 
increase awareness 
of ELAC/DELAC. 

Source: Multilingual 
Literacy Department 

 
 

2020-21 
 

Percentage: 28% 
(17/60) 

 
Total number of 
schools with an 

ELAC: 60 
 
 

 

2021-22 

Percentage: 22%* 

(13/60) 

Total Number of 
Schools with an 

ELAC: 60 

 

*Based on number of 
sites that have provided 

evidence of ELAC 
meetings to Multilingual 

Literacy Department as of 
2.11.22 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24: 100% 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 125 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5E 

CAC Attendance 

Average number of 
attendees at 
Community Advisory 
Committee (CAC) 
meetings/workshops 

Source: Special 
Education 
Department 

2019-20: 25 2021-22: TBD 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
2023-24:  30 

5F 

School Site Council 
(SSC) Support 

Percentage of School 
Site Councils 
provided updated 
training. 

Source: State and 
Federal Programs 
Department 

 
SSC training has 
occurred during 
2020-21, but the 
baseline for this 
metric is set at zero 
to reflect the intent to 
provide all sites 
updated training as 
part of the new, 
three-year cycle. 

2021-22 Mid-Year: 
8% 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

100% of school site 
councils will be 

provided updated 
training during the 

2021-22 to 2023-24 
time period. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 126 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5G 

Parent Leadership 
Pathway Workshop 
(PLPW) 
Participation 

Number of 
participating schools 
and Number of total 
participant sign-ins 

Source: Family and 
Community 
Engagement (FACE) 
Department 

Number of 
participating schools: 

2018-19: 21 

2019-20: 9 

2020-21: 0 
 

Number of total 
participant sign-ins: 

2018-19: 2114 

2019-20: 992* 

2020-21: 0 
 
During distance 
learning, the FACE 
department shifted 
efforts to development 
of parent support 
materials and capacity-
building workshops.  
6,863 contacts/views 
were documented.  
PLPW implementation 
will resume in full in 21-
22. 
 
*Note: Data for 2019-20 is 
through 2.25.20 

The challenges 
associated with the 
COVID-19 pandemic 
have required the 
FACE team to adapt 
their approach to the 
Parent Leadership 
Pathway program.  
Modified supports 
have included the 
online parent learning 
toolkit, virtual and 
recorded trainings, a 
bi-weekly newsletter 
for school site 
distribution, Family 
Learning Kits for K-3 
families, and 
continued presence 
in the Parent 
Resource Center.   

 

From Sep 2021 
through Jan 2022, 
over 2500 parents 
have participated in 
FACE online trainings 
and the Resource 
Center has served 
over 2,400. 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

Number of 
participating schools 

2023-24:  11* 

 

 

Number of total 
participant sign-ins: 

2023-24:  1,200* 

 

*As the FACE 
department resumes 
implementation of 
PLPW efforts while 
building upon new 
forms of engagement 
developed during 
distance learning, 
desired outcomes will 
be revised based on 
assessment of total 
capacity. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 127 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5H 

Parent Leadership 
Pathway Workshop 
(PLPW) Participant 
Growth 

Number of 
participants 
demonstrating 
increased 
engagement as 
measured by pre- 
and post-surveys. 

Source: Family and 
Community 
Engagement (FACE) 
Department 

  

Baseline: 0 

Pre- and post-
surveys will be 
developed and 
implemented during 
2021-22.  

Increased 
engagement will be 
measured by the 
amount of interaction 
with the school site, 
teacher(s), and 
district/site advisory 
and leadership 
groups. 

The challenges 
associated with the 
COVID-19 pandemic 
have required the 
FACE team to adapt 
their approach to the 
Parent Leadership 
Pathway program.  
Modified supports 
have included the 
online parent learning 
toolkit, virtual and 
recorded trainings, a 
bi-weekly newsletter 
for school site 
distribution, Family 
Learning Kits for K-3 
families, and 
continued presence 
in the Parent 
Resource Center.   

 

From Sep 2021 
through Jan 2022, 
over 2500 parents 

have participated in 
FACE online trainings 

and the Resource 
Center has served 

over 2,400. 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

  

2023-24: 100% of 
participants 
demonstrate 
increased 
engagement 
following participation 
in the PLPW series. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 128 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

5I 

District Committee 
Impact 

Measure of 
satisfaction of district 
committees/ groups 
that their voice has 
been heard and is 
making impact. 

Source: Family and 
Community 
Engagement (FACE) 
Department 

 Baseline: 0 

The tool will be 
developed and 
implemented in 2021-
22.  Development will 
be done in 
partnership with key 
educational partner 
groups. 

TBD  

(To be administered 
in spring 2022) 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24: 100% 
satisfaction on all 
measures developed 

5J 

Parent/ Caregiver 
Experience 

Percentage of 
parents/ caregivers 
responding ‘Agree’ or 
‘Strongly Agree’ to 
specified survey 
items. 

Source: Annual 
LCAP Survey 

2020-21: 

My child’s school 
helps me understand 
what areas my 
student needs to 
improve in: 64% 

My child’s school 
helps me advocate 
for what is best for 
my student: 50% 

Parents are an 
important part of the 
decision-making 
process at my school: 
59% 

  

2021-22: 

My child’s school 
helps me understand 
what areas my 
student needs to 
improve in: 55% 

My child’s school 
helps me advocate 
for what is best for 
my student: 44% 

Parents are an 
important part of the 
decision-making 
process at my school: 
49% 

 

 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24: 

My child’s school 
helps me understand 
what areas my 
student needs to 
improve in: 100% 

My child’s school 
helps me advocate 
for what is best for 
my student: 100% 

Parents are an 
important part of the 
decision-making 
process at my school: 
100% 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 129 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

5.1 

Family and Community 
Empowerment 

(Continuing)  

The Family and Community Empowerment (FACE) department 
implements a range of capacity-building opportunities including the 
Parent Leadership Pathway Program and the Parent Information 
Exchange. The PLPP engages parents/caregivers in a full schedule of 
workshops offered over the course of 10 weeks. These build their skills 
in supporting their child's education and their capacity to take on 
leadership roles at the site and district level. The PIE is a monthly 
meeting that brings together key representatives from school parent 
groups, SCUSD staff, community organizations, city and county 
agencies, and business partners to discuss their programs and services 
for families. The District Parent Resource Center, based at the Serna 
Center, provides direct support and referrals for families. FACE staff are 
also building upon recent efforts to create hybrid-learning opportunities 
that include an online parent toolkit and virtual training materials. Staffing 
includes 3.0 FTE (1 supervisor and 2 Family Partnership Facilitators). 

 Y 

5.2 

Parent Teacher Home Visits 
(PTHV) 

(Continuing) 

The PTHV program facilitates home visit experiences that engage 
families, educators, and students as a team. Protocols help educators 
and families to build trust, communication, and common goals. Staffing 
includes 1.0 FTE (PTHV Training Specialist). Funding also provides for 
staff training, materials, and compensated time for staff to engage in 
visits and follow-up activities. Training and support has expanded and 
will maintain access to bridge visits in addition to home visits. These 
bridge visits provide staff and families the opportunity to conduct 
meetings virtually. 

 Y 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 130 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

5.3 

Translation and Interpretation 
Services 

(Continuing) 

The district’s Matriculation and Orientation Center (MOC) provides 
translation services to support a wide range of communication efforts 
between the district and families.   MOC staff also provide simultaneous 
interpretation support during meetings and directly respond to 
parents/guardians in their home language. The services of MOC staff 
are augmented by external providers when unique language needs arise 
or available capacity is exceeded.  Staffing for 2022-23 includes 7.0 
FTE.  The MOC is part of the district’s Enrollment Center (Action 3.11).  
The staffing and funds that are part of this action are non-redundant to 
the projected expenditure in Action 3.11. 

 Y 

5.4 
Fingerprinting for Volunteers 

(Modified) 

Provide family and community volunteers access to required 
fingerprinting services at no cost or reduced cost to ensure that all 
community members are able to equitably and actively support student 
success. 

 N 

5.5 
Family Communication Tools 

(New) 

Provide family outreach to partner with parents/caregivers in increasing 
student engagement and reducing chronic absenteeism. The Every Day 
Labs platform facilitates delivery of personalized messages to families 
based on an analysis of individual student attendance data. 
Communications help families take action to support attendance and 
participate in student support.  The Every Day Labs platform also 
provide a suite of user-friendly attendance dashboards for staff to 
support their site-based family communication. 

 N 

5.6 

Site-determined, SPSA-based 
actions to support Goal 5 

(Continuing) 

Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school 
sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are for actions/strategies that benefit the 
targeted student groups.  Allocations are determined by each school site 
in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA). 

 Y 

5.7 
Student Advisory Council 

(Continuing) 

The Student Advisory Council (SAC) promotes student voice, works to 
take action against problems faced by students, and introduces students 
to concepts of policy advocacy, applied social research, democratic 
governing, and grassroots organizing.  SAC delegates will work to 
develop policy initiatives, meet with district staff and committees, and 
work to ensure that all student voices are represented. 

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 131 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

5.8 

Men’s and Women’s 
Leadership Academy (MWLA) 

(Continuing) 

The MWLA is Sacramento City Unified School District's conscious effort 
to intentionally combat the school-to-prison-pipeline for underserved low-
income students of color by creating supportive and productive learning 
environments. Through a framework of Social Justice Youth 
Development, and with an active collaboration of district administration, 
school counselors, certified teachers and youth voice, MWLA empowers 
students through wraparound services that promote Social Emotional 
Learning, culturally relevant and responsive leadership development, 
meaningful mentorship, and academic support that engages students 
through their own means of learning. 

Action B13 in the ESSER III Expenditure Plan provides funding for 
continued expansion of the MWLA through 2023-24. 

 N 

5.9 
Special Education Adult 
Professional Learning (New) 

Provide adult professional learning regarding federal and special 
education law, multi-tiered system of supports, and alternative dispute 
resolution to SCUSD Ombudspersons to expand their expertise in 
proving information and supports to guardians’ requests for assistance in 
achieving resolution. 

 N 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 132 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 5 closely matched the plan in spirt, with some modifications due to the impacts 
of COVID-19.  Examples of modifications included: 

 Action 5.1 (District Parent Resource Center): With the limitations imposed by the COVID-19 context, the Parent Leadership Pathway 
program required adaptation.  What would have been a series of in-person workshops over the course of several weeks was modified 
into a series of supports and resources including the online parent learning toolkit, virtual and recorded parent trainings, family learning 
kits for K-3 families, and other opportunities.  The Family and Community Empowerment (FACE) team increased its regular outreach to 
families via phone and text and has collaborated to support a virtual volunteer program. 

 Action 5.3 (Translation and Interpretation): With the world events leading to the significant influx of Afghan students and families into the 
United States and Sacramento community, the expansion of translation and interpretation capacity was focused in part on the hiring of a 
translator that can provide Dari, Pashto, Farsi, and Arabic support. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 5 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 5.4 (Fingerprinting for Volunteers): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $30,000 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___.  This action was among those significantly impacted by the COVID-19 context.  With concerns about COVID safety 
and access to campuses limited for significant periods of the year, the estimated actuals are projected to fall significantly short of the 
budgeted amount. 

 Action 5.5 (Family Communication Tools): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $145,000 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___.  This action was implemented as planned and the difference is due to refinement of the planned scope of services 
following initial projections in spring 2021.  The partnership with EveryDayLabs has supported districtwide communication regarding 
attendance and engagement. 

 Action 5.8 (Men’s and Women’s Leadership Academy MWLA)): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $650,000 and Estimated Actua l 
Expenditures are projected at $___.  This action was also significantly impacted by COVID-19, specifically the staffing shortages that 
have made hiring very challenging.  While the sites that were able to staff positions implemented the MWLA program as planned, not all 
sites have been able to staff the position and thus the estimated actuals are falling well short of the budgeted amount. 

 Action 5.6 (SPSA-determined actions) Hold for confirmed estimated actuals 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 133 
 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 5 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of engaging and empowering parents, 
families, community partners, and students in teaching and learning through effective communication, capacity building, and collaborative 
decision-making.   Key examples of implementation progress include: 

 Capacity-building opportunities provided for parents/caregivers, while modified due to the COVID-19 context, have continued to be 
provided by the District Parent Resource Center. (Action 5.1) The challenges associated with the COVID-19 pandemic have required the 
FACE team to adapt their approach to the Parent Leadership Pathway program.  Modified supports have included the online parent 
learning toolkit, virtual and recorded trainings, a bi-weekly newsletter for school site distribution, Family Learning Kits for K-3 families, and 
continued presence in the Parent Resource Center.  The FACE team engages in regular outreach (text and calls) and has collaborated in 
the development of a virtual volunteer program. Staff have recently begun facilitation of Healing Circles.  From Sep 2021 through Jan 
2022, over 2500 parents participated in FACE online trainings and the Resource Center has served over 2,400. 

 The Parent Teacher Home Visit (PTHV) program has continued to engage families, educators, and students in building trust, 
communication, and common goals. (Action 5.2) PTHV staff conducted 1,187 visits during 2021-22 as of Dec 2021.  85 additional staff 
members have been trained in PTHV and SCUSD collaborated with the PTHV national organization to develop and host a teacher 
reflection/debrief training.  Additional hybrid trainings that certified staff in both bridge visits (virtual) and in-person home visits were 
offered throughout the spring. 

 Translation and interpretation services were implemented as planned.  (Action 5.3) In 2021-22, this included the addition of two more 
translators: an additional Spanish translator and a translator who provides Dari, Pashto, Farsi, and Arabic support.  The latter has been 
added to support the needs of existing students and also the influx of Afghan students who are transitioning to SCUSD and the 
Sacramento community. 

 Family communication has been improved, specifically in the area of attendance and engagement, through a partnership with 
EveryDayLabs. (Action 5.5) Through January 2022, EveryDayLabs was used to send 13,500 attendance letters, over 200,000 texts, 
8,000 welcome letters, and a December Winter Resource Letter to all households.  Staff are able to access a wealth of attendance and 
engagement data through the program’s online platform that assist them in their own school to home communications. 

While COVID-19 has continued to significantly impact, and in many cases, limit the type of interactions that are usually central to 
engagement and empowerment of educational partners, SCUSD has pivoted its efforts and adapted implementation where needed to 
continue making positive progress toward the goal. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Action 5.9 has been added to reflect the need for professional learning specific to adult understanding of federal and special education law, 
multi-tiered system of supports, and alternative dispute resolution.  This training will be provided to SCUSD Ombudspersons to expand their 
expertise in proving information and supports to parent/guardians’ requests for assistance in achieving resolution. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 134 
 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 135 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

6 

Provide all school sites three-years of training, coaching, and ongoing support to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System 
of Supports (MTSS).  Training will be completed and all district sites should be conducting business and serving students 
using an MTSS framework by 2024-25.  Progress will be measured with the Self-Assessment of MTSS (SAM) 
Implementation tool in addition to external indicators of site fidelity including: (a) holding MTSS team meetings regularly, (b) 
engaging in data based practices to assess need and progress monitor and (c) providing differentiated, tiered interventions 
as evidenced by twice-yearly report outs of challenges/successes by each site leader. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

Analysis of student results across multiple indicators (discussed in the plan summary and previous goals) shows that (a) SCUSD needs to 
improve districtwide performance and (b) tremendous performance gaps exist for specific student groups.  These results demonstrate the 
lack of a cohesive and effective Tier 1 program across the district, need for improved methods of identifying specific student needs, and 
insufficient Tier 2 and 3 supports to address those specific needs.   

This focus goal was incorporated to emphasize the importance of an effective implementation of MTSS across school sites including building 
staff’s capacity to install/implement and provide ongoing coaching/support to ensure that effective systems can be sustained over time.  In 
describing MTSS, the California Department of Education (CDE) states a vision of “one coherent system of education” that offers an 
opportunity to build the foundation for educational excellence. Through the use of Implementation Science, Universal Design for Learning, 
and the Whole Child approach, among other evidence-based interventions, MTSS affords a full range of academic, behavioral, and social 
support for all students to achieve. 

SCUSD leadership has highlighted the words of Katie Novack to communicate the rationale for implementing MTSS: “We need MTSS in our 
school(s) so that we can minimize or eliminate barriers and improve student outcomes by designing equitable, tiered, universally designed 
systems of support to address student’s academic, behavioral, and social-emotional needs in ways that are culturally sustaining.  It is a 
system for educating all of our students and educating them completely as a “whole” person.” 

Educational partners have affirmed over time that implementation of an MTSS is a key priority.  They have noted that an effective MTSS is 
foundational to the district’s ability to achieve many of the other goals it has set.  Input has also emphasized the importance of data-based 
decision making within MTSS implementation as well as all other aspects of the district’s planning. 

Notes: 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 136 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

6A 

Multi-Tiered System 
of Supports (MTSS) 
Implementation 

Average overall 
rating, by training 
cohort, on the Self-
Assessment of MTSS 
(SAM) 
Implementation Tool 

Source: MTSS Staff 

2019-20: 0 

 

Final cohort 1 results 
for 2020-21 will be 
reported in August 
2021. 

Cohort 20-21 21-22  

1 TBD TBD 

2  TBD 

3   
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

Target average SAM 
rating by Cohort 

Cohort Average Rating 

1 3 (Optimizing) 

2 3 (Optimizing) 

3 2 
(Operationalizing) 

 

6B 

Regular Team 
Meetings 

Percentage of 
schools conducting 
regular MTSS team 
meetings (of schools 
that completed first 
year of training) 

Source: MTSS Staff 

2019-20: 0 

 

Final cohort 1 results 
for 2020-21 will be 
reported in August 
2021. 

Cohort 20-21 21-22  

1 TBD TBD 

2  TBD 

3   
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24:  100 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 137 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

6C 

Data Practices 

Percentage of 
schools that have 
clear data sources 
universally used (of 
schools that 
completed first year 
of training) 

Source: MTSS Staff 

2019-20: 0 

 

Final cohort 1 results 
for 2020-21 will be 
reported in August 
2021. 

Cohort 20-21 21-22  

1 TBD TBD 

2  TBD 

3   
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24:  100 

6D 

Tiered Interventions 

Percentage of 
schools that are 
providing 
differentiated, tiered 
interventions (of 
schools that 
completed first year 
of training) 

Source: MTSS Staff 

2019-20: 0 

 

Final cohort 1 results 
for 2020-21 will be 
reported in August 
2021. 

Cohort 20-21 21-22  

1 TBD TBD 

2  TBD 

3   
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24:  100 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 138 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

6.1 
Implementation leadership  

(Continuing) 

Central leadership for implementation of cohort training model and 
ongoing support to sustain an effective MTSS at each school site.  
Includes a Director of MTSS.  Leadership for MTSS implementation is 
also provided by Curriculum and Instruction staff who are designated as 
MTSS coordinators. 

 N 

6.2 

Professional Learning for 
school site leadership teams 

(Continuing) 

Provide school site teams a three-year sequence of professional 
development through a partnership with an external provider and district 
staff who have been trained to support implementation.  Includes hourly 
time for site staff to attend training and contract with external provider.  
Training will build site capacity to install sustainable MTSS systems 
including regular review of data to identify student needs and monitor 
progress and provide students timely intervention services based 
specific to their identified needs. 

 N 

6.3 

Ongoing support for sites to 
implement and sustain an 
effective MTSS 

(Continuing) 

Provide school site teams ongoing support through coaching by trained 
district staff.  Coaching efforts will build on the foundational cohort 
training and ensure that schools continue to receive sufficient support to 
sustain and build upon initial implementation efforts. 

 N 

6.4 
Peer Mentoring for site teams 

(Continuing) 

Cohort 1 school offering support to Cohort 2 school.  Hourly time for staff 
to participate.  N 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 139 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 6 closely matched the plan, though the impacts of COVID-19 on the availability 
and capacity of staff has had impacts on scope.  The planned Peer Mentoring (Action 6.4) has been particularly challenging to implement.  
With the defined cohort training (Action 6.2) and ongoing coaching support for school site teams (Action 6.3) prioritized, the ability of staff to 
engage in the additional times planned for peer mentoring has been limited. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 6 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 6.2 (Professional Learning for School Site Leadership Teams): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $660,000 and Estimated 
Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. Hold for final estimated actual. 

 Action 6.3 (Ongoing support for sites to implement and sustain an effective MTSS): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $290,000 
and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at $___. Hold for final estimated actual. 

 Action 6.4 (Peer Mentoring): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $150,000 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are projected at 
$___. Hold for final estimated actual. 

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 6 have furthered the district’s efforts to achieve the goal of providing all school sites three-years of 
training, coaching, and ongoing support to implement an effective Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS). In 2021-22 the district has 
successfully moved Cohort 1 schools into year 2 of training and launched the first year of training for the second Cohort.  Cohort 2 has 
engaged in professional learning modules focused on Leaders as Change Agents and Problem Solvers, Using the Self-Assessment of MTSS 
(SAM) Implementation Tool, identification/articulation/mapping of the multiple tiers of instruction and various interventions currently present at 
the school site, and developing data-based decision-rules to use when assigning students to tiers of instruction and interventions. The 
following is taken from the district’s MTSS web page (care.scusd.edu/mtss/): 

The pandemic has created a sense of urgency and reignited that passion for teaching in many of our best educators and leaders. MTSS isn’t 
reinventing the wheel—it’s simply bringing cohesion to the student-centered practices while de-siloing the data-driven decisions that already 
happen in many schools and district departments. When implemented effectively, the MTSS framework not only increases the effectiveness 
of our existing practices but also uncovers areas in which we may need to adjust or increase our efforts.  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 140 
 

Understanding the complexity and the importance of MTSS, we planned and collaborated for more than two years to ensure the successful 
introduction of MTSS to our large, diverse, and struggling school community. This “way of doing business” has been strategically rolled out 
over multiple years in 3 cohorts of 25 school sites. Each Cohort would follow the same journey of installation, then early implementation, and 
then advanced implementation guided by National expert Dr. Brian Gaunt of the FCIC/FLPBS Project. Each stage [includes] extensive 
Professional Development, technical assistance, and a colleagueship of expertise that [will] evolve from early cohorts to mentor schools, 
supporting Cohort 3 sites on their journey. During the 2020–21 school year, Sac City Unified officially introduced MTSS to 25 Cohort 1 school 
sites during the pandemic. The 2021–22 school year welcomed 25 more sites to the MTSS Journey, and in 2022–23 Cohort 3 will launch, 
thereby having all school sites somewhere on their journey.   

While the pandemic has created some definite hurdles, it has only made the need for MTSS even more glaring. Recent research and policies 
have highlighted MTSS as the path to remedy the learning loss caused by COVID and the ongoing negative impacts COVID continues to 
have on students, such as chronic absence, increased need for mental health supports, and decreased family engagement. The Policy 
Analysis for California Education (PACE) highlights MTSS as an action item to effectively serve students post-pandemic in its Restorative 
Restart Report stating, “MTSS is a systematic approach that schools can apply to ensure that instruction and intervention are matched to 
students’ academic, behavioral, and social-emotional needs.” SCUSD will continue to keep students’ needs at the center of all we do.  As 
MTSS grows within our district, the data will tell our story.  Student success, overall engagement, and school climate will improve, and 
students, staff, and our communities will begin to thrive. 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Hold for any confirmed changes. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

7 

SCUSD will revisit and revise the District Graduate Profile (Previously adopted in 2014) so that it accurately reflects the 
current priorities of educational partners and adopt the updated version by the end of 2022-23.  School sites will be provided 
support to align their instructional priorities and goals to the revised Graduate Profile so that all sites demonstrate evidence 
of alignment in their school plans by 2023-24. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 141 
 

Analysis of the district’s current context shows that the district’s Graduate Profile, adopted in 2014, has not served as the foundational 
roadmap for guiding students on a system-wide level as was intended.  There is evidence that the Graduate Profile is used extensively at a 
few of the district’s small high schools and that elements are in use within some Career and Technical Education (CTE) pathways.  However, 
the vast majority of the district’s schools have not used the Graduate Profile in any substantial way. 

A Graduate Profile is a tool that a school or district uses to specify the cognitive, personal, and interpersonal competencies that students 
should have when the graduate high school in order to be successful in the 21st century.  It helps to define priority goals for teaching and 
learning and should be easily communicated to students, parents, staff, and community members to align their collective efforts. The 
Graduate Profile provides an opportunity for the district to establish a ‘North Star’ that defines what graduates will know, who they will be, and 
what they will be able to do by the time they graduate.  An effective Graduate Profile will be able to focus a district on a core set of learning 
goals that will lead students to develop the specific competencies that have been prioritized by the community.  It is an opportunity to 
operationalize visions of equity and other key priorities established by the district. 

SCUSD invested a tremendous amount of time and effort into the development of the 2014 Graduate Profile and hopes to build upon that 
work.  With significant time having passed, the district also recognizes the need to revisit the final product to determine what revisions might 
be needed.  Following this revision, a clear plan is needed for operationalizing the Graduate Profile across all schools and facets of the 
organization.  This work will also align with and build upon the efforts of the Graduation Task Force, who provided detailed recommendations 
to the district in 2017-18.  These will help to frame the Graduate Profile process, particularly in considering how the Graduate Profile can 
increase shared responsibility for student outcomes, provide a framework for monitoring progress toward improved student outcomes, and 
serve as a point of alignment for professional learning that leads to accelerated student achievement. 

Notes: 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 142 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

7A 

Educational partner 
Convening 

Documentation of 
meetings to convene 
educational partners  

Source: Graduate 
Profile Team  

Educational partners 
have not yet been 
convened to revise 

Graduate Profile 

 

Baseline: 0 

Completion Status: 
No meetings 

convened to 2.2022 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

All meetings to be 
completed by end of 

2022-23  

7B 

Board Adoption 

Adoption of revised 
Graduate Profile 

Source: Board 
Meeting records 

A revised Graduate 
Profile has not been 
adopted by the board 

 

Baseline: 0 

Completion Status: 
Not yet adopted 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

To be adopted by 
end of 2022-23  

7C 

Awareness of 
Graduate Profile 

Percentage of 
educational partners 
that demonstrate 
awareness of revised 
Graduate Profile 

Source: Survey of 
Educational Partners 

2020-21: 

Group % Aware 

Students 0 

Staff 0 

Family 0 
 

2021-22: 
 

Group % Aware 

Students 26 

Staff 40 

Family 19 
 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

 

2023-24: 

Group % Aware 

Students 100 

Staff 100 

Family 100 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 143 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

7D 

Evidence of School 
Site Alignment 

Percentage of school 
sites that 
demonstrate 
alignment of site plan 
to Graduate Profile 

Source: Internal 
evaluation of school 
site alignment 

 

2020-21:   0 

 

2021-22: TBD 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 

100% of sites will 
demonstrate 
alignment of school 
plans to Graduate 
Profile 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 144 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

7.1 

Revision and Adoption of 
Graduate Profile 

(Continuing) 

Convene educational partners to review existing graduate profile and 
recommend revisions.  Educational partners to include advisors from 
industry, post-secondary educators, SCUSD staff, family, and students.   

(To be completed in 2022-23) 

$0* N 

7.2 
Develop Implementation Plan 

(Continuing) 

Develop implementation plan for Year 2 (To be completed in 2022-23) 

 Engage lead teachers from sites where the current graduate profile is 
consistently used to lead groups of peers at other sites in 
implementation planning.   

 Engage principals in to build understanding of expectations for site 
alignment and to support development of site-specific implementation 
plans. 

$0* N 

7.3 

Build Awareness of Graduate 
Profile 

(Continuing) 

Collaboration with the district communications team to develop an 
awareness campaign and ongoing education of staff and community 
members on the new Graduate Profile purpose and elements. 

(To be implemented throughout 2022-23 and 2023-24) 

$0* N 

7.4 
Support School Site Alignment 

(Continuing) 

Support secondary school sites in developing and implementing Defense 
of Learning practices that are fully aligned to the revised Graduate 
Profile. 

(To be implemented throughout 2022-23 and 2023-24) 

$0* N 

*Costs associated with actions in Goal 7 will be addressed through the Career and Technical Education (CTE) budget (Action 1.1). 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 145 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

This goal was not implemented as planned during 2021-22 and the timeline for implementation was modified to reflect a 2022-23 target.  For 
2021-22, district leadership participated in capacity-building to ensure that Goal 7 can be fully operationalized and successful in a 2022-23 
implementation.  This included participation in professional learning specific to the development and implementation of a graduate profile. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

No expenditures were budgeted within this goal area, as the actions included are part of the overall efforts of the Career and Technical 
Education team’s budget in Action 1.1. 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

As noted above, this goal has been modified to reflect a 2022-23 implementation timeline.  The specific actions planned in this goal will be 
implemented in the coming year and progress toward the goal will be assessed at that point in time. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

The implementation timeline of the key activities in this goal have been modified to reflect a 2022-23 timeline. This includes revision and 
adoption of the Graduate Profile and development of a full implementation plan for the subsequent years. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 146 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

8 SCUSD will maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean facilities, core classroom staffing, and other basic 
conditions necessary to support the effective implementation of actions across all LCAP goals. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

An analysis of data has shown that the district has, overall, continued to meet or nearly meet its goals in Priority 1 target areas.  These 
include providing all students access to board adopted instructional materials, ensuring the facilities meet the ‘Good Repair’ status on the 
Facilities Inspection Tool, supporting all teachers to become fully credentialed, and ensuring that teachers are appropriately assigned, 
including teachers of English Learners. Educational partners have reaffirmed the importance of maintaining progress in these areas to 
ensure that students are provided the basic conditions of learning necessary to reach the range of other goals set in this LCAP and beyond.  
A key challenge related to priority 1 has been the number of classroom vacancies.  The preexisting shortage of teachers has been greatly 
exacerbated by COVID-19 pandemic and many schools have experienced classroom vacancies at points throughout the year.  This 
challenge is likely to continue in the coming year(s) and remains an areas of focus that the district is working to address through recruitment 
and retention efforts and collaboration with labor partners.  

Notes: 

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 147 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

8A 

Facilities Condition 

Number of schools 
where facilities do not 
meet the ‘good repair’ 
standards on the 
Facilities Inspection 
Tool (FIT)  

Source: Facilities 
Services Department 

 

2018-19: 0 

2019-20: 2 

2020-21: 1 

2021-22: 0 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
2023-24:  0 

8B 

Instructional 
Materials 
Sufficiency 

Percentage of 
students with access 
to board-adopted 
instructional materials 

Source: Board of 
Education Resolution 
certifying sufficiency 

 

2018-19: 100 

2019-20: 100 

2020-21: 100 

2021-22: 100 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 

 

2023-24:  100 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 148 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

8C 

Teacher 
Credentialing 
Status 

Percentage of 
teachers fully 
credentialed 

Source: School 
Accountability Report 
Card (SARC) / 
Human Resources 
Department 

2019-20: 97  

2020-21: 98 
2021-22: 100 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24:  100 

8D 

Teacher 
Assignment  

Number of teachers 
misassigned and 
number of teachers 
of English Learners 
misassigned 

Source: School 
Accountability Report 
Card (SARC) / 
Human Resources 
Department 

 

All Teachers 

2019-20: 0 

2020-21: 1 

 

Teachers of English 
Learners: 

2019-20: 0 

2020-21: 0 

 

All Teachers 

2021-22: 0 

 

Teachers of English 
Learners: 

2021-22: 0 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

All Teachers: 0 

 

Teachers of English 
Learners:  0 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 149 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

8E 

Teacher Vacancies 

Number of classroom 
teacher vacancies 

Source: School 
Accountability Report 
Card (SARC) / 
Human Resources 
Department 

2019-20: 29  

2020-21: 17.1 
2021-22: 37.5 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

2023-24:  0 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 150 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

8.1 
Facilities Support Services 

(Continuing) 

Maintain safe and clean facilities in good repair.  Includes custodial, 
maintenance, and other facilities support staff as well as materials and 
services associated with the maintenance of school sites and other 
district facilities.   

 N 

8.2 

Board-adopted Instructional 
Materials 

(Continuing) 

Provide all students sufficient instructional materials for board-adopted 
curricula.  Includes newly adopted materials and replacement materials 
for lost/damaged items. 

 N 

8.3 
Base Classroom Staffing  

(Continuing) 

Classroom staffing at a level sufficient to provide the core curriculum to 
all students.  Includes classroom teachers.  N 

8.4 
New Teacher Support 

(Continuing) 

New Teacher Support includes Teacher Induction and Pre-Induction 
Support.  Teacher Induction supports beginning teachers who hold a 
preliminary credential.  Pre-Induction Support is for teachers holding a 
Short-Term Staff Permit (STSP), Provisional Internship Permit (PIP), or 
an intern credential.  New teachers are connected with veteran staff to 
provide mentorship and assistance through the Induction or pre-
induction process to complete their credential, intern program, or permit 
renewal requirements.  Funding provides stipends for support 
providers, program materials/supplies, professional learning, and fees 
to clear credentials. 

 N 

8.5 Employee Pipelines (New) 

Develop and implement pathways and pipelines for current employees 
and community members to acquire credentials and certifications (e.g. 
teaching credential).   

This action includes the efforts identified in Action C9 of the ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan (Classified Employee Teacher Development Pipeline) 
and the Educator Effectiveness Blog Grant (EEBG). 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 151 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

8.6 
Recruitment and Retention 
(New) 

Increase SCUSD's presence in the community and around the nation to 
recruit highly qualified individuals and retain valued employees. This 
action is particularly focused on recruitment and retention of teachers to 
improve outcomes for low-income students and students of color, as 
teacher attrition disproportionately impacts these schools.   

This action includes the efforts identified in Action C10 of the ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan (Staff Recruitment and Retention) and the Educator 
Effectiveness Block Grant. 

  

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 152 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Overall, the actual implementation of the actions within Goal 8 were in alignment with the plan.  The ongoing impacts of COVID-19 continued 
to exacerbate the staffing shortages that have existed across the state and in SCUSD.  The actual implementation of action 8.3 (Base 
Classroom Staffing) was affected by the shortages, as evidenced by the increase in vacancies.  While not directly part of Action 8.3, it is 
relevant to note that staffing shortages extended to classroom substitutes, further exacerbating the challenges.  During the particularly 
challenging time of the omicron variant surge, central staff were deployed to support schools and site staff had to utilize centralized spaces 
and peer classroom coverage to address urgent needs.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The majority of the estimated actual expenditures for Goal 8 do not demonstrate material differences from the budgeted expenditures.  
Instances where material differences do exist include: 

 Action 8.3 (Base Classroom Staffing): Budgeted Expenditures were projected at $165,468,327 and Estimated Actual Expenditures are 
projected at $___.  Hold for confirmation of final estimated actual expenditures. 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The implementation of actions within Goal 8 have furthered the district’s efforts to maintain sufficient instructional materials, safe and clean 
facilities, core classroom staffing, and other basic conditions necessary to support the effective implementation of actions across all LCAP 
goals. During 2021-22 maintenance and facilities staff worked to ensure that school facilities were kept safe, clean, and in good repair.  
(Action 8.1) Specific efforts included the roll-out of hydration stations that offer touchless refilling of water bottles and ongoing support for 
mitigating COVID transmission through appropriate facilities and cleaning protocols.  The Academic Office completed their review and 
adoption process for Grades K-5 Science Instructional Materials, with plans to implement in 2022-23. (Action 8.2) The New Teacher Support 
office continued to provide support for new teachers through pre-induction, induction, and Career and Technical Education. (Action 8.4) Fall 
2021 included an accreditation visit by the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) and staff are working to address the 
feedback left by reviewers.  New Teacher Support staff continue to enroll all newly hired teachers into support programs.  The most 
significant challenge within this goal during 2021-22 has been ensuring that all classrooms are fully staffed by highly qualified teachers.  
(Action 8.3) The existing staffing shortages exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic have increased the number of classroom vacancies and 
have prevented the full achievement of this goal in the current year. More recent efforts by the district to develop employee pipelines and 
target new recruitment/retention efforts were articulated in the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant plan in December 2021.  It is hoped that 
these efforts will have short and long-term impacts on the ability of the district to attract and retain classroom teachers. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 153 
 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

Two new actions have been added to Goal 8 for the 2022-23 school year. These establish alignment between Goal 8 and the ESSER III 
Expenditure Plan and Educator Effectiveness Block Grant (EEBG).  Action 8.5 (Employee Pipelines) focuses on the critical need to develop 
and implement pathways for employees and community members to acquire credentials, in particular teaching credentials.  Action 8.6 
(Recruitment and Retention) acts on the urgent need to expand the districts effort to recruit, develop, and retain talent.  This is especially 
important with regard to recruiting and retaining a diverse teaching staff that reflect the demographic composition of SCUSD’s student body. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 154 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

9 
Provide every SCUSD student eligible for special education support and services with an educational program in their least 
restrictive environment and includes standards-aligned instruction enabling students to meet or exceed state standards. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

As discussed in the plan summary, the performance of Students with Disabilities as reflected on the California School Dashboard in 2017 
through 2019 has placed SCUSD in Differentiated Assistance status and informed the development of this student group-specific LCAP goal.  
SCUSD has been eligible for Differentiated Assistance based on the performance of Students with Disabilities for three consecutive years.  
In the most recent Dashboard with Performance Results (2019), Students with Disabilities had Red performance levels for Graduation Rate, 
English Language Arts, and Mathematics and Orange performance levels for Chronic Absenteeism, College/Career Preparedness, and 
Suspension Rate.  This placed Students with Disabilities in the lowest (Red) or next to lowest (Orange) performance level for all Dashboard 
Indicators.  While the 2020 and 2021 Dashboard has not included performance level results due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the available results, as discussed in the plan summary, have continued to reflect significant disparity in the outcomes for Students with 
Disabilities across these dashboard areas.  

The need to ensure that all students eligible for special education support and services are served in the least restrictive environment - with 
standards-aligned instruction that enables them to meet or exceed standards - has been a point of educational partner advocacy and a 
district priority.  SCUSD’s data, while showing some recent improvements, still has a 22% rate of students with disabilities in regular class 
less than 40% of the time (statewide target is less than 20.6%) and a 5.7% rate of students with disabilities participating in a separate school 
(statewide target is less than 3.6%).  Educational partners have reiterated that there are many students in the district who could benefit from 
a more inclusive educational environment and that focused training, improved instructional practices, and shifting systemic beliefs in this area 
are essential to improve outcomes for students with disabilities.  

This goal has strong alignment to existing actions and metrics throughout the LCAP that are specific to students with disabilities.  In the 
measurable outcomes section below, it has been noted where key metrics appear in other goals.  While redundant actions are not included, 
it is helpful to note that actions such as Action 1.10 (Transition Planning for Students with Disabilities), 1.11 (Post-secondary tracking of 
Students with Disabilities), 2.4 (Multisensory Reading Intervention), 4.7 (Behavior Interventions and Data Management), and 5.9 (Special 
Education Adult Professional Learning) are working in alignment with this goal. 

 

Note:  

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 155 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

9A (Also 1Q) 

Post-Secondary 
Outcomes and 
Competitively 
Employed  

Rate of student 
respondents that are 
enrolled in higher 
education or 
competitively 
employed.  

Source: SpED Annual 
Performance Report 
(APR) 

2018-19: 

37.28% 

Statewide Target:  

>74.4% 

2019-20: 

77.4% 

Statewide Target:  

>74.4% 

To be reported in 2022-
23 

To be reported in 2023-
24 

2023-24: 

83.4% 

Statewide Target:  

>74.4% 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 156 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

9B 

4 Year Cohort 
Graduation Rate  

Combined graduation 
rate, which reflects all 
students who: (1) 
graduate in four years 
as part of the most 
current graduating 
class and (2) graduate 
in five years as part of 
the prior year 
graduating class.  

Source: SpED Annual 
Performance Report 
(APR) 

2018-19: 

66.02% 

Statewide Target:  

>90% 

2019-20: 

66% 

Statewide Target:  

>90% 

To be reported in 2022-
23 

To be reported in 2023-
24 

2023-24: 

70% 

Statewide Target:  

>90% 

9C (Also 2T) 

Least Restrictive 
Environment 

Rate of students with 
disabilities in Regular 
Class more than 80%  

Source: SpED Annual 
Performance Report 
(APR) 

2018-19: 

57.67% 

Statewide Target:  

>52.2% 

2019-20: 

54.1% 

Statewide Target:  

>53.2% 

To be reported in 2022-
23 

To be reported in 2023-
24 

2023-24: 

60% 

Statewide Target:  

>53.2% 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 157 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

9D (Also 2T) 

Least Restrictive 
Environment 

 Rate of students with 
disabilities in Regular 
Class less than 40% of 
the time. 

 Source: SpED Annual 
Performance Report 
(APR) 

2018-19: 

23.79% 

Statewide Target:  

>21.6% 

2019-20: 

22% 

Statewide Target:  

>20.6% 

To be reported in 2022-
23 

To be reported in 2023-
24 

2023-24: 

20% 

Statewide Target:  

>20.6% 

9E 

Least Restrictive 
Environment 

Rate of students with 
disabilities participating 
in a separate school. 

 Source: SpED Annual 
Performance Report 
(APR) 

2018-19: 

6.27% 

Statewide Target:  

<3.8% 

2019-20: 

5.7% 

Statewide Target:  

<3.6% 

To be reported in 2022-
23 

To be reported in 2023-
24 

2023-24: 

4% 

Statewide Target:  

<3.6% 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

9.1 

Preschool District Capacity 
Assessment 

(New) 

Conduct a cross departmental District Capacity Assessment with Child 
Development and Special Education which will inform the development 
of a SCUSD Capacity Action Plan. The action plan will support a 
common infrastructure for the implementation of effective innovations to 
achieve desired outcomes for students.  

 N 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 158 
 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

9.2 
Educational Technology for 
Students with Disabilities 

(New) 

Establish a Department Computer Support Technician position and 
provide educational technology (including hardware, software, and 
connectivity) for special education students and staff. These actions will 
support regular and substantive educational interactions between 
students and their special education service providers and student 
access to assistive technology. 

Reference: Action B21 in ESSER III Expenditure plan 

 N 

9.3 
Expanded Special Education 
Staffing 

(New) 

Additional special education staffing to expand student access to 
appropriately credentialed/licensed special education providers and 
district access to special education leadership positions, which support 
the organization and appropriate supervision of staff. 

Reference: Action B22 in ESSER III Expenditure plan 

 N 

9.4 

 
Team Engagement specific to 
the needs of Students with 
Disabilities 

(New) 

Develop and invest in opportunities to engage diverse teams to monitor 
improvement, build professional capacity, and build towards long-term 
restorative change. This includes investments in adult professional 
learning for staff and community regarding legal compliance and 
effective instructional practices, educational partner engagement, and 
regular collaboration work which fosters continuous improvement 
practices that positively impact students with disabilities. 

Reference: Action C1 in ESSER III Expenditure Plan 

 N 

     

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 159 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 160 
 

 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

10 

SCUSD will respectfully, efficiently and effectively identify all eligible homeless youth so that they can be connected to and 
provided the appropriate family, academic social/emotional, behavioral, health, and other services.  The percentage of all 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students who are identified as homeless will increase and approach the expected 5-10% 
rate. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

As discussed in the plan summary, the performance of Homeless Youth as reflected on the California School Dashboard in 2017 through 
2019 has placed SCUSD in Differentiated Assistance status and informed the development of this student group-specific LCAP goal.  
SCUSD has been eligible for Differentiated Assistance based on the performance of Homeless Youth for three consecutive years.  In the 
most recent Dashboard with Performance Results (2019), Homeless Youth had Red performance levels for Chronic Absenteeism, English 
Language Arts, and Mathematics and an Orange performance level for College/Career Preparedness.  This placed Homeless Youth in the 
lowest (Red) or next to lowest (Orange) performance level for four out of six Dashboard Indicators.  While the 2020 and 2021 Dashboard has 
not included performance level results due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the available results, as discussed in the plan 
summary, have continued to reflect significant disparity in the outcomes for Homeless Youth across these dashboard areas.  

With national and state guidance indicating that, on average, a district’s identified homeless youth population should be approximately 5-10% 
of their low-income population, SCUSD has a chronic under-identification issue.  On the most recent California School Dashboard (2021), 
SCUSD had 272 identified homeless youth and 27,906 socioeconomically disadvantaged students (~1%).  Accurate and efficient 
identification of homeless youth status is a key first step to the provision of many other services including housing, health, academics, 
social/emotional, behavioral, and more.  Effective identification is a necessary precursor to the wrap-around supports that will enable 
improvement across the dashboard indicators, including the areas in red on the 2019 Dashboard - Chronic Absenteeism, ELA, and Math. 

Note:  

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 161 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

10A 
 
Overall Identification 
Rate 
 
Percentage of Total 
Low Income Student 
group that are 
identified as 
Homeless Youth 
 

Source: CA School 
Dashboard 

2020 Dashboard: 
0.86% 

2021 Dashboard: 
0.97% 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

5% 

10B 

Identification 
Process 
 

Number of referrals 
leading to 
identification by 
source 
 
Source: Homeless 
Youth Services records 

 

[Respond here] [Insert outcome here] 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
[Respond here] 

[Respond here] [Respond here] [Insert outcome here] To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

[Respond here] 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 162 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

10.1 

Professional Development to 
Build Staff Capacity to Identify 
and Support Homeless Youth 

(New) 

Develop and provide professional development for staff to expand the 
awareness of homelessness, build understanding of the homeless 
identification process, and provide tools and strategies for making 
appropriate referrals and providing support.  Homeless Services has 
recently developed and released on-line training tools that are available 
for all SCUSD staff.  These are focused on helping staff to understand 
the unique needs of students experiencing homelessness and how to 
identify students and link them to supports.  They include flyers, policy 
documents, and examples of surveys.  The online training webinar can 
be found here: https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1pMWVlGEaLIp-
iVa5V6JAHV1-syuqOx9- 

Homeless Services staff will continue to provide direct trainings, facilitate 
access to online trainings, and work with staff individually to identify and 
link homeless youth to supports. 

[$ 0.00] [Y/N] 

10.2 

Increase and improve referral 
processes for homeless 
identification 

(New) 

Continue to develop and refine procedures and policies for referral of 
students and families to be identified as Homeless.  Recent 
improvements include the development and implementation of a 
universal housing survey.  This survey will be sent to all families in the 
district twice each year, as well as to any newly enrolled students upon 
entry to the district.  Families that indicate housing instability will be 
identified and offered supportive services for homelessness. 

[$ 0.00] [Y/N] 

[Action #] 
[A short title for the action; this 
will appear in the Action tables] 

[A description of what the action is; may include a description of how the 
action contributes to increasing or improving services] 

[$ 0.00] [Y/N] 

 

  

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1pMWVlGEaLIp-iVa5V6JAHV1-syuqOx9-
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1pMWVlGEaLIp-iVa5V6JAHV1-syuqOx9-


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 163 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the Estimated 
Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table. 

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 164 
 

Goal 

Goal # Description 

11 
All Foster Youth demonstrating below-grade level academic proficiency will be offered 1 on 1 and/or small group tutoring 
services to support their accelerated progress toward grade-level standards. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 

As discussed in the plan summary, the performance of Foster Youth as reflected on the California School Dashboard in 2017 through 2019 
has placed SCUSD in Differentiated Assistance status and informed the development of this student group-specific LCAP goal.  SCUSD has 
been eligible for Differentiated Assistance based on the performance of Foster Youth for three consecutive years.  In the most recent 
Dashboard with Performance Results (2019), Foster Youth had Red performance levels for Suspension Rate, Graduation Rate, and 
Mathematics and an Orange performance level for English Language Arts.  This placed Foster Youth in the lowest (Red) or next to lowest 
(Orange) performance level for four out of six Dashboard Indicators.  While the 2020 and 2021 Dashboard has not included performance 
level results due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, the available results, as discussed in the plan summary, have continued to 
reflect significant disparity in the outcomes for Foster Youth across these dashboard areas.  

Receiving timely intervention (such as tutoring) based on accurate assessment of needs is a critical factor in achieving ELA and Math 
proficiency, as well as an important precursor step towards graduation.  Receiving appropriate academic supports and accelerating progress 
toward grade level proficiency is also a key factor in increasing overall student engagement and a mitigating factor for Suspension Rate, 
Attendance issues, and other behavioral factors. 

Note:  

The following section (Actions) includes a column titled ‘Contributing’ for which each action is categorized as ‘Y’ or ‘N.’  A ‘Y’ in this column indicates that 
the action is contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement as described in the Increased or Improved Services section later in 
this LCAP.  These actions are those that are funded in part or fully by LCFF Supplemental Concentration grant funds and intended to increase or improve 
services for unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students).   

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 165 
 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

11A 

Provision of 
Tutoring Services 
 

Percentage of Foster 
Youth with below-
grade level Math 
and/or ELA 
proficiency receiving 
Tutoring Services 

 

Source: Foster Youth 
Services 

[Respond here] [Insert outcome here] 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
100% 

11B 

Academic 
Improvement 
 

Percentage of foster 
youth that gain at 
least one month of 
academic growth for 
every month of 
tutoring support 
 

Source: Foster Youth 
Services 

[Respond here] 

Post-Assessment 
data for 2021-22 will 

be available after 
6.30.22 

To be reported in 
2022-23 

To be reported in 
2023-24 

60%  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 166 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 

11C 

Attendance 
Improvement 
 

Percentage of Foster 
Youth who 
demonstrate 90% of 
greater attendance 
after receiving Foster 
Youth Services 
supports 

 

Source: Foster Youth 
Services 

Year: 60% [Insert outcome here] 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
[Respond here] 

11D 

Suspension Rate 
Decrease 
 

Percentage of Foster 
Youth who were 
suspended prior to 
Foster Youth Status 
that have NOT been 
suspended following 
engagement with 
Foster Youth 
Supports 
 
Source: Foster Youth 
Services 

 

[Respond here] [Insert outcome here] 
To be reported in 

2022-23 
To be reported in 

2023-24 
[Respond here] 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 167 
 

Actions 

Action # Title  Description Total Funds  Contributing 

11.1 
Tutoring Services for Foster 
Youth (New) 

Foster youth students who have been identified as having the greatest 
need for tutoring services (i.e. falling below grade level academically) are 
eligible for 1:1 or small group tutoring services.  Tutoring services are 
provided by an outside contracted provider.  All tutoring services are 
tailored to each foster youth student’s needs. 

Note: Action B4 in the ESSER III Expenditure plan provides addition 
funding for Foster and Homeless Youth Tutoring in 2022-23 and 2023-
24. 

 

 

11.2 
Individualized Case 
Management (New) 

Case management is an approach-based method that is used to provide 
direct services to individualized populations. It entails developing a plan 
of action between the Foster Youth Services case manager and the 
student.  Case plan should reflect the preferences and interests of the 
individual being served. Strong emphasis is placed on enabling the 
student to make positive decisions and empowering them to propel 
themselves through life.  

 

 

     

 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 168 
 

Goal Analysis for 2021-22 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 

A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from reflections 
on prior practice. 

This goal is new and was not included in the 2021-22 LCAP.  Analysis of implementation for the 2022-23 year will be included in the next 
LCAP.  

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table.  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 169 
 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students for [LCAP Year] 

Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent) 

$[Insert dollar amount here]  $[Insert dollar amount here] 

 
Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 

Projected Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

[Insert percentage here]% [Insert percentage here]% $[Insert dollar amount here] [Insert percentage here]% 

The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 

Required Descriptions 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of (1) 
how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 

There are several actions that are being implemented across the district that are increasing or improving services for unduplicated students.  
Most of these are continued from the 2021-22 LCAP and the explanation below includes discussion of outcome data and implementation 
results. 
 
Counselors, Master Schedule Director, and Credit Recovery Programming (Actions 1.3, 1.4, 1.5) 
SCUSD’s unduplicated students lack access to academic counseling services and college readiness activities as compared to peers who 
have more financial resources, speak English at home, or have family members who have graduated college. Many will be the first in their 
family to pursue postsecondary education. Implementing robust and predictable academic counseling services provides all students 
guidance to support their successful navigation of high school and the path to college and career. SCUSD has designed its counseling 
services and academic programming intentionally to focus on the needs of unduplicated students. 
 
The Master Schedule Director was introduced as a key action to apply the district’s equity lens.  Providing districtwide guidance for allocation 
of staffing and course scheduling has supported more equitable access to courses for target student groups.  Examples of recent efforts 
include preregistration of students into selected college prep courses and consolidation of multiple versions of similar courses to reduce 
tracking of students.  Counseling staff review the progress of students and provide guidance to ensure that students stay on track for 
graduation and can equitably access college preparatory and advanced coursework.  This is intended to support unduplicated students in 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 170 
 

particular, as they are historically less likely to self-advocate or have family who have graduated from college at home.  The Master Schedule 
Director carefully reviews credit recovery programming to ensure that students who have fallen off-track for graduation and college eligibility 
make progress, or are provided intervention support to accelerate progress.  Recent efforts have included collaboration with the Multilingual 
Literacy department to ensure that staffing allocations are sufficient to provide English Learners ELD courses at their appropriate language 
levels.  Credit recovery options include the central Sacramento Accelerated Academy campus and school-based options.  Total course 
completions within the district’s credit recovery program have remained robust, with 5,435 in 2018-19, 5,447 in 2019-20, and 6,654 in 2020-
21.  From 2016-17 to 2019-20, four-year cohort graduation rates improved from 81.2% to 86.5%. Rates dipped slightly in 2020-21 to 85.8%.  
UC/CSU ‘a-g’ completion has also shown steady increases from 2016-17 (44%) to 2020-21 (54.4%).  The Master Schedule Director meets 
regularly with Assistant Principals to guide counseling and credit recovery implementation.  District staff also meet directly with counselors to 
provide support specific to their site and individual needs.  While graduation rates from 2017-18 to 2020-21 have improved slightly for all 
students and improved significantly for some student groups (English Learners (69.8% to 79.8%), Students with Disabilities (60.1% to 
66.8%), and African American students (71.1% to 78%)), significant performance gaps still remain for many student groups.  Several of these 
groups did not demonstrate accelerated improvement and one, Foster Youth (67.5% to 59.4%) decreased over the four years.  As SCUSD 
continues to provide these services, targeted efforts will continue to focus even further on the disproportionately affected students with high 
needs to ensure that all student groups increase their graduation rate and become college and career ready.  These efforts include 
collaboration between counselors and Homeless Youth Services and Foster Youth Services staff to provide targeted support and prioritize 
these student groups during registration and for credit recovery.  Additional activities principally benefitting unduplicated students will include 
at-risk conferencing, campus visits, scholarship assistance, and college and career awareness activities.  2022-23 will also mark the launch 
of Middle School college and career readiness labs across the district.   
 
Career and Technical Education (CTE) Programs (Action 1.1) 
Career Technical Education (CTE) is an important part of the district’s plan to provide all students access to relevant and rigorous work-
based learning experiences that increase post-secondary success. The CTE pathways in SCUSD enable students to develop specific skills 
that can lead to future employment and integrate their learning through curriculum with direct application to real-life contexts. From 2018-19 
to 2021-22, enrollment in CTE pathways has ______ from 20.8% to ____ of 9-12 students.  This rate was slightly higher for 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students at 24.7% in 2020-21. The percentage of graduates completing a CTE pathway increased from 
8.9% in 2018-19 to 14.7% in 2020-21. This represented a significant increase over the previous year (10.9% in 2019-20).  Building on this 
demonstrated growth in completion, the district must not only maintain, but also expand CTE opportunities. This need has been emphasized 
across stakeholder groups with particular importance for high-needs student groups. The district’s Student Advisory Council included a 
specific focus on career preparation in their 2020-21 recommendations to the board, citing the need to expand program offerings, increase 
the information students receive about career/trades options, and reduce the overall stigma associated with trade occupations. Staff have 
noted that increasing the number of students who successfully complete a CTE pathway will have a positive impact on students’ post-
secondary success, and will be documented by the district’s indicator of overall college and career readiness on the Dashboard.  Efforts 
moving forward include the continued implementation of Linked Learning at all high schools and the implementation of a ‘Defense of 
Learning’ assessment process in CTE pathways.  Specific supports for students to complete CTE pathways are being expanded through 
partnership with Youth Development Support Services.  This partnership is providing and will continue to provide college mentors and after-
school staff support to guide students through the California College Guidance Initiative (CCGI) modules.  Additional college mentors will be 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 171 
 

hired to provide targeted support to CTE students to strengthen their engagement within pathways and to develop post-secondary transition 
plans. 

 
Advanced Learning and Exam Fees (Actions 1.6, 2.2) 
Advanced learning opportunities, including Advanced Placement and Gifted and Talented Education (GATE), provide specific curricula 
aimed at challenging students at the appropriate level. SCUSD educational partners have identified a need to increase diversity in criteria-
based programs such as GATE and AP. The Advanced Learning Coordinator works to create common goals for student success; increase 
opportunities for low income, English learners, and students of color; and reinforce the importance of students being prepared for the 
greatest variety of options after high school. From 2016-17 to 2021-22, the percentage of English Learners and Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged students enrolled in AP courses ___ percentage points and ___ percentage points respectively.  This is a metric that the 
district continues to monitor and seeks to improve significantly.  Increasing the proportional representation within GATE also remains a 
priority.  The new LCAP includes metrics specific to overall GATE demographics and GATE identification so that the district can monitor the 
representation of student groups in GATE relative to their overall proportion in the student population.  Available data demonstrates that, 
within the cohort of students who are identified as GATE, White students and students of two or more races are significantly overrepresented 
while English Learners, Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students, Students with Disabilities, African American students, and 
Hispanic/Latino students are underrepresented.  This remains an area of focus for the district moving forward. 
SCUSD will continue to provide funding for students to take exams supporting college and career readiness.  These include Advanced 
Placement (AP) exams, International Baccalaureate (IB) exams, and PSAT/SAT exams.  AP and IB exams provide opportunities for students 
to demonstrate their learning and earn college credits and the PSAT/SAT exams are important steps in the college readiness pathway.  As 
all three types of exams can present a significant funding challenge for students and families, providing this funding at a district level 
removes a key barrier to students accessing not only the full scope of the AP/IB course, but also the potential benefits of success on the 
exam.  From 2017-18 to 2019-20, the number of AP examinations taken by SCUSD students (not including charter schools) increased from 
2606 to 3497. This significant increase corresponded to the implementation of this action and reinforces the need to maintain this support.  
When this action was included as a potential cut within the district’s fiscal recovery plan list, educational partner input from students, families, 
and staff was emphatic in that this should not be considered as a potential cost savings and was far too valuable a resource to eliminate, 
particularly for our socioeconomically disadvantaged students who might not otherwise be unable to access the opportunities. Counseling 
staff reach out to families to ensure that they are aware of the opportunity to take these exams at no cost.  This is intended to specifically 
inform families for whom the cost of exams may be a perceived barrier to enrolling in the course. 
 
International Baccalaureate Programs (Action 1.7) 
International Baccalaureate (IB) Programs at Luther Burbank High School, Kit Carson International Academy, and Caleb Greenwood 
Elementary School provide students the opportunity to participate in a rigorous, engaging, and college preparatory program that is aligned to 
international standards.  These programs are intended to primarily serve SCUSD’s unduplicated student population.  In locating the 
programs at Luther Burbank and Kit Carson, these programs in particular are serving a high percentage of low-income students.  On the 
2021 Dashboard, Luther Burbank’s student population included 89.1% socioeconomically disadvantaged students and Kit Carson’s included 
64.8%.  Past analysis of the students at Luther Burbank participating in IB showed that the percentage of socioeconomically disadvantaged 
students in IB was proportional to the overall school population.  All students in Kit Carson are considered to be in the IB program.  The IB 
program not only engaged students in rigorous, college preparatory experiences (IB exams can earn students college credit in a similar 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 172 
 

manner to Advanced Placement (AP)), but also is focused on critical thinking skills, nurturing curiosity, and developing the ability to solve 
complex problems.  These areas of focus are embedded within an overall emphasis on intercultural understanding and respect, encouraging 
students to think critically about the local and global contexts and develop multilingualism. As these programs have continued to develop and 
mature, recent results demonstrate that they are improving outcomes.  From 2018-19 to 2020-21, the percentage of all IB exams taken that 
were passed increased from 15.4% to 30.9% and the percentage of diploma programme candidates that completed the full IB diploma (A 
student must pass multiple exams and complete additional requirements) increased from 3.3% to 29.6%.  These results do indicate that 
there is significant room for improvement while also showing that the program, while continuing to provide a valuable opportunity to 
unduplicated students, is improving outcomes. 
 
Class Size Reduction and Targeted Staffing Support (Actions 2.8 and 2.9) 
SCUSD is maintaining the use of supplemental and concentration (S/C) funds to reduce class size at grades K-3 and to provide targeted 
school assistance in the form of additional staffing across the district.  Class size reduction (maintaining class size at 24:1) at K-3 is 
implemented districtwide for all school sites.  Targeted school assistance is provided during the annual staffing and budget development 
process.  The targeted assistance allows the district to maintain schools and school sites to maintain programs above and beyond what 
would be possible with base funding alone.  There is community interest in maintaining the breadth and depth of program offerings. In the 
board’s consideration of the Fiscal Recovery Plan (FRP) proposals during the 2020-21 school year, educational partners emphasized the 
importance of maintaining current program offerings that enable the district to meet a range of student and family needs and interests. 
 
Collaboration Time (Action 2.10) 
SCUSD provides certificated staff with an extra hour weekly for collaborative time to review data, assess student work, and plan instruction to 
meet the needs of unduplicated pupils. Teacher professional communities that are part of practice (and not an "add-on") are an effective way 
to build pedagogical knowledge. (Darling-Hammond, L. [2005] Professional Development Schools: Schools for Developing a Profession).  
The LCAP includes a new metric to monitor the explicit use of collaboration time to meet the needs of and improve outcomes for 
unduplicated pupils and students with the highest needs.  Site administrators will provide a report of how collaboration time is used at their 
school site, including ways in which unduplicated student needs are specifically being considered and met through this action.  This time is a 
critical resource for school site staff to engage in the active implementation of instructional strategies, programs, and initiatives that have 
been identified as key levers in improving outcomes for students with the highest needs.  These include an effective Multi-Tiered System of 
Supports (MTSS), Universal Design for Learning (UDL), and effective Designated and Integrated ELD.  The provision of regular time to focus 
on the school’s Single Plan for Student Achievement and the district’s strategic goals and related initiatives will ensure that schools are able 
to consistently engage in professional learning activities that enable them to successfully implement and sustain key efforts in service of 
unduplicated students. 
 
Restructured Salary Schedule (Action 2.11) 
In order to improve student learning, close achievement gaps, and ensure students have an equal opportunity to graduate with the greatest 
number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options, the district will maintain a competitive salary and benefit package for the 
certificated staff who serve them. Students in high-poverty schools experience greater turnover in teaching staff, more long-term substitutes, 
and a higher proportion of early-career teachers.  (Carver-Thomas and Darling-Hammond [2017] Teacher Turnover: Why It Matters and 
What We Can Do About It). With a competitive salary and benefit package, the district expects to see a reduction of teacher turnover and the 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 173 
 

retention of experienced classroom teachers, as well as an increased ability to recruit highly qualified candidates who will be effective in 
improving the academic outcomes of the unduplicated students who are the majority of our district. To more effectively evaluate the impact of 
this action moving forward, specific metrics will be developed and implemented by the Human Resources department to monitor rates of 
teacher turnover/retention and the recruitment/hiring of highly qualified candidates.  Being able to recruit, hire, and retain highly qualified 
teachers, including teachers who reflect the racial, ethnic, and linguistic demographics of the district remains a key priority for improving 
unduplicated student outcomes. 
 
Secondary Librarians (Action 2.14) 
District Librarians continue to be an important resource provided to all secondary schools.  As indicated in the previous LCAP, the California 
School Library Association describes the need for students to “read critically, write more persuasively, and interact with information 
effectively” as they work to meet the Common Core State Standards.  District librarians provide additional support to meet these needs 
beyond what is provided in the classroom.  Additionally, low-income students are more likely to lack access to technology supports and funds 
to purchase books.  Of the 30 Sacramento Public Library locations, only three are located in the high-poverty region of South Sacramento.  
Research demonstrates that “…the benefits associated with good library programs are strongest for the most vulnerable and at-risk learners, 
including students of color, low-income students, and students with disabilities.” (Lance & Schwarz, 2012) SCUSD will provide librarians on a 
districtwide basis to secondary schools, to ensure that programming is coherent across sites.  District librarians will advertise library hours 
and the resources they offer through the range of available communication channels so that students and families are aware of the 
opportunities present.  The previous LCAP identified improvements in college and career readiness as a key indicator of success.  From 
2016-17 to 2019-20, the college and career readiness of unduplicated student groups did show some improvement as measured by the 
Dashboard College/Career Indicator.  English Learners improved from 15% to 18.7%, Foster Youth from 5.3% to 30%, and 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students from 31.8% to 37.6%.  Homeless Youth decreased from 19.3% to 12.3%.  While a high-level 
indicator such as College and Career readiness cannot be solely linked to an action such as District Librarians, access to the wide range of 
resources and instructional supports that are available through school libraries remains an important piece of the district’s overall efforts to 
improve outcomes for target student groups.   
 
Professional Development (Curriculum Coordinators and Training Specialists) (Action 2.1) 
The coordinators and training specialists within the Curriculum and Instruction department provide a range of professional development, 
including coaching, and help chart the instructional course of the district.  Their recent work has been focused in a number of areas that are 
specifically targeted at supporting the needs of unduplicated students.  Having focused in the previous two years on implementation of the 
ELA/ELD framework through the recent Language Arts adoption, work in the late spring expanded to the rollout of Universal Design for 
Learning (UDL) practices districtwide.  UDL, while supporting all students, is primarily intended to benefit those students who need additional 
support to access content, engage in the learning process, and express their thinking.  This is a critical and collaborative effort with the work 
of Integrated and Designated ELD as well as differentiated instruction for students with disabilities and other learning needs.  Overall, this 
action is intended to improve outcomes for unduplicated students in meeting academic standards across content areas as measured by state 
assessments and local assessments.  The efforts during 2018-19 to implement the new English Language Arts curriculum did correlate to a 
significant increase in English Language Arts on the state assessment, increasing 5.2 points as measured by Distance from Standard met.  
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students improved by 5.7 points, Foster Youth by almost 17 points, and English Learners by 1.4 points.  
Homeless Youth decreased by almost 11 points.  Overall, all groups performed well below the ‘Standard Met’ threshold and much room for 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 174 
 

improvement remains.  The ongoing collaboration of Curriculum and Instruction staff with colleagues to improve outcomes for unduplicated 
students is critical.  Strengthening the collaboration with Multilingual staff to support English Learners has already begun through targeted 
professional development such as LETRS (Language Essentials for Teachers of Reading and Spelling) training for staff.   
 
Student Support Services (Student Support and Health Services and Enrollment Center) (Actions 3.8, 3.10, 3.11) 
The student support and health services provided by district nurses, social workers, the Enrollment Center, the Connect Center, and site-
based Student Support Centers are important parts of the district’s effort to provide students wrap-around supports.  Student Support 
Centers are located at 34 of the district’s schools (an increase of 5 sites since the previous year).  Most of these schools are near or above 
75% for their percentage of socioeconomically disadvantaged students. Student Support and Health Services (SS&HS) efforts are especially 
focused on students who have less access outside school to mental and physical health care and resources.  With youth in Sacramento 
County who reside in socioeconomically disadvantaged communities having a higher-than-average rate of chronic diseases and less access 
to health care, schools play a critical role in providing these resources.  Additional social, emotional, and mental health supports has been a 
priority expressed ongoing and emphatically across educational partner groups.  The need for more mental health counseling and access to 
social workers has recurred throughout engagement activities.  The need for these supports as evidenced by Chronic Absenteeism Rates 
remains.  With 2020-21 chronic absenteeism rates through at 18.6% for all students, significantly higher rates were observed for Foster 
Youth (33.9%) and Homeless Youth (71.4%).  During the pandemic, the gap has widened for both student groups as well as African 
American students (38.6% in 2020-21 and Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students (37.4%).  In response to these needs and the other 
emergent needs in the past 15 months, SS&HS staff have increased the scope of services provided significantly.  Through the first quarter of 
2021-22, Tier 2 interventions were up 12% and Tier 3 interventions were more than double pre-pandemic levels.  During the first quarter of 
2021-22, Student Support and Health Services staff served 9,332 students through a total of 32,860 services across all Tiers.  The SS&HS 
department has recently re-worked their service model to create three regional student support centers that will distribute the efforts of the 
existing central connect center into regional hubs.  Each regional center will have a coordinator and 5-6 school social workers that serve a 
cluster of schools.  The coordinator will organize community supports at these schools, provide professional and clinical supervision for the 
social workers, and ensure that MTSS practices are aligned with those at the school sites.  The intention is to operationalize this plan in 
2022-23.  
 
While the enrollment center serves the entire district, it represents a key component of the district’s equity-based efforts to provide services 
to the community where they are needed most.  The enrollment center centralizes a number of services that the district’s most vulnerable 
students and families, including Homeless Youth, Foster Youth, Low-income students, and English Learners need and often do not have 
access to.  These include an immunization clinic, family services, a summer feeding program, and services for families in transition. These 
are in addition to the core function of a more efficient enrollment process to place students and families into schools.  The Enrollment Center 
also houses the Matriculation and Orientation Center (MOC), which is detailed in a separate action specific to translation and interpretation.  
Access to translation and interpretation is a key resource for English Learners and families as they interface with the district for the first time 
or to navigate the complexities of enrollment.  A key mid-year addition in 2021-22 that will build into the coming year is a staff member 
providing interpretation and translation in Arabic, Dari, Pashto, and Farsi.  This has been particularly important as the district strives to 
support arriving Afghan families in their transition to the district. 
  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 175 
 

 
Social Emotional Learning (SEL) (Action 4.1) 

Social Emotional Learning (SEL) and Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS) remain important program in the district’s overall 
effort to improve the culture and climate of the district at the classroom, school, and community level.  These actions are jointly focused on 
providing both students and staff the training, skills, and tools they need to establish and maintain a positive school climate and culture.  
They are also intended to develop each individual’s social and emotional capacity to be successful in college, career, and life.  While a 
positive school culture and climate are important for all students, they are particularly important for unduplicated pupils and other groups who 
have historically and continue to experience disproportionate discipline and other unhealthy impacts of a negative school climate and culture.  
Both of these programs align to the district’s core value and need to interrupt systems that are inequitable.  Suspension Rates in the district 
continue to demonstrate inequitable outcomes across student groups.  In 2018-19 and 2019-20, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and 
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students had suspension rates above that of ‘All students.’  Significantly higher rates have also persisted 
for African American students and Students with Disabilities. 2020-21 Suspension rates are difficult to draw conclusions from, as there were 
very few suspensions across the district during the distance learning context.  2021-22 rates through March demonstrate that multiple 
student groups, including Foster Youth (12.7%), Students with Disabilities (6.2%), and African American students (9.2%) have rates 
significantly higher than ‘All students’ (3.3%).  SEL efforts continue to include professional development for the integration of SEL into 
instruction and implementation of the districts core SEL practices.  Hold for School Climate Survey Results. Results have demonstrated that 
these efforts result in improved outcomes.  In 2019-20, of the 23 schools where efforts were focused (based on disproportionate suspension 
results), 22 demonstrated decreased suspension rates.  PBIS efforts – which focus on building community, early identification of student 
needs, and implementing preventative measures rather than focusing on reactive discipline – have shown similar success.  In 2019-20, the 
18 sites where PBIS efforts were focused showed a 12% decrease in total behavioral referrals and a 45% decrease in total suspensions from 
the previous year.  SEL and PBIS efforts are part of the district’s overall implementation of a Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS). This 
alignment enables the district to provide targeted support at schools within each MTSS cohort to ensure that systems are unified within each 
site and across the overall cohort of schools.  This alignment will support improvement in data-based decision-making, a foundational aspect 
of MTSS.  As needs are identified, students are connected to supports and staff direct resources to be used in the most efficient and effective 
manner. 
 
District Parent Resource Center and Parent Teacher Home Visits (Actions 5.1, 5.2) 
The District Parent Resource Center implements a range of engagement opportunities including the Parent Information Exchange (PIE) 
meetings and Parent Leadership Pathway Workshops.  These opportunities, while open to all, are intended to engage those who have 
historically been less connected to school and/or those students who stand to benefit most from further empowering their parents/guardians.  
The programs provide parents/guardians the skills and encouragement to take on leadership roles within their school community, engage in 
peer coaching, and participate in district level leadership opportunities.  This is intended to increase the amount of representation among 
leadership bodies of parents of English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Low-Income students.  The workshops and other 
resources provided by the Parent Resource Center establish a safe and welcoming space for parents to connect with peers and staff who 
are invested in elevating their voice and authentic participation in improving school and district outcomes.    Capacity-building opportunities 
during the pandemic have required significant modification due to the COVID-19 context. The challenges associated with the COVID-19 
pandemic have required the FACE team to adapt their approach to the Parent Leadership Pathway program, Parent Information Exchange, 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 176 
 

and other long-standing activities.  Modified supports have included the online parent learning toolkit, virtual and recorded trainings, a bi-
weekly newsletter for school site distribution, Family Learning Kits for K-3 families, and continued presence in the Parent Resource Center.  
The FACE team engages in regular outreach (text and calls) and has collaborated in the development of a virtual volunteer program. Staff 
have recently begun facilitation of Healing Circles.  From Sep 2021 through Jan 2022, over 2500 parents participated in FACE online 
trainings and the Resource Center has served over 2,400 parents/caregivers. 

 
The Parent Teacher Home Visit (PTHV) is implemented at Title 1 sites, with all students/families at those sites able to participate.  The PTHV 
program builds relationships with families and supports them in becoming equal partners in their students’ education. This program is 
intended to deepen positive relationships and empower parents/caregivers who are, for any number of reasons, less connected to the 
school.  These students often come from one or more unduplicated categories.  The focusing of the program at Title 1 schools targets the 
resources at sites that have the greatest need.  During the 2020-21 school year, the PTHV program conducted 3,736 home and bridge 
(virtual) visits.  This represents a significant growth over the number of contacts in past years.  While initially challenging, the ability of the 
PTHV program to pivot to a virtual visit model has significantly expanded the capacity of the program to serve a range of family needs.  Both 
in-person and virtual formats are now options for families and staff to connect.  Staff interest in conducting visits has increased as teachers 
and colleagues have found the visits to result in increased connection to students and families, especially those who have been less 
connected to date.  Staff are making progress toward the recently-added target of all participating sites reaching a 10% student participation 
level.  To date for 2021-22, 17% of participating sites have reached the target.  PTHV has found that exceeding the 10% threshold can have 
a positive effect school wide and the national organization for Parent Teacher Home Visits has shared results from multiple studies that 
demonstrate the positive effects of participating in the program.  These include interrupting the assumptions and implicit biases that 
educators and family members have about each other and building positive relationships between educators and families. 
 
Extra and Co-Curricular Opportunities and Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) Opportunities (Actions 2.21 and 2.16) 
SCUSD is a high-poverty district, and students often lack the opportunities that are possible in a more affluent community. Student input has 
continued to affirm the desire for more engaging experiences outside of the classroom including extra and co-curricular opportunities. The 
activities proposed in these two actions seek to mitigate the effects of poverty on students by providing access to College Visits, Field Trips, 
and other experiential learning opportunities, elementary athletics, and Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) opportunities. These activities are 
intended to primarily benefit students who are low income, as they may not have the same access to such opportunities outsider of school.  
Improved engagement, as evidenced by improved attendance, reduced suspension, and improved reporting of connectedness on the annual 
School Climate survey are the desired outcomes. While many of these activities were significantly limited during the 2021-22 school year due 
to the COVID-19 context, they remain more important than ever as the district strives to provide students more opportunities to engage in 
enriching experiences inside and outside the classroom with their peers. 
 

  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 177 
 

School Psychologists (Action 3.3) 
School Psychologists funded above formula will target unduplicated students with evaluations that can connect student needs and 
intervention support. Data shows a disproportionate number of African American students are identified as students with disabilities. Learning 
disabilities can be mitigated with early identification. Currently the number of school psychologists are only able to complete assessments.  
Increasing the number of positions will enable psychologists to regularly participate in site-based intervention development and review 
systems, Student Study Team (SST) processes, collaborate with teachers and principals, and provide more direct services and supports for 
students.  This increase in services will particularly benefit unduplicated students and other students with high-needs.  As evidence in the 
intersectionality table in the plan summary, English Learners, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and Low Income students are overrepresented 
in the group of Students with Disabilities relative to their proportions among ‘All students.’  Increasing the number of psychologists will 
support unduplicated students in both the increase in supports to students with disabilities AND in the expanded support for identified 
students who require more support through the SST and other targeted intervention processes. 
 
Department-level Data-based Decision Making (Action 1.9) 
Student feedback gathered in focus groups during 2018-19 declared high levels of stress over their workload, and a need to have more 
connection with educators. An increase in funding for stipends is being maintained so that secondary department heads can look at student 
needs, plan, and provide interventions for students who are off track. This funding ensures that our unduplicated students’ schedules are 
visible to the curricular leads, and will improve high school achievement indicators, and increase staff engagement with students.  Time spent 
in department meetings should include looking at student work and/or data and collaborating on what interventions, supports and extensions 
to put into place. This action ensures that departments, led by the department heads, are able to spend the time on data analysis to make 
the learning of our unduplicated students visible, so that appropriate interventions, supports and interventions can be put into place. 
 

Site-determined, SPSA-based actions (Actions 1.8, 2.17, 2.18, 2.19, 2.20, 3.16, 4.5, 4.6, 5.6) 
Supplemental and Concentration Grant funding is allocated to school sites based on their number of low-income students and English 
Learners.  These funds are used to implement actions/strategies that benefit the targeted student groups identified by the site’s Needs 
Assessment.  Actions are described by each school site in their School Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) and each school site defines 
measurable outcomes for monitoring progress and measuring effectiveness.  Actions or strategies in each school’s SPSA support 
achievement of the school’s established goals, which represent each site’s efforts to achieve the overall goals present in the district’s LCAP.  
Examples of actions/strategies in Goal 1 include increased counseling services, expanded credit recovery options, and field trip experiences.  
Examples of actions/strategies in Goal 2 include bilingual instructional aides, targeted academic intervention, after school tutoring, and 
professional development for staff.  Examples of actions/strategies in Goal 3 include staffing for Student Support Centers, programs and 
materials to incentivize positive attendance, and enrichment experiences.  Examples of actions/strategies in Goal 4 include Social Emotional 
Learning (SEL) programs, Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS) efforts, and professional development. Examples of 
actions/strategies in Goal 6 include additional Parent Teacher Home Visits, family/community events, Parent Resource Center supports, and 
time/staff to engage in school-home outreach.  Appendix C provides details for which schools have allocated funds within each of these 
actions for the 2022-23 school year. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 178 
 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 

Overall, services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved through a range of actions 
that include actions focusing only on one or more unduplicated student groups, actions that are funded by multiple resources with one or 
more components focused on the needs of unduplicated students, and actions that are funded only/primarily by LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration Grant funds and implemented broadly, with the expectation that implementation is principally benefitting unduplicated 
students. 
 
The actions and services described in this plan that are being provided as an increase or improvement to unduplicated students include: 

 Career and Technical Education (CTE) Pathways and Programs (1.1) 

 Counselors, Master Schedule Director, and Credit Recovery Programming (1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5) 

 Exam Fee Support (IB, AP, PSAT/SAT) and Advanced Learning staffing (1.6, 2.2) 

 Additional support for International Baccalaureate (IB) Programs (1.7) 

 Department-Level Data-based Decision-Making (1.9) 

 Curriculum Coordinators and Training Specialists (2.1) 

 Language Acquisition Programs for English Learners (2.5) 

 Professional Learning specific to instruction for English Learners (2.6) 

 Pathways to Multiliteracy (2.7) 

 Class Size Reduction and Additional staffing for high-needs sites (2.8 and 2.9) 

 Weekly Collaboration Time for certificated staff (2.10) 

 Restructured Salary Schedule (2.11) 

 District librarians at secondary schools (2.14) 

 Extra and Co-curricular Opportunities and Visual and Performing Arts Opportunities (2.16, 2.21) 

 Foster Youth Services (3.1) 

 School Psychologists (3.3) 

 Develop and Adopt new English Learner Master Plan (3.6) 

 Intervention and Supports specific to English Learners (3.7) 

 Health Services: Nurses and Immunization Clinic (3.8) 

 Student Support: Connect Center and Student Support Centers (3.10) 

 Enrollment Center (3.11) 

 Social Emotional Learning (SEL) (4.1) 

 District Parent Resource Center and Parent Teacher Home Visits (PTHV) (5.1 and 5.2) 

 Translation and Interpretation (Matriculation and Orientation Center) (5.3) 
 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 179 
 

Of the actions described within this plan, several are services that are provided only or primarily to unduplicated students and their families.  
These include: 

1. Foster Youth Services: Directed specifically to Foster Youth and families 

2. Actions for English Learners within the Multilingual Literacy Department: Directed specifically to English Learners  

 Language Acquisition Programs for English Learners 

 Professional Learning specific to instruction for English Learners 

 Pathways to Multiliteracy 

 Intervention and Supports specific to English Learners 
3. Translation and Interpretation (Matriculation and Orientation Center): Directed specifically towards English Learners and students and 

families who require translation and interpretation. 
4. Needs-based scholarships for students: Directed specifically towards low-income students 
 
 

Actions described in this plan that are funded by multiple resources and have components with a particular focus on increasing and 
improving services for unduplicated pupils include:  

 Curriculum Coordinators and Training Specialists: This team includes staff that focus jointly on English Language Development (ELD) 
and English Language Arts (ELA).  These staff, while serving all schools and students, also have the stated responsibility to serve English 
Learners as a primary part of their position.  The Curriculum Coordinators and Training Specialist team as a whole also direct efforts to 
sites that have a demonstrated need, including those needs relevant to unduplicated student groups. 

 District Parent Resource Center: The District Parent Resource Center, while open to parents and guardians from all schools, focuses its 
efforts in particular towards those families that can benefit most from increased connection to school and capacity building to support their 
students’ learning.  Among these are the four student groups that make up the unduplicated student category. 

 Parent Teacher Home Visits: This program is based only at Title 1-designated school sites and primarily funded through Title 1 dollars.  
While all students and families at the school are eligible to participate, the program’s focus at Title 1 school sites is intended to benefit 
low-income students. 

 Career and Technical Education (CTE) Pathways and Programs: These programs are funded through a combination of grant resources 
and supplemental dollars.  While all students have access, CTE programs are recognized as being of particular importance for 
unduplicated students and a key means of increasing college and career readiness. 

 Health Services and Student Support Services: These programs/personnel are funded by a combination of grant, base, and supplemental 
dollars.  As discussed in the previous section, there is an explicit focus to provide services to students with the highest needs, including 
unduplicated students.  While all students have access to services, the intended outcome is to bridge the gap in resources that is widest 
for students who are low-income, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, and English Learners who may not have the same access outside of 
school. 

 SEL: This program is collectively funded through Title 1, LCFF Supplemental and Concentration, and LCFF base dollars.  As discussed in 
the previous section, they have focused efforts on target schools to address the disproportionate disciplinary outcomes for student groups 
(including unduplicated students) and improve school climate and culture. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 180 
 

 School Psychologists: Increasing the number of positions will enable psychologists to regularly participate in Student Study Team (SST) 
processes, collaborate with teachers and principals, and provide more direct services and supports for students.  This increase in 
services will particularly benefit unduplicated students and other students with high-needs. 

Detailed descriptions of these actions have been provided in the previous section. 

 

Actions that are funded only/primarily by LCFF Supplemental and Concentration grant funding, are being implemented on a broad basis, and 
are intended to principally benefit unduplicated students include the following. Detailed descriptions of these actions have been provided in 
the previous section: 

 Counselors, Master Schedule Director, and Credit Recovery Programming: Counseling services provide additional academic, 
college/career, and other supports to unduplicated students, who lack access relative to peers with more financial resources, speak 
English at home, or have family members who have graduated from college.     

 Exam Fee Support (IB, AP, and PSAT/SAT) and Advanced Learning Staffing: Providing exam support to all removes barriers for 
unduplicated students, who may be less likely to access these advanced courses and testing opportunities due to financial 
circumstances.  Provide leadership for Advanced Placement and Gifted and Talented Education (GATE) to increase representative 
participation in these programs. 

 Additional support for International Baccalaureate (IB) Programs: There programs provide unduplicated students access to a rigorous 
curriculum focused developing global awareness and multilingualism.  Students have the opportunity to earn college credit and develop a 
skill set that prepares them for post-secondary success. 

 Class Size Reduction and Additional staffing for high-needs sites: Maintains K-3 class size at 24:1 for all students and provides targeted 
assistance to school sites to ensure that schools and programs can maintain the current range of program offerings available. 

 Weekly Collaboration Time for certificated staff: Provides certificated staff with an extra hour weekly for collaborative time to review data, 
assess student work, and plan instruction to meet the needs of unduplicated pupils. This time is a critical resource for school site staff to 
engage in the active implementation of instructional strategies, programs, and initiatives that have been identified as key levers in 
improving outcomes for students with the highest needs.   

 Restructured Salary Schedule: In order to improve student learning, close achievement gaps, and ensure students have an equal 
opportunity to graduate with the greatest number of postsecondary choices from the widest array of options, the district will maintain a 
competitive salary and benefit package for the certificated staff who serve them. 

 District librarians at secondary schools: District librarians provide additional support to meet these needs beyond what is provided in the 
classroom and enables all students to access library resources, in particular students in high-poverty areas where county library locations 
are limited. 

 Visual and Performing Arts Opportunities and Extracurricular and Co-Curricular Opportunities: Provide students at Middle School with 
Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) educational experiences.  Provide teachers professional development to support arts instruction.  
Provide students access to experiential opportunities (field trips, college/business visits, other) and elementary athletics. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

Page 181 
 

 14 SCUSD schools have an Unduplicated Pupil Percentage (UPP) below 55%.  

 54 SCUSD schools have an Unduplicated Pupil Percentage (UPP) above 55%.  

 The above does not include dependent charter schools. 

 

Staff-to-student ratios 
by type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students  

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or less 
Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to 
students 

1 to 74.8 1 to 54.1 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to 
students 

1 to 18.5 1 to 17.1 

 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 1 of 23 

Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students  

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, please 
contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, 
by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education.  

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions:  

 Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic 
planning (California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to 
teaching and learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited 
resources to meet student and community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

 Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions 
made through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights 
about an LEA's programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify 
potential goals and actions to be included in the LCAP. 

 Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require 
LEAs to show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in 
proportion to the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics 
(EC sections 52064[b][1] and [2]).  

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 2 of 23 

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP 
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging 
educational partners.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of the 
school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted 
and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 1840 
(Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on actions 
included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, English 
learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more accessible for 
educational partners and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions:  

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the LEA 
using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including by 
meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students.  

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 3 of 23 

Plan Summary 

Purpose 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 

General Information – Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. For example, 
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what 
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific 
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved 
performance for these students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include a goal 
to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include this goal 
and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data including 
data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a 
school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through 
the implementation of the CSI plan. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 4 of 23 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the 
CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Purpose 

Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally identified 
priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process.  

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing this 
section.  

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP.  

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in developing 
the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., 
schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and district-
level goals and actions.  

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan: 
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 5 of 23 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to be 
included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), as 
appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the 
LCAP.” 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum, 
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A 
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its 
educational partners.  

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.” 

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, trends, 
or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the LCAP. 
For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are not 
necessarily limited to: 

 Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 6 of 23 

 Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 

 Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 

 Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 

 Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 

 Elimination of action(s) or group of actions  

 Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 

 Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 

 Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 

 Determination of material differences in expenditures 

 Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 

 Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 

Purpose 

Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their student 
groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 

LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that are 
included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

 Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure 
improvement. A Focus Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 7 of 23 

 Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of 
metrics. 

 Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and 
allows an LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 

Focus Goal(s) 

Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal to 
address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly reference 
the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be based 
on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including relevant 
consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to pursue a focus 
goal. 

Broad Goal 

Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal 

Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 8 of 23 

Required Goals 

In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with 
the development of the 2022–23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP. 

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years 
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEAs required to include a goal in the LCAP 
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/.  

 Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) 
criteria must include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s 
eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the 
needs of, and improving outcomes for, this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required 
to have a goal to address each student group; however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement 
may not be met by combining this required goal with another goal. 

 Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student 
group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. 

 Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the 
student group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal 
differ from previous efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and 
expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description. 

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply to 
a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest performance 
levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the performance of the “All 
Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs required to include a 
goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

 Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a 
goal in its LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must 
include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students 
enrolled at the low-performing school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address 
each school; however, each school must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal 
with another goal. 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 9 of 23 

 Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students 
enrolled at the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole.  

 Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the 
schools(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ 
from previous efforts to improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in 
this goal will help achieve the outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description. 

Measuring and Reporting Results: 

For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps.  

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of 
the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the most 
recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–21 outcomes on some 
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 10 of 23 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing this 
column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023–24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 

Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 

(2023–24) 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2022–

23. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2023–

24. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2024–

25. Leave blank 

until then. 

Enter information 

in this box when 

completing the 

LCAP for 2021–

22 or when 

adding a new 

metric. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the applicable 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not specify one or 
more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to use within the 
LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection tool for local 
indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the 
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided in 
the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the 
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or schoolwide 
basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the requirements in 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 11 of 23 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP.  

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in expenditures or 
percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all actions 
in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this prompt, LEAs 
may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a single metric or 
group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for more robust 
analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency for 
educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not closely 
associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students  



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 12 of 23 

Purpose 

A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK–12 as compared to all 
students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to 
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section 
as contributing.  

Requirements and Instructions 

Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the 
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
students. 

Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, as 
described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services 
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover percentage 
is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not 
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs 
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the 
LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs of 
foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting the 
goals for these students. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 13 of 23 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was effective 
as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these considerations; 
and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 

Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all students, 
it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is designed 
to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school climate that 
does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and nutritional 
resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s]) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance 
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet 
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 14 of 23 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how these 
actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as described 
above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also 
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 

School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40 percent or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and 
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required. 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in the 
LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they are 
provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that only 
serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to result in 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 15 of 23 

the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides to all 
students for the relevant LCAP year. 

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the 
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable. 

An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff and/or 
classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff.  

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent.  

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA 
that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to 
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected 
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with 
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing 
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows:  

 Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that 
is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 16 of 23 

of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span 
(Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of 
full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year.  

 Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a 
concentration of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by 
grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on 
the number of FTE staff and the number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action 
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and the 
LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying the 
column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables.  

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

 Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

 Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

 Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

 Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

 Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2022–23 LCAP, 2022–23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021–22 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Data Entry Table 

The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

 LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 17 of 23 

 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year, 
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and the 
Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment 
calculations.  

 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school 
year. 

 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared 
to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

 Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

 Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

 Action Title: Provide a title of the action.  

 Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by entering 
a specific student group or groups. 

 Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

 If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades the 
entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups.  

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 18 of 23 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

 Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time for 
which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

 Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action.  

 Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 

 LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some measure 
of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action contributes to 
meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement the action. 

 Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

 Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

 Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to unduplicated 

students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for the action as 

a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English learners, 

and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 

Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 

percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 

estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 19 of 23 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 

providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by hiring 

additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost $165,000. 

Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster youth. This 

analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional assistants 

and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated cost of 

$165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This 

percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.   

Annual Update Table 

In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

 Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 

In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in the 
LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and 
concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the 
current school year. 

 Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to 
implement this action, if any. 

 Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only 

to unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement 

anticipated for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 20 of 23 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example 

implements the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and 

determines that the action was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews 

the original estimated cost for the action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to 

coordinate supports for students that estimated actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA 

would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then 

convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 

 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current school 
year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program 
and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8).  

 10. Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be 
entered; it is calculated based on the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant and the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or 
Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be 
increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 

To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 

 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column 

 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

 Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), 
converting the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 21 of 23 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 

Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental 
and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) 
and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is equal to or greater 
than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual 
Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the 
number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

 Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 4 from 7) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for 
Contributing Actions (7) 

 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column 

 Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of 
Improved Services (8) 



SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP: Draft Material for 5.5.22 

 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Instructions  Page 22 of 23 

LCFF Carryover Table 

 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then 
converting the quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to 
Increase or Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds.  

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) 
from the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Base Grant (9). This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the 
coming LCAP year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
November 2021 
 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item# 8.2 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022   
 
Subject:  Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Grant Overview 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Youth Development Support Services 
 
Recommendation:  Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) Plan 
Information 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program provides 
funding for before school, afterschool and summer school enrichment programs for 
transitional kinder (TK) through sixth grade students. This funding was initiated in fiscal 
year 2021–22 by Assembly Bill (AB) 130 and then amended by AB 167.  
 
Financial Considerations:  School Districts with 80% or more unduplicated students 
(English Learners, Foster Youth and students on Free and Reduced Lunch) in TK-6 are 
prioritized and receive funding at a higher rate ($1,170 per student). SCUSD’s 
percentage for unduplicated students is 72.5% and we have 15,232 unduplicated 
students in TK-6 grades. Our total funding allocation for school year 2021-22 is 
$10,238,922.00 at the rate of $672.00 per student. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  LCAP Goal 2: Provide every SCUSD student an educational program 
with standards-aligned instruction, fidelity to district programs and practices, and robust, 
rigorous learning experiences inside and outside the classroom so that all students can 
meet or exceed state standards.  
 
LCAP Goal 3: Provide every student the specific academic, behavioral, social-
emotional, and mental and physical health supports to meet their individual needs - 
especially English Learners, Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, 
African American students, American Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino 
students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander students, and other student groups whose 



outcomes indicate the greatest need – so that all students can remain fully engaged in 
school and access core instruction.  
 
Documents Attached 
1. Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 15 minutes 
Submitted by:  Manpreet Kaur, Director Youth Development 
Approved by:   Doug Huscher, Assistant Superintendent of Student 

Support Services 
 

Page 1 of 1 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name 
Agenda Item:   
05/05/2022  
  
 

 
Department Name 1 

 
I. OVERVIEW / HISTORY  

 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) is the result of Assembly Bill (AB) 130, 
which was amended later with AB 167. The funding was initiated during summer 2021. The 
intent of Expanded Learning Opportunities Program is that all LEAs (Local Education Agencies) 
offer all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based instructional programs access to comprehensive 
after school and intersessional expanded learning opportunities (California Education Code 
Section 46120.  
 
“Expanded learning” means before school, after school, summer, or intersession learning 
programs that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and 
interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging learning experiences. 
 
It is the intent of the Legislature that expanded learning programs are pupil-centered, results 
driven, include community partners, and complement, but do not replicate, learning activities in 
the regular school day and school year. 
 
The ELO-P is a mechanism to ensure that students receive programming on all school days with 
specifically no less than nine hours per day of programming in combination with regular school 
day instructional time and nine hours during 30 intersession days.  During program times, ELOP 
must include some form of educational literacy, academic enrichment and snack/meals.  ELOP 
are held to the same CDE expanded learning operational guidelines and standards as After 
School Education and Safety (ASES) program; and plans must be renewed and resubmitted 
every 3 years. 
 
 
II.   DRIVING GOVERNANCE 
 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities (ELO) Program provides funding for afterschool and 
summer school enrichment programs for kindergarten (including transitional kindergarten) 
through sixth grade as described in Education Code (EC) Section 46120. The ELO Program is 
established beginning in fiscal year 2021–22 by Assembly Bill (AB) 130, Chapter 44, Statutes of 
2021, as amended by AB 167, Chapter 252, Statutes of 2021. Funding for the 2021–22 ELO 
Program is provided in Item 6100-110-0001 of the Budget Act of 2021 (Senate Bill 129, Chapter 
69, Statutes of 2021), and EC Section 46120(f). 

ARTICLE 2. Kindergarten and Elementary Schools [46110 - 46120] 

  ( Article 2 enacted by Stats. 1976, Ch. 1010. ) 

46120.   

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name 
Agenda Item:   
05/05/2022  
  
 

 
Department Name 2 

(a) (1) It is the intent of the Legislature that all local educational agencies offer all unduplicated 
pupils in classroom-based instructional programs access to comprehensive after school and 
intersessional expanded learning opportunities. 
(2) The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program is hereby established. 
(b) (1) Commencing with the 2021–22 school year, local educational agencies that receive funds 
pursuant to subdivision (d) shall offer to at least all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based 
instructional programs in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, and provide to at least 50 
percent of enrolled unduplicated pupils in classroom-based instructional programs in 
kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, access to expanded learning opportunity programs. 
Funding received pursuant to this section for the 2021–22 school year shall be expended to 
develop an expanded learning opportunity program or provide services in accordance with 
program requirements. Commencing with the 2022–23 school year, as a condition of receipt of 
funds allocated pursuant to subparagraph (A) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (d), all local 
educational agencies shall offer to all pupils in classroom-based instructional programs in 
kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, access to expanded learning opportunity programs, and 
shall ensure that access is provided to any pupil whose parent or guardian requests their 
placement in a program. 
 

II. BUDGET  
 
 
School Districts with 80% or more unduplicated students (English Learners, Foster Youth and 
students on Free and Reduced Lunch) in TK-6 are prioritized; and receive funding at a higher 
rate ($1,170 per student). SCUSD’s percentage for unduplicated students is 72.5%. The number 
of unduplicated students in TK-6 grades is 15,232. Our total funding allocation for school year 
2021-22 is $10,238,922.00 at the rate of $672.00 per student. 
 
 
IV.   GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND MEASURES  
 
The SCUSD ELOP plan will focus on five major goals in its implementation:  1) serving more 
students in the highest need areas, 2) providing service to new school sites that currently do not 
have After School Education and Safety (ASES) funding, 3) providing transitional kindergarten 
and kindergarten students extended day care, 4) providing additional before school care and 5) 
extending intersession and summer offerings. 
 

1) SCUSD currently has 60 elementary, K-8 and middle school Expanded Learning 
Programs and seven high school programs.  ELOP will enhance existing programs at the 
elementary and K-8 school sites by removing all waitlists, increasing academic 
enrichment opportunities by contracting more supplemental providers and increase the 
availability of certificated staff to support students in expanded learning 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name 
Agenda Item:   
05/05/2022  
  
 

 
Department Name 3 

2) SCUSD will replicate the aforementioned components in goal (1) above at school sites 
that have no current ASES or 21st Century Community Learning Centers funding. 

3) SCUSD will work in collaboration with Early Learning and Care to create extended day 
programming for TK-K students, providing much needed academic enrichment and child 
care services to students and parents through 10:1 supports in the classroom until 6pm on 
all instructional days  

4) SCUSD will enhance supports at pre-existing before school programs by increasing 
enrollment and removing waitlists, and support CBOs and school sites in the 
development of new before school programs at sites with no current funding. 

5) SCUSD will offer robust Summer programming across 30+ school sites complete with 
academic supports from certificated staff, low adult/child ratio classroom supports, 
physical activity and other arts enrichments. SCUSD will also collaborate with 
community partners to offer programming at community centers such as Phoenix Park 
Community Center, Boys and Girls Club and YMCA Community Centers.  
 

The implementation of ELOP will be evaluated in partnership with the SCUSD Data & 
Evaluation Department using the following metrics: 
 
Target Area of Improvement Outcome Measures 

ELA Academic Growth ·        % of  CAASPP Results in ELA >=3 
 
·        Related Percent of ELA Grades Earned that are 

“3 / C or higher”  

Math Academic Growth ·        % of  CAASPP Results in Math >=3 
 
·        Related Percent of Math Grades Earned that are    

“3 / C or higher” 
 
 

Improved School Engagement Percent of Students Chronically Absent  

Social Emotional Learning Percent of Students with 1 or 0 Office Discipline 
Referrals 

Social Emotional Learning Percent of Students with 0 Suspension Incidents 

 
 

V.   MAJOR INITIATIVES  
 
SCUSD’s expanded learning programs are aligned with LCAP goals 2 and 3.  



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name 
Agenda Item:   
05/05/2022  
  
 

 
Department Name 4 

 
LCAP Goal 2: Provide every SCUSD student an educational program with standards-aligned 
instruction, fidelity to district programs and practices, and robust, rigorous learning experiences 
inside and outside the classroom so that all students can meet or exceed state standards.  
 
Youth Development Support Services (YDSS) provides expanded learning programs at 67 
school sites. Programs include before school, after school, summer, and intersession learning. 
Programs are implemented in collaboration with community partners and external providers, 
staff develop programs at each school site that provide supports including outreach, referral to 
resources, online tutoring, in-person tutoring, small group instruction,  homework help, and 
credit recovery/elective courses at high schools. Examples of providers include the Sacramento 
Chinese Community Services Center, Leaders of Tomorrow, Roberts Family Development 
Center, Rose Family Creative Empowerment Center, City of Sacramento, Empowering 
Possibilities Unlimited, Center for Fathers and Families, New Hope Community Development 
Center and the Boys and Girls Club of Greater Sacramento (LCAP Goal 2.3). 
 
LCAP Goal 3: Provide every student the specific academic, behavioral, social-emotional, and 
mental and physical health supports to meet their individual needs - especially English Learners, 
Students with Disabilities, Foster Youth, Homeless Youth, African American students, American 
Indian or Alaska Native students, Hispanic/Latino students, Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 
students, and other student groups whose outcomes indicate the greatest need – so that all 
students can remain fully engaged in school and access core instruction.  
 
Summer Matters @SCUSD is a summer learning program to accelerate classroom learning, 
giving students opportunities to reconnect with the learning communities that will be critical to 
their own healing and academic success. Activities are offered at 30+ program sites, five days a 
week for a minimum of five weeks during the month of June and July.  During the morning 
hours, students participate in academics and physical education. Enrichment activities such as 
art, dance, music, and STEM programming are held in the afternoon hours. Each day opens with 
a social and emotional (SEL) welcoming, a daily skill-builder following a weekly theme. 
Certificated Staff provide classroom instruction while agency staff provide assistance as needed. 
 
Expanded learning program providers help to lead summer efforts in programming.  
Each year a summer advisory group is formed composed of community partners, agency 
coordinators, students and YDSS staff; the major task of the group is identifying key 
programmatic details that help to create a robust and enriching opportunity for summer. Each 
year, extensive training and professional development is provided to provider agency staff and 
teachers to address and prevent summer slide, continuing engagement of SCUSD students and 
families, offering safe and supportive environment for students and providing an opportunity for 
academic enrichment, relationship building and social justice learning (LCAP Goal 3.12)  
 
 
VI.   RESULTS  



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department Name 
Agenda Item:   
05/05/2022  
  
 

 
Department Name 5 

 
The results of the ELOP implementation process will be reported in a future executive summary 
and board meeting report during the 22-23 school year. 
 
VII.   LESSONS LEARNED / NEXT STEPS  
 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program plan will launch on SCUSD’s website to receive 
feedback from SCUSD community members. Youth Development Support Services will present 
the plan to DELAC on May 18.  The plan will be added to the consent agenda for SCUSD Board 
of Education vote on May 19. 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 8.4 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Amend Appointment of Board Members to Advisory Subcommittee on 

Common Assessments 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Amend Appointment of Board Members to Advisory Subcommittee 
on Common Assessments 
 
Background/Rationale:  The recommendation is to remove Member Garcia and 
appoint Member Phillips to this subcommittee.  Members Woo and Villa remain on the 
subcommittee as approved on April 26, 2022.   
 
Financial Considerations:  None. 
 
 
Documents Attached:  None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Board President 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 
  Jessica Sulli, Contract Specialist 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 1  

RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS 

Bid No:    0525-442-1, John F. Kennedy Reroofing and Painting 

Bids received: April 18, 2022 

Recommendation: Award to PAC Shield Roof Services, Inc. 

Funding Source:  Measure Q and Ongoing and Major Maintenance: Restricted Maintenance 
Funds 

 
BIDDER BIDDER LOCATION AMOUNT 
PAC Shield Roof Services, Inc. Modesto, CA $5,360,361 
Stronger Building Services San Leandro, CA $5,895,693 
Best Contracting Services, Inc. Gardena, CA $6,146,808 

 



R22-03812 

  

 

 

  

1 
 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO THIS 5th DAY OF MAY, 2022, by and 

between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and PAC Shield Roof 

Services, Inc. (“Contractor”) (“Agreement”). 

WITNESSETH: That the parties hereto have mutually covenanted and agreed, and by these 

presents do covenant and agree with each other, as follows: 

1. The Work:  Contractor agrees to furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, facilities, 

labor, and material necessary to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike 

manner, the work of the following project: 

 PROJECT: JOHN F. KENNEDY REROOFING AND PAINTING 

 It is understood and agreed that the Work shall be performed and completed as 

 required in the Contract Documents including, without limitation, the Drawings and 

 Specifications and submission of all documents required to secure funding or by the 

 Division of the State Architect for close-out of the Project, under the direction and 

 supervision of, and subject to the approval of, the District or its authorized 

 representative. 

2. The Contract Documents:  The complete Contract consists of all Contract 

Documents as defined in the General Conditions and incorporated herein by this 

reference.  Any and all obligations of the District and Contractor are fully set forth 

and described in the Contract Documents.  All Contract Documents are intended to 

cooperate so that any Work called for in one and not mentioned in the other or vice 

versa is to be executed the same as if mentioned in all Contract Documents. 

3. Interpretation of Contract Documents:  Should any question arise concerning 

the intent or meaning of Contract Documents, including the Drawings or 

Specifications, the question shall be submitted to the District for interpretation.  If a 

conflict exists in the Contract Documents, modifications, beginning with the most 

recent, shall control over this Agreement (if any), which shall control over the 

Special Conditions, which shall control over any Supplemental Conditions, which shall 

control over the General Conditions, which shall control over the remaining Division 0 

documents, which shall control over Division 1 Documents which shall control over 

Division 2 through Division 18 documents, which shall control over figured 

dimensions, which shall control over large-scale drawings, which shall control over 

small-scale drawings.  In no case shall a document calling for lower quality and/or 

quantity material or workmanship control.  The decision of the District in the matter 

shall be final. 

4. Time for Completion:  It is hereby understood and agreed that the work under this 

contract shall be completed within seventy-seven (77) consecutive calendar days 

(“Contract Time”) from the date specified in the District's Notice to Proceed.  

5. Completion-Extension of Time:  Should the Contractor fail to complete this 

Contract, and the Work provided herein, within the time fixed for completion, due 

allowance being made for the contingencies provided for herein, the Contractor shall 

become liable to the District for all loss and damage that the District may suffer on 



R22-03812 

  

 

 

  

2 
 

account thereof.  The Contractor shall coordinate its work with the Work of all other 

contractors.  The District shall not be liable for delays resulting from Contractor's 

failure to coordinate its Work with other contractors in a manner that will allow 

timely completion of Contractor's Work.  Contractor shall be liable for delays to other 

contractors caused by Contractor's failure to coordinate its Work with the work of 

other contractors. 

6. Liquidated Damages:  Time is of the essence for all work under this Agreement.  It 

is hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or impossible to 

ascertain and determine the actual damage that the District will sustain in the event 

of and by reason of Contractor's delay; therefore, Contractor agrees that it shall pay 

to the District the sum of Two Thousand dollars ($2000) per day as liquidated 

damages for each and every day's delay beyond the time herein prescribed in 

finishing the Work. It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount is not a 

penalty. 

In the event that any portion of the liquidated damages is not paid to the District, 

the District may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due 

the Contractor under this Agreement.  The District's right to assess liquidated 

damages is as indicated herein and in the General Conditions. 

The time during which the Contract is delayed for cause as hereinafter specified may 

extend the time of completion for a reasonable time as the District may grant.  This 

provision does not exclude the recovery of damages for delay by either party under 

other provisions in the Contract Documents. 

7. Loss Or Damage:  The District and its authorized representatives shall not in any 

way or manner be answerable or suffer loss, damage, expense, or liability for any 

loss or damage that may happen to the Work, or any part thereof, or in or about the 

same during its construction and before acceptance, and the Contractor shall assume 

all liabilities of every kind or nature arising from the Work, either by accident, 

negligence, theft, vandalism, or any cause whatever; and shall hold the District and 

its authorized representatives harmless from all liability of every kind and nature 

arising from accident, negligence, or any cause whatever. 

8. Insurance and Bonds:  Before commencing the Work, Contractor shall provide all 

required certificates of insurance, and payment and performance bonds as evidence 

thereof.   

9. Prosecution of Work:  If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the Work 

properly or fail to perform any provisions of this contract, the District, may, pursuant 

to the General Conditions and without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, 

make good such deficiencies and may deduct the cost thereof from the payment 

then or thereafter due the Contractor. 

10. Authority of Architect, Project Inspector, and DSA: Contractor hereby 

acknowledges that the Architect(s), the Project Inspector(s), and the Division of the 

State Architect have authority to approve and/or stop Work if the Contractor’s Work 

does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Title 24 of the 

California Code of Regulations, and all applicable laws.  The Contractor shall be liable 

for any delay caused by its non-compliant Work. 



R22-03812 

  

 

 

  

3 
 

11. Assignment of Contract:  Neither the Contract, nor any part thereof, nor any 

moneys due or to become due thereunder, may be assigned by the Contractor 

without the written approval of the District, nor without the written consent of the 

Surety on the Contractor's Performance Bond (the “Surety”), unless the Surety has 

waived in writing its right to notice of assignment. 

12. Classification of Contractor’s License:  Contractor hereby acknowledges that it 

currently holds valid Type B or C-39 Contractor's license(s) issued by the State of 

California, Contractor's State Licensing Board, in accordance with division 3, chapter 

9, of the Business and Professions Code and in the classification called for in the 

Contract Documents. 

13. Registration as Public Works Contractor:  The Contractor and all Subcontractors 

currently are registered as public works contractors with the Department of 

Industrial Relations, State of California, in accordance with Labor Code section 

1771.4. 

14. Payment of Prevailing Wages:  The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall pay all 

workers on all Work performed pursuant to this Contract not less than the general 

prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and 

overtime work as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial 

Relations, State of California, for the type of work performed and the locality in 

which the work is to be performed within the boundaries of the District, pursuant to 

sections 1770 et seq. of the California Labor Code.  

15. Labor Compliance:  This Project is subject to labor compliance monitoring and 

enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code 

section 1771.4 and Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations.  Contractor 

specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall perform the Work of this 

Agreement while complying with all the applicable provisions of Division 2, Part 7, 

Chapter 1, of the Labor Code, including, without limitation, the requirement that the 

Contractor and all of its Subcontractors shall timely submit complete and accurate 

electronic certified payroll records as required by the Contract Documents, or the 

District may not issue payment. 

16. Contract Price:  In consideration of the foregoing covenants, promises, and 

agreements on the part of the Contractor, and the strict and literal fulfillment of each 

and every covenant, promise, and agreement, and as compensation agreed upon for 

the Work and construction, erection, and completion as aforesaid, the District 

covenants, promises, and agrees that it will well and truly pay and cause to be paid 

to the Contractor in full, and as the full Contract Price and compensation for 

construction, erection, and completion of the Work hereinabove agreed to be 

performed by the Contractor, the following price: 

Five Million Three Hundred Sixty Thousand Three Hundred Sixty-One and 60/100 

Dollars ($5,360,361.60) 

(Includes Owners Contingency and Alternate #1) 

 

in lawful money of the United States, which sum is to be paid according to the 

schedule provided by the Contractor and accepted by the District and subject to 

additions and deductions as provided in the Contract.  This amount supersedes any 

previously stated and/or agreed to amount(s). 



R22-03812 

  

 

 

  

4 
 

17. Severability:  If any term, covenant, condition, or provision in any of the Contract 

Documents is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 

unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions in the Contract Documents shall 

remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 

invalidated thereby. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, accepted and agreed on the date indicated above: 

PAC Shield Roof Services, Inc.  SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

   

By: Rafael Lapizco  By: Rose Ramos 

Title: President  Title: Chief Business Officer 

Date: __________________________  Date: May 5, 2022 

 

NOTE: If the party executing this Contract is a corporation, a certified copy of the by-laws, 

or of the resolution of the Board of Directors, authorizing the officers of said 

corporation to execute the Contract and the bonds required thereby must be 

attached hereto. 

 

END OF DOCUMENT

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.1b 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated May 5, 2022 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated May 5, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 4/21/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
EIFLER MARY B Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/18/22                                                                                                    
FERRER DE MORAIS ABIGAYLE 0 Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 12/17/2021 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 12/17/21                                                                                                  
GOULD MICHAEL B Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 3/28/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 3/28/22                                                                                                    
WILLIAMS CARESSE 0 Counselor, Middle School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 3/22/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 3/22/22                                                                                                 
WILLIAMS MATTHEW 0 Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 1/3/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 1/3/22                                                                                                    

LEAVES
AGUILERA FRANCISCO C Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 4/15/2022 5/1/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/15-5/1/22                                                                                       
AVELAR VERONICA A Teacher, Elementary PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 1/1/2022 2/26/2022 AMEND LOA (PD) 1/1-2/26/22                                                                                       
AVELAR VERONICA A Teacher, Elementary PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 2/27/2022 5/27/2022 AMEND LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/27-5/27/22                                                                                
BOOK STEPHANIE A Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 5/5/2022 6/17/2022 LOA(PD) 5/5-6/17/22                                                                                               
BROWN ALYSSA B Teacher, Elementary HOLLYWOOD PARK ELEMENTARY 4/11/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) ADMIN 4/11/22                                                                                                    
BURTON MARINDA A Teacher, Elementary JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 4/13/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) 4/13-5/11/22                                                                                                
CASALE SARA B Teacher, Elementary OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/21/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) ADMIN 4/21/22                                                                                                    
ELDRED DENA A Teacher, Elementary H.W. HARKNESS ELEMENTARY 3/30/2022 5/14/2022 LOA (PD) 3/30-5/14/22                                                                                                
FADUM JON A Teacher, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 3/8/2022 5/8/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/8-5/8/22                                                                                          
HERNANDEZ JOSE A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 2/22/2022 3/23/2022 LOA (PD) 2/22-3/23/22                                                                                               
KEELER RYLAND A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 4/19/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/19-6/17/22                                                                                      
LOMBARDI STACEY A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 3/10/2022 5/20/2022 LOA (PD) 3/10-5/20/22                                                                                                
MOUA NKAOHNOU A Teacher, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 6/1/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 6/1-17/22                                                                                           
MOUA NKAOHNOU A Teacher, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 3/22/2022 5/31/2022 LOA (PD) 3/22-5/31/22                                                                                              
OCAMPO-AGUILAR RAQUEL A Counselor, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 5/27/2022 6/30/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/27-6/22/22                                                                                      
RAPTAKIS STEPHANIE A Teacher, Elementary DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 5/2/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 5/2-6/17/22                                                                                             
ROLDAN ANA B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 4/18/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 4/18/22-6/17/22                                                                                               
SHINTAKU VANESSA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 6/17/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (UNPD) 6/17/22                                                                                               
SHUGARS ROBIN A Teacher, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 2/28/2022 5/31/2022 LOA (PD) 2/28-5/31/22                                                                                                
STANLEY DEMETRIA A Teacher, Elementary LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN (UNPD) 4/18/22                                                                                           
TARMAN JULIE A Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 5/16/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 5/16-6/17/22                                                                                            
VANG CHI B Teacher, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 4/30/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (PD) 4/30-6/17/22                                                                                              
WALKER SAMANTHA A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 1/11/2022 3/4/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/11-3/4/22                                                                                       
WALKER SAMANTHA A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 3/5/2022 6/17/2022 LOA (UNPD) 3/5-6/17/22                                                                                              

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
ACHONDO THERESA A Teacher, Elementary JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
ALEXANDER LISA A Teacher, Elementary O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
BONILLA DEBRA A Teacher, Elementary ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
BOWEN CHRISTINE A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                       
CARTER MARY A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
CESENA REBECCA A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
ELLIOTT BARBARA A Teacher, Elementary O. W. ERLEWINE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
HENRY JENNIFER A Teacher, Elementary TAHOE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
KELLER MULDAVIN DEBRA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
KIM MINNIE B Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 8/30/2021 6/20/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/20/22                                                                                                      
KOVAL VASILIY A School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 10/1/2021 4/18/2022 SEP/RESIGN 4/18/22                                                                                                    
LAVY LISA A Teacher, Elementary JOHN CABRILLO ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
LEMONS DENISE A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
LLAMAS YOLANDA A Teacher, Elementary ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
MANN STEFUN STEPHANIE 0 Teacher, Spec Ed OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
MARTIN DARRELL 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2021 4/27/2022 SEP/RESIGN  4/27/22                                                                                                  
MAYER KAREN A Teacher, Elementary Spec Subj LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/22/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/22/22                                                                                                      
MC DANIEL GABRIELLA A Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/30/22                                                                                                      
MEARNS KRISTIN A Teacher, Spec Ed PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                      
MILLER ALISON A Teacher, Elementary THEODORE JUDAH ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      
MUNDORFF CHARLES A Teacher, ROTC JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/22                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
May 5, 2022



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
NICHOLS KATHLEEN A Teacher, Middle School CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/18/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/18/22                                                                                                      
OSTEEN MARY A Teacher, High School LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/20/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/20/22                                                                                                      
PETERSON RYAN B Teacher, ROTC HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/30/22                                                                                                      
ROBELLO ELIZABETH A Teacher, Elementary PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM. 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
SAFAR ANDREA A Teacher, Elementary PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                      
SCOTT ANGELIQUE C Teacher, Spec Ed MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/17/22                                                                                                      
THOMAS LORI A Teacher, Elementary DAVID LUBIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
VEENSTRA MARGARET A Teacher, Elementary EDWARD KEMBLE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
YIP LISA A Teacher, Elementary CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
GARCIA SABRINA A Teacher, Elementary CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 2/28/2022 6/30/2022 TR 2/28/22                                                                                             

 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 4/21/2022

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
JOHNSON LATRESSE B Noon Duty MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/18/22                                                                                                     
MORENO GRANADOS ERIKA B Noon Duty PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/18/22                                                                                                     
NEWMAN MICHAEL B Custodian PHOEBE A HEARST BASIC ELEM. 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/18/22                                                                                                     
PHILPOTT DAKOTA B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 4/19/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/19/22                                                                                                    
SIERRA IZABELLA B Custodian ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 3/29/2022 6/30/2022 EMPOY PROB 3/29/22                                                                                                      
VAN AIRSDALE CONNIE B Fiscal Services Tech I EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 4/1/2022 6/30/2022 EMPLOY PROB 4/1/22                                                                                                     

LEAVES
BUSHONG GLORIA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/26/2022 4/18/2022 LOA (PD) 2/26/22-4/18/22                                                                                               
BUSHONG GLORIA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4/19/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 4/19/22                                                                                                         
GONZALEZ GLADYS A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 3/26/2022 6/1/2022 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/26/22-6/1/22                                                                                         
GUTIERREZ LAURA B Adm & Family Svcs Tech ENROLLMENT CENTER 3/22/2022 4/28/2022 LOA (PD) 3/22/22-4/28/22                                                                                               
HENDERSON-VINCENT CAROL A School Community Liaison KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 3/29/2022 4/25/2022 LOA (PD) 3/29-4/25/22                                                                                                
HENDERSON-VINCENT CAROL A Campus Monitor KIT CARSON INTL ACADEMY 4/26/2022 5/21/2022 LOA EXT (PD) 4/26-5/21/22                                                                                            
PENA YOLANDA A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/1/2022 4/7/2022 EXT LOA (PD) 4/1/22 -4/7/22                                                                                            
PHILLIPS TARA A Nutr Serv Purch and Wrhse Spec NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 11/16/2021 1/15/2022 LOA (PD) 11/16/21 -1/15/22                                                                                            
PHILLIPS TARA A Nutr Serv Purch and Wrhse Spec NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/16/2022 3/15/2022 EXT LOA (PD) 1/16/22- 3/15/22                                                                                        
PHILLIPS TARA A Nutr Serv Purch and Wrhse Spec NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 3/16/2022 6/30/2022 LOA RTN 3/16/22                                                                                                         

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
AYALA SANTAMARIA LLOVA B Clerk I BG CHACON ACADEMY 4/18/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCH 4/18/22                                                                                                    
GUTIERREZ MELANIE A Buyer III PURCHASING SERVICES 2/4/2020 6/30/2020 REA/STCHG 2/4/20                                                                                                   
HERNANDEZ JR JOSE B School Plant Ops Mngr I ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 3/29/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 3/29/22                                                                                                
MARTINEZ DIANA B School Office Manager I NEW JOSEPH BONNHEIM 4/12/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 4/12/22                                                                                                   
MOLINA ESPINOZA CLAUDIA B Noon Duty SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/2/2022 6/30/2022 STCHG 3/2/22                                                                                               
MORALES ARTHUR B School Plant Ops Mngr II BG CHACON ACADEMY 4/7/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 4/7/22                                                                                                     
MORALES ARTHUR B School Plant Ops Mngr II BOWLING GREEN ELEMENTARY 4/7/2022 6/30/2022 REA/STCHG 4/7/22                                                                                                     

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
AMENEYRO EDUARDO B School Plant Ops Mngr I CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
BECKER LUCILLE A Transportation Trip Scheduler TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 4/2/2022 4/29/2022 SEP/RETIRE 4/29/22                                                                                                     
BELL NAKEYA B Family Partnership Facilitator PARENT ENGAGEMENT 7/1/2021 4/8/2022 SEP/RESIGN 4/8/22                                                                                                     
BRAZELTON LAURA A School Office Manager I CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 7/1/2021 6/23/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/23/22                                                                                                      
CONN OSSENFORT JENNIFER A Inst Aid, Spec Ed EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/1/2021 6/30/2022 SEP/RESIGN 6/30/22                                                                                                      
EID ELLIOTT B Bus Vehicle Mechanic TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 9/1/2021 4/15/2022 SEP/RESIGN 4/15/22                                                                                                    
GRAY MONICA A Teacher Assistant, Bilingual SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 11/1/2021 4/22/2022 SEP/RESIGN 4/22/22                                                                                                      
SALAZAR AMANDA B Instructional Aide ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 1/31/2022 3/4/2022 SEP/RESIGN 3/4/22                                                                                                       
SCHULER JENNIFER B Inst Aid, Spec Ed GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 2/1/2022 4/17/2022 SEP/RESIGN 4/17/22                                                                                                      
SHAKHUNOVA VALENTINA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 6/17/2022 SEP/RETIRE 6/17/22                                                                                                      
TURNER GREGORY A School Plant Ops Mngr I JOHN D SLOAT BASIC ELEMENTARY 7/1/2021 5/30/2022 SEP/RETIRE 5/30/22                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
April 21, 2022



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1c 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #7, 2021-22 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Student Hearing and Placement Department 
 
Recommendation:  Approve staff recommendation for Expulsion #7, 2021-22. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College, Career and Life Ready Graduates 
 
Documents Attached:   
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Doug Huscher, Assistant Superintendent, Student Support Services 
                          Stephan Brown, Director II 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.1d 
 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Boston, Massachusetts from 

May 15 to May 20, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Deputy Superintendent 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Sutter Middle School Field Trip to Boston, MA  
May 15-20, 2022 
 
Background/Rationale:  May 15-20, 2022, 110 students from Sutter Middle School will 
be accompanied by 4 teacher chaperones and 17 adult chaperones to Boston, MA.  All 
parties will meet at Sutter Middle School, and will be taken by charter bus to  
San Francisco International Airport for plane transportation to Massachusetts. The trip is 
a culmination of student study in U.S. History. The students will experience American 
history by touring national museums, monuments and sites.  Upon return, parents will 
meet their student at the Sacramento International Airport upon their return.  
 
Financial Considerations:  No cost to the district.  Expenses paid through parent 
contribution and fundraising.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students  
 
Documents Attached:   
1.  Out of State Field Trip Documents 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Christine Baeta, Chief Academic Officer     
  Chad Sweitzer, Instructional Assistant 

Superintendent 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 













 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.1e 
 

Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approval of Removal and Disposal of Out of Adoption K-5 Science 

Instructional Materials 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the removal and disposal of out of adoption K-5 Science 
materials.  
 
Background/Rationale:  The Board recently approved the adoption of NGSS-aligned 
K-5 Science instructional materials (Amplify Science) on March 17, 2022. Previous K-5 
materials that are still at sites and stored at Library and Textbook Services are outdated 
and do not fulfill the necessary requirements for meeting the Next Generation Science 
Standards (NGSS). Per Board Policy 3270 and Education Code 60510, “surplus or 
undistributed obsolete instructional materials that are usable for educational purposes 
may be donated.” If materials are unusable, BP 3270 and Education Code 60530 states 
that “surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials which are unusable or 
which cannot be distributed as specified above may be disposed of.” It is recommended 
that the Board approve the removal and possible disposal of out of adoption K-5 
instructional materials.  
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  N/A 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Board Policy Regulation 3270 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Erin Hanson, Assistant Superintendent of 

Curriculum and Instruction 
Matthew Callman, Science Coordinator 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
Page 1 of 1 



Regulation 3270: Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And SuppliesRegulation 3270: Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies Status:Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date:Original Adopted Date: 11/16/1998

The Governing Board may dispose of personal property belonging to the district by any of the following methods:

1. If the Board members attending a meeting unanimously agree that the property is worth no more than $2,500, the
Board may designate any district employee to sell the property without advertising. (Education Code 17546)

2. The Board may advertise for bids and either sell the property to the highest responsible bidder or reject all bids.
(Education Code 17545)

Notice for bids shall be posted in at least three public places in the district for at least two weeks or published at
least once a week for at least two weeks in a newspaper having a general circulation in the district and, if possible,
published within the district. (Education Code 17545)

Property for which no qualified bid has been received may be sold, without further advertising, by the
Superintendent or designee. (Education Code 17546)

3. The Board may authorize the sale of the property by means of a public auction conducted by district employees,
employees of other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. Notice related to the auction shall be
posted or published as described in item #2 above. (Education Code 17545)

4. Without advertising for bids, the Board may sell the property to agencies of federal, state or local government, to
any other school district, or to any agency eligible under the federal surplus property law (40 USC, Section 484(j)(3)).
In such cases, the sale price shall equal the cost of the property plus estimated cost of purchasing, storing, and
handling. (Education Code 17540)

5. Without advertising for bids, the Board may sell or lease the property to agencies of federal, state or local
government or to any other school district. In such cases, the price and terms of the sale or lease shall be fixed by the
Board and approved by the County Superintendent of Schools. (Education Code 17542)

Money received from the sale of surplus property shall be either deposited in the district reserve or general fund or
credited to the fund from which the original purchase was made. (Education Code 17547)

Instructional Materials

Surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials that are usable for educational purposes may be donated to
any governing board, county free library or other state institution; any United States public agency or institution; any
nonprofit charitable organization; or children or adults in California or foreign countries for the purpose of increasing
literacy. They also may be sold to any organization that agrees to use the materials for educational purposes.
(Education Code 60510)

Any organization, agency or institution receiving obsolete instructional materials from the district shall certify to the
Board that it agrees to use the materials for educational purposes and make no charge to any persons to whom the
materials are given or lent. (Education Code 60511)

At least 60 days before disposing of these instructional materials, the Board shall notify the public of its intention to
do so through a public service announcement on a local television station, in a local newspaper, or by another means
the Board believes will most effectively reach the entities described above. The Board shall also permit
representatives of these entities and members of the public to address the Board regarding the distribution of these
materials.

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

Surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials which are unusable or which cannot be distributed as
specified above may be disposed of by either of the following: (Education Code 60530)

1. By being mutilated so as not to be salable and sold for scrap at the highest obtainable price

2. By being destroyed by any economical means at least 30 days after the Board has given notice to all persons who
have requested such notice

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Board Policy Manual
Sacramento City Unified School District



School Buses

Upon receiving a state apportionment for the replacement of a school bus, the Board may sell the bus that is being
replaced to another California school district if the following conditions are met: (Education Code 42303)

1. The other district is replacing a bus that is in service and has not been designated a temporary school bus pursuant
to Education Code 42291.5.

2. The bus being replaced by the other district is older than the bus that is being sold by this district.

3. The bus being replaced by the other district is not sold to a third school district.

4. The other district, by Board resolution, holds the state and this district harmless for any liability that may result
from the bus that this district is selling.

5. The proceeds from the sale of the bus shall be used by this district for home-to-school transportation purposes.

6. Before the sale is finalized, the bus being sold is in compliance with all relevant provisions of the Vehicle Code and
the California Code of Regulations, Title 13.



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item# 10.1f 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 3271:   Adopting Specifications of the Election Order and 

for Consolidation with Statement General Election of November 8, 2022 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:   Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approval of Resolution No. 3271:  Adopting Specifications of the 
Election Order and for Consolidation with Statewide General Election. 
 
Background/Rationale:   The Board of Education must call for an election on 
November 8, 2022 for the purpose of electing 3 board members to represent trustee 
areas 1, 2, and 6.  This resolution calls for consolidation with other elections in 
Sacramento County which results in a cost savings to the District.  The District, 
nevertheless, is required to pay its proportionate share of election costs.  Candidates 
prepay the District for their candidate statements printed in the voter pamphlet and any 
related costs pursuant to Elections Code 13307. 
 
Financial Considerations:  By law, the District must reimburse the Registrar of Voters 
for actual costs incurred by the trustee area elections.  The cost is calculated by a 
prorated method set forth in the County’s current Election Cost Allocation Procedures.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Resolution No. 3271 
2. Notice of District Election – to be provided prior to the Board meeting 
3. Publication of Notice of Election – to be provided prior to the Board meeting 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Alexis Rincon, Legal Analyst 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



1 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 3271 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER AND FOR  
CONSOLIDATION WITH STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code section 10002, the governing body of any city or 

district may by resolution request the Board of Supervisors of the county to permit the county 
elections official to render specified services to the city or district relating to the conduct of an 
election; and 

 
WHEREAS, the resolution of the governing body of the city or district shall specify the 

services requested; and 
 

WHEREAS, Education Code section 5000 calls for a regular biennial election for the purpose 
of electing members of the Sacramento City Unified School District’s (“District”) Governing Board 
(“Board”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 5340, et seq., and Elections Code section 10400, et seq., 

allow for consolidation of elections scheduled to be held on the same day in the same territory; and  
 

WHEREAS, Board members are elected in even-numbered years and serve staggered, four-
year terms; and  

 
WHEREAS, when ordering an election, Education Code section 5322 requires the Board to 

provide for specifications of the election order, which shall be delivered to the officer conducting 
the election not less than 123 days prior to the date set for the election; and 

 
WHEREAS, the specification order must include the authority for ordering the election, the 

date of the election, the purpose of the election, the authority for the specifications of the election 
order, and the signature of the duly authorized officer;   

 
WHEREAS, Election Code sections 1302 and 10400 et seq. authorize the Board to establish 

the election day for Board members to occur on the same day as the statewide direct primary 
election, the statewide general election, or the general municipal election is held; 

 
WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 13307 requires that before the nominating period opens 

the governing body must determine whether a charge shall be levied against each candidate 
submitting a candidate’s statement to be sent to the voters; may establish the cost; and determine 
whether the cost be paid in advance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board intends to order an election to be held on November 8, 2022, for the 

purpose of electing 3 members to the Board of Education for trustee areas 1, 2, and 6 for terms as 
prescribed by law; and 



2 
 

WHEREAS, a Statewide General Election will be held within the County of Sacramento on 
the same day; and 
 

WHEREAS, Education Code section 5016 requires the Board to establish whether a tie vote of 
two or more candidates for a term of office shall be determined by lot or by calling a run-off election; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Elections Code section 12112 and Education Code section 5363 require the 

publication of a notice of the election once in a newspaper of general circulation in the District; and  
 
WHEREAS, new boundaries for all trustee areas were appropriately and timely adopted 

on February 17, 2022 pursuant to the requirements of Education Code section 5019.5 and 
shared with the Sacramento County Elections Office and the Sacramento County Office of 
Education. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Education requests the Board of 

Supervisors of Sacramento County to consolidate the District’s regularly scheduled general district 
election for Trustee areas 1, 2, and 6 with the Statewide General Election to be held on November 8, 
2022 for the purpose described herein; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all candidates are to pay in advance their pro rata share 

of the costs for candidate statements that are printed in the voter pamphlet and related costs as 
described in Elections Code section 13307, specifically 13307(d), subject to any additional expenses, 
or refunds, depending on the final actual cost as determined by the Sacramento County Registrar of 
Voters; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the limitation on the number of words that a candidate 
may use in his or her candidate’s statement shall be 200 words; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District agrees to reimburse the Registrar of Voters 

for actual election costs incurred, such costs to be calculated by the method set forth in the County’s 
current Election Cost Allocation Procedures; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if a tie vote to the Board of Education makes it 

impossible to determine which of two or more candidates, for the involved trustee area, has been 
elected to the Board of Education, the winner shall be determined by lot; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution, together with the Notice of District 

Election and Publication of Notice of Election attached herewith, shall be filed with the Sacramento 
County Board of Supervisors, with a copy to the Sacramento County Registrar of Voters, by the 
District’s Superintendent on or before July 6, 2022; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to Elections Code section 12112, and Education 

Code section 5363, the Registrar of Voters is requested to publish the District’s notice of election as a 
combined election notice with other districts; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the notice of District election shall be in the form 

attached to this resolution and may serve in lieu of the notices and related provisions designating the 



3 
 

Sacramento County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code sections 5324 and 5361; 
and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the map and boundary descriptions of all of the trustee 

areas, including trustee areas 1, 2, and 6 as recently approved and provided to the Sacramento County 
Elections Office and Sacramento County Office of Education are hereby certified, and verified, as 
being current and effective and that there have been no subsequent or additional boundary changes in 
the trustee areas; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent of the District, or his designee, shall 

be authorized to take all steps necessary to carry out the provisions of this resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 5th day of May, 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES:  ______ 
NOES:             ______ 
ABSTAIN:         ______ 
ABSENT: ______ 

 
Christina Pritchett 
President of the Board of Education 

ATTESTED TO: 

Jorge A. Aguilar Superintendent  
Secretary of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a general election of the Board of Trustees for the 
Sacramento City Unified School District will be held on November 8, 2022.  The offices 
for which candidates may declare their candidacy are: 

 
  Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Trustees - Trustee Area 1, 

 
Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Trustees - Trustee Area 2,  
 
and 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Trustees - Trustee Area 6 

 
Qualifications: Each candidate must meet the following qualifications for office: 

 
Any person, regardless of sex, who is 18 years of age or older, a citizen 
of the state, a resident of the trustee area in the Natomas Unified School 
District for which the candidate is running to become a Board member of 
the trustee area, a registered voter, and who is not disqualified by the 
Constitution or laws of the state from holding a civil office as described in 
Board Bylaw 9220, is eligible to be elected or appointed a member of a 
governing board of a school district without further qualifications. 

 
Code Reference: Education Code section 35107(a)/Board Bylaw 9220 
 
Official declarations of candidacy for eligible candidates desiring to file for any of the 
elective offices may be obtained from the office of the Registrar of Voters at 7000 65th 
Street, Suite A, Sacramento, CA 95823-2315, on and after July 8, 2022, and must be 
filed not later than 5:00 p.m. on August 12, 2022.   However, if a declaration of 
candidacy for an incumbent is not filed by the latter date and hour, any person other 
than the incumbent shall have until 5:00 p.m. on August 17, 2022 to file a declaration 
of candidacy for such office. 
 
 
Dated this ____ day of May, 2022. 
 
 
 

Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

NOTICE OF DISTRICT ELECTION 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

 



PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF ELECTION 

Elections Code §12112 requires the publication of a "Notice of Election." The notice 
shall contain the date of the general district election, name the offices for which 
candidates may file, and state the qualifications required by the principal act for each 
office, as well as other pertinent information. 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
Recommends that the Registrar of Voters publish (check one only): 
 

[X] A combined election notice with other districts scheduled for election on 
November 8, 2022 

or 

[   ] A separate/individual district notice. 

If a separate/individual district notice is requested, District will be 
responsible for printing of such notice. 

Dated:   May __, 2022 

 
     
 _________________________________________ 
 Jorge A. Aguilar,  

Superintendent 
 

 
 
 

 



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1g 

 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2022, Board of Education Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2022, Board of Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the April 7, 2022, Board of Education Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  N/A 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

1 

 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
 

Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Jacqueline Zhang, Student Member 
 

Thursday, April 7, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:00 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

(See Notice to the Public Below) 

Minutes 
 

2021/22-29 
 

        
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC ATTENDANCE BY LIVESTREAM 
Members of the public who wish to attend the meeting may do so by livestream at:  
https://www.scusd.edu/post/watch-meeting-live.   
No physical location of the meeting will be provided to the public.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:35 p.m. by Vice President Garcia, and roll was 
taken. 
 
Members Present: 
Vice President Leticia Garcia 
Second Vice President Chinua Rhodes 
Lisa Murawski 
Jamee Villa 
Darrel Woo 
 
Members Absent: 
President Christina Pritchett 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (arrived at 4:37 p.m.) 
Student Member Jacqueline Zhang arrived at 6:00 p.m. for Open Session. 
 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC COMMENT AND DEADLINE FOR SUBMISSION:   

https://www.scusd.edu/post/watch-meeting-live


Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

2 

Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) submitted in 
writing, identifying the matter number and the name of the public member at the 
URL  https://tinyurl.com/BoardMeetingApril7; or (3) using the same URL, submitting a 
request for oral comment only when the matter is called, instead of written 
comment.  Individual public comment shall be presented to the Board orally for no more 
than two minutes, or other time determined by the Board on each agenda item. Public 
comments submitted in writing will not be read aloud, but will be provided to the Board in 
advance of the meeting and posted on the District’s website.  The Board shall allow a 
reasonable time for public comment on each agenda item, not to exceed 15 minutes in 
length, including communications and organizational reports.  With Board consent, the 
President may increase or decrease the length of time allowed for public comment, 
depending on the agenda item and the number of public comments. Speakers will be 
called sequentially until there is no speaker coming forward on the agenda item or the 
amount of time allocated for the agenda item has elapsed, whichever occurs first.    
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

c) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (OAH Case No. 2022010135 and OAH Case No. 2022030207) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 
3.4 Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 

Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 
 

3.5 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 
a) Principal, Pacific Elementary School 
 

3.6 Education Code 35146 – The Board will hear staff recommendations on the 
following student expulsion: 
a) Expulsion #4, 2021-22 
 

 

mailto:publiccomment@scusd.edu
https://tinyurl.com/BoardMeetingApril7


Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

3 

 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement  
 
4.3 Stellar Students – Jusuf Bukvic, a Junior from Rosemont High School, and 

Alexandra Morales Baires, also a Junior from Rosemont High School, were 
introduced by Vice President Garcia.  The students could not be present, but 
Principal Elizabeth Vigil spoke on their behalf. 

 
 

 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Counsel Anne Collins announced the following:  OAH Case No. 202203020 and a 
settlement agreement related to Special Education Services were both approved by 
votes of 6-0, with President Pritchett absent, as well as a settlement agreement with 
Astro Turf Corporation that resolves a dispute over warranty defects and repair 
obligations for artificial turf at Rosemont High School, also by a vote of 6-0. 
 
Superintendent Aguilar announce the appointment of Karen Bridges as Principal of 
Pacific Elementary School by a vote of 6-0, with President Pritchett absent.  

 
 

 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
Vice President Garcia asked for a motion to adopt the agenda.  A motion was made to approve 
by Member Murawski and seconded by Member Villa.  The Board voted unanimously to adopt 
the agenda 6-0, with President Pritchett absent. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                            15 minutes 
 
Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) submitted in writing, identifying 
the matter number and the name of the public member at the URL 
https://tinyurl.com/BoardMeetingApril7; or (3) using the same URL, submitting a request for oral 
comment only when the matter is called, instead of written comment.  Individual public comment shall 
be presented to the Board orally for no more than two minutes or other time determined by the Board, 
on each agenda item. Public comments submitted in writing will not be read aloud, but will be provided 
to the Board in advance of the meeting and posted on the District’s website.  The Board shall allow a 
reasonable time for public comment on each agenda item, not to exceed 15 minutes in length, 
including communications and organizational reports.  With Board consent, the President may 
increase or decrease the length of time allowed for public comment, depending on the agenda item and 
the number of public comments. Speakers will be called sequentially until there is no speaker coming 
forward on the agenda item or the amount of time allocated for the agenda item has elapsed, whichever 
occurs first.   

 
Public Comment: 
David Fisher 
Ingrid Hutchins 
Taylor Kayatta 

 

mailto:publiccomment@scusd.edu
https://tinyurl.com/BoardMeetingApril7


Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

4 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
 8.1 Resolution No. 3267:  Arts Initiative (Board Member Villa) 

 
Board Member Villa presented the resolution. 

 
Public Comment: 
Ingrid Hutchins 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Second Vice President Rhodes said he is in full support of this 
resolution. 
 
Member Villa motioned to approve, and Member Woo 
seconded.  The resolution was approved 6-0, with President 
Pritchett absent. 
 
 

Action 
 

 

 8.2 Update of Mandatory COVID-19 Vaccination for Eligible, 
Non-Exempt Students and Staff (Bob Lyons and Victoria 
Flores) 

 
The update was given by Chief Information Officer Bob Lyons 
and Director of Student Support and Health Services Victoria 
Flores.  They went over CDC community levels, the District 
masking approach and timeline, how families can approach 
unmasking, student vaccination and testing consent progress, 
returning from Spring Break safely, and next steps. 

 
Public Comment: 
Jean Shanley 
Sarah Waldrop 
Ian Perkins 
Marisa Morishita 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Phillips asked Ms. Flores to explain “test to treat”.  
She answered that there is a federal program in that, if one tests 
positive, they can go to a local pharmacy or health provider, 
show the positive test, and get a prescription for one of many 
more treatments that are now available.  This has proved 
effective in reducing severity of illness if one obtains the 
prescription in a timely manner.  It is available for those age 12 
and older that are immunocompromised.  Member Phillips 
asked Mr. Lyons if there is any way to share information 
regarding five school that were noted as being untested or 

Information 
 
 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

5 

untracked.  Mr. Lyons responded that he can get that 
information to Member Phillips. 
 
 
 

 9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

 
 

 

9.1 Resolution No. 3260:  A Resolution of the Board of 
Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
Sacramento County, California, Authorizing the Issuance of 
Sacramento City Unified School District (Sacramento 
County, California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 
2020 (Measure H) 2022 Series A, and Actions Related 
Thereto to be Issued by the County of Sacramento on Behalf 
of the Sacramento City Unified School District (Rose Ramos) 

 
Chief Business Officer Rose Ramos noted that this information 
was provided at the last Board meeting, and it is on the agenda 
tonight for approval.  Financial Advisor Dale Scott was 
present for questions. 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Woo motioned to approve, and Member Villa 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously, with President 
Pritchett absent. 
 

Action 
 

 
 

 

9.2 Resolution No. 3261:  A Resolution of the Board of 
Education of the Sacramento City Unified School District, 
Sacramento County, California, Authorizing the Issuance of 
Sacramento City Unified School District (Sacramento 
County, California) 2022 General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds in the amount of $65,000,000 to be Issued by the 
Sacramento City Unified School District (Rose Ramos) 

 
Chief Business Officer Rose Ramos noted that this information 
was provided at the last Board meeting, and it is on the agenda 
tonight for approval.  It was noted that $8,000,000 will be saved 
for taxpayers.  Financial Advisor Dale Scott was present for 
questions. 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
 

Action 
 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

6 

Board Comments: 
 
Member Woo motioned to approve, and Member Murawski 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously, with President 
Pritchett absent. 
 
 

 
 10.0 PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

 

10.1  Resolution No. 3265:  Authorization for Government 
Contract Code 4217 for Energy Service Contract (Rose 
Ramos and Chris Ralston) 

 
Facilities Director Chris Ralston gave the presentation on the 
energy reduction project.  He went over scope of work, 
procurement method and cost analysis, financial analysis, 
estimated energy cost savings, and next steps. 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Phillips asked Mr. Ralston for more information on a 
$122,000 project for Sacramento High School that was 
included.  He explained that this is a deferred maintenance 
project; Ms. Ramos explained that as the building is a District 
leased asset, it must be maintained on the same level as District 
schools. 
 
Acting President Garcia asked what happens to the savings.  
Ms. Ramos answered that it creates a reduction to cost.  Mr. 
Ralston noted that it is a use of capital funds to reduce 
operating expenses. 
 
Member Woo motioned to approve the item, and Second Vice 
President Rhodes seconded.  The motion passed 6-0 with 
President Pritchett absent. 
 
 

Action 
 

 

 

10.2  Public Hearing:  AB 1200 Disclosure and Approval of 
Teamsters Union, Local 150 and Teamsters Classified 
Supervisors COVID-19 Employee Leave and Hazard Pay 
MOUs 2021-2022 (Rose Ramos and Jesse Castillo) 

 
Ms. Ramos went over key provisions for Teamsters Union, 
Local 150, and Teamsters Classified Supervisors, and AB 1200 
fiscal impact. 

 

Action 
 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

7 

 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comments: 
 
Member Woo motioned to approve, and Member Murawski 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously, with President 
Pritchett absent. 
 

 
 11.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 11.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA – No report given 
 SEIU – No report given 
 TCS – No report given 
 Teamsters – No report given 
 UPE – No report given 
 

Information 
 

 11.2 District Advisory Committees:  

 Community Advisory Committee – Taylor Kayatta made a 
public comment regarding the CAC 
 

 District English Learner Advisory Committee – No report given 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee  

 Student Advisory Council – No report given 

 African American Advisory Board – No report given 

 

Information 
 

 11.3 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar) 

Superintendent Aguilar expressed condolences to the families that were 
devastated by a shooting in the city on Sunday.  He said that schools serve 
as safe havens for mental and emotional support for many students, and 
this underscores the importance of the return of students and staff to school 
on Monday.  He spoke of hope and healing in welcoming students back to 
school and of agreements reached to end the recent strike.  He apologized 
to families for disruptions caused by the strike and announced that more 
details on the agreements will be discussed at the next regular board 
meeting.  He also noted that the school calendar has been affected, as the 
District is now short the state mandated days and minutes required for 
instruction.  He added that there is now potentially $46 million dollars in 
penalties.  He hopes that questions related to the calendar will be resolved 
as quickly as possible.  He reported that the most recently reported 
COVID-19 numbers by the county are at a low point and therefore the 
District masking requirement is being lifted starting with the Monday 
following Spring break.  However, COVID-19 is still a concern and 

Information 
 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

8 

therefore test kits are being distributed for use in returning from Spring 
break on that Monday.   

 11.4 President’s Report (Christina Pritchett) 

Acting President Garcia thanked everyone that welcomed students back on 
Monday, teachers and staff.  She noted that the strike was very stressful for 
everyone.  She wished all a healthy and safe Spring break, and announced 
that the next regular board meeting will be in person for the public.  

Information 
 
 

 11.5 Student Member Report (Jacqueline Zhang) – No report given 

 

Information 
 
 

 11.6 Information Sharing By Board Members – No reports given 

 

Information 
 

 
 12.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                    Action 

 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
12.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
  

12.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
12.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
 

12.1c Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion #4, 2021-22 (Lisa Allen and 
Stephan Brown) 
 

12.1d Approve Resolution No. 3263:   Establishing a General Obligation Bond 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee and Approving By-Laws and Guidelines for 
Conduct of the Committee (Rose Ramos) 
 

12.1e Approve Resolution No. 3262:  Resolution of the Board of Education of the 
Sacramento City Unified School District Entering Election Results Into the 
Minutes and Certifying to the Board of Supervisors of Sacramento County All 
Proceedings in the March 3, 2020, General Obligation Bond Election (Rose 
Ramos) 
 

12.1f Approve Minutes of the March 3, 2022, Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

12.1g Approve Minutes of the March 8, 2022, Special Board of Education Meeting  
(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 



Board Minutes, April 7, 2022 
 

9 

12.1h Approve Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Sacramento and 
Sacramento City Unified School District for the Joint Use of Susan B. Anthony 
Field as a Park During Non-School Hours (Rose Ramos) 

 
12.1i Approve Resolution No. 3266:  Authorizing Continued Use of Remote 

Teleconferencing Provisions Pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code Section 
54953 (Anne Collins) 

 
Vice President Garcia asked for a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  A motion was made to 
approve by Member Woo and seconded by Second Vice President Rhodes.  The Board voted 
unanimously to adopt the Consent Agenda 6-0, with President Pritchett absent. 

 
 

 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 April 21, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 May 5, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:00 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
 5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 

 
 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Vice President Garcia asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting; a motion was made by 
Member Phillips and seconded by Member Villa.  The motion was passed unanimously, and the 
meeting adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 ____________________________________________ 

Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
  

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 10.1h   

 
Meeting Date: May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve the 2022-2023 Traditional School Attendance Calendar  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Human Resource Services 
 
Recommendation:  Approve the 2022-2023 Traditional School Attendance Calendar.  
 
Background/Rationale: The Traditional School Attendance Calendar for 2022-2023 
(Calendar) provides students, parent and community member the opportunity to plan for 
the school year.  This Calendar contains student attendance dates, while the employee 
work year calendars will be discussed with labor partners. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Emotionally Healthy and Engaged Students 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Sacramento City Unified School District Traditional School Attendance Calendar 2022-2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:   Shawn Hadnot, Director II, Employee Relations  
Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 0 #!*1 2 3 2 1 1

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 0 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 5
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 0 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 0 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 5 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 5
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 0 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 0 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 5 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 5
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 0 28 29 30 31 0 25 26 27 28 29 30 5 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 5
31 0 0 0 30 31 0

Days: 0 Days: 0 Days: 21 Days: 21 42
NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4# 5 4 1 2! 3 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 0 1 2 3 4 3

6 #7 8 9 10 11 12 4 4 !5 6 7 8 9 10 5 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 5 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 5 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 4 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 4
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 0 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 5 22 23 24 25 26 27*# 28 5 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 4
27 28 29 30 3 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 0 29 *#30 31 2 26 27 28 2

0 0 0 0
Days: 16 Days: 17 Days: 16 Days: 18 67

MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 3 1 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 5 1 2 3 2
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 0 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 5

12 13 14 15 16 17! 18 5 9 #10 11 12 13 14 15 5 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 5 11 12 13 14 15#!
* 16 17 4

19 !20 21 22 23 24 25 5 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 5 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 5 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 0
26 27 28 29 30 31# 5 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 5 28 29 30 31 2 25 26 27 28 29 30 0

0 30 0 0 0
Days: 23 Days: 15 Days: 22 Days: 11 71

180

* 
# RED
!

2022-2023 Traditional Calendar final 

Quarter Begins and Ends Quarter = 46/ 43/ 43/ 48 = 180 days School Holidays / Other Days Not in Session

Human Resource Services
Traditional Attendance Calendar 

2022-23 School Year
JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER

Legend/Key Instructional/ Non-Instructional Days

Semester Begins and Ends Semester = 89/ 91 = 180 days 180 Instructional Days

Three (3) Professional Learning Days

Trimester Begins and Ends Trimester = 60/ 62 / 58 = 180 days New Teacher Orientation Day
One (1) Non-Instructional Day/ Faculty Work Day 



Page 1 of 1 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 10.1i 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Approve Revised Board of Education Meeting Calendar for 2021-22 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office  
 
Recommendation:  Approve the revisions to the Board of Education meeting calendar 
for 2021-22 school year to change the June 2, 2022, Board meeting to June 9, 2022, 
and the June 16, 2022, Board meeting to June 23, 2022. 
 
Background/Rationale:  The Board of Education requires a date change from June 2, 
2022, to June 9, 2022, and June 16, 2022, to June 23, 2022.  
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
Documents Attached: 
1.  Board of Education Meeting Calendar for 2021-22 
2.  Schedule of Due Dates for Second Half of 2021-22 School Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education Meeting Calendar 

2021-2022 School Year 
 

The Board of Education usually meets on the 1st and 3rd Thursdays of the month 
with Special Meetings called as needed.  Meetings are held at the  

Serna Center Community Room, 5735 47th Avenue. 
 

There are no Board Meetings in the month of July and only one in December and January 
 

August 5, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

August 19, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

September 2, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

September 16, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

October 7, 2021 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

October 21, 2021 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

November 4, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

November 18, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

December 16, 2021 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 
Annual Meeting 

January 13, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

February 3, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 
 

February 17, 2022 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

March 3, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

March 17, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

April 7, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

April 21, 2022 
 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

May 5, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

May 19, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

June 2, 2022 
CANCELLED 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

June 16, 2022 
CANCELLED 

4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

June 9, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

June 23, 2022 
 
4:30 Closed Session 
6:00 Open Session 

 

  

     





Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 11.1 

 
 
Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
Background/Rationale:  Enrollment and Attendance Report Month 7, Ending Friday, March 
25, 2022 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
Documents Attached:   
• Enrollment and Attendance Report Month 7, Ending Friday, March 25, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 1

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd                 
Days /124
2021-2022

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 46 127 118 13 304 90.86% 272.82 87.83%
Abraham Lincoln El 77 214 226 1 518 89.46% 450.03 87.59%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 70 142 165 1 378 95.02% 348.65 92.66%
Bret Harte Elementary 24 61 79 28 192 87.33% 159.57 85.15%
Caleb Greenwood 81 220 185 2 488 95.37% 453.74 93.65%
Camellia Basic Elementary 69 159 174 6 408 95.38% 377.52 92.71%
Capital City School 71 243 281 0 595 86.19% 519.00 93.44%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 30 87 94 30 241 87.16% 207.85 86.99%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 363 7 370 90.95% 322.27 89.31%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 94 255 248 0 597 95.53% 560.94 94.56%
David Lubin Elementary 79 197 194 22 492 93.44% 434.13 91.30%
Earl Warren Elementary 41 177 184 10 412 92.53% 364.22 89.95%
Edward Kemble Elementary 128 380 0 7 515 89.33% 438.45 87.24%
Elder Creek Elementary 77 313 323 0 713 92.26% 643.90 90.57%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 72 251 264 1 588 86.98% 513.61 85.34%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 48 192 166 4 410 91.51% 356.97 87.52%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 23 100 112 18 253 85.83% 218.94 83.39%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 54 201 198 0 453 95.97% 425.57 94.96%
Golden Empire Elementary 56 201 239 12 508 93.50% 473.60 92.35%
H W Harkness Elementary 49 96 126 1 272 91.90% 243.83 87.74%
Hollywood Park Elementary 47 88 97 28 260 88.74% 223.95 86.48%
Home/Hospital 5 15 15 14 49 100.00% 15.99 100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 82 161 172 13 428 89.44% 363.22 86.43%
Isador Cohen Elementary 28 112 120 28 288 92.12% 251.47 89.99%
James W Marshall Elementary 47 144 130 20 341 92.31% 306.71 89.81%
John Bidwell Elementary 38 115 87 3 243 90.38% 216.46 88.39%
John Cabrillo Elementary 35 112 117 27 291 90.18% 255.82 87.76%
John D Sloat Elementary 41 91 94 7 233 88.32% 203.37 87.48%
John H. Still K-8 49 209 260 8 526 88.86% 456.56 87.14%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 21 21 84.87% 16.14 80.75%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 104 131 12 271 84.18% 224.49 82.04%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 117 286 270 17 690 94.69% 641.44 93.13%
Mark Twain Elementary 24 117 95 22 258 90.55% 225.84 89.54%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 40 123 110 23 296 90.51% 257.23 87.46%
Matsuyama Elementary 71 187 217 1 476 94.02% 439.48 92.80%
Nicholas Elementary 70 225 237 5 537 90.35% 465.44 86.72%
O W Erlewine Elementary 45 113 105 18 281 89.25% 244.63 89.59%
Oak Ridge Elementary 71 192 202 3 468 86.51% 415.84 88.37%
Pacific Elementary 111 283 297 0 691 88.50% 583.55 86.17%
Parkway Elementary School 47 187 182 16 432 84.06% 363.65 82.37%
Peter Burnett Elementary 51 169 182 14 416 90.84% 358.64 88.45%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 96 278 267 1 642 95.23% 613.23 95.54%
Pony Express Elementary 37 142 176 9 364 93.33% 328.65 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 44 124 144 6 318 87.32% 269.58 86.99%
Sequoia Elementary 58 159 167 12 396 90.55% 348.43 87.34%
Success Academy K-8 0 0 5 0 5 62.16% 1.08 68.02%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 49 125 131 0 305 93.64% 287.14 92.62%
Sutterville Elementary 45 182 173 6 406 95.72% 383.98 94.45%
Tahoe Elementary 63 99 93 31 286 90.96% 244.96 89.00%
Theodore Judah Elementary 71 163 176 12 422 93.86% 386.55 92.42%
Washington Elementary 61 131 120 14 326 89.93% 276.17 86.89%
William Land Elementary 48 170 158 0 376 93.75% 331.54 90.27%
Woodbine Elementary 45 126 92 26 289 88.07% 244.13 85.71%
TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 2,849       8,348            8,561         580             20,338             91.11% 18,030.95             89.51%

-2 66Change from prior month

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022

Special 
Education 
Grades K-6

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 2021-2022 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 2

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/124
2021-2022

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 39 23 62 1 63 88.67% 55.52 88.98%
Albert Einstein MS 316 305 621 22 643 90.52% 591.30 91.10%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 57 58 115 0 115 95.70% 107.44 92.68%
California MS 376 370 746 16 762 91.18% 701.25 90.20%
Capital City School 67 100 167 0 167 78.25% 112.73 70.81%
Fern Bacon MS 330 318 648 36 684 87.31% 606.02 88.99%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 53 46 99 1 100 96.09% 94.90 95.29%
Home/Hospital 5 4 9 2 11 100.00% 6.88 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 120 97 217 18 235 92.20% 209.56 89.38%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 17 17 79.21% 12.65 79.00%
Kit Carson IB Academy 173 176 349 18 367 84.19% 316.69 86.43%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 59 62 121 13 134 94.34% 125.32 93.38%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 26 21 47 0 47 94.16% 44.81 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 196 202 398 25 423 87.30% 372.40 86.20%
Sam Brannan MS 140 150 290 38 328 88.88% 283.86 87.67%
School of Engineering and Science 96 123 219 1 220 93.35% 201.71 91.28%
Success Academy K-8 4 15 19 0 19 70.33% 5.60 72.10%
Sutter MS 518 538 1,056 28 1,084 93.95% 1018.47 93.61%
Will C Wood MS 323 311 634 51 685 90.40% 606.80 89.86%
TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,898       2,919       5,817           287             6,104               90.17% 5,473.90     89.73%

Change from prior month 1 13

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022

Special 
Education 
Grades 7-8

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE 

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 
7-8

2021-2022 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 3

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/107
2021-2022

American Legion HS 170 0 0 0 0 170 0 170 65.24% 119.78 67.92%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 45 57 52 41 195 15 210 86.30% 172.61 85.77%
C K McClatchy HS 0 628 561 530 499 2,218 75 2,293 86.78% 1974.90 86.90%
Capital City School 0 61 94 109 122 386 0 386 85.74% 336.77 82.76%
Hiram W Johnson HS 0 422 438 356 391 1,607 166 1,773 85.76% 1494.52 84.72%
Home/Hospital 0 6 4 0 2 12 10 22 100.00% 17.92 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 0 402 497 463 442 1,804 122 1,926 89.92% 1703.49 88.39%
Kit Carson 7-12 0 82 62 31 30 205 0 205 93.75% 192.70 93.14%
Luther Burbank HS 0 377 361 364 325 1,427 147 1,574 87.94% 1340.69 85.25%
Rosemont HS 0 355 360 342 249 1,306 101 1,407 89.78% 1253.20 87.91%
School of Engineering and Science 0 105 79 77 50 311 0 311 93.59% 288.57 91.46%
West Campus HS 0 220 204 191 213 828 0 828 96.02% 793.58 95.67%
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 170                  2,703    2,717      2,515       2,364      10,469       636               11,105             88.35% 9,688.72         87.14%

Change from prior month -5 -124

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION Total Grade 
9-12

Special 
Education 

Grades 9-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Continuation Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 2021-2022 
Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 4

PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/107
2021-2022

ELEMENTARY 20,338 91.11% 18,031 89.51%
MIDDLE 6,104 90.17% 5,474 89.73%

HIGH SCHOOL 11,105 88.35% 9,689 87.14%
TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 37,547 90.16% 33,194 88.85%

Total Non-Public Schools as of 4/12/22 267

Non-Public change from prior month -5

DISTRICT TOTALS
TOTAL MONTH-

END 
ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

2021-2022 Actual 
Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
CHARTER SCHOOLS

Page 5

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2021-2022 
Actual 

Attendance

2021-2022 PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022

Bowling Green-Mc Coy 69 175 167 0 0 0 411 90.79% 359.81 87.92%
Bowling Green-Chacon 48 138 164 0 0 1 351 93.02% 326.92 93.38%
George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 237 12 249 89.18% 223.47 87.33%
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 24 109 101 0 0 0 234 87.90% 202.30 86.05%
New Tech High 0 0 0 0 171 2 173 92.26% 160.78 92.69%
The Met High School 0 0 0 0 229 1 230 96.77% 214.58 95.54%
TOTAL DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 141 422 432 0 637 16 1,648 91.50% 1,487.85 90.31%

Change from prior month 0 -6

2020-2021 INDEPENDENT CHARTER 
SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2021-2022 
Actual 

Attendance

2021-2022 PERCENTAGE 
2021-2022

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy 35 86 83 0 0 0 204 79.66% 178.81 83.65%
CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 46 127 120 48 0 0 341 95.45% 320.94 93.55%
Capitol Collegiate Academy 48 155 165 85 0 0 453 91.52% 396.90 90.40%
Growth Public Schools 45 132 61 0 0 0 238 89.58% 217.65 90.13%
Language Academy 84 198 199 132 0 0 613 93.11% 556.92 90.92%
PS 7 Elementary 72 154 165 179 0 0 570 89.11% 503.79 89.75%
Sacramento Charter HS 0 0 0 0 401 0 401 90.85% 369.15 91.62%
SAVA 0 0 0 97 673 0 770 94.11% 608.28 93.21%
Sol Aureus College Preparatory 30 124 122 64 0 0 340 90.22% 305.14 90.29%
Yav Pem Suab Academy 67 189 171 0 0 0 427 83.93% 388.38 90.36%
TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 427        1,165          1,086           605              1,074             -                4,357                89.75% 3,845.96    90.39%

Change from prior month 0 60

TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 568        1,587          1,518           605              1,711             16                  6,005                90.62% 5,333.81    90.35%

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

2020-2021 DEPENDENT CHARTER 
SCHOOLS

GENERAL EDUCATION

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

GENERAL EDUCATION



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOLS

Page 6

CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center 233 0 5,032.23       5,032.23       0 77.67 77.67
Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center 301 0 10,549.31    10,549.31     0 207.69 207.69
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 534                   0 15,581.54    15,581.54     0 285.36 285.36

2021-2022 CUMULATIVE ADAADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HOURS EARNED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

Page 7

Kdgn Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 46 40 46 41 43 39 36 291
Abraham Lincoln El 77 66 76 72 87 71 68 517
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 70 47 48 47 54 52 59 377
Bret Harte Elementary 24 26 12 23 19 29 31 164
Caleb Greenwood 81 70 68 82 65 67 53 486
Camellia Basic Elementary 69 49 48 62 61 54 59 402
Capital City School 71 71 97 75 95 90 96 595
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 30 33 34 20 27 43 24 211
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 126 125 112 363
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 94 86 88 81 85 78 85 597
David Lubin Elementary 79 71 66 60 63 68 63 470
Earl Warren Elementary 41 61 55 61 51 66 67 402
Edward Kemble Elementary 128 119 139 122 0 0 0 508
Elder Creek Elementary 77 95 103 115 109 109 105 713
Ethel I Baker Elementary 72 92 90 69 85 81 98 587
Ethel Phillips Elementary 48 66 65 61 55 54 57 406
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 23 25 29 46 31 52 29 235
Genevieve Didion Elementary 54 71 67 63 69 66 63 453
Golden Empire Elementary 56 65 59 77 71 77 91 496
H W Harkness Elementary 49 26 32 38 47 41 38 271
Hollywood Park Elementary 47 27 27 34 38 28 31 232
Home/Hospital 5 4 7 4 3 7 5 35
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 82 54 58 49 44 72 56 415
Isador Cohen Elementary 28 43 28 41 42 36 42 260
James W Marshall Elementary 47 46 43 55 42 40 48 321
John Bidwell Elementary 38 47 40 28 32 26 29 240
John Cabrillo Elementary 35 33 40 39 35 44 38 264
John D Sloat Elementary 41 22 37 32 40 25 29 226
John H. Still K-8 49 55 73 81 75 93 92 518
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leataata Floyd Elementary 24 38 39 27 43 42 46 259
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 117 93 94 99 92 95 83 673
Mark Twain Elementary 24 39 37 41 33 31 31 236
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 40 39 45 39 30 48 32 273
Matsuyama Elementary 71 56 64 67 74 62 81 475
Nicholas Elementary 70 69 71 85 69 82 86 532
O W Erlewine Elementary 45 38 32 43 35 30 40 263
Oak Ridge Elementary 71 55 71 66 57 74 71 465
Pacific Elementary 111 83 108 92 110 97 90 691
Parkway Elementary School 47 57 69 61 64 63 55 416
Peter Burnett Elementary 51 63 56 50 62 58 62 402
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 96 93 92 93 89 89 89 641
Pony Express Elementary 37 45 44 53 65 53 58 355
Rosa Parks K-8 School 44 46 41 37 43 49 52 312
Sequoia Elementary 58 64 48 47 51 61 55 384
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 5
Susan B Anthony Elementary 49 43 37 45 42 34 55 305
Sutterville Elementary 45 57 61 64 64 53 56 400
Tahoe Elementary 63 29 46 24 31 29 33 255
Theodore Judah Elementary 71 47 54 62 65 63 48 410
Washington Elementary 61 52 44 35 41 49 30 312
William Land Elementary 48 63 47 60 51 58 49 376
Woodbine Elementary 45 44 41 41 33 31 28 263
TOTAL 2,849 2,723 2,816 2,809 2,840 2,885 2,836 19,758

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION ENROLLMENT TOTAL 
GENERAL 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 8

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 304 4,686 33,829 38,515 87.83%
Abraham Lincoln El 518 7,907 55,804 63,711 87.59%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 378 3,423 43,232 46,655 92.66%
Bret Harte Elementary 192 3,450 19,786 23,236 85.15%
Caleb Greenwood 488 3,812 56,264 60,076 93.65%
Camellia Basic Elementary 408 3,683 46,812 50,495 92.71%
Capital City School 595 4,515 64,356 68,871 93.44%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 241 3,855 25,773 29,628 86.99%
Cesar Chavez ES 370 4,785 39,961 44,746 89.31%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 597 3,998 69,557 73,555 94.56%
David Lubin Elementary 492 5,131 53,832 58,963 91.30%
Earl Warren Elementary 412 5,044 45,163 50,207 89.95%
Edward Kemble Elementary 515 7,951 54,368 62,319 87.24%
Elder Creek Elementary 713 8,314 79,844 88,158 90.57%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 588 10,937 63,688 74,625 85.34%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 410 6,310 44,264 50,574 87.52%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 253 5,408 27,149 32,557 83.39%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 453 2,802 52,771 55,573 94.96%
Golden Empire Elementary 508 4,865 58,726 63,591 92.35%
H W Harkness Elementary 272 4,224 30,235 34,459 87.74%
Hollywood Park Elementary 260 4,342 27,770 32,112 86.48%
Home/Hospital 49 0 1,983                                                   1,983                          100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 428 7,073 45,039 52,112 86.43%
Isador Cohen Elementary 288 3,468 31,182 34,650 89.99%
James W Marshall Elementary 341 4,315 38,032 42,347 89.81%
John Bidwell Elementary 243 3,524 26,841 30,365 88.39%
John Cabrillo Elementary 291 4,425 31,722 36,147 87.76%
John D Sloat Elementary 233 3,608 25,218 28,826 87.48%
John H. Still K-8 526 8,356 56,613 64,969 87.14%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 21 477 2,001 2,478 80.75%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 271 6,096 27,837 33,933 82.04%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 690 5,863 79,539 85,402 93.13%
Mark Twain Elementary 258 3,271 28,004 31,275 89.54%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 296 4,573 31,896 36,469 87.46%
Matsuyama Elementary 476 4,227 54,496 58,723 92.80%
Nicholas Elementary 537 8,839 57,715 66,554 86.72%
O W Erlewine Elementary 281 3,526 30,334 33,860 89.59%
Oak Ridge Elementary 468 6,787 51,564 58,351 88.37%
Pacific Elementary 691 11,614 72,360 83,974 86.17%
Parkway Elementary School 432 9,652 45,093 54,745 82.37%
Peter Burnett Elementary 416 5,809 44,471 50,280 88.45%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 642 3,551 76,041 79,592 95.54%
Pony Express Elementary 364 4,136 40,753 44,889 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 318 4,998 33,428 38,426 86.99%
Sequoia Elementary 396 6,265 43,205 49,470 87.34%
Success Academy K-8 5 63 134 197 68.02%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 305 2,838 35,605 38,443 92.62%
Sutterville Elementary 406 2,799 47,613 50,412 94.45%
Tahoe Elementary 286 3,755 30,375 34,130 89.00%
Theodore Judah Elementary 422 3,931 47,932 51,863 92.42%
Washington Elementary 326 5,166 34,245 39,411 86.89%
William Land Elementary 376 4,430 41,111 45,541 90.27%
Woodbine Elementary 289 5,049 30,272 35,321 85.71%
TOTAL 20,338                           261,926                  2,235,838                                           2,497,764                  89.51%

PERCENTAGE OF 
ATTENDANCE

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 9

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 63 853 6,884 7,737 88.98%
Albert Einstein MS 643 7,165 73,321 80,486 91.10%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K-8 115 1,052 13,322 14,374 92.68%
California MS 762 9,444 86,955 96,399 90.20%
Capital City School 167 5,763 13,979 19,742 70.81%
Fern Bacon MS 684 9,295 75,147 84,442 88.99%
Genevieve Didion K-8 100 581 11,767 12,348 95.29%
Home/Hospital 11 0 853.25 853.25 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 235 3,086 25,985 29,071 89.38%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 17 417 1,569 1,986 79.00%
Kit Carson 7-12 367 6,164 39,269 45,433 86.43%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 134 1,102 15,539 16,641 93.38%
Martin Luther King Jr K-8 47 564 5,557 6,121 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 423 7,391 46,177 53,568 86.20%
Sam Brannan MS 328 4,952 35,199 40,151 87.67%
School of Engineering and Science 220 2,388 25,012 27,400 91.28%
Success Academy K-8 19 269 695 964 72.10%
Sutter MS 1,084 8,617 126,290 134,907 93.61%
Will C Wood MS 685 8,494 75,243 83,737 89.86%
TOTAL 6,104                             77,597                    678,763                                      756,360                              89.74%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEMIDDLE TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF 
ATTENDANCE

DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 7, ENDING FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 10

American Legion HS 170 7,014 14,853 21,867 67.92%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 210 3,551 21,403 24,954 85.77%
C K McClatchy HS 2,293 36,907 244,888 281,795 86.90%
Capital City School 386 8,698 41,759 50,457 82.76%
Hiram W Johnson HS 1,773 33,425 185,321 218,746 84.72%
Home/Hospital 22 0 2,221.75 2,221.75 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 1,926 27,755 211,233 238,988 88.39%
Kit Carson 7-12 205 1,761 23,895 25,656 93.14%
Luther Burbank HS 1,574 28,767 166,245 195,012 85.25%
Rosemont HS 1,407 21,373 155,397 176,770 87.91%
School of Engineering and Science 311 3,341 35,782 39,123 91.46%
West Campus HS 828 4,459 98,404 102,863 95.67%
TOTAL 11,105               177,051                  1,201,402                                       1,378,453                                87.16%

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE

TOTAL ALL SCHOOLS 37,547 516,574 4,116,003 4,632,577 88.85%

Students in Non 
Public Schools

Total
Enrollment

ADA ADA % % Change

2020-21 Actual 38,404 0 0.00% No ADA Reporting
2021-2022 Projected 39,496 0 0.00%

Month 01 262 37,810 34,038 91.23%
Month 02 268 37,990 34,092 91.05% -0.18%
Month 03 274 37,982 34,148 91.01% -0.04%
Month 04 273 37,848 33,988 90.70% -0.31%
Month 05 278 37,700 33,134 88.51% -2.19%
Month 06 272 37,592 33,165 88.64% 0.13%
Month 07 267 37,547 33,194 88.85% 0.21%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEHIGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Elementary Middle High Total Variance Dependent
Charter

Non-Public
Schools

Independent
Charter

Adult Ed.

Month 1 9/24/2021 20,087 6,146 11,577 37,810 0 1,681 262 1,982 681

Month 2 10/22/2021 20,246 6,159 11,585 37,990 180 1,670 268 4,302 658

Month 3 11/19/2021 20,286 6,169 11,527 37,982 -8 1,680 274 4,337 571

Month 4 12/17/2021 20,285 6,144 11,419 37,848 -134 1,678 273 4,347 536

Month 5 1/28/2022 20,250 6,132 11,318 37,700 -148 1,670 278 4,251 461

Month 6 2/25/2022 20,272 6,091 11,229 37,592 -108 1,654 272 4,297 486

Month 7 3/25/2022 20,338 6,104 11,105 37,547 -45 1,648 267 4,357 534

20,087

6,146

11,577

37,810

0

1,681
262

1,982

681

20,246

6,159

11,585

37,990

180

1,670

268

4,302

658

20,286

6,169

11,527

37,982

-8

1,680
274

4,337

571

20,285

6,144

11,419

37,848

-134

1,678
273

4,347

536

20,250

6,132

11,318

37,700

-148
1,670

278

4,251

461

20,272

6,091

11,229

37,592

-108

1,654
272

4,297

486

20,338

6,104

11,105

37,547

-45

1,648
267

4,357

534En
ro

llm
e

n
t

Monthly Attendance 


	7 May 5, 2022 Agenda, Final2 with Arts Item Added & ALJ Decision Item Removed-Amend 3.4 & 3.5 on 5-2-22
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AMENDED AGENDA
	AGENDA

	8.1 ItemR
	8.1 CS CLARA Support Letter (May 5 2022) (SC361365xAAE13)
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	8.1-1 CLARA Budget Request Support Letter (LS Redline) (SC361543-2xAAE13)

	8.2 Item
	8.2 CS LCAP Update 5.5.22
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	8.2-1 ES LCAP Update 5.5.22
	I. Overview/History of Department or Program
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget:
	SCUSD’s Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) includes projected expenditures for the actions and services aligned to each LCAP goal.  The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Budget Overview for Parents for 2022-23 will provide a high-level ov...
	Update on the 2021-22 LCAP
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:

	8.2-2 SCUSD 2022-23 LCAP_Draft Materials for 5.5.22

	8.3 Item
	8.3 CS Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Agenda Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	8.3-2 ES Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Executive Summary
	ARTICLE 2. Kindergarten and Elementary Schools [46110 - 46120]
	46120.



	8.4 CS for Amended Subcommittee (May 5, 2022) (SC361393xAAE13)
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1a Item
	10.1a CS Grants 5-5-22
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1a-1 0525-442-1 AGREEMENT

	10.1b Item
	10.1b CS Personnel Transactions
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1b-1 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	10.1b-2 Classfied Board Agenda
	Sheet1


	10.1c CS Exp 6 & 7 2021-22REV
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1d Item
	10.1d CS Sutter Boston Trip 5.15.22
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1d-1 Sutter Fld Trip

	10.1e Item
	10.1e CS Matt Callman K-5 Materials Removal
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1e-11 Matt Callman Regulation  3270  Sale And Disposal Of Books Equipment And Supplies (1)

	10.1f ItemR
	10.1f CS Election Order (May 5 2022) (SC361288xAAE13)
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1f-1 Res No 3271 Adopting Specifications of Elections Order (May 2022) (SC361287-2xAAE13)
	10.1f-2 NOTICE OF DISTRICT ELECTION (May 2022) (SC361296xAAE13)
	10.1f-3 Publication of Notice of Election-May 2022 (SC361297xAAE13)

	10.1g Item
	10.1g CS Minutes April 7, 2022
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1g-1 April 7, 2022 First Draft Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	Minutes


	10.1h Item
	10.1h CS 2022-2023 Traditional School Calendarv1
	Meeting Date: May 5, 2022

	10.1h-1 Traditional calendar 2022-2023
	Traditional Cal 22-23


	10.1i Item
	10.1i CS Revised Board Meeting Calendar 2021-22
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	10.1i-1 Rev Board Calendar for the 2021-22 School Year - Revised for June Date Changes
	Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education Meeting Calendar 2021-2022 School Year
	September 16, 2021
	September 2, 2021
	August 19, 2021
	August 5, 2021
	November 18, 2021
	November 4, 2021
	October 21, 2021
	October 7, 2021
	February 17, 2022
	February 3, 2022
	January 13, 2022
	December 16, 2021
	April 21, 2022
	April 7, 2022
	March 17, 2022
	March 3, 2022
	June 16, 2022
	June 2, 2022
	May 19, 2022
	May 5, 2022
	June 23, 2022
	June 9, 2022

	10.1i-2 Revised Board Calendar for 2021-22

	11.1 Item
	11.1 CS Business and Financial Cover_05.05.22
	Meeting Date:  May 5, 2022

	11.1-1 Month 7 for Board Report Draft
	Month 7 Chart
	Month 7 Combined
	Month 7 TraditionalSchool
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool
	Totals
	Charter
	Adult

	Month 7 GradeByGrade
	Grade-by-Grade

	Month 7 CumTotalAbsences
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool







